From: Kate Merriman

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Craneway pavilion in Richmond
Date: Monday, March 11, 2024 7:12:29 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Why has a private pickleball club been allowed to take over the Craneway Pavilion in Richmond without approval
and in violation of the charter to allow public access to the space? Why are we losing this space for Richmond
residents for longstanding annual events?

Kate Merriman
Richmond homeowner
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From: Sandy Tarbet

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: Sandra Tarbet

Subject: Richmond, CA the Craneway Building
Date: Monday, March 11, 2024 7:05:20 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Hello, I am a Richmond resident. Many of us residents are upset that our Craneway Pavilion, which as you know is steeped
in history and is on the waterfront, is being

leased out (as we speak) to a pickleball corporation based in Newport Beach. Our understanding is that it had to get
approval from your Commission and that you did not approve it.

They have presently installed athletic flooring in the whole pavilion, and installed nets, etc also in the whole space. This
will be a for-profit enterprise, most probably members only.

Many of us were in the understanding that the Pavilion was for the use of the public, given its historical past, and also in
the theme of the bay, ships, WW2, etc.

How can this be done? And is your Commission aware of this? Here is a link of the

corporation. https://www.pbdevgroup.com/craneway
Thank you
Sandra Tarbet ..
Sandy
Tarbet

sandy.tarbet

website | facebook | twitter

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: THIS MESSAGE, INCLUDING ANY ATTACHMENTS, IS FOR THE SOLE USE OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT(S) AND MAY CONTAIN
INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, AND EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE. IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, ANY UNAUTHORIZED
REVIEW, USE, DISCLOSURE, DISTRIBUTION, OR ACTION IN RELIANCE ON THIS MESSAGE OR ANY ATTACHMENT IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. PLEASE CONTACT
THE SENDER BY REPLY E-MAIL AND DESTROY ALL COPIES OF THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE.
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From: Christina Valli

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Comment for next virtual meeting
Date: Monday, March 11, 2024 3:30:30 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Please address what is happening at the Craneway Pavillion in Richmond. The city is supposed to be the steward to this
historical spot and maintain its access to the general public. However an expensive pay to play pickleball club has been
installed in the historic building. This is not the want of the majority of the population in Richmond. It pushes out yearly
community events and prioritizes a sport that many in the community do not participate in. This place should be a library
or an indoor soccer field at the least (much more reflective of the people of Richmond). As I understand there was not
approval for this pickleball court. Is that true? And what are the steps to ensure this historical gem in Richmond is used as a
space for the majority of the people there
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From: Dick Andrews

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 2:43:03 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

As you may be aware, the SLC Staff is currently reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase of up to 500% for
offshore mooring and 1000% for shore moorings in Newport Harbor. These moorings are the last affordable
access to boating in Newport Harbor. This proposed rate increase will force average boaters out of the
submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor which fall under SLC oversight jurisdiction.

Currently, the mooring holders pay 4 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for use of the same
submerged tidelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, the mooring holders will be paying up to 20
times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners pay, for use of the exact same tidelands. That’s not fair
and it clearly targets and discriminates against people with moorings.

In pushing this extreme discrimination, the city’s Harbor Commission has completely ignored the January 2024
independent appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach'’s appraisal is way off base and does
not even account for the lack of dinghy docks to get out to our moorings, when every other harbor in California
provides dinghy docks to get out to a mooring. The independent CBRE appraisal, which is being ignored by the
Harbor Commission, shows there is no need for any increase in excess of the CPI.

Fortunately, the granting statute for Newport Bay has a specific clause prohibiting price discrimination in the
harbor. This anti-discrimination clause regarding rates in Newport Harbor dates back to the early 1900’s. It
simply indicates, the city shall not charge one user more than another for the use of the tidelands.
Unfortunately, this price discrimination is occurring today and will only be exacerbated ten fold if the proposed
rate increase is tolerated by this Commission. Lest there be any doubt, the city code itself states that the
people with moorings are to be charged rates similar to other rates charged for users of the tidelands. This
clearly flies contrary to that code.

This is how the proposed rate increase will have an impact on me and my family:

My wife and | are both on disability. So we are on a fixed income the imposed increases in Marine rates will
make my dream of having my boat go away one of the reasons why | was able to get my boat was due to the
Locust Mornings in Newport Harbor. | have worked in Newport Harbor for over 20 years as a service technician
on Marine engines and other boats with the proposed rates of that the city has been talking about | will lose my
home and my dreams

| ask this commission to perform a thorough investigation of this matter. SLC staff has been provided proof that
the City of Newport Beach is using flawed information in the attempt to raise mooring rates up to 500% and
higher for shore moorings, which will clearly push average boaters out of Newport Harbor, while leaving the
rates of other tidelands users alone. Discrimination can’t be tolerated.

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and we encourage this commission to thoroughly
investigate the matter.

discrimination clause regarding rates in Newport Harbor dates back to the early 1900’s. It simply indicates, the
city shall not charge one user more than another for the use of the tidelands. Unfortunately, this price
discrimination is occurring today and will only be exacerbated ten fold if the proposed rate increase is tolerated
by this Commission. Lest there be any doubt, the city code itself states that the people with moorings are to be
charged rates similar to other rates charged for users of the tidelands. This clearly flies contrary to that code.



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

Thank you for your time sincerely Dick Andrews Mooring holder



From: Richard Ashoff

To: GSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 11:26:49 AM

imaged04.png

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

| am writing to bring to your attention a matter of significant concern regarding the proposed mooring rate
increases in Newport Harbor. The current proposal suggests a staggering 500% increase for offshore moorings
and an alarming 1000% increase for shore moorings. These moorings serve as the last affordable access point
to boating in Newport Harbor. Such a drastic rate hike threatens to exclude average boaters from accessing the
submerged tidelands, which fall under the jurisdiction of the State Lands Commission (SLC).

Presently, mooring holders already pay four times more than affluent waterfront homeowners for the use of the
same submerged tidelands. If the proposed rate increase is implemented, mooring holders would be subjected
to paying up to 20 times more than their waterfront counterparts for the exact same privileges. This disparity is
unjust and unequivocally discriminates against individuals with moorings.

Furthermore, it is concerning that the Harbor Commission has disregarded the findings of an independent
appraisal conducted by CBRE in January 2024. This appraisal highlights significant discrepancies in the city of
Newport Beach's valuation methodology, notably failing to account for essential infrastructure such as dinghy
docks, which are standard in cother California harbors. The CBRE appraisal concludes that there is no
justification for a rate increase beyond the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

It is worth noting that the granting statute for Newport Bay includes a specific clause prohibiting price
discrimination within the harbor, dating back to the early 1900s. This clause mandates that the city cannot
charge one user more than another for the use of tidelands. Regrettably, the proposed rate increase constitutes
blatant price discrimination, directly contravening both the spirit and letter of this statute.

| urge this commission to conduct a thorough investigation into this matter. Evidence suggests that the City of
Newport Beach is relying on flawed information to justify exorbitant rate hikes for moorings, effectively pricing
out average boaters while leaving the rates for other tideland users unaffected. Such discriminatory practices
cannot be tolerated.

| implore the commission to take decisive action in rectifying this issue. We are grateful to the State Lands staff
for their attention to this matter and urge the commission to undertake a comprehensive investigation.

Sincerely,

B. Rgds,

Richard Ashoff

To facilitate energy efficiency adoption, products must be developed to save energy, not add to the labor envelope, and use the
environment’s pre-existing infrastructure.
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From: liff Auerswal

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Urgent Appeal: End Unfair Mooring Rate Hikes in Newport Harbor - Public Comment for April 4 SLC Meeting
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 6:53:53 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Esteemed Commissioners,

| am writing to express my deep concern over the proposed mooring rate increases in Newport Harbor, as
outlined by the SLC Staff. These increases, which could rise to 500% for offshore moorings and an
unprecedented 1000% for shore moorings, are not just exorbitant—they threaten the very fabric of our boating
community, representing the last bastion of affordable access to boating in the harbor.

It's critical to note that mooring holders, a diverse group comprising average-income families and enthusiasts,
already bear a disproportionately high cost, paying four times more than affluent waterfront homeowners for
access to the same submerged tidelands. Should this proposal pass, our financial burden would skyrocket to 20
times more than our affluent counterparts for identical tideland usage. This stark disparity feels unjust and
directly discriminates against middle and lower-income boaters, who are the backbone of Newport Harbor's
vibrant maritime culture.

The Harbor Commission's oversight of the January 2024 independent appraisal by CBRE has also raised
concerns. This appraisal starkly contrasts with the city's valuation, highlighting significant oversights, including
the absence of dinghy docks—a basic amenity provided in every other Californian harbor. Ignoring this
appraisal suggests disregarding equitable treatment and failing to justify any increase beyond the Consumer
Price Index (CPI).

Moreover, the essence of Newport Bay's granting statute, dating back to the early 20th century, is being
overlooked. It explicitly prohibits price discrimination within the harbor, mandating equal charges for all tideland
users. The proposed rate hike starkly contravenes this mandate, amplifying existing inequalities.

The impact of these proposed increases on my family and me would be profound. Like many others in the
Newport Island community, we primarily own small boats, such as rib boats or 12-foot Boston Whalers, which
are modestly valued. These vessels, nestled within the serene channels rather than the open bay, demand far
less in terms of maintenance and space from the harbor. Yet, under the proposed scheme, we are lumped
together with owners of far larger and more valuable vessels, facing the same punitive rate increases. This one-
size-fits-all approach neglects our community's unique characteristics and needs, making it economically
unfeasible for us to continue enjoying the harbor's waters. The prospect of relinquishing our mooring permits
looms large, as our vessels' modest value and utility cannot justify the increased cost.

In light of these concerns, | implore the Commission to conduct a thorough and fair review of this proposal. The
evidence and discrepancies presented by the SLC staff, including the neglect of the CBRE independent
appraisal and the infringement of anti-discrimination clauses in the harbor's governing statutes, demand
scrutiny. Our request is simple: to uphold the principles of fairness and equity that have long governed the use
of Newport Harbor's tidelands.

We are grateful for the State Lands staff's attention to this matter and urge the Commission to reevaluate the
proposed rate increases with a lens of fairness and justice, ensuring Newport Harbor remains a welcoming and
accessible place for all who cherish its waters.

Regards,

Cliff Auerswald

Shore Mooring



From: Bacor

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 10:59:44 PM

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

My family has had a morning for about 40 years. Raising the rates up to 500% would force us to sell
the morning and boat we own. We love our harbor and want to give our kids the same experience but this
increase would prevent that from happening.

| ask this commission to perform a thorough investigation of this matter. SLC staff has been provided proof that
the City of Newport Beach is using flawed information in the attempt to raise mooring rates up to 500% and
higher for shore moorings, which will clearly push average boaters out of Newport Harbor while leaving the
rates of other tidelands users alone. Discrimination can’t be tolerated.

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and we encourage this commission to thoroughly
investigate the matter.



From: nigelt

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: FW: Newport Harbor Mooring fees
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 4:46:43 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

From: nigelb@

Sent: Saturday, March 30, 2024 4:42 PM

To: 'cslc.commissionmeeting@slc.ca.cov' <cslc.commissionmeeting@slc.ca.cov>
Subject: Newport Harbor Mooring fees

I will be brief since | suspect you will receive many comments: | have been a mooring holder for 15 years or so. It is the only way |
can afford to enjoy our harbor and the ocean beyond. | am an 88 year old, living on social security. Based on the current proposal
we (the mooring holders) will be paying far more for our little patch of mud than wealthier dock owners. We are boaters but we
aren’t wealthy and the proposed cost hike would put many of us out of the harbor. If you attended a harbor department meeting
and looked at the audience you would see regular citizens trying to hold on to the privilege of being able to use the harbor and
access to the ocean. We have no dinghy docks, no shuttle to get us out to our moorings. We get to our moorings by our own
effort. The city provides nothing except consternation over our constant battle to make our moorings affordable to the common
man (and woman). A rate hike is unwelcome, the one proposed is unconscionable. Nigel Bailey, Mooring number
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From: Barbara

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 12:53:38 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Hello SLC

With so many emails and people contacting you regarding the Mooring issue in Newport Beach I surely hope that
you pay attention to the findings. The city continues to use Netzer as an appraisal company. Many believe that
there is collusion within the city. There is proof through emails, with city staff members, and the Harbor
commissioners, telling Mr. Netzer how to organize and charge the rates for this increase and other increases through
the many years that Netzer has worked with the city. You will find that Mr. Netzer has a conflict of interest since he
sits on a board in Newport Harbor and has done over many years. He has never once disclosed that matter.

Many people in our Newport community believe that we no longer have a say since it is basically run by the very
wealthy.

I know Newport Mooring Association, is a trusted and reliable resource that has valuable information and I am sure
they have contacted you. When the city contacts SLC I am sure they will persuade you to think as they do, please
take a step back. There is something seriously wrong with our city, and the truthfulness of what is actually going on.

Thank you,
Barbara
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From: chris bliss

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Newport Harbor Mooring Fee Increase
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 1:45:14 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

To:
State Lands Commission
Re: Mooring fee increases

Dear Commissioners

My wife and | are avid sailors and have had our mooring for 30 years. During that time, we have dutifully paid all
the fees on time, and every 2 years kept up with the required maintenance of the mooring equipment. We have
been members of South Shore Yacht Club for 10 years.

My wife, Susan, has been an instructor with a Ph.D. at Saddleback Community College for over 25 years. She
has devoted her life to the public good, and by helping the lives of young people, has made Orange County a
better place to live.

| am a professional photographer who has worked for many years for the Orange County Museum of Art,
Laguna Museu, numerous other Orange County arts institutions, and have been an active exhibitor at the
Laguna Beach Festival of Arts for 30 years.

We both are retiring this year and had been planning on spending as much time as possible on our boat and
being involved in sailing and boating activities. Now, it seems that the Harbor Commission is considering
changes that would dash our hopes and plans, along with those of many of our fellow mooring holders.

If our meeting fees are indeed increased by the amounts proposed by the latest figures (up to 500%) , which
were presented at the last Harbor Commission meeting, we simply will not be able to afford to keep the boat
and mooring. This, of course, presents another dilemma that most people may face: It may be impossible to sell
the boat and mooring, as no one would be able to afford the mooring fees. The market for boats on moorings
may just dry up, and many people may be forced to just walk away. Their plans, like our retirement plans, will
go down the drain.

It seems outrageous to raise the fees so astronomically, considering that we have no easy access to the
mooring, no parking, no water, no power, and no amenities of any kind whatsoever.

The Newport Beach City Council has come up with these numbers by using the Netzer appraisal, which is
deeply flawed. When using marinas and slips as a source for comparison, it is like comparing a stay at the Ritz
Carlton to camping.

To the wealthy and privileged people who make up much of our local governance, an increase of a few
thousand dollars may seem like mere pocket change.

To most mooring owners, 90% of whom are middle class, such an increase will be a devastating blow, forcing
them out of boating, and out of the harbor altogether.

I recently phoned the Harbor Departments of all of the harbors from San Francisco south to San Diego that
have moorings. | personally spoke with the Harbormaster in each harbor and got exact information on pricing
and fees in each mooring area. | found that EVERY ONE of the mooring areas are LESS EXPENSIVE than
what we are paying NOW! Additionally, every mooring area has access to a 24 hr dingy dock included, or for a
nominal extra fee. NEWPORT BEACH PROVIDES NO ACCESS OR AMENITIES OF ANY KIND FOR
MOORING USERS, BUT NONETHELESS WANTS TO RAISE FEES BY AS MUCH AS 500%!!

In addition, there have been instances of blatant price discrimination found, as well as conflicts of interest with
people involved with the flawed Netzer appraisal.

| sincerely hope that the State Lands Commission will investigate this clear abuse of the intended use doctrine
by the City of Newport Beach.
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Thank you,
Christopher Bliss

Also, please see the following report:

Mooring fees in California 2024

Avalon

Moorings are privately owned and are priced on the open market.
A 40’ mooring was recently sold for $275K.

The city takes a 5% transfer fee when the mooring permit is sold.

Yearly fees to the city are $1.09 per foot x12. (for overall boat size, not mooring size).

Yearly fee to city for a 40’ boat is $523.20.
24/7 dingy docks provided.

Morro Bay

Privately owned moorings go for about $1000 per foot. A 40’ Foot mooring was found on Craigs List for sale for 40K.
Mooring tackle is Owner-owned and must be serviced every 2 years.

Yearly fee to city is $1320.
24/7 dingy dock provided.

an Diego America’ Harbor
(These are the most expensive moorings in San Diego)

No privately owned moorings in San Diego, all are maintained and run by the city.

Yearly fee for up to 65’ mooring is $1884.84 plus $79 application fee.
24/7 dingy dock provided.

Monterey Bay

The mooring user leases the space in the water and the cement weights from the city.
Owner provides his own chain and buoy, which must be inspected yearly by private contractor. The harbor Master
estimates that inspections are around $300.

All sizes moorings yearly fee is $1000.
24/7 dingy dock provided for $600 per year.

San Francisco Bay.

There are NO mooring fields in all of San Francisco Bay due to windy conditions.

Conclusion:

Aver fees for moorings in California for a 40 f
with dingy docks provided:

$1332.01

We have all been paying way more than this without dingy dock access for years, and it is well



within our rights to ask for a

RATE DECREASE!



From: Mike Branson

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Fwd: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 8:23:02 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

I am writing due to my deep concern over the proposed mooring rate increase the SLC Staff is currently reviewing. The
rate increase of up to 500% for offshore mooring and 1000% for shore moorings in Newport Harbor is of great concern to
me because I am a current shore mooring holder and such an increase would place the mooring out of my ability to retain.
At their current rates, these moorings are the last affordable access to boating in Newport Harbor. This proposed rate
increase will force average boaters like myself out of the submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor which fall under SLC
oversight jurisdiction. Furthermore, the money I already paid for my mooring would probably be lost as my ability to
recoup my investment would most likely be lost as well since most other people like myself who use the onshore moorings
that are limited to small boats and dinghies would most likely find the new rate structure much less palatable, I will
explain later.

Currently, mooring holders pay 4 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for use of the same submerged
tidelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, the mooring holders will be paying up to 20 times more than the
affluent waterfront homeowners pay, for use of the exact same tidelands. That’s not fair and it clearly targets and
discriminates against people with moorings.

In pushing this extreme discrimination, the city’s Harbor Commission has completely ignored the January 2024
independent appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach’s appraisal is flawed, missing some basic items
that the professional appraisal by CBRE brings to light such as the lack of dinghy docks to get out to channel moorings,
when every other harbor in California provides dinghy docks to get out to a mooring or the disparity between the private
docks. The independent CBRE appraisal, which is being ignored by the Harbor Commission, shows there is no need for
any increase in excess of the CPL

The granting statute for Newport Bay has a specific clause prohibiting price discrimination in the harbor which cannot be
ignored. This anti-discrimination clause regarding rates in Newport Harbor dates back to the early 1900’s. It simply
indicates, the city shall not charge one user more than another for the use of the tidelands. This price discrimination is
occurring today and will only be exacerbated ten fold if the proposed rate increase is tolerated by this Commission and the
answer is not to also increase the private docks as the CBRE appraisal supports using other harbors for comparison in
California. Lest there be any doubt, the city code itself states that the people with moorings are to be charged rates similar
to other rates charged for users of the tidelands. It would smack of discrimination to levy the largest increase to the smaller
shore moorings followed by the harbor moorings with no services to the mooring and leave the lowest rates and increases
to the most affluent waterfront homes with the most services.

This is how the proposed rate increase will have an impact on me and my family:

We would most likely lose our ability to use the harbor by boat as we could not keep the mooring at the greatly increased
rates and furthermore, would stand to lose thousands of dollars as we would not be able to recoup our investments. |
believe the mooring would become unmarketable when many others like us find themselves in the same circumstances and
people with small boats and dinghies are not willing or are unable to pay the proposed rates that in many cases will exceed
the values of the boats stored at those moorings.

I ask this commission to perform a thorough investigation of this matter. SLC staff has been provided proof that the City
of Newport Beach is using questionable information in the attempt to raise mooring rates up to 500% and higher for shore
moorings, which will clearly push average boaters out of Newport Harbor while leaving the rates of other tidelands users
alone. Discrimination would be a terrible thing to lose a lifestyle to in our beloved city.

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and we encourage this commission to thoroughly investigate
the matter.

Thank you,

Michael Branson
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From: Christopher Bridge

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 12:51:17 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

I’m sure you are aware of the proposed dramatic increase in rents for offshore moorings in Newport Beach. | would
like to make you aware of how this unexpected and exorbitant increase in the rent would affect my family
personally.

| purchased my mooring in Newport Harbor for the significant investment of $50,000. For my family this purchase
price put us into debt, but we rationalized this as we would save money over time in comparison to renting an
onshore slip. The use of our mooring has not been easy as access is restricted to a few public docks in Newport
Harbor and there is no place to leave a dinghy more than 24 hours, meaning we have significant inconvenience and
set up time each and every time we make use of our boat.

With the dramatic increase in rents proposed the benefit of an offshore mooring versus a shoreside slip is
significantly reduced. However, there are NO slips available for my vessel, having checked recently from Ensenada
to Santa Barbara. As my boat is a catamaran (two hulls) and is therefore wider than your typical sail or powerboat
there are no alternative arrangements for my family’s pleasure boat.

| do believe if the increase in rents as proposed goes ahead, | (and others in my situation) will be priced out of the
Newport Beach harbor market which we have long enjoyed and shared with family members and friends. As there
are no alternative possibilities this would very likely result in the sale of my boat and the end of my family’s boating
lifestyle.

Newport Harbor will become even more the domain of the rich.

| understand there are also legal arguments and challenges to the appraisal methodology, but | will leave that for
others to explain in detail.

Please do not allow the Newport Beach City Council the authority to destroy so many Southern Californians’ ability
to use the harbor and access to the ocean at a reasonable cost.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.
Yours sincerely
Christopher J Bridge

mooring BYC



From: Tim Byrne

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: Tim Byrne

Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 6:09:19 AM

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
times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners pay, for use of the exact same tidelands. That's not fair
and it clearly targets and discriminates against people with moorings.

In pushing this extreme rate hike, the city’s Harbor Commission has completely ignored the January 2024
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

Tim Byrne
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From: Kenny Calvert

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 8:10:14 PM

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

I own and operate a small commercial fishing business, keeping my boat on a mooring in Newport Harbor. Over
the past few years, it's been increasingly challenging to remain profitable with operating costs like fuel and parts
skyrocketing. Allowing the Harbor Commission to increase the mooring rates by this exorbitant amount would
be even more detrimental to my family's livelihood.

The granting statute for Newport Bay has a specific clause prohibiting price discrimination in the harbor. This
anti-discrimination clause dates back to the early 1900’s and simply indicates that the city shall not charge one
user more than another for the use of the tidelands.

Mooring holders currently pay 4 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for use of the same
submerged tidelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, mooring holders will be paying up to 20 times
more than the affluent waterfront homeowners pay for use of the exact same tidelands. That's not fair and it
clearly targets and discriminates against people with moorings.

In pushing this extreme discrimination, the city’s Harbor Commission has completely ignored the January 2024
independent appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach'’s appraisal is way off base and does
not even account for the lack of dinghy docks to get out to our moorings, when every other harbor in California
provides dinghy docks to get out to a mooring. The independent CBRE appraisal shows there is no need for
any increase in excess of the CPI.

| appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and | encourage this commission to thoroughly
investigate the matter to prevent this discrimination.

Regards,
Kenneth Calvert

Calvert Fishing Inc.
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From: Roy Cammarano

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: April 4th Please Stop the Class Discrimination
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 11:03:51 AM

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

Roy F Cammarano

C-11 Newport Beach Harbor

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
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From: Patand Bud C

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written Public Comment non-standard Item April 4 - SLC Please stop the inequality of the proposed mooring rate increase in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 12:42:52 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

We are a retired couple with a permit to rent a mooring with a permit to live a board in Newport Harbor. As a couple on a
fixed income we do not have the extra wealth to invest that could make us wealthy. The mooring holders around me are
teachers, a firefighter, a retired Newport Beach sheriff department employee, numerous veterans, at least two harbor
employees, numerous tourism workers, etc. These working people are lucky if their incomes have kept up with inflation.
The majority of the approximate 48 live a boards are retired on a fixed income. In todays economy, generally, only the
wealthy get wealthier and many of the wealthy can pay the Marina’s rising prices (again, no where’s near 400%). Is it
equality that the non-wealthy mooring holders go up even more? However, the homeowners along the harbor’s shoreline
pay considerably less than the mooring holders for only their pier sq. ft. not even for the vessels moored on the piers. They
use far more of the tidelands for far less with no increase proposed. Plus they can rent out the area they’re not using and
profit 20 times what they pay out. Absolute inequality!

The following is direct from title 17 — the Harbor Code
17.05.090 Local Coastal Program.

C. Where applicable, development in Newport Harbor shall:

2. Provide a variety of berthing opportunities reflecting State and regional demand for slip size and affordability
throughout Newport Harbor;

4. Protect shore moorings and offshore moorings as an important source of low-cost public access to the water and
harbor;

The other numbered lines 5 thru 8§ all use the expression “expand and enhance” various public harbor facilities such as
dinghy docks, pump out stations, etc. none of which has changed since the code was written, adding to the question of why
the huge increase?

To sum up. In a pure commercial sense, charging whatever can be charged that would create as much revenue as possible
might be fair but would not be fair if it goes against the very principles that is stated in it’s own Code of purpose and, just
as important, the city of Newport Beach is not a commercial enterprise.

It's stated goal is affordability but the perception in the mooring community is the city wants to cleanse the moorings of the
poor. If you cannot afford these higher rates, You must be poor and therefore not wanted. If many of the existing mooring
permit holders, the non-wealthy “common working people”, the teachers, veterans, firefighters, retirees, leave are they
poor? Would that make it unaffordable but somehow still within the cities “affordable” goal? If wealthier people replace
them, is it proven to be affordable again but then is that equitable?

We are not poor but had we expected such an increase before we obtained our permit we would have done things
financially different. I feel we had made a handshake agreement with the city and the city is going against it doing so
extremely unreasonably. If my wife and I decide to remain paying the increase in spite of the strain on our finances because
we have too much to lose leaving (like numerous others), does that mean a 400% increase is fair and equitable? If other
comparable uses of the tide lands is paying considerably less for essentially the same usage but with more convenience and
amenities, is that equality?

Sincerely, Herman Coomans, mooring
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April 3, 2024

To the Various Government Agencies Determining a Fair Rental Rate to be Charged the
Mooring Permit Holders in Newport Beach Harbor,

As a permit holder of a mooring and a permitted live a board I would like you to consider three
interpretations of a “fair and equitable” rental rate as opposed to the Netzer & Associates
appraisal being considered by the Newport Harbor Commission.

The Merriam-Webster dictionary defines Fair Market Value as: a price at which buyers and
sellers with a reasonable knowledge of pertinent facts and not acting under any compulsion are
willing to do business.

My three rental price valuation reasoning considering this definition are:

The purely Capitalist approach which is “what the market will bear”. This approach, I contend, is
only what the Netzer appraisal and therefore the Newport Beach Harbor Commission is
proposing. Fairness and equality are not considered, only at what rental rate that could be
charged that would bring the most revenue while fulfilling a demand. Referring back to the
definition of Market Value - not acting under compulsion, most present mooring holders will be
compelled to pay the increase simply because they have too much invested in both the mooring
and the vessel stored on it to decline. Some of that investment was that the city, in 2015,
removed the waiting list to rent a mooring and made it official that one had to pay to a private
party a sum agreed to by both parties to transfer that permit to the buyer. There was nothing
nefarious, underhanded or illegal since then because it was the ONLY way to obtain a permit. It
was what the city ruled would be the only way to become a mooring permit holder. However,
recently, at least one city council member has stated he “can’t get my head around” the transfer
process and is questioning the very rule his predecessors put in place and forced us to participate
in. By losing our transfer equity it seems we are being punished for something we had no choice
in.

Another thought is on Fairness. In early 2018 the then harbor commission considered an
appraisal done by the same company, Netzer & Associates, and they then established mooring
rental rates. It was stated the rates shall be raised according to CPI. Since then, inflation (CPI)
has been about 28% or a 3.5% yearly average. Knowing this and considering our finances at the
time and reasonable future expectations, we bought a boat we could comfortably live on and
would be proud of. What can possibly be fair about an unexpected 400% plus increase? The
appraisal's comparable marinas have not increased that much, nothing has. What has changed in
the time between the two appraisals that makes this huge increase fair?

The third possibility would be equality. As a couple on a fixed income we do not have the extra
wealth to invest that could make us wealthy. The mooring holders around me are teachers, a
firefighter, a retired Newport Beach sheriff department employee, numerous veterans, at least
two harbor employees, numerous local tourism workers, etc. These working people are lucky if
their incomes have kept up with inflation. The majority of the approximate 48 live a boards are
retired on a fixed income. In todays economy, generally, only the wealthy get wealthier and
many of the wealthy can pay the Marina’s rising prices (again, no where’s near 400%). Marinas



are private, for profit entities who's goal is to make as much income as it can, the city is not. Is it
equality that the non-wealthy mooring holders go up even more? Meanwhile, the homeowners
along the harbor’s shoreline pay considerably less than the mooring holders for only their pier sq.
ft. not even for the vessels moored on the piers. They use far more of the tidelands for far less
with no increase proposed. Plus they can rent out the area they’re not using and profit 20 times
what they pay out. Absolute inequality!

The following is direct from title 17 — the Harbor Code
17.05.090 Local Coastal Program.

C. Where applicable, development in Newport Harbor shall:

2. Provide a variety of berthing opportunities reflecting State and regional demand for slip
size and affordability throughout Newport Harbor;

4. Protect shore moorings and offshore moorings as an important source of low-cost public
access to the water and harbor.

The other numbered lines 5 thru 8 all use the expression “expand and enhance” various public
harbor facilities such as dinghy docks, pump out stations, etc. none of which has changed since
the code was written, adding to the question of why the huge increase?

To sum up. In a pure commercial sense, charging whatever can be charged that would create as
much revenue as possible might be fair but would not be fair if it goes against the very principles
that is stated in it’s own Code of purpose and, just as important, the city of Newport Beach is not
a commercial enterprise. It's stated goal is affordability but the perception in the mooring
community is the city wants to cleanse the moorings of the poor. If you cannot afford these
higher rates, they don’t want you. If many of the existing mooring permit holders, the non-
wealthy “common working people”, the teachers, veterans, firefighters, retirees, leave are they
the poor? Would that make it unaffordable for them yet, somehow, still within the cities
“affordable” goal? If wealthier people replace them, is it proven to be affordable again? Is that
equitable?

With careful planning we are financially secure but on a fixed income. Had we expected such an
increase before we obtained our permit we would have done things financially different. I feel
we had made a handshake agreement with the city and the city is going against it, doing so
extremely unreasonably. If my wife and I decide to remain paying the increase because we have
too much to lose by leaving (like numerous others), does that mean a 400% increase is fair and
equitable? If other comparable uses of the tide lands is paying considerably less for essentially
the same usage but with more convenience and amenities, is that equality?

Please consider the view point of myself, a retired blue-collar machinist but a viewpoint that |
am confident echoes the majority of mooring permit holders in Newport Harbor.

Sincerely, Herman (Bud) Coomans
Mooring H-



From: diego@marmolusa.com

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 10:04:29 AM

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
access to boating in Newport Harbor This proposed rate increase will force average boaters out of the
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

Another example on how the current practices discriminate mooring holders is by prohibiting to rent the space
to 3" parties even for small periods when it is not in use. The affluent waterfront homeowners can rent to 3
parties earning profits from this transaction.

In pushing this extreme discrimination, the city’s Harbor Commission has completely ignored the January 2024
independent appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach’s appraisal is way off base and does
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
investigate the matter
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From: Keith Doolittle

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC- Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 10:54:03 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

As you may be aware, the SLC Staff is currently reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase of up to 500% for offshore
mooring and 1000% for shore moorings in Newport Harbor. These moorings are the last affordable access to boating in
Newport Harbor. This proposed rate increase will force average boaters out of the submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor
which fall under SLC oversight jurisdiction.

Currently, the mooring holders pay 4 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for use of the same submerged
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
independent appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach’s appraisal is way off base and does not even
account for the lack of dinghy docks to get out to our moorings, when every other harbor in California provides dinghy
docks to get out to a mooring. The independent CBRE appraisal, which is being ignored by the Harbor Commission, shows
there is no need for any increase in excess of the CPI.

Fortunately, the granting statute for Newport Bay has a specific clause prohibiting price discrimination in the harbor. This
anti-discrimination clause regarding rates in Newport Harbor dates back to the early 1900’s. It simply indicates, the city
shall not charge one user more than another for the use of the tidelands. Unfortunately, this price discrimination is
occurring today and will only be exacerbated ten fold if the proposed rate increase is tolerated by this Commission. Lest
there be any doubt, the city code itself states that the people with moorings are to be charged rates similar to other rates
charged for users of the tidelands. This clearly flies contrary to that code.

The proposed rate increase will impact my family by raising the monthly rate of our shore mooring by 1,000%.
This would make the rental of our shore mooring out of our price range and destroy our ability to be able to use our
boat in the harbor.

I ask this commission to perform a thorough investigation of this matter. SLC staff has been provided proof that the City
of Newport Beach is using flawed information in the attempt to raise mooring rates up to 500% and higher for shore
moorings, which will clearly push average boaters out of Newport Harbor while leaving the rates of other tidelands users
alone. Discrimination can’t be tolerated.

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and we encourage this commission to thoroughly investigate
the matter.

Keith Doolittle
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From: Karl Drews

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 6:11:43 PM

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

We have had the license for mooring A 226 for over 35 years. The mooring has provided a reasonable cost for
access to the boat and ocean. Over this time we have enjoyed sailing to Catalina and cruising the So Cal coast
with our children, friends and other family members.

The license fee is not the only cost for boating access. Because the City of Newport Beach doesn't have
parking facilities and the dinghy storage/access is sub-standard, Yacht Club Membership is a requirement. In
my younger years, before | could join a club, | carried a dinghy to public docks and rowed out to the mooring.
This is not a reasonable option at 70 years of age.

The appraisal that was commissioned by the City of Newport Beach is unrealistic considering the available
facilities. The methodology of the appraisal is extremely questionable and does not consider the underserved.

The proposed rent increase is of such an extreme magnitude it is prejudicial to the Senior citizen mooring
license holders. We are on a fixed income and can not absorb such an increase.

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

Thank you for your consideration,

Karl Drews
2nd generation born in Los Angeles, raised in Orange County



From: Gary Egloff

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 5:51:06 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

As you may be aware, the SLC Staff is currently reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase of up
to 500% for offshore mooring and 1000% for shore moorings in Newport Harbor. These moorings
are the last affordable access to boating in Newport Harbor. This proposed rate increase will force
average boaters out of the submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor which fall under SLC oversight
jurisdiction.

Currently, the mooring holders pay 4 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for use of
the same submerged tidelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, the mooring holders will
be paying up to 20 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners pay, for use of the exact
same tidelands. That’s not fair and it clearly targets and discriminates against people with moorings.

In pushing this extreme discrimination, the city’s Harbor Commission has completely ignored the
January 2024 independent appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach'’s appraisal is
way off base and does not even account for the lack of dinghy docks to get out to our moorings,
when every other harbor in California provides dinghy docks to get out to a mooring. The
independent CBRE appraisal, which is being ignored by the Harbor Commission, shows there is no
need for any increase in excess of the CPI.

Fortunately, the granting statute for Newport Bay has a specific clause prohibiting price
discrimination in the harbor. This anti-discrimination clause regarding rates in Newport Harbor dates
back to the early 1900’s. It simply indicates, the city shall not charge one user more than another for
the use of the tidelands. Unfortunately, this price discrimination is occurring today and will only be
exacerbated ten fold if the proposed rate increase is tolerated by this Commission. Lest there be
any doubt, the city code itself states that the people with moorings are to be charged rates similar to
other rates charged for users of the tidelands. This clearly flies contrary to that code.

| have a mooring off Sapphire and | am retired and if this passes | will have to leave. | will have no place
to put the family Grady White and will probably have to sell it. What a shame to end my life like this,
being forced out of a place that | and family have grown up here.

| ask this commission to perform a thorough investigation of this matter. SLC staff has been
provided proof that the City of Newport Beach is using flawed information in the attempt to raise
mooring rates up to 500% and higher for shore moorings, which will clearly push average boaters
out of Newport Harbor while leaving the rates of other tidelands users alone. Discrimination can’t be
tolerated.

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and we encourage this commission to
thoroughly investigate the matter.
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From: Mike Fleming_

Sent: Thursday, April 4, 2024 2:29 PM
To: CSLC CommissionMeetings <CSLC.CommissionMeetings@slc.ca.gov>
Subject: Newport Harbor mooring fees

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Hello State lands commission. Today | was the last zoom call speaker but | was technically too

challenged to make my comments verbally on zoom. So | will try to make a 3 min email & . The
Newport Beach city management of the tideland harbor has a history of trying to raise funds on its
stewardship of the tidelands. The waterfront homeowners were able to shut them down with their
famous “Stop the Dock Tax” campaign back around 2010. Back then my mooring rates which were
about $1200/year started increasing going up annually approx to $1800, then $2400, then $3200,
then $4300, and my next year was to be over $5000. Someone from your commission wrote a letter
to the city and the rates dropped back down ,however here it is 8 years later and the stop the dock
tax folks apparently got themselves a deal so that now only the moorings held by individual citizens
(58 percent of mooring holders are not from NB) are grossly undervalued and need a rate increase.
I’m not sure why the current mooring rate which is so much higher than your Southern California
benchmark rates can be raised without your approval? Now there are other moorings in the harbor
that are not owned by citizens, that would be the yacht club owned moorings. The yacht club
members pay the YC, interestingly similar rates to the cities newly suggested rates for

citizen Individually owned moorings. Itis impossible for me to find out what the yacht club pays the
city for their moorings. There is a possibility that there is some profit taking in this arrangement. |
did not hear that the yacht club would pay the city the newly suggested rates. The yacht club
moorings are very privileged in that they are single point moorings, which can swing 360 degrees
taking up much more space than the common citizen mooring, the single point mooring is much
easier to use to moor and unmoor your boat, they are in sync with the wind and the tidal current
which lets you approach like a plane landing and taking off into the wind. The more expensive
citizen owned moorings which is two separate fixed moorings that are always in conflict effected
by tidal flows and wind in a less accommodating manner. They are an inferior product and less
valuable. They take up much less space than the yacht club moorings, and you have to deal with
cross wind and adverse tides, yet they are paying more for less. One of the services the YC provides
for its members is a shore boat to take you to and from your yacht club car parking lot to your yacht
club yacht parking lot. The city provides no such service and wants to increase the cost of the
moorings they are in charge of. To get to your moored boat you need another smaller boat, a tender
or dingy. There are over 800 moorings and public dock cleats for less than a third of the necessary
tenders. If you leave your tender at the public dock more than 72 hours it will be impounded and
cost $200 to get back. Mooring holders go through many hoops to make any sort of regular use of
their moorings. The most labor hours booked by the harbor dept employees is to every day 2-3
times a day at every public dock to hand write on bright yellow notices when and where your dingy
was, and also photograph the situation and blue tape them onto the boats that have not violated
any time limit yet.... but to use to validate if you overstay your time limit, and then they are justified
in impounding your boat. There is one side of the public dock for 3 hour time limit, one for 20 mins,
two for 24 hours and one for 72 hours. There are limits to size of boats allowed to use the dock. If



you are oversized it’s impounded $200 to get your boat back. Inspite of these poor service
conditions the harbor commission is trying to get approved a mooring arrangement that pushes all
the non yacht club moorings closer together and would allow the city to sell more moorings to
generate revenue, to help pay for all this new paperwork service, but there was no discussion of
where the new mooring holders would park their dinghy’s. Now let’s look back at the private
waterfront home pier permits, It seems that the real reason that the the price of moorings in
Newport are so valuable is that the real “fair market value” for a slip in NB harbor is dictated by the
waterfront property owners who are paying $0.54- $0.58 cents a sq ft for their docks. Why must
some pay $0.58 when others only pay $0.54 cents. Well | think you pay the higher rate if you admit
to the city that you rent out part of your dock to the Fair market. Many single finger docks have a big
daddy 50’ powerboat on one side and big mama’s electric Duffy party boat on the other side, and
still have room to rent out a $2000/month spot to their neighbor across the street. | know a fella
that pays $4000/ month for his 52’ powerboat, parked in front of a rental home. Between the 2- 50’
power boats parked there and the two 26’ open bow boats and the 4 Duffy boats, the guy renting
the condo is making over $10,000 per month on his private home owner pier marina! | wonder if the
city could charge atax,....oh wait that’s right nope can’t do that. Imagine it’s come down to the end
of your 72 hour dingy dock limit and you come down to move your boat, but in this luxurious
Newport Beach city run harbor your dingy is sitting in the mud twice a day. Yes you can see how
undervalued the moorings are in

New Porsche Beach. Please don’t let them send the real people back to the inland empire and high
desert lakes, we like the ocean too!






Mike Fleming
USCG Master 100 tons

Newport Beach,Ca. -



From: natalie fogarty

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Newport Beach Mooring issue
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 11:42:36 AM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

The Harbor Commission has ignored the unbiased CBRE appraisal and wishes to push through an unfair
increase for the moorings. The mooring owners already pay for all the upkeep of their moorings and the city
has no cost for maintaining the moorings. Please prevent this large increase to these mooring rates.

Natalie Fogarty
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From: JOHN and GAY FOTSCH

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: mail@newportmooringassociation.org

Subject: SLC Please Stop The Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 4:36:47 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
Dear Commissioners,

As a Newport Beach Shore Mooring Permittee (Mooring # ) I'm feeling quite violated at the point and time. | feel as
though since the

The city of Newport Beach has obtained operational control over the Newport Harbor Tidelands and Moorings . It has been
a battle between the (Haves) and (Have Nots). The City of Newport Beach has on its face chosen to punish mooring
permittees with hard handed threats of unrealistic and unfair fee increases all the while being adverse to using the same
tactics with Newport Beach Dock owners such as the Irvine Company. These dock holders obtain far more use of the Tide
Lands at a much more detrimental environmental effect. This projected fee increase is Totally Unfair and Unjust. The
wealthy Newport Harbor homeowners are being given a free pass at the expense of those less fortunate that the California
Coastal Commission was created to level the playing field for access to the coastal lands to all of California citizens. (Please
Stop this (Unfair) treatment of the less fortunate Mooring Permittees.

Sincerely,

John Fotsch
Shore Mooring Permittee
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From: Cheryl

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: Joe Stapleton; keith@

Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 3:17:40 PM

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

The existing mooring fee structure (and mooring maintenance which the mooring holders pay ourseles) have
been factored into our household budgets. The proposed 400% increases make this an unexpected and
unaffordable expense. It would very likely mean having to sell our sailboat. If even half of the current
mooring holders also had to sell their boats, there would be a huge increase in the number of boats on the market,
negatively impacting their values. This creates another hardship. Dock fees are now completely unaffordable
by most average households and are not an option. The result of these fee increases would be to greatly
reduce access to our public harbor for average income households.

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

My husband and | have attended the city Harbor Commission meetings and feel that the information submitted
regarding the flawed Netzer appraisal methodology and the input of mooring holders about how the proposed
rate increases would affect them are not being taken into account . In many cases the Commission treated
public input with what can only be described as dismissiveness and disrespect.
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We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and we encourage this commission to thoroughly
investigate the matter.

Keith and Cheryl Garrison



From: Gary George

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: Danita George

Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 12:42:18 PM

Attachments: ATT 1.pn:

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

After 68 years on this planet we final realized our life long desire to have a boat on a mooring in Newport Harbor, after
spending 45,000.00 to acquire a 50' offshore lease, we are fearful that we will not be able to afford these proposed
increases on a retirement income.

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

Gary George | President

www.georgegeneral.com

0: 951-353-3181 | | F: 951-353-8184
GEORGE GENERAL CONTRACTING, INC J-cl\crCalRCra R
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From: Leonard Grech

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings; leonard grech
Subject: Written Public Comment Non-agender Item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 9:48:06 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

----- Forwarded Message -----

From: Admin <mail@newportmooringassociation.org>
To: Admin <mail@newportmooringassociation.org>
Sent: Saturday, March 30, 2024 at 10:38:56 AM PDT
Subject: RE: News Alert for All Mooring Holders

Dear Mooring Holders (and Mooring Supporters),

The California State Lands Commission staff is currently reviewing the Netzer appraisal and the price
discrimination concerns regarding the ridiculously high and unprecedented mooring rate increase proposed
by the Newport Beach Harbor Commission. The State Lands Commission, which includes Lt. Governor Eleni
Kounalakis, State Controller Malia M. Cohen and State Finance Director Joe Stephenshaw, have their quarterly
public meeting on April 4w in San Pedro. Here’s a link to the meeting info: April 4, 2024 Commission Meeting
Agenda | CA State Lands Commission. These meetings are open to public comment and you can also submit
written communication.

We need your help! Please email the State Lands Commission your written comment regarding the harmful
mooring rate increase that will price many mooring holders out of Newport Harbor. We have shown that the
Netzer appraisal is riddled with problems such as:

¢ Ignoring standard appraising methods for moorings

« Using unreliable and inventive methodology

o Failing to take into account the lack of dinghy dock access

e The Netzer appraisal runs completely contrary to the independent CBRE appraisal submitted to the city

Questions have been raised concerning the motivations for such an extreme recommendation, and questions
of bias and/or conflicts of interest are being investigated by some mooring holders as well as at least one law
firm. In the wake of these questions, we have now seen Harbormaster Blank being forced to recuse himself
from any further involvement in this historic attempt to increase mooring rates after he was found to have a
conflict of interest. Conflicts of interest and/or bias are being looked into by the NMA.

There are concerns that even after showing the city all the faults of the Netzer appraisal and even after the city
was presented with the independent CBRE appraisal that shows the current rates are already at about market
value, the city staff and members of the Harbor Commission are still attempting to rush through a "blessing"
by the SLC of this historic and unprecedented rate hike. They want this blessing so that city staff and the
Harbor Commission can pass off its devastating rate hike to the City Council for approval and further
exacerbate the existing discrimination against people with moorings compared to how the city treats, and
rates charged to homeowners with private docks as well as other users of tidelands in the harbor.

Here is an example of one letter being sent by a mooring holder to state lands. If you agree with some of the
points raised or if you have other points you would like to share please write to the SLC today. The
Commissioners will not be familiar with the nuances of a mooring or this rate increase, so feel free to break it
down like you are explaining it to an extended family member at Easter. The State Lands Commission does
care about protecting affordable access to the waterways of California. They also care about making sure there
is no class discrimination in the management of harbors in California.

Here is an example of one letter being sent or under consideration.

Thank you for your continued support!
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-NMA

Email to: CSLC.CommissionMeetings@slc.ca.gov

Email Subject Line: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4w SLC-PI he Cl Discrimination in
Newport Harbor

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

_My wife and | have had this permit for 30 years and have lived aboard on our mooring for 29 years. We have
lived on our boat in total for 53 years. We have been paying approximately four times more for our Tidal Land
Permits than the rate that the City of Newport Beach charges the home owners for their Tidal Land Permits for
their Private Dock. | would like to point out that the Privat e Dock Permit holders are paying only approximately
55 Cents a square foot for their 50/60 ft docks. The private dock owners are then free to keep two 50/60 ft.
vessels tied to each side of that Privat Dock taking up additional Tidal Land FREE OF CHARGE??? NOTE: The
Private Dock Permit Holders dock dimensions are approximately 60 ft. X 8ft. =480 sq ft, @ 55 cents =$264.00 A
YEAR. One 60 ft vessel with an approximate beam of 20 ft. = 60 ft. X 20 ft. = 1,200 sq. ft. of Tidal Land is being
taken away from the general public use, with no compensation. If by chance a Private Dock Permit Holder wish
to tie up two 60 ft x 20 ft. vessels then the private dock permit holder will be taking 2,400 sq. ft. and @ 55 cents,
he will be able to do that, NOT PAYING $1,300.00 A YEAR. While a 65 ft. Offshore Mooring will cost $1,884.00
A YEAR.

This absolutely outrageous increase in Offshore Mooring fees would mean that my wife and | would be forced
to become homeless and would have to live on the street.

_Thank you for your time to review my comments and to carefully study the extreme discrimination of the fees
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for Offshore Mooring Permits when compared to Private Docks and most other Permit Fees for use over the
Tidal Lands.
_Very Best Regards

Leonard Grech

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



From:

To: Dept - Ci ncil

Cc: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Newport Beach Mooring Increase -
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 2:08:29 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Hello City Council,

When considering the rate increase for the mooring holders, please consider the following.

| believe it is around 750 private pier permits that pay around $300k to the city compared to around 800 moorings that pay
around $1.3 million.

This is where many believe that discrimination has taken place over the years. Please investigate why there is
such a big difference in the fees.

Barbara
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From: Eric Hilgeman

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: FW: News Alert For ALL Mooring Holders
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 2:43:40 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
Dear Commissioners,

I am a mooring lease holder in Newport Beach, CA. | received a copy of the email below from the Mooring
Association. | do not know the exact reason for the proposed rates increases. It may be the extra cost for the over
staffed harbor department.

| purchased the mooring lease for $40,000 and paid $1,380 to transfer the lease to my name. Newport Harbor
requires a mooring service every 2 years for about $2,500. Shore boat service to get to my boat is $70/month.

| pay Newport Beach $165/month to keep the lease. This is the portion the Harbor Commission wants to raise
sixfold (or more). Not taking the cost to purchase the lease into consideration, my monthly cost to have the boat on
the mooring is $339/month. This would jump to $1,164. | receive no services from the city of Newport or the Harbor
Commission. | maintain the mooring.

| feel the Newport Beach Harbor Commission needs to be transparent about this rate increase and their overall
plan for the harbor. Something is going on that does not seen right.

Thank you for reviewing this matter.
Sincerely,

Eric Hilgeman

From: Admin <mail@newportmooringassociation.org>
Sent: Saturday, March 30, 2024 10:14 AM

To: Admin <mail@newportmooringassociation.org>
Subject: Re: News Alert For ALL Mooring Holders

Dear Mooring Holders (and Mooring supporters),

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
public meeting on April 4t in San Pedro. Here’s a link to the meeting info: April 4, 2024 Commission Meeting

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

® |gnoring standard appraising methods for moorings
® Using unreliable and inventive methodology
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® Failing to take into account the lack of dinghy docks

® The Netzer appraisal runs completely contrary to the independent CBRE appraisal
which was submitted to the City of Newport Beach

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

Thank you for your continued support! We look forward to seeing you at the April 10th Harbor Commission
Meeting @ 5:00pm.

-NMA

Email to: CSLC.CommissionMeetings@slc.ca.gov

Email Subject Line: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4t SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in
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



From: George Kagan

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 10:35:38 AM

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

The financial burden with a rate increase will force me to sell our mooring that my family has been using for
many years. The fee hike is simply unreasonable for an average household income to be able to afford and
enjoy the waterways of Newport Beach.

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

Best regards,

George Kaganovich

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone
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From: Pit Kaz

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Re: Discrimination and unjustified rent hike Newport Beach Mooring
Date: Thursday, April 4, 2024 10:41:04 AM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

To be honest, we are taking this class A lawsuits for discrimination and appears to be corruption to the Court no matter
what... to block and prevent them from future attempts to manipulate the system. Right now they are begging for your
blessings so they won't be alone in courtroom of law. So they are already appears to be in deep trouble..

Thanks again

On Thu, Apr 4, 2024, 9:25 AM Pit Kaz [ wrote:
Please note the city of Newport Beach has not taken to consideration 3rd party rent evaluation.. also they are insisting on
using evaluation made from an insider person that is giving them a favor in return on low or no rent in harbor. There is a
huge conflict of interest and coordination in the city of Newport Beach..

There have been emails and evidence between city harbor masters and city commission with evaluation agency..

Please note we are already paying more than other moorings, for example San Diego.. and San Diego has 27/7 public
dinghy and much better parking...

Please protect us from this unjustified and discriminated rate hikes..

You are the only chance before we take the matter to the court as we have secured an attorney/lawyer with lots of
evidence already.

Thanks
Peter Kaz
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From: Jon Kosoff

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 8:40:39 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
Dear Commissioners,

As a Mooring owner | am ashamed and appalled what the Newport Harbor Commission is trying to do. This
isn't fair, or just and is flat out completely wrong. It is discrimination, and we appreciate your team reviewing the
facts of this case.

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

We recently bought our mooring and saved a long time do to so. We plan on sharing it with our 3 children for a
long time. It took us 3 years to find the mooring and we had to pay a Significant amount of money up front to
buy the mooring. We did it the right way. And don't think it is fair for this increase which will crash the value of
our investment. More importantly our ability to use the harbor with our family and friends.

It is completely wrong and fraudulent. | understand a small cost of living increase and have no problem paying
it but this would essentially make our investment disappear. It is a complete money grab and discrimination.
We have no services on our mooring and pay for all the maintenance and work done. The appraisal
methodology is 100% flawed, and not fair.

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

Jon Kosoff



Comments by Adam Leverenz

California State Lands Commission Meeting - 04/04/2024
Public Comment, Re: Newport Beach Offshore Mooring Rents:

Dear Commissioners,

Some Newport Beach (Hereafter NPB) Civil Servants have interpreted public
comment opposing their proposed offshore mooring rent increases of 300, to
over 500%, as people stating that charging Fair Market Value Rent is not
necessary. I've attended numerous local meetings on the matters, and don't
recall any specific remarks I've interpreted that way. A primary issue seems to
be though, that a number of City Officials/Personnel, are defining “fair”, in other
than customary terms.

As you know, The California State Lands Commission (Hereafter “SLC"),
calculates annual rental rates for the lease of State tide and submerged lands
approximately every 5 years, the last time being less than two years ago, in
June of 2022. The current SLC Benchmark rate for Orange County is .451 cents
per square foot per year. Newport Beach data was used in determining that
rate. Associated SLC Staff Report 39, for purposes of comparing commercial
marinas to buoys/mooring poles states:

“These facilities offer many of the same amenities as a commercial
marina, such as a place for the docking and mooring of boats and the
loading and unloading of passengers and equipment”.

Offshore Moorings in Newport Harbor, are clearly lacking in the amenities of
docking, and the loading and unloading of passengers and equipment. A lack of
onshore parking, and dinghy/tender storage have also been cited as
impediments

Offshore mooring permitees face in Newport.

SLC Staff Report 39 uses the words “fair”’; “equitable”; “reasonable”;
“‘consistent”; and “appropriate” to describe the current Benchmark rate. The
formula The State used to set that “fair” rate, is clearly outlined (Please see
attached Exhibit A).

The Fee Schedule currently on The NPB City website, indicates that residential
piers, aka docks over State owned, City managed tide/submerged lands
adjacent to residential properties, incur annual rental fees of .56 cents per
square foot. Please recall that piers and docks offer much more convenient,
walk-on access, than do offshore moorings. Various City Resolutions setting
past and present rent for these land users in Newport, describe rates as “fair



market value rent”. That being the case, The City’s current Pier rate of .56
cents per square foot, must be considered to be fair (Please see attached
Exhibit B).

A CBRE Appraisal Report of 2024, determined fair annual rent amounts for
offshore moorings, closely in line with what they are presently (Please see
Attached Exhibit C). The City commissioned Netzer and Associates Appraisal
Report of 12/2023 on the other hand, concluded that Offshore Mooring rents
should increase exponentially. Netzer’s conclusions, appear based on
inappropriate/flawed methodology; comparisons to dry-land real properties; for-
profit Marina slips; etc.; etc., which do not so closely compare to offshore
moorings as is implied. That Report also evidences some discrepancy about
how many offshore mooring fields exist in Newport Harbor, and contradicts a
2016 determination made by the very same firm (Please see Attached Exhibit
D). In memos included with the 03/18/2024 NPB Harbor Commission Special
Meeting Agenda, Mr. Netzer seems to try and explain contradictions between
himself in 2016 and 2023, and himself in 2023, and CBRE in 2024.These
memos raise additional questions/concerns, which are addressed in an
addendum to these remarks.

Appraisers have indicated that 40’ is a typical/common/average size of offshore
mooring in NPB. (Netzer, and CBRE Reports). Currently, an Offshore Mooring
permitee pays to The City annual rent of about $1,600 (Please see Attached
Exhibit E).

The Appraisers have indicated that a boat on a 40’ mooring could drift over an
area of about 1,200 to 1,326 sq. ft. (Note that moored vessels do not occupy a
singular fixed space 24x7, in the same way that vessels in slips/berths do, and
That NPB appears not to assess fees on the actual space occupied by vessels
at permitted docks/piers). Dividing the calculated offshore mooring drift space,
by the annual rent of $1,600, gives us a rate range of around $1.21 to $1.33 per
square foot. The substantial financial outlay to acquire a permit allowing a party
to rent from The City, and the bi-annual mooring service, averaging about $700
per year, are not included in these figures.

So, a 40’ offshore mooring permitee in NPB, for use of the same State
resource as other permitees, is currently paying around 216-237% more than
someone being charged City Pier Permit fees, and 268-294% more than
someone being charged State fees.



The NPB Harbor Commission subcommittee, which | understand consists of
Misters Beer; Cunningham; and Scully, think that that’s unfair, and that it would
be more fair, for 40’ offshore mooring permitees, to pay 435-480% higher rates!

The SLC Meeting Agenda for April 4, 2024, includes a multitude of lease
proposals for individuals in Huntington Harbor. The rates within these proposals,
as well as the State’s current Benchmark rate for Orange County are presumed
to be fair. The City of Newport Beach’s very own Pier Permit fee schedule is
presumed to be fair. Highly regarded appraisal firm CBRE, and a vast number
of members of the public are in consensus on what fair is. The Netzer Report
NPB wishes to rely on, is an extreme, and | say errant outlier. It would be “fair”
to go with logic, and the preponderance of data.

If NPB decisionmakers however, continue to find themselves tempted by all the
$$$5$$$ signs that going with the outlier could generate, and The SLC
condones this, | think there’s a way in which the parties could seek actual
fairness, and “split-the-baby” as the saying goes. City of Newport Beach
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -10 (Attached Exhibit F), indicates that Council can
choose not to adjust Rent across the class of permit, and can:

“... adjust the Rent of only those individual Permits that transfer
ownership following each appraisal”.

Implementing this standard would be fair, and logical. It would serve to
mitigate the potential of exorbitant rent increases current City permitholders
would be unexpectedly saddled with, and would allow all stakeholders, present
and future, opportunity to make/have made informed decisions. The fact that
existing permitees, when having chosen to become tenants of The State,
through the City, have relied on a historical, predictable, and well-established
pattern of rents, CPI adjustments, and trends for at least 15 years, warrants
accommodation. Multiple individuals have suggested a Prop-13 type of mindset
as a possible means to achieve fairness. The fact that The City has, and does
rely on CPI adjustments, and reasonable % increase caps, is indicative that
such a mindset has been an acceptable practice within City governance for
some time. RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -10 shows foresight, and establishes that
that Prop-13 style approach is not new in relation to tideland lessees.

Importantly too, NPB Harbor Commissioners recently inquired of, and were told
by Harbor Master Paul Blank, that parties purchasing mooring permits have not
been being informed of potential forthcoming immense increases in rent. Harm
caused by this lack of transparency, could be somewhat mitigated by acting in

accordance with what'’s previously been defined by The City as permissible, i.e.:



“... adjust the Rent of only those individual Permits that transfer
ownership following each appraisal”.

The City choosing to, and The SLC endorsing, excessive, across the board
rent increases for offshore moorings, far beyond what other users are paying,
and after delinquency/inability to pay having been codified as grounds for

permit revocation/confiscation, would be unjust, unfair, wrongful, and potentially
litigious.

Regards,

M’L@M

Adam Leverenz

Attached Exhibits:  A: State Lands Commission materials w highlights.
B: City Fee Schedule/e-mail/RESOLUTION Reference w highlights.
C: CBRE Report excerpts.
D: Netzer Report excerpts w highlights.
E: Offshore Mooring Rent Statement.
F: RESOLUTION 2015-10 Reference w highlights
G: Harbor Department Data.
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Offshore Mooring
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Meeting Date: 06/23/22
Work Order Number: W27256
Staff: K. Foster

Staff Report 39

PARTY:

California State Lands Commission

PROPOSED ACTION:

Approve the 2022 Category 1 Southern California Benchmark rental rate and the
Category 2 Huntington Harbour Benchmark rental rate.

LAND TYPE AND LOCATION:
Sovereign land in Ventura, Los Angeles, Orange, and San Diego Counties.

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

AUTHORITY:
Public Resources Code sections 6005, 6216, 6301, 6501.1, 6503, 6503.5, and 6505.5;
California Code of Regulations, title 2, sections 2000 and 2003.

The California Constitution specifically prohibits the Legislature from making or
authorizing any gift of public money or thing of value to any individual,
municipality, or corporation (Cal. Const., art. XVI, 8§ 6). A “thing of value” includes
the use of State-owned land for private benefit.

The Commission has broad discretion in all aspects of leasing state lands, including
the method or amount of rent that is most appropriate, and how rent should be
adjusted during the term. (Pub. Resources Code, 88 6501.1, 6503, 6503.5; Cal. Code
Regs., tit. 2, 88 2000, 2003.) Rents must be in the best interests of the State, and may
be based on one or more of the following methods, including, but not limited to:

e 9 percent of the appraised value of the leased land.

e A percentage of annual gross income, where the percentage is based on an
analysis of the market for like uses and other relevant factors.

e A comparison to rents for other similar land or facilities.
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Staff Report 39 (Continued)

e Benchmarks for regions with large concentrations of similar facilities, with
benchmark rental rates to be based on analysis of similar or substitute facilities in
the local area.

e Other such methods or information that are based on commonly accepted
appraisal practices and principles; and for leases for recreational piers or buoys,
rent shall be based on local conditions and local fair annual rental values. (Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 2, § 2003; Pub. Resources Code, §8 6503, 6503.5.)

The Commission may consider the amount of rent the State would receive under
various rental methods, and whether relevant, reliable, and comparable data are
available concerning the value of the leased land in determining which rent
method should apply. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, 8 2003, subd. (d)(1), (2).)

PuBLIC TRUST AND STATE’S BEST INTERESTS:

Benchmarks are used to establish uniform rental rates in specific geographic
regions with large concentrations of similar facilities, mostly private recreational
improvements within the Commission’s jurisdiction. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 2003,
subd. (a)(5).) The use of benchmarks improves the consistency, transparency, and
efficiency in how the Commission establishes rent for large numbers of similar
leases, saving time, resources, and money for both the applicant and the State.
Periodic benchmark adjustments assures that the people of the State are fairly
compensated according to current market rates for the private use of State-owned
land, consistent with the California Constitution. Generally, staff recommends
updates to the benchmarks every 5 years.

The Commission has two types of benchmarks for rental rates:

e Category 1, which is generally applied to private docks, piers, and buoys.
e Category 2, which is generally applied to cantilevered decks, sundecks, or other
non-water dependent uses.

This staff report addresses the Category 1 benchmark for the Southern California
coastal region for Ventura, Los Angeles, Orange, and San Diego Counties, and the
Category 2 benchmark for Huntington Harbour recreational use leases that include
cantilevered decks.

METHODOLOGY:

The Commission has been using the Category 1 Southern California benchmark
since the early 1980s and the Category 2 Huntington Harbour benchmark since
2004. Both benchmarks were last updated in October 2016, when the Category 1
rate was set at $0.374 per square foot, and the Category 2 rate was set at $31.50
per square foot.


CML1
Highlight

CML1
Highlight

CML1
Highlight

CML1
Highlight

CML1
Highlight

adultall
Highlight


Staff Report 39 (Continued)

CATEGORY 1 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA BENCHMARK

Leases are issued by the Commission for private recreational facilities such as
docks, piers, and buoys/mooring poles. These facilities offer many of the same
amenities as a commercial marina, such as a place for the docking and mooring
of boats and the loading and unloading of passengers and equipment. In this
manner, these privately owned facilities represent a substitute for a commercial
marina berth/buoy. Accordingly, the method of valuation used in estimating a fair
return and a fair rental value is based on what an individual would pay for a similar
substitute site in a commercial marina (principle of substitution). Since a
Commission-leased site for a privately-owned pier or dock is a reasonable substitute
for a marina berth, a lessee occupying state land should pay a similar rate for the
leased site as the state would receive for leasing the land to a commercial marina.
The current methodology for setting rent for berthing vessels at docks and piers
occupying state-owned sovereign land is based on the principle of substitution
described above.

The first step in setting a Category 1 berthing rate benchmark is to survey local
marinas to determine their rental rates. Marinas usually rent their berths on a per-
linear-foot basis, based on the length of the berth or vessel. For benchmark
purposes, the average surveyed rental rate is used. The rate is multiplied by the
average or typical berth length as indicated in the survey data. Based on these
inputs, the annual gross income is calculated. For Category 1 benchmarks, the
State’s rent is based on a 5 percent rate of return of this annual gross income,
which represents a comparable fair market compensation rate for the use of State-
owned sovereign land. The State’s rent is then converted to a per-square-foot basis
using a table calculated by the California State Parks Division of Boating and
Waterways 2005 publication titled “Layout and Design Guidelines for Marina
Berthing Facilities” (DBW berthing publication). This publication provides formulas
and tables for calculating the submerged land area needed to accommodate
various sizes and layouts of berths in marinas. Among other variables, the formulas
account for the berth length, berth layout (single or double), and the type of vessel
(powerboat or sailboat). The publication can be requested from the Department of
Boating and Waterways (http://dbw.parks.ca.gov/pages/28702/files/Guide05.pdf).

The Southern California Benchmark apypraisal survey, attached as Exhibit A, consists
of 42 marinas located in the four counties covered by the benchmark. The survey
found that the average berth/slip size in the coverage area is approximately 37
linear feet. A 37-foot length was also used in the 2016 benchmark. Staff believes
that marina layouts have not changed significantly since the last benchmark.

Berthing rates are reported on a per-linear-foot basis. The berthing rate, based on
survey data collected within the coverage area, ranged from $11.90 to $65.86 per
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Staff Report 39 (Continued)

linear foot with an average of $23.40 per linear foot. The benchmark rental rate for
berths is calculated by multiplying the average berth length by the average rental
rate. This product is then multiplied by 12 months to arrive at the gross annual
income. The gross annual income is then multiplied by 5 percent to arrive at the
income attributable to the submerged land. That amount is then converted to a
per square foot basis for rent-setting purposes using the DBW berthing publication
described above. The submerged land area used in this benchmark analysis is
based on a double berth layout, which represents the typical and most
economically efficient marina berth layout in the area ,and represents an average
of the powerboat and sailboat areas.

From DBW berthing publication data, a submerged area of 1,153 square feet is
needed to accommodate the 37-foot average slip length. Taking all the previously
described inputs into account, the rental rate for the proposed Southern California
Benchmark is calculated as follows:

$10,389.60/berth/year x 5 percent of gross income = $519.48
$519.48 + 1,153 square feet = $0.451/square foot

Proposed Category 1 Southern California Benchmark Rental Rate = $0.451 per
square foot

The 2016 Benchmark was set at $0.374 per square foot. As proposed, the new
benchmark rate of $0.451 per square foot represents an overall increase of just
under 8 cents ($0.077) per square foot.

Impact Area:

The impact area is an additional area, beyond the physical footprint of a structure,
where a lessee seeks authorization to conduct activities. For recreational structures
used for the docking and mooring of boats within the benchmark’s coverage area,
the impact area is generally a nine-foot-wide strip along the mooring areas or
under a boat lift. In Huntington Harbour, it is generally the area between the
bulkhead and the pierhead line that is not covered by the dock, because of the
occupation of the improvements, these are areas that are generally viewed by the
public as private and where the lessee generally enjoys exclusive use. Accordingly,
these areas are included in a lease and rent is charged thereon. The Commission’s
leasing regulations explicitly allow for this. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 2003, subd. (e)

(2)).

CATEGORY 2 HUNTINGTON HARBOUR BENCHMARK
Category 2 benchmarks are based on nearby upland land values because the
improvements (cantilevered decks, sundecks, or certain other non-water
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Staff Report 39 (Continued)

dependent encroachments) represent an extension of the private backyard of the
upland residence—a purpose unrelated to the docking and mooring of boats.
Commission appraisal staff uses the following general process to establish and
update a Category 2 benchmark. First, staff conducts research to identify recent
nearby upland property sales. The initial research seeks to identify land value only
because the property being leased is the underlying sovereign land, as well as the
area above the sovereign land, and not the privately-owned improvements. If
vacant land sales are not available, then the assessed improvement values are
subtracted from sales price of improved properties to reflect the land value of the
sale property. Next, staff analyzes the sales data and determines a per-square-foot
value representative of the area. The benchmark is calculated by applying a 9
percent annual rate of return to the appraised value of the leased land pursuant to
title 2, California Code of Regulations, section 2003, subdivision (a)(1).

The Category 2 benchmark may then be discounted to reflect that the sovereign
land to be leased may not have the same utility or intensity of use as the upland
properties from which the data were drawn, due to topography or other physical
characteristics, the nature of the sovereign land use, certain legal constraints, or
the upland owner’s decision, but nevertheless still contributes to the value of the
upland property.

Using the methodology described above, Commission appraisal staff researched
19 home sales adjoining sovereign land along the Main and Midway Channels
within Huntington Harbour. The sales occurred between February 2018 and
December 2021, with a sales range of $1,175,000 to $6,650,000 and a
corresponding land value range of $110 to $697 per square foot. The concluded
average land value based on these sales figures is $458 per square foot. Taking all
the previously described inputs into account, the proposed undiscounted rental
rate for the Huntington Harbour Benchmark is calculated as follows:

$458 x 9% = $41.22 per square foot

Proposed Category 2 Huntington Harbour Benchmark Rental Rate = $41.22 per
square foot

The 2016 Benchmark was set at $31.50 per square foot. As proposed, the new
benchmark rate of $41.22 per square foot represents an increase of $9.72 per
square foot.

The undiscounted rate applies to features such as enclosed cantilevered decks
because, unlike an open deck, an enclosed deck has the full capacity to be
utilized as residential living space, and thus should be given no reduction in utility or
intensity of use as compared to the upland land value. For features such as an



Staff Report 39 (Continued)

unenclosed cantilevered deck, Commission staff recommends the application of a
discount of up to 75 percent to reflect the intensity of use of the sovereign lands
occupied. This approach is consistent with how staff applies discounts for similar
facilities throughout the state.

CONCLUSION:

Staff’s methodologies for setting the proposed Category 1 Southern California and
Category 2 Huntington Harbour Benchmark rental rates are consistent with the
methodology used for the Commission’s other similar benchmarks, as well as all the
relevant statutes and regulations that govern the Commission’s rent-setting
authority. Staff’s recommended benchmark rates represent a fair and equitable
rate for each type of use based on the most current and relevant data available.

Approval of the new benchmark rental rates will not result in a change in the use
of, or substantially interfere with or impact Public Trust resources. Staff believes that
each benchmark provides a reasonable and consistent method for determining
rents in their geographic coverage areas and are in the best interests of the State.

OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION:

1. In 2011, Chapter 585, Statutes of 2011 became law and repealed Public
Resources Code section 6503.5 that had allowed rent-free use of state land by
certain private parties for their recreational piers. It replaced the former section
with a new section 6503.5 which provides that the Commission “shall charge
rent for a private recreational pier constructed on state lands.”

2. In 2014, the Commission adopted amendments to Sections 1900, 2002, and 2003
under articles 1 and 2 of title 2, division 3, chapter 1 of the California Code of
Regulations that included regulations on rent-setting methods approving the use
of benchmarks and the application of the Consumer Price Index (Item 5
January 23, 2014).

3. This action is consistent with Goal 4 of the Commission’s Strategic Plan “Meeting
Evolving Public Trust Needs,” Section 3 — “Maintain fiscal integrity through
transparency, accountability, and: a. Efficient and effective management of
the revenue-generation portfolio.” This action is also consistent with Goal 6
“Committing to Collaborative Leadership,” Section 2 - Advance innovation and
create clarity of direction by offering continual, robust opportunities for
stakeholder and public engagement, and institutionalizing this relationship
building so that the process and relationships live through the Commission and
not just through individual staff members or leaders.
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Staff Report 39 (Continued)

4. Approval of the 2022 Category 1 Southern California and Category 2 Huntington
Harbour Benchmark rental rates is not a project as defined by the California
Environmental Quality Act because it is an administrative action that will not
result in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment.

Authority: Public Resources Code section 21065 and California Code of
Regulations, title 14, section 15378, subdivision (b)(5).

EXHIBITS:

A. 2022 Category 1 Southern California Benchmark Appraisal
B. 2022 Category 2 Huntington Harbour Benchmark Appraisal

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that the Commission:

PUBLIC TRUST AND STATE’S BEST INTERESTS:

Find that approval of the benchmarks will not result in a change in the use of, or
impacts to, Public Trust resources; is consistent with the common law Public Trust
Doctrine; and is in the best interests of the State.

AUTHORIZATION:
1. Approve the 2022 Category 1 Southern California Benchmark rental rate of
$0.451 per square foot, effective June 23, 2022.

2. Approve the 2022 Category 2 Huntington Harbour Benchmark rental rate of
$41.22 per square foot, effective June 23, 2022.
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Exhibit A

State of California State Lands Commission

Memorandum

Date: May 6, 2022

To: Brian Bugsch, Chief
Land Management Division

Grace Kato, Assistant Chief
Land Management Division

From: Chaun Wong Wl

Associate Property Appraiser
Land Management Division

Subject: Southern California Category 1 Benchmark 2022
Ventura, Los Angeles, Orange, San Diego Counties

The Southern California Category 1 Benchmark was last updated by staff of the California
State Lands Commission (Commission) in 2016. The current update follows essentially
the same methodology as used in the prior benchmark. Reference is made to the 2016
study for additional background material that may be needed for the reader to more fully
understand what the benchmark is used for and how it is set.

The recommended benchmark is summarized in the following table with the 2016
benchmark.

Table 1. Southern California Benchmark Summary

Benchmark Date 2016 2022
Rental Rate (Per Sq. Ft.) $0.374 $0.451

An appraisal is the act or process of developing an opinion of value that must be
numerically expressed as a specific amount, as a range of numbers, or as a relationship
to a previous value opinion or numerical benchmark. This report constitutes an
appraisal as defined by the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
(USPAP). Accordingly, this appraisal has been performed and the report has been
prepared in substantial compliance with USPAP. The compiled research, analyses, and
conclusions presented in this appraisal represent a correlation of market rents into
benchmark rental rates for private recreational facilities (e.g., docks and piers) located
on Southern California. The benchmark is intended to be used by Commission staff for
rent setting purposes.

Benchmarks establish uniform rental rates in specific geographic regions with
concentrations of similar facilities within the Commission’s jurisdiction. (Cal. Code
Regs., tit. 2, § 2003, subd. (a)(5).) For proposed leases involving certain types of
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Southern California Category 1 Benchmark

improvements or uses in regions where benchmarks have been approved, staff will
recommend an annual rent based on the applicable benchmark and the lease area.
Benchmark rental rates are based on an analysis of similar uses or substitute facilities
in the local area. Generally, staff recommends updates to the benchmarks every 5
years. The use of benchmarks improves consistency and transparency throughout a
geographic region, improves staff efficiency in setting and adjusting rent for large
numbers of leases, and saves time and money for both the applicant and the State.

Introduction

Leases are issued by the California State Lands Commission for private recreational
facilities — such as docks and piers — located on sovereign lands. These facilities offer a
substitute for the essential functions of a commercial marina, such as a place for the
docking and mooring of boats and the loading and unloading of passengers and
equipment. In a market where there is significantly more demand than supply, these
private structures afford the upland owners guaranteed access to mooring facilitates
that they may not otherwise be able to obtain from commercial marinas. In this manner,
these privately-owned facilities represent a substitute for a commercial marina slip.
Accordingly, the method of valuation used in estimating a fair rental value in this
analysis is based on what an individual would pay for a similar substitute site in a
commercial marina.

Since a Commission-leased site for a privately-owned pier or dock substitutes for the
essential functions of a marina slip, a lessee of the state land should pay a similar
amount for the leased site as the state would receive for leasing the land to a
commercial marina.

Scope

The scope of the research included the following:

¢ Identifying marinas with boat slips in the Southern California area.

e Surveying the number and type of moorings at marinas (berths / slips),
occupancy rate, mooring sizes, and rates.

e Compiling the survey results into averages for slip size and rate.

e Using the “Layout and Design Guidelines for Marina Berthing Facilities”
publication (last updated July 2005) from the State Department of Boating and
Waterways to determine the amount of submerged land area necessary to
accommodate a given mooring size.

e Calculating the annual rental rate(s) using the above information and State
valuation guidelines.

There are estimated to be 118 total marinas in the Southern California area. In
statistics, for very large populations, a random sampling method provides the best
chance of an unbiased representative sample. Random marinas throughout the regions
were contacted during the course of the survey. Marinas were contacted via phone

California State Lands Commission 2
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Southern California Category 1 Benchmark

and/or email. Some marina operators did not want to participate in the survey. Some
marina operators did not provide a clear breakdown of their berthing rental rates and/or
berth sizes. Other marinas contacted during the course of the survey do not rent their
berths on a long-term basis. As of April 11, 2022, a total of 42 marinas responded to the
survey. Each of these marinas cooperated to varying degrees and provided relevant
information for study purposes. A deliberate effort was made to make the samples
representative of each target population. While not comprehensive, this survey is
believed to be representative of the total marinas within each study area.

Methodology

In order to determine the benchmark rent for a leased area (pier, dock, etc.), itis
necessary to determine the income that can typically be generated by a commercial
marina; the area occupied by the average or typical marina slip in a well-designed
marina; and the rent for that average or typical sized boat. An annual rate of return is
then applied to the product of the above.

The Commission typically charges 5 percent of gross income for boat berthing for sites
leased to commercial marina operators.

Berth / Slip Rent

The Southern California Benchmark consists of 42 marinas located in Ventura, Los
Angeles, Orange, and San Diego Counties (see Tables 2.1 and 2.2). For purposes of
this benchmark, the boundaries of the Southern California region are generally defined
as the Ventura / Los Angeles County lines to the north, the Los Angeles / Orange / San
Diego County lines to the east, the San Diego County line to the south, and the Pacific
Coast of Ventura / Los Angeles / Orange / San Diego Counties to the west.

The average berth size of the marinas surveyed in the Southern California region is
approximately 37 linear feet. Similarly, a 37-foot length was also used in the 2016
Southern California Benchmark.

The responding marinas reported a total of 14,235 slips, or an average of 339 slips per
marina. The average occupancy was reported at 96.3%, a moderate increase from the
88.5% reported in 2016.

Berthing rates are reported on a per linear foot basis. For all of the areas listed above,
the berthing rate, based on data collected, ranged from $11.90 to $65.86 per linear foot.
The lower rents were generally found in marinas located in Oxnard and City of Ventura
of Ventura County; Marina del Rey and Wilmington of Los Angeles County; and City of
San Diego of San Diego County. The higher rents were generally found in marinas
located in Newport Beach of Orange County. The average rent overall is $23.40 per
linear foot. This represents a 20.62% increase over the $19.40 per linear foot used in
the 2016 Benchmark.

California State Lands Commission 3
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Southern California Category 1 Benchmark

The benchmark rental rate for berths is calculated by multiplying the average berth
length by the average monthly rental rate. This product is then multiplied by 12 months
to arrive at the gross annual income. The gross annual income is multiplied by 5% to
get the income attributable to the submerged land. The income attributable to the
submerged land is then divided by the amount of submerged land needed to
accommodate the average berth length within a marina.

The submerged land area needed to accommodate an average berth is found in a
publication entitled “Layout and Design Guidelines for Small Craft and Berthing
Facilities” by the California Department of Boating and Waterways last updated in 2005.
This publication provides formulas and tables for calculating the submerged land area
needed to accommodate various sizes and layouts of berths in marinas. Among other
variables, the formulas take into account the berth length, berth layout (single vs.
double), and the type of vessel (powerboat vs. sailboat). The submerged land area used
in this benchmark analysis is based on a double berth layout (on the premise that it
represents the typical marina berth layout in the area and is the most economically
efficient for the marina operator) and represents an average of the powerboat and
sailboat areas.

From the tables in the publication, a submerged area of 1,153 square feet is shown as
being necessary to accommodate the 37-foot average slip length indicated by the
survey for Southern California. Taking all of the aforementioned into account, the
current benchmark rental rate for Southern California is calculated as follows:

e Average berth rate: $23.40
e Average boat length: 37 linear feet
e Submerged land area necessary to accommodate a 37-foot boat slip: 1,153 SF
e Percent of income attributable to the submerged land: 5 percent
37’ x $23.40/linear foot x 12 months = $10,389.60
$10,389.60 x 5% of gross income = $519.48
$519.48 + 1,153 square feet = $0.451 per square foot rental rate
Benchmark Rental Rate = $0.451 per sq. ft.

The indicated benchmark rental rate for Southern California area is $0.451 per square
foot. In contrast, the 2016 benchmark was $0.374 per square foot. The 2022 benchmark
therefore represents an overall increase of $0.077 (20.6%) from the 2016 benchmark.

California State Lands Commission 4
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Table 2.1. Marina Survey - Southern California

Number | Name Total | Occupancy | Occupied | Average | Average
Slips | Rate Slips Length Rate
Ventura
1 Bahia Marina 84 96% 81 38 $17.61
2 Channel Islands Harbor Marina 418 90% 376 38 $16.39
3 Peninsula Yacht Marina 310 | 87% 270 35 $13.82
4 Vintage Marina 384 | 98% 376 35 $14.30
5 Westport Marina 61 87% 53 30 $11.90
6 Ventura Harbor Village Marina 103 | 100% 103 63 $13.44
7 Ventura Isle Marina 570 | 100% 570 40 $18.03
8 Ventura West Marina 542 94% 509 36 $16.64
Averages 94.0% 39 $15.27
Los Angeles
9 Alamitos Bay Marina 1,634 | 96% 1,569 36 $18.06
10 Long Beach Shoreline Marina 1,605 | 93% 1,493 37 $18.39
11 Rainbow Harbor and Marina 89 89% 79 35 $17.67
12 Anchorage 47 253 | 90% 228 29 $19.17
13 Catalina Yacht Anchorage 120 | 88% 106 27 $16.05
14 Dolphin Marina 424 | 97% 411 32 $19.12
15 Esprit Marina 216 | 94% 203 46 $31.81
16 Holiday Harbor Marina 182 | 94% 171 25 $14.12
17 Marina del Rey Marina 304 | 85% 258 44 $31.41
18 Neptune Marina 161 | 81% 130 32 $20.10
19 Panay Way Marina 139 | 96% 133 30 $17.82
20 The Boat Yard Marina 106 | 100% 106 31 $20.71
21 Villa del Mar Marina 189 | 100% 189 41 $21.45
22 California Yacht Marina - Cabrillo 884 | 75% 663 36 $16.28
Marina
23 Pacific Yacht Landing 174 | 100% 174 31 $12.17
24 Yacht Haven Marina 161 | 99% 159 39 $12.02
Averages 92.3% 34 $19.15
California State Lands Commission 5
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Table 2.2. Marina Survey - Southern California

Number | Name Total | Occupancy | Occupied | Average | Average
Slips | Rate Slips Length Rate
Orange
25 Dana West Marina 846 | 100% 846 30 $24.48
26 Huntington Harbor Marina 188 | 100% 188 35 $23.47
27 Sunset Aquatic Marina 229 | 100% 229 33 $16.67
28 Balboa Yacht Basin 172 | 100% 172 36 $35.95
29 Bayside Village Marina 124 | 100% 124 28 $34.38
30 Lido Marina Village 28 100% 28 56 $65.86
31 Newport Dunes Resort and Marina | 405 | 97% 393 30 $48.52
Averages 99.6% 35 $35.62
San Diego
32 California Yacht Marina - Glorietta 100 |98% 98 39 $22.00
Bay Marina
33 Pier 32 Marina 246 | 100% 246 43 $23.74
34 Oceanside Harbor 763 | 100% 763 32 $16.96
35 Dana Landing Marina 78 100% 78 36 $14.34
36 Half Moon Marina 128 | 100% 128 37 $21.42
37 Kona Kai Marina and Resort 526 | 99% 521 47 $33.12
38 Marina Village Marina 611 | 100% 611 30 $16.95
39 Marriott Marquis San Diego Marina | 394 | 100% 394 43 $25.77
40 Point Loma Marina 42 100% 42 57 $37.93
41 Shelter Cove Marina 143 | 94% 134 38 $25.57
42 Sun Harbor Marina 99 100% 99 45 $21.38
Averages 99% 41 $23.56
Overall Averages 96.3% 37 $23.40
California State Lands Commission 6
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Exhibit B

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

Subiject: Huntington Harbour Category 2 Benchmark 2022 - Rental rate for non-
water dependent use areas extending on and over sovereign land in
Huntington Harbour, Orange County, California

As requested, | have conducted research relevant to establishing a benchmark rental
rate for non-water dependent use areas extending onto and over sovereign land in
Huntington Harbour, Orange County, California. These non-water dependent uses
consist of private decks and other residential-related improvements that extend onto
and over sovereign lands and essentially represent extensions of the usable area of the
adjoining residential lots.

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
(USPAP). The compiled research, analyses, and conclusions presented in this appraisal
represents a correlation of residential land values into benchmark rental rates for non-
water dependent use areas located on Huntington Harbour. The benchmark is intended
to be used by Commission staff in negotiations with lessees. It should also be noted that
this appraisal has been performed and the report has been prepared in substantial
compliance with USPAP as it relates to value of sovereign land. Presented on the
following pages are the introduction, the scope of the research, and discussions of the
pertinent findings resulting in the benchmark rental rate.

Benchmarks establish uniform rental rates in specific geographic regions with
concentrations of similar facilities within the Commission’s jurisdiction. (Cal. Code
Regs., tit. 2, 8 2003, subd. (a)(5).) For proposed leases involving certain types of
improvements or uses in regions where benchmarks have been approved, staff will
recommend an annual rent based on the applicable benchmark and the lease area.
Benchmark rental rates are based on an analysis of similar land uses or substitute
facilities in the local area. Generally, staff recommends updates to the benchmarks



Huntington Harbour Category 2 Benchmark

every 5 years. The use of benchmarks improves consistency and transparency
throughout a geographic region, improves staff efficiency in setting and adjusting rent
for large numbers of leases, and saves time and money for both the applicant and the
State. The Huntington Harbour Category Il benchmark was last updated on September
23, 2016.

Introduction

The State Lands Commission is responsible for leasing sovereign lands at Huntington
Harbour. Huntington Harbour is an exclusive waterfront development located in the City
of Huntington Beach in northwestern Orange County. The development is
predominantly single family residential in nature and consists of several man-made
islands and peninsulas situated around a series of channels. The islands and
peninsulas have been developed with high-end waterfront homes, many of which have
boat docks and cantilevered decks.

The development was originally designed by the Huntington Harbour Corporation in the
early 1960s. It was created by dredging and filling the sloughs and marshlands lying in
and around Sunset Bay. Prior to commencement of the project, the developer entered
into two agreements (BLA 18 and SLL 34) with the State Lands Commission. From
these agreements, the State Lands Commission retained fee ownership of the Main and
Midway Channels, while most of the remaining water-covered and land areas are
privately owned.

Within the Main and Midway Channels of Huntington Harbour there are private decks
and other non-water dependent uses that extend onto and over sovereign lands. This
benchmark is intended to address these improvements and uses. The rent for the boat
dock improvements is covered separately by the Southern California Category 1
benchmark.

Methodology

The Commission’s authority to lease lands and charge rent comes from the California
State Constitution, the Public Resources Code, and the California Code of Regulations.

The Commission’s mandate to charge rent comes from the Gift Clause of the California
State Constitution, which states in part that:

“The Legislature shall have no power to...make any qift or authorize the
making of any gift, of any public money or thing of value to any individual,
municipal or other corporation whatever...” Cal. Const. Art. XVI -6.

Section 6503 of the Public Resources Code states that:

“The Commission shall appraise the lands and fix the annual rent or other
consideration thereof.”

California State Lands Commission 2
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The California Code of Regulations?! provides the Commission with broad discretion in
all aspects of leasing.

“Leases or permits may be issued to qualified applicants and the
Commission shall have broad discretion in all aspects of leasing including
category of lease or permit and which use, method or amount of rental is
most appropriate...based on what it deems to be in the best interest of the
State”

The Regulations then outlines the types of leases and the methods of setting rent for
each. Of these, the “9% of the appraised value of the leased land”?> method is
considered the most directly applicable. The land to be leased is sovereign land located
waterward of the low water mark. Since there is not an active real estate market for
sovereign land, the basis for the benchmark rental rate is the adjoining upland property.
At Huntington Harbour, the adjoining upland property generally consists of single-family
homes on residential lots. The rent to be set is based on the value of the underlying
land and does not include the value of any improvements. Thus, for valuation purposes,
the value of waterfront residential lots at Huntington Harbour is the basis of the rental
rate.

The market value of residential land is typically estimated through use of the Sales
Comparison Approach. In this approach, recent sales and current listings of similar
properties are compared to the subject on the basis of pertinent factors such as
location, size, shape, etc. Typically, an indication of value is then concluded based on a
comparative analysis of these factors. Waterfront residential lots are typically valued on
either a per-lot or on a per-waterfront-foot basis. However, because the lease areas
generally do not represent a full residential lot, the unit of comparison used is the price
per square foot of land area. Per Regulations, rent is then set based on 9% of the
appraised value of the leased land. It should be noted that because this is a benchmark
appraisal — intended to be applied to a number of different lease areas — there is no
specific subject property or lease area. Accordingly, there are no specific adjustments
(for location, size, shape, etc.) made. Instead, the benchmark rental rate is intended to
represent the general characteristics of the benchmark’s geographic area.

Market Value of Upland Property

On LandVision3, a search was made to find recent sales of vacant residential lots,
typical in size, fronting the Main or Midway Channels of Huntington Harbour in Orange
County. However, due to its built-up nature, no comparable sales of vacant waterfront

! Title 2, Administration, Division 3, State Property Operations, Article 2 Section 2000,
General (b).

2 Title 2, Administration, Division 3, State Property Operations, Article 2 Section
2003(a)(1).

3 LandVision is a map-based real estate application that provides real estate,
government, and many other industries with comprehensive map-based property
search, analysis, management, and presentation capabilities.

California State Lands Commission 3
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residential lots were found. Rather than use comparable sales that do not front the
water, which would necessitate adjustments for location, an allocation method* is
employed. In this analysis, residential land values are removed from recent sales of
single-family houses in the Huntington Harbour area through use of the improvement
percentage assigned by the Orange County Assessor’s Office. For instance, if a house
sold for $1,000,000 and had an improvement percentage of 40%, then the allocated
value of the land is 60%, or $600,000. For analysis purposes, the unit of comparison
used is the price per square foot of land area.

Summarized in the Comparable Sales Table (see Table 2) are the pertinent details of
29 sales of single-family residences fronting the Main or Midway Channels of
Huntington Harbour in Orange County. The sales took place between February 2018
and December 2021. According to the Indications of Comparable Sales Table (see
Table 3), the lot sizes range from 2,820 to 9,000 square feet, with a mean of 6,088
square feet and a median of 6,000 square feet. The sale prices for the waterfront lots
ranged from a low of $1,175,000 to a high of $6,650,000, with a mean of $3,588,034,
and a median of $3,350,000. According to the Assessor’s allocations, the value of the
land in these transactions accounted for between 48.93% and 97.35% of the total price.
Based on these percentages, the value of unimproved residential waterfront land lies
between $110 and $697 per square foot. The mean unit value is $456 per square foot,
while the median is $460 per square foot.

Analysis of the sales revealed no recognizable trends relating to typical lot area and
land value relationships (i.e., unit prices decreasing as sizes increase). The lack of a
size/price relationship is illustrated in the following table. The presentation of the sales is
based on the lot area (SF) of the sales, going from smallest to largest.

4 Allocation is the general process of separating value between the component parts of
a property. A method of estimating land value in which sales of improved properties are
analyzed to establish a typical ratio of land value to total property value and this ratio is
applied to the property being appraised or the comparable sale being analyzed.

California State Lands Commission 4



Huntington Harbour Category 2 Benchmark

Table 1. Lot Area to Land Value Per SF Table
Lot Area (SF) Land Value Per SF

2,820 $406
4,590 $483
4,590 $433
5,000 $673
5,000 $332
5,000 $697
5,000 $525
5,120 $367
5,200 $494
5,500 $373
6,000 $458
6,000 $542
6,000 $463
6,000 $458
6,000 $515
6,039 $337
6,480 $483
6,480 $506
6,480 $390
6,480 $426
6,840 $392
6,882 $379
6,900 $460
7,020 $563
7,080 $531
7,560 $409
7,680 $484
7,800 $526
9,000 $110

As mentioned earlier, lease areas impacted by the Huntington Harbour Category 2
Benchmark are of various lot areas, waterfrontages, locations, shapes, topographies,
zonings, etc. Due to the uniqueness of each lease area and the lack of significant land
value trends relating to the above elements of comparison; no particular sale is deemed
a better indicator in concluding a land value benchmark. Therefore, an analysis of the
overall dataset is warranted and deemed appropriate in concluding land value for the
Huntington Harbour Category 2 Benchmark. As previously stated, the value of the
unimproved land lies between $110 and $697 per square foot. The mean unit value is
$456 per square foot, while the median is $460 per square foot. Based on all the data

California State Lands Commission 5
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gathered and analyzed, a unit value of $458 per square foot is concluded as reasonable
for the typical upland residential property.

Market Value of Upland Property $458 per square foot

Benchmark Rental Rate

Applying the 9% annual rate of return to the previously concluded market value of the
upland property results in an annual rental rate of $41.22 per square foot®.

Benchmark Rental Rate $41.22 per square foot

The concluded value is based on the leased land having the same utility as the
adjoining upland. If the leased land does not have the same utility, then a discounted
benchmark rental rate may be warranted.

5 Calculated as $458 x 0.09 = $41.22.

California State Lands Commission 6
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Table 2. Comparable Sales Table

Number | APN Address Sale Date Lot Area | Sale Price % Assessed | Land Value | Land Value
(SF) Land Value Per SF
1 178-652-24 | 3585 Courtside Cir 12/1/2021 7,020 $5,600,000 70.57% $3,952,057 | $563
2 178-731-20 | 3322 Venture Dr 9/20/2021 6,480 $3,860,000 81.15% $3,132,438 | $483
3 178-652-23 | 3581 Courtside Cir 8/27/2021 7,080 $6,200,000 60.58% $3,756,120 | $531
4 178-652-18 | 3551 Courtside Cir 6/21/2021 9,000 $1,475,000 66.86% $986,190 $110
5 178-315-34 | 17011 Bolero Ln 6/16/2021 5,000 $4,600,000 73.10% $3,362,749 | $673
6 178-421-34 | 3262 Gilbert Dr 6/10/2021 6,882 $3,550,000 73.44% $2,607,134 | $379
7 178-691-31 | 3622 Venture Dr 6/2/2021 6,000 $3,350,000 82.05% $2,748,718 | $458
8 178-791-11 | 3186 Portofino Cir 4/23/2021 5,120 $2,500,000 75.18% $1,879,556 | $367
9 178-402-18 | 3402 Gilbert Dr 4/13/2021 5,000 $2,500,000 66.34% $1,658,383 | $332
10 178-444-03 | 16402 Grimaud Ln 2/1/2021 7,800 $5,600,000 73.33% $4,106,552 | $526
11 178-652-29 | 16642 Coral Cay Ln | 2/1/2021 6,000 $6,650,000 48.93% $3,254,143 | $542
12 178-713-03 | 3532 Venture Dr 12/15/2020 | 6,000 $3,200,000 86.86% $2,779,623 | $463
13 178-791-10 | 3182 Portofino Cir 11/4/2020 4,590 $2,725,000 81.32% $2,215,914 | $483
14 178-731-24 | 3362 Venture Dr 10/9/2020 6,480 $3,895,000 84.16% $3,278,030 | $506
15 178-532-43 | 16921 Park Ave 9/4/2020 2,820 $1,175,000 97.35% $1,143,895 | $406
16 178-402-19 | 3392 Gilbert Dr 6/4/2020 5,500 $2,225,000 92.13% $2,049,937 | $373
17 178-421-33 | 3282 Gilbert Dr 11/13/2019 | 6,039 $2,520,000 80.84% $2,037,256 | $337
18 178-053-06 | 16681 Carousel Ln 9/19/2019 5,000 $4,368,000 79.77% $3,484,230 | $697
19 178-411-08 | 16522 Somerset Ln | 9/16/2019 6,000 $3,000,000 91.50% $2,745,041 | $458
20 178-371-09 | 16795 Bolero Ln 8/1/2019 5,200 $2,850,000 90.08% $2,567,324 | $494
21 178-653-38 | 16872 Coral Cay Ln | 1/7/2019 6,840 $3,151,000 85.10% $2,681,599 | $392
22 178-791-09 | 3176 Portofino Cir 10/30/2018 | 4,590 $2,395,000 83.00% $1,987,782 | $433
23 178-713-09 | 3502 Venture Dr 10/18/2018 | 6,000 $3,734,000 82.78% $3,091,109 | $515
24 178-713-19 | 3382 Venture Dr 9/10/2018 6,480 $3,000,000 84.25% $2,527,571 | $390
25 178-654-18 | 16936 Coral Cay Ln | 5/17/2018 7,680 $4,900,000 75.81% $3,714,598 | $484
26 178-652-37 | 16722 Coral Cay Ln | 4/25/2018 6,900 $4,645,000 68.26% $3,170,875 | $460
27 178-653-36 | 16852 Coral Cay Ln | 4/20/2018 7,560 $3,460,000 89.47% $3,095,556 | $409
28 178-731-22 | 3342 Venture Dr 3/20/2018 6,480 $3,300,000 83.66% $2,760,678 | $426
29 178-315-33 | 17021 Bolero Ln 2/8/2018 5,000 $3,625,000 72.39% $2,624,053 | $525
California State Lands Commission 7
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Table 3. Indications of Comparable Sales Table

Indications Lot Area (SF) Sale Price % Assessed Land | Land Value Land Value Per SF
Value
Low 2,820 $1,175,000 48.93% $986,190 $110
High 9,000 $6,650,000 97.35% $4,106,552 $697
Mean 6.088 $3,588,034 78.63% $2,737,900 $456
Median 6,000 $3,350,000 81.15% $2,748,718 $460
California State Lands Commission 8
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S Statewide G. Kato
NEW MINIMUM ANNUAL RENTS

BACKGROUND:
The Commission is required to recalculate minimum annual rents every 5 years
for the various surface use lease and permit categories it authorizes. The
minimum annual rent applies when the calculated rent is lower than the minimum
rent. These rents do not apply to the exploration or extraction of natural
resources such as minerals, oil, gas, or other hydrocarbons, or geothermal
resources.

The regulatory provision mandating the recalculated rents is contained in section
2003, subdivision (c), of title 2 of the California Code of Regulations:

Effective July 1, 2014, the minimum annual rents for the various
lease/permit categories will be recalculated every five (5) years, at
the end of June, using the adjustment formula identified in section
1900(m). Regardless of whether the application of the Adjustment
Formula results in an adjusted minimum annual rent that is greater
or lesser value than the previous year’s rent, the adjusted minimum
annual rent will never be lower than the minimum annual rents set
in section 2003(b).

The adjustment formula in section 1900(m) uses the Consumer Price Index
published periodically by the California Department of Industrial Relations.

The Commission has broad discretion in all aspects of leasing State-owned
lands, including sovereign and school lands under its jurisdiction. Sovereign land
generally includes natural, navigable waterways, and tide and submerged lands
within the State’s boundaries. School lands include lands granted to California in
1853 by the federal government to benefit public education.

The California Constitution, article XVI, section 6, expressly prohibits the
Legislature from making or authorizing any gift of public money or thing of value
to any individual, municipality, or corporation. A “thing of value” includes the use
of State-owned land, and to allow its use for private benefit with no rent or
consideration would constitute an impermissible gift.
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STAEF REPORT NO. 92 (CONT'D)

The calculation method or amount of rent that is most appropriate, and how rent
should be adjusted during the lease term, must be in the best interests of the
State, and is generally based on one or more of the following methods:

e 9 percent of the appraised value of the leased land;

e A percentage of annual gross income, where the percentage is based on
an analysis of the market for like uses and other relevant factors;

e A comparison to rents for other similar land or facilities;

e Benchmarks for regions with large concentrations of similar facilities, with
benchmark rental rates based on an analysis of similar or substitute
facilities in the local area;

e Other methods or information that are based on commonly accepted
appraisal practices and principles; and

e For leases for recreational piers or buoys, rent is based on local conditions
and local fair annual rental values.

In the event that calculated rent does not reach the threshold of the minimum
rent for the relevant lease category, the minimum rent would apply. More
information about the Commission’s leasing and rent-setting authority may be
found in the Public Resources Code, sections 6501.1, 6503, and 6503.5; and in
the California Code of Regulations, title 2, sections 2000 and 2003

RECALCULATION OF MINIMUM ANNUAL RENTS:
The minimum annual rents for the various lease and permit categories are set
forth in section 2003, subdivision (b) of title 2, the California Code of Regulations.

The new, recalculated minimum annual rents have been established as
prescribed in the regulations, using the most recently published California
Consumer Price Index, as shown in the table below.

Lease Category Current Effective July 1, 2019
Commercial $600 $671
Industrial $600 $671
Right-of-Way $450 $503
Grazing $600 $671
Agricultural $600 $671
Recreational $125 $140
Public Agency $125 $140
Protective Structure $125 $140
Dredging $125 $140
Other $125 $140
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STAEF REPORT NO. 92 (CONT'D)

The new minimum annual rents will be in effect for 5 years, until June 30, 2024,
when they will be recalculated again.
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From: | W

Sent: March 02, 2024 11:03 AM

To: Revenue Help <RevenueHelp@newportbeachca.gov>
Subject: Fee Schedule

Hi,

I'm trying to learn a bit about Pier Permit fees. I've found a current rate of .56 cents per sq. ft.
on the city's fee schedule.

Could you please tell me over what area that measurement is calculated? And is there a specific
procedure you can refer me to, used determine applicable square footage?

Thanks loads :)

From: Miller, Chris <CMiller@newportbeachca.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 1:37 AM

To: igowestoften@

Subject: RE: Fee Schedule

Hi There,

I am responding to your question below concerning the methodology for calculating the square
footage. Fortunately, itis easy.

It is simply the overall square footage of the pier, gangway and float times $0.56. Also, this pier permit
rate only applies to docks over City Tidelands.

| hope this answers your question.

Thank you,

Chris Miller

Manager

Public Works Department
Office: 949-644-3043

100 Civic Center Dr.
Newport Beach, CA 92660



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-17

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT
BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE FAIR MARKET VALUE RENT
FOR MOORINGS LOCATED UPON TIDELANDS IN NEWPORT
HARBOR

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1878 Beacon Bay Bill, as amended, ("Beacon Bay
Bill") the City of Newport Beach ("City") acts on behalf of the State of California as the
trustee of tidelands located within the City's limits, including Newport Harbor;

WHEREAS, the Beacon Bay Bill and Chapter 17,60 of the Newport Beach
Municipal Code ("MEMC") allow the City to issue permits to third parties to
construct'maintain moorings upon tidelands;

WHEREAS, the City offers two types of moorings, onshore and offshore, that
provide an affordable option allowing residents of California to use and enjoy the
tidelands in Newport Harbor;

WHEREAS, onshore moorings are located on the perimater of the shora within
Newport Harbor, and offshore moorings are located offshore within the waters of
Mewport Harbor;

WHEREAS, the mooring permits issued by the City do not convey any underlying
property interest, and instead only allow for the temporary mooring of a vessel upan the
waters of Newport Harbor;

WHEREAS, the Beacon Bay Bill, California Constitution Article 16, Section 6,
NBMC Subsection 17.60.060{D) and City Council Policy F-7(D) require the City to
recaive fair market value rent from third partles using the tidelands;

WHEREAS, the City Council has the exclusive discretion to determine fair
market value rent based, in part, upon the findings of a City-selected appraiser:

WHEREAS, an appraisal report was prepared by Mefzer & Associates and
delivered to the City and has been reviewed and considered by the City Council, which
report is made a part of the record for this matter:

WHEREAS, on November 23, 2010, the City Council adopted Resolution No.
2010-132, which established fair market value rental rates for onshore and offshore
moorings in Newport Harbor;

WHEREAS, the City Council is committed to periodically reviewing tidelands rent
to ensure the rent is reflective of fair market value:
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Resolution No. 2018-17
Page 2of 3

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2015, the City Council held a special meeting to receive
and consider a comprehensive study conducted by the City's Harbor Commission
regarding various aspecls of mooring permits, including, but not limited to, fair markat
value rental rates;

WHEREAS, at the City Council's special meeting, the City Council considered
the feedback and Ideas gathered during the Harbor Commission's study and outreach
meetings, and directed staff to bring back the mooring fair market value rental amounts
in this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considerad all documents and comments in the
record in connection with this resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Newport Beach resolves as
follows:

Section 1: The Recitals provided above are true and correct and are
incorporated into the substantive portion of this resolution.

Section 2: Resolution No. 2010-132 is hereby repealed. The City Council finds
that the rent provisions contained in this resolution provide for the charging of fair
market value rent and that the rental rate (and adjustments) constitutes fair market
value rent for moorings located upon tidelands, which findings are made by the City
Council In its exclusive discrefion but are based, in part, on the information in the
appraisal of its City-selected appraiser and, in addition, on other testimony and
documents in the record for this matter. The City Council further finds and determines
the rent for moorings located upon tidelands, operating under a permit, shall be set in
accordance with the provisions of this resolution. The rent established in this resolution
shall only be applicable to permittees with a mooring located over City managed
tidelands. The fair market value rent for moorings located upon tidelands in Newport
Harbor shall be set and adjusted as follows:

Onshore Mooring  $17.50" linear foot  *Adjusted annually by the U.S. Department of
Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer
Price Index for All Urban Consumers (“CPI"),
Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County Region
or 2%, whichever is less.

The City may conduct a new appraisal of
mooring rental rates in Newport Harbor after
March 1, 2018, and every fifth (5™) year
thereafter, as part of the appraisal required by
Resolution Mo, 2012-88, or any successor
resclution.

Offshore Moaring  $35.00* linear foot
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Resolution No. 2016-17
Paga 3 of 3

Saection 3: The City Council finds the setting of fair market value rent for
moonngs located upon tidelands is not subject to the California Environmental Quality
Act ("“CEQA”) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the envirenment) and 15060{cH3)
(the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines,
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for
resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. Alternatively, the
City Council finds the setling of fair market value rent for moorings located upon
tidslands is entitled to a Class 1 Categorical Exemption pursuant to CEQA Regulation
Section 15301 because the mooring rent contemplates the continued use of existing
facilities, with no expansion of the proposed use. Further, the City Council finds the
setting of fair market value rent for moorings located upon tidelands is entitled to a
Statutory Exemption pursuant to CEQA Regulation Section 15273(a){1) bacause the fair
market value rent established by the City Council will be used to meet operating
expenses within the tidelands. Lastly, the City Council finds the setting of fair market
value rent for moorings located upon tidelands is not a project under CEQA Regulation
Section 15061(b}3) because it has no potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment.

Section4: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this
resolution is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall
nol affect the validity or canstitutionality of the remaining portions of this resolution. The
City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this resolution, and each
section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase hereof, irespective of the fact that any
one or mora sactions, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared invalid
or unconstitutional.

Section 5: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by
the City Council and the City Clerk shall certify the vote adopting the resolution.

s, (91

ADOPTED this 26" day of January, 2016.

Diang B. Dixon |
Mayor

Leilani I. Brown
City Clerk

I .\ — l'll--
e = s Tl |

L N A
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA }
COUNTY OF ORANGE | &8,
CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH }

|. Laikani I. Brown, Cily Clerk of the City of Newporl Beach, California, do hereby certify that the
whole number of members of the City Coundl is seven; that the foregoing resalution, being Resokution
No. 2016-17 was duly and regularly introduced before and adopled by the City Council of said City at &
regular meeling of sakl Council, duly and regularly held on the 268" day of January, 2016, and that the

same was 50 passed and adopted by the following vaote, to wit:
AYES:  Council Member Peotter, Council Member Duffield, Councll Member Pstros,

Mayor Pro Tem Muldoon, Mayor Dicon

NAYS:  Councll Member Saelich, Council Member Curry

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have nereunio subscribed my name and affixed the official seat of

said City this 27" day of January, 2016.

City Clerk
MNewpaort Beach, California

City of Newport Beach
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CBRE VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES

APPRAISAL
REPORT

NEWPORT HARBOR OFFSHORE MOORING FIELDS -
TIDELANDS FAIR USE FEES

NEWPORT HARBOR

NEWPORT BEACH, CALIFORNIA 92662

NEWPORT MOORING ASSOCIATION, INC.

CBRE



VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES

CBRE

February 12, 2024

Mr. L. Scott Karlin

Policy and Legal Affairs on behalf of Newport Mooring Association, Inc.
NEWPORT MOORING ASSOCIATION, INC.

P.O.Box 1118

Newport Beach, California 92659

RE:  Appraisal of: Newport Harbor Offshore Mooring Fields - Tidelands Fair Use Fees
Newport Harbor, Newport Beach, Orange County, California

Dear Mr. Karlin:

At your request and authorization, CBRE, Inc. has prepared an appraisal of the market rental
value of the referenced property. Our analysis is presented in the following Appraisal Report.

The subject property consists of the State-owned State of California Tidelands submerged in
Newport Harbor that are currently utilized to accommodate individual offshore moorings. The
Tidelands are currently held in Trust by the City of Newport Beach. There are approximately 740
offshore moorings, approximately 579 of which are in mooring fields A, B, C, D, F, G, H, J and
K, and which excludes approximately 79 moorings in the Balboa Yacht Club mooring field and
73 moorings in the Newport Harbor Yacht Club mooring field which are not administrated by the
City. The Harbor Patrol also has 6 moorings.

Although requested, updated precise sourced detailed information including the exact number of
moorings, intended boat length for each mooring, and the amount of tidelands encumbered or
utilized within each mooring field for use by individual moorings was not available. We have
estimated / filled in any missing data and figures based on available information including
mooring area maps, 6 years of detailed mooring transfer logs, Landvision aerial measuring tool,
and calculations based on typical vessel sizes and mooring equipment. From these resources we
have estimated 579 moorings in 9 mooring fields ranging from 18 moorings to 133
moorings, with average intended boat lengths ranging from 40’ to 50’ and average beam
(width) of 15 feet, each of which is extended on average 12 feet from the boat to the buoy at the
bow, and 12 feet from the stern to the stern buoy. In the case of mooring using only one buoy,
the exira area at the stern would not be added. The mooring fields within which the individual
moorings are located comprise just over 82 acres of tidelands. Note that we independently
estimated the area of the mooring fields with an aerial measuring tool which indicated actual
mooring fields of around 73 acres; however, the Harbor Department-provided-data was relied
upon for the purposes of the appraisal, despite being unsourced. The areas within the mooring
fields outside the areas occupied by, or which could be occupied by a vessel on the individual
moorings is not an area used exclusively by the owners of vessels on the individual moorings.
These areas are generally used by the public inclusive of kayakers, paddle boarders, small craft

© 2024 CBRE, Inc.
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Mr. L. Scott Karlin
February 12, 2024
Page 2

such as Duffy Boats, as well as the occasional use by the owner of a vessel using a tender to
access an individual mooring.

Our analysis is of the tidelands used by the individual moorings within the mooring fields. Actual
fees or fair market rent would vary from mooring to mooring. For example, a mooring on the
perimeter of a moorings field would have superior unobstructed views, easier access, and/or
mooring fields are closer to the harbor entrance, etc. This, however, is offset by a generally
inferior mooring which may be very far from the harbor entrance, have difficult or crowded
access, be located near a gas dock or a “louder” area in the harbor, etc. Accordingly, for this
assignment, and in order to provide as balanced and equitable an analysis of the tidelands
in a harbor-wide context as possible, we based the valuation of market rent for the subject
tidelands upon a “typical” mooring.

Based on the analysis contained in the following report, and certain assumptions based on the
typical area of tidelands used by a vessel on a mooring, and the lack of additional services or
areas of tidelands available to mooring holders to access these moorings, the market value of the
subject is concluded as follows:

TIDELANDS FAIR USE FEES / FAIR MARKET RENT

Annual Rent per 40'
Mooring Based on
Market Rent / Lineal Foot / 1,326SF of Tidelands

YR for Tidelands used for individual
Appraisal Premise Date of Value ($3.36 LF per mo) mooring
As ls January 15, 2024 $41.00 $1,640
Compiled by CBRE
Summary Table — Various Size Moorings
Mooring Size | Sq Ft with Annual Fee Annual Fee Annual Fee
Max Swing | Per Lineal Based on Sq | Per Lineal Foot
Factor Foot Ft Tidelands | (rounded to full
(rounded to (without dollar)

full dollar) Rounding)

30 843 $35 $1,045.32 $1,050
40 1,326 $41 $1,644.24 $1,640
50 1,857 $46 $2,302.68 $2,300
60 2,322 $48 $2,879.28 $2,880
70 2,840 $50 $3,521.60 $3,500

If the City was to provide additional services to provide access to the moorings (such as shore
boat service) or set aside areas of the tidelands for reasonable access to the moorings (such as in
water motorized dinghy/tender boat dockage), an adjustment in the value may be appropriate,

CBRE

© 2024 CBRE, Inc.
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Mr. L. Scott Karlin
February 12, 2024
Page 3

depending on the nature and extent of such additional services or additional tideland used for
such access.

The report, in its entirety, including all assumptions and limiting conditions, is an integral part of,
and inseparable from, this letter.

The following appraisal sets forth the most pertinent data gathered, the techniques employed,
and the reasoning leading to the opinion of value. The analyses, opinions and conclusions were
developed based on, and this report has been prepared in conformance with, the guidelines and
recommendations set forth in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP),
and the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice of the Appraisal Institute.

The intended use and user of our report are specifically identified in our report as agreed upon in
our contract for services and/or reliance language found in the report. As a condition to being
granted the status of an intended user, any intended user who has not entered into a written
agreement with CBRE in connection with its use of our report agrees to be bound by the terms
and conditions of the agreement between CBRE and the client who ordered the report. No other
use or user of the report is permitted by any other party for any other purpose. Dissemination of
this report by any party to any non-intended users does not extend reliance to any such party,
and CBRE will not be responsible for any unauthorized use of or reliance upon the report, its
conclusions or contents (or any portion thereof).

It has been a pleasure to assist you in this assignment. If you have any questions concerning the
analysis, or if CBRE can be of further service, please contact us.

Respectfully submitted,

CBRE - VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES

.—-"H:r.’.:-‘;-—"/-ﬁ—‘—_-(-‘r:‘ = f-,:'-'_“'i—;—-r':w_-—--'f::—;-'-—'--;

=
=

Robert Jacobson, MAI

Executive Vice President

California State Certification No. AG035731
Expiration Date: July 7, 2025

CBRE

© 2024 CBRE, Inc.
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Reconciliation of Market Rent

Reconciliation of Market Rent

The rent indications from the two methodologies are summarized as follows:

SUMMARY OF MARKET RENT ESTIMATES

Annual Rent

California State Tidelands Commission Methodology $1,613
Inflation Methodology Based on City's Prior Benchmark $1,670
Ratio Method $1,920
Reconciled Market Rent Estimate $1,640
Based on Typical 40 Lineal Foot Boat $41.00

Compiled by CBRE

As discussed throughout the report, the ratio method is deemed the least reliable methodology
illustrated in the appraisal. We have placed equal approximate emphasis on the first two
methodologies utilized in the preceding chart.

Based on the foregoing, the market rent of the subject tidelands has been concluded as follows:

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
As s January 15, 2024 $41.00 $1,640

Compiled by CBRE

Tidelands Fair Use Fees / Fair Market Rent — Other Size Moorings

Based on Methodologies Used in This Report the Value per Square Foot is $1.24 per Square Foot
of Tidelands Used Per Annum. The square foot valuation would not change in relation to the size

of mooring, only the square foot used and resulting adjustment to the total rate would change.

Sq Ft of Tidelands Used — No Swing Factor

Boat Size | + | Lines + Buoys* | x | Beam | Total Sq Ft
30 + |24 x| 12 648
40 + |28 x| 15 1,020
50 + | 34 x| 17 1,428
60 + | 34 x| 19 1,786
70 + |34 x| 21 2,184

7 CBRE
© 2024 CBRE, Inc.



Rates without a Swing Factor

Reconciliation of Market Rent

Boat Size Sq Ft with | x Total Sq Ft Fee Per Year Fee Per Year
Lines etfc at $1.24 sq ft | Per Lineal Foot

30 648 X 648 $803.52 $26.79

40 1,020 X 1,020 $1,264.80 $31.62

50 1,428 X 1,428 $1,770.72 $35.42

60 1,786 X 1,786 $2,214.64 $36.91

70 2,184 X 2,184 $2,708.16 $38.69

Add Swing Factor at 20%

Boat Size Sq Ftwith | x | 20% | Total Sq Ft | Fee Per Year Fee Per Year
Lines etfc with Swing | at $1.24 sq ft | Per Lineal Foot

30 648 X 778 $964.72 $32.16

40 1,020 X 1,224 $1,517.76 $37.95

50 1,428 X 1,714 $2,125.36 $42.51

60 1,786 X 2,144 $2,658.56 $44.31

70 2,184 X 2,621 $3,250.04 $46.43

Add Swing Factor at 25%

Boat Size Sq Ft with | x | 25% | Total Fee Per Year | Fee Per Year
Lines etc with Swing | at $1.24 sq ft | Per Lineal Foot

30 648 X 810 $1,004.40 $33.48

40 1020 X 1,275 $1,581.00 $39.53

50 1428 X 1,785 $2,213.40 $44.27

60 1786 X 2,233 $2,768.92 $46.15

70 2184 X 2,730 $3,385.20 $48.36

Add Swing Factor at 30%

Boat Size Sq Ft with | x | 30% | Total Fee Per Year | Fee Per Year
Lines etfc with Swing | at $1.24 sq ft | Per Lineal Foot

30 648 X 843 $1,045.32 $34.85

40 1,020 X 1,326 $1,644.24 $41.11

50 1,428 X 1,857 $2,302.68 $46.06

60 1,786 X 2,322 $2,879.28 $47.99

70 2,184 X 2,840 $3,521.60 $50.31

* Variations with Summary results from rounding square foot calculations.

© 2024 CBRE, Inc.
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APPRAISAL REPORT

FAIR MARKET RENT
OFFSHORE MOORINGS
NEWPORT BEACH, CALIFORNIA

DATE OF VALUE
DECEMBER 26, 2023

PREPARED FOR

LAUREN WOODING WHITLINGER
REAL PROPERTY ADMINISTRATOR
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH
100 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE
NEWPORT BEACH, CALIFORNIA 92660

PREPARED BY

NETZER & ASSOCIATES
170 E. SEVENTEENTH STREET, SUITE 206
COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA 92627
FILE NO, 2023-025
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MNewport Harbor Offshore Meorings
Newport Besch, California December 26, 2025 METZEER & ASSOMCIATES

Bay as most of the Back Bay is an ecological preserve with limited boating facilities (Mewpaort
Dunes, Newport Aquatic Center, U.C.1. Rowing base, Bayside Village and Dover Shores). The
Balboa Peninsula consists of all the contiguous land east of 45% Street extending 1o Peninsula Point
and the jetty at the mouth of Newport Harbor. The south side of the Peninsula consists of sandy
beaches on the Pacific Ceean while the north side of the Peninsula forms the southern perimeter

of Newpaort Harbor,

MOORING DESCRIPTION

Within Newport Harbor there are “onshore™ and “offshore™ moorings occupying the tidelands that
are managed by the City of Newport Beach. There are approximately 1,159 on-shore and off-
shore moorings in Newport Harbor. The offshore moorings are located at ten locations throughout
the harbor with two additional locations located proximate w Newport Harbor Yacht Club and
Balboa Yecht Club. These two locations are largely for the exclusive use of the vacht club
membership. The onshore moorings are located surrounding Balboa Island, along various seclions
on the bay side of the peninsula from Peninsula Point to 20™ Street, surrounding Newport [sland
and on sections of Lido I[sle. A map showing the location of the moorings is included on the next
page. The following table is a summary of the mooring areas based on information provided by

the Harbor Depariment.
Muooring | Mooring Area Mo, of
__Ares Type ($5g.FL.) | Moorings | Location
| A OrFsvore 64, 786 133 W/ of Peninsula between A Street & L Sineet
B Oishore 367,221 ] | 5/0 Balboa Island between Collins & Grand Canal
BYC OfTshore | 852,008 7% | W/D Balboa Yacht Club — members & +17 private
c OnTehore 385,811 54 | N5 of Peninsula between Medina Way & Adams Street |
D Offshore 315247 56 M/ of Balboa |sland between Emerald & Chinyvx
E Cinshore == 32 E/S of Little Balboa Island
E Orfshore M.AY. 2 N/S of Peninsuls between 5 Street & 12 Street |
G Offehvore o2 030 1% E/Q Bayshares Community
H Offshore | 458,738 91 NS of Peninsuls between [3* Street & 15™ Street
J OHFelvore 672686 122 NS of Peninsula between | 5* Street & 18™ Street
K CHFahore | 38,265 22 S0 Lida Isle between Via Genoa & Via Barcelona
L Cinghore as 46 Lido Iste Community Association onshore moorings
LN g hore == 15 WS of Lido 1sle
L% Cinghare - 7 S5 of Lida Isle
N Cinshre - 136 N/S of Balboa Island
NHYC CHTehare M AY, 73 WA Mewpart Harbor ¥ acht Club — members only
G Oinshore - 155 /5 of Balboa Island o
W Ciazhiore - 37 hepwport Lsland/Marcus Ave /River Ave /Finley Avenue
Mlshare - Sublolal 731
Omshore - Subtotal 428
Total Moorings: 1,159

This report addresses the Fair Market Rent for the offshore moorings.

10
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APPRAISAL REPORT

FAIR MARKET RENT
OFF-SHORE & ON-SHORE MOORINGS
NEWPORT BEACH, CALIFORNIA

DATE OF VALUE
JANUARY 6, 2016

PREPARED FOR

CHRIS MILLER
HARBOR MANAGER
CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH, HARBOR DEPARTMENT
829 HARBOR ISLAND DRIVE
NEWPORT BEACH, CALIFORNIA 92660

PREPARED BY

NETZER & ASS0CIATES
170 E. SEVENTEENTH STREET, SUITE 206
COSTA MESA, CALIFORNIA 92627
FILE NO, 2015024

City of Newport Beach
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Setting the Fair Market Value Rent for Moorings Located Upon Tidelands in Newport
Harbor

January 26, 2016

Page 2

moast of the tidelands within Newport Harbor. The Beacon Bay Bill authorizes the City to
allow third parties to use the tidelands. The Beacon Bay Bill, Califomia Constitution
Article 16, Section 6, the Municipal Code, and City Council Policy F-T(D) require the
City to receive fair market value rent from persons using tidelands.

The City currently issues approximately 1,200 annual permits for onshore and offshore
moorings in Newport Harbor. Onshore moorings allow persons to store smaller vessels
off of harbor beaches, while offshore moorings allow for the slorage of larger vessels in
the center of the harbor. Moorings consist of "tackle™ (buoys, weights, chains) placed
within designated mooring fields. Mooring permit holders own and maintain their own
tackle, but they do not have any ownership rights in the underlying tidelands.

The City's General Plan speaks to a broad goal that onshore and offshore maoorings
should remain an affordable method of bringing boating to the general public comparad
to berthing in a fraditional marina environment. Onshore moorings are charged 50% of
the offshore mooring rate because onshore moorings are intended for smaller vessels
with an 18 foot maximum length.

Al the June 16, 2015 special meeling, the City Council considered a Harbor
Commission mocoring report, and then directed staff to return with recommended
changes, including a re-evaluation of the current fair market rent for moorings. At the
City Council's direction, staff discussed the proposed mooring changes with their
counterparts al the State Lands Commission ("SLCT). The SLC expressed two
recommendations regarding the City's mooring proposal: (1) the SLC recommended the
City provide, in no uncertain terms, that the mooring permits do not convey a real
property interest in the underlying tidelands; and (2) the SLC recommended the City
abtain a current appraisal to assist with the establishment of fair market value mooring
rental rates. Based upon the SLC's recommendations, staff added a provision to the
Resolution establishing fair market value mooring rental rates reiterating the annual
permits do not convey a real property interest, Staff will also add/strengthen similar
language in the actual mooring permits. Staff also retained Netzer and Associates fo
conduct a current appraisal of the moorings in Newport Harbor, which is attached hereto
as Altachment B. The mooring appraisal established a recommended range for fair
market value mooring rental rates:

Annual Fair Market Rent for Offshore Moorings:
$£32.00 to $38.00 per linear foot of mooring

Annual Fair Market Rent for the Onshore Moorings:
$16.00 to $19.00 per linear foot of mooring

Based upon the attached appraisal, the recommendation of the Harbor Commission,
and the good work of the Newport Mooring Association, stafl recommends a fair market

20-2


cmadult
Highlight

cmadult
Highlight

cmadult
Highlight

cmadult
Highlight

cmadult
Highlight

cmadult
Highlight


Mewport Harbor Moorings
Mewport Beach, California Jamoary 6, 2006 NETZER & ASSOMIATES

moorings are rented based on the maximum mooring length not the vessel length. The quality and
quantity of the market data upon which | have based my direct market comparison is considered
good; however, it did warrant adjustments for location and lack of access to dinghy storage. The
Balboa Yacht Club mooring data is included for informational purposes as it is not offered on the
open market but shows the demand within a closed market and defines an upper limit of the
mooring rental range,

The CPI analysis 15 a trendhing of the rental rates established at vanous times (1975 & 1993) for
the subject moorings. It is based on the assumption that the rental rates in the base years (1975 &
1995) are market based and that the change in CPI reflects the change in market conditions for
moorings in Newport Harbor, The CPI is typically included as an annual adjustment to a lease,
with pericdic "market rent” adjustments applied to account for changes in market conditions as
opposed to a trending of values based on a basket of goods, On the basis of my research, the 1995
figure was determined to be “Fair Market Rent” and 15 judged to be a more reliable indicator than
the 1975 figure. The change in mooring rates al BYC between 2006 and 20015 suggests that the
change in CPl may understate the change in market conditions for moorings in Newport Harbor,
The CPI analysis using the rent established in 1995 s judged to be more reliable than the 1975
figure and helps define the lower limit of the Fair Market Rent range.

The Ratio analysis attempts to estimate the market rent for moorings as compared to the remt for
similar slip spaces in the same manna or harbor. As shown in the analysis, the ratio can vary
dramatically (25% to Y2%) and, while a potential renter could take this into consideration (cost of
a slip v. cost of a mooring), it is not judged to be a reliable measure of Fair Market Rent. This
analysis is given little weight in the final reconciliation.

The Tidelands analysis is based on the premise that the Fair Market Rent for an individual mooring
i5 tied to the market rent for the encumbered tidelands, This approach has its merits and the
information and assumptions used in the analysis are well supported; however, the typical user of
an individual mooring would not complete this analysis to determine market rent. In the final
reconciliation this approach is given secondary emphasis.

Given the indications from the four approaches utilized, and the quality and guantity of the
available market data, I have given each approach some consideration with primary emphasis
placed on the Comparable Rental and CPI approaches. Based on my analysis of the market data
uncoverad, L have concluded that the subject off-shore moorings have an Annual Fair Market Rent,
as of January 6, 2016, of: §32.00 to $38.00 per Linear Foot of Mooring.

The above discussion relates to the off-shore moorings throughout Newport Harbor. There is a
limited number of on-shore moorings and [ did not uncover any information regarding lease rates
for on-shore moorings at other harbors, The maximum vessel length is limited on the on-shore
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Public Comment Re:
Offshore Mooring
Proposed FMV Rent

Attachment E:

City of Newport Beach
40" Offshore Mooring
Rent Statement:

1 pg.



City of Newport Beach MUNICIPAL SERVICES STATEMENT
Revenue Division
P.O. Box 4923

Whittier, CA 90607

www.newportbeachca.gov Water Conservation Route: MRG
ACCOUNT SUMMARY CHARGES: TOTAL:

Name: R MOORING OFFSHORE (MONTHLY) $133.60
Account #

BILLING SUMMARY
Customer #
Service Address: MOORING: H - Previous/Beginning Balance $133.60
Statement Date: 2/5/2024 Payments Applied - THANK YOU $133.60
Due Date: 3/1/2024 Total Adjustments $0.00
Total Amount Due: $133.60

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ___$_1_3_i 60

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

March 2024 Payment must be received on or before the due
date. Payments not received by the due date are subject to a
10% penalty and revocation. You can avoid penalties by
signing up for the City's AutoPay plan.

Go online to pay your bills at www.newportbeachca.gov/payments

City of Newport Beach RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT
Revene Dson L
P.O. Box 4923
Whittier, CA 90607 Account #: ]
Notice Date: 2/5/2024
Please provide/update the e-mail address and phone number so the City 3/1 /2024
may contact you about water service problems.
Total Amount Due: $133.60
- Amount Enclosed:
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Public Comment Re:
Offshore Mooring
Proposed FMV Rent

Attachment F:

City of Newport Beach
Resolution 2015-10:

9 pgs.



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF NEWPORT BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ADJUSTING THE
RENTAL CALCULATION AND APPROVING A REVISED
MODEL PERMIT TEMPLATE FOR RESIDENTIAL PIERS
LOCATED UPON TIDELANDS

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1978 Beacon Bay Bill, as amended, (*Beacon Bay
Bill") the City of Newport Beach ("City") acts on behalf of the State of California as the
trustee of tidelands located within the City's limits, including Newport Harbor;

WHEREAS, the Beacon Bay Bill and Chapter 17.680 of the Newport Beach
Municipal Code ("NBMC™) allow the City to authorize third parties to construct/maintain
residential piers upon tidelands;

WHEREAS, the Beacon Bay Bill, California Constitution Article 16, Section 6,
NBMC Section 17.60.060{D) and City Council Policy F-7({D)} require the City to receive
fair market value rent from third parties using the tidelands;

WHEREAS, the City Council has the exclusive discretion to determine fair
market valua rent based, in part, upon the findings of a City-selected appraiser:

WHEREAS, an appraisal report by Rasmuson Appraisal Services, and an
appraisal report by Netzer & Associates, were prepared and delivered to the City and
have been reviewed and considered by the City Council, which reports are part of the
record for this matter;

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution
No. 2013-88, approving a model residential pier permit for residential piers located upon
tidelands and establishing fair market value rent:

WHEREAS, on January 27, 2015, the City Council considered, at its regularly
scheduled study session, the current status of the City's tidelands regulations and rents
for moorings, commercial piers and residential piers and directed staff to bring back
certain amendments contained in this resolution to improve the tidelands rent process:

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all documents and comments in the
record in connection with this resolution; and

WHEREAS, all previous resolutions, or portions thereof, and actions regarding
the fair market value rent for residential piers and the model pier permit template for
residential piers that are in conflict with the provisions in this resolution are hereby

rapealed.
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

Section 2: The City Council finds that the rent provisions contained in the
attached Adjusted Residential Pier Tidelands Rent Calculations, which is incorporated
by reference, provide for the charging of fair market value rent and that the rental rate
(and adjustments) in the attachment constitute fair market value rent for residential piers
located upon tidelands, which findings are made by the City Council in its exclusive
discretion but are based, in part, on the information in the appraisals of its City-selected
appraisers and, in addition. on other testimony and documents in the record for this
matter. The City Council further finds and determines the rent for residential piers
located upon tidelands, operating under a permit, shall be set in accordance with the
attached Adjusted Residential Pier Tidelands Rent Calculations. The rent established in
this resolution shall only be applicable to permittess with a residential pier located over
tidelands.

Section 3: The City Council adopts the revised model residential pier tidelands
permit attached to this resolution, and incorporated by this reference, for use by
residential pier lidelands users. The City Council finds that the residential tidelands
users subject to the attached model permit are not subject to the open bid process
found in City Council Policy F-7 because redevelopmentireuse of the tidelands by a
third party would require excessive time, resources and costs which would outweigh
other financial benefits.

Section 4: The City Council finds the adjustment of residential pier rent and
the approval of a revised model permit template for residential piers located upon
tidelands is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to
Sections 15060{cK2) (the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable
indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c}3) (the activity is not a
project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of
Regulations, Tile 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical
change o the environment, directly or indirectly. Alternatively, the City Council finds the
adjustment of residential pler rent and the approval of a revised model permit template
for residential piers located upon tidelands is entitted to a Class 1 Categorical
Exemption pursuant to CEQA Regulation Section 15301 because the residential pier
rent and permit contemplate the continued use of existing facilities, with no expansion of
the proposed use. Further, the City Council finds the adjustment of residential pier rent
for piers located upon tidelands is entitied to a Statutory Exemption pursuant to CEQA
Regulation Section 15273{a)(1) because the fair market value rent established by the
City Council will be used to meet operating expenses within the tidelands. Lastly, the
City Council finds the adjustment of residential pier rent and the approval of a revised
model permit template for residential piers located upon tidelands is not a project under
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CEQA Regulation Section 15061(bN3) because it has no potential for causing a
significant effect on the environment.

Section 5: If any section, subsection, senlence, clause or phrase of this
resolution is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall
not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this resolution. The
City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this resolution, and each
section, subsection, clause or phrase hereof, irespective of the fact that any one or
more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

Section 6: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by
the City Council and the City Clerk shall certify the vote adopting the resolution.

ADOPTED this 10" day of February, 2015.

Lo B8 e fyo

Edward D. Selich,

Attachments: (1) Adjusted Residential Pier Tidelands Rent Caleulations
(2} Revised Model Permit Template for Residential Plers



Adjusted Residential Pier Tidelands Rent Calculations
Residential Pier Rent

{1) Residential Pier Permittees shall pay as Rent Fifty Cents ($0.50) per squara
foot of the Premises, as phased in and adjusted pursuant to this resolution.
Two (2) examples of the Rent calculation are provided below for illustrative
PUrposes:

o 7 T iy

Proposed - 215 VIA LIDO 50UD Proposed - 417 EDGEWATER PL
Totad Permit Area = 992 sq. f1. Total Permit Area = 637 sq. f1.
2017 Rental Fow = $496 2017 Rental Fee = $318.95
(50.50/sq. fry - . : [50.50 /s £t

(2)  Permittees that desire to rent/lease their Residential Pier shall notify the
City in writing. Permittees that rentflease their Residenfial Pier, either in
whole or in part, shall pay the Rent applicable to Small Commercial
Marinas as established in Resolution No. 2012-98, or any successor
rasolution, for the Premizes,

(3) To the extent a Residential Pier is shared by two (2) or more Permittees,
the Rent shall be appeortioned equally among the Permittees (ie., if a



Residential Pier is shared by two (2) Permittees, half {(1/2) of the Rent
shall be billed to one (1) Permittee and the other half (1/2) of the Rent
shall be billed to the other Permittee). The Permittees shall be jointly and
severally liable for the Rent. Each Permittee shall receive a permit from
the City indicating the percentage of the Premises apportioned to the
Permittea.

Periodic Adjustments of Rent and Phase In

Rent for Residential Piers provided by this resolution, shall be phased-in and
adjusted as follows in the table below. In the tabla, "A" represents the calculated rent
based on the known square footage under permit in 2012, multiplied by Fifty Cents a
square foot ($0.50/SF):

Fifty C 0.50) Eent Phase-in Table and Adi nt

Examples 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
4100 ([A-5100]/5) | ([A-5100]/5} | ([A-51001/5) | {[A-5100]/5) | Fully Phased-In
+ 5100 |+ 2013 Rent | + 2014 Rent | + 2015 Rent Rent [A)
Example #1:
5 1;:'; $100 5194 $288 $382 $476 5570
prmiricicatt T $223 5345 5468 4580 $713
1,826 SF
e #3:
:::;:F's: I. 5100 5428 5756 41,084 51,412 51,740

& = sguare footage x 50.50

Rent for Residential Piers of one hundred ninety square feet (190') or less shall pay the
fully phased in Rent immediately and be subject to CPI adjustment beginning in 2018.
During the phase-in period there shall be no adjustment by the U.S. Depariment of
Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers
{("CPI"), Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County region or otherwise.

Beginning in 2018 and indefinitely beyond, the rental rate shall be adjusted by the
change in the CPI or two percent (2%) whichever is less. The City may conduct a new
appraisal of residential pier rental rates in Newport Harbor after March 1, 2018, and
avery fifth {5""} year thereafter, as part of the appraisal required by Resolution No. 2012-
96, or any successor resolution. The City Council, at its discretion, may use the
appraisal to adjust Rent for the following year (i.e., the Rent determined by the appraisal
following March 1, 2018 shall be effective March 1, 2019). If the City Council chooses
not to adjust Rent across the Class of Parmit, it shall use the appraisal's results fo
adjust the Rent of only those individual Permits that transfer ownership following each
appraisal. Once adjusted, these transferred Permits shall be adjusted by the change in
CPl or two percent (2%), whichever is less, until such time that a new appraisal applies
to this Permit or Class of Permit.
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Definitions

Unless otherwise provided, the terms provided in the Newport Beach Municipal
Code ("NBMC") shall apply to this resolution. The singular of any term also includes the
plural.

(1)  Class of Permit means all Permits for Residential Piers in Newport Harbor.

(2)  Pemit refers 1o a permit issued by the City authorizing a Residential Pier
upon the Premises,

(3) Permittee means a person who has a permit from the City to
construct/maintain a Residential Pier.

(4)  Premises means those Tidelands which are subject to the applicable permit
and are more parficularly described and depicted in the applicable permit,
excluding any Private Waterways and improvements owned by the Permittes
or Tidelands subject to recorded easements for pier and slip purposes. The
Premises shall include only the portion of the Tidelands located under a
Reasidential Pier and shall exclude the interior U-Shape of a slip.

(5)  Private Waterways means privately owned submerged lands or submerged
lands subject to recorded easements for pier and slip purposes.

(6)  Rent means the annual fair market rent charged on a square footage basis
for the use of the Premises.

(7)  Residential Pier means a pier used by the owner(s), occupant(s), guest(s) or
lessee(s) of the abutting residentially zoned upland property. A Residential
Fier shall include the entire pier system, including, but not limited to, the float,
gangway, gangway landing, pier, and pier platform. The Residential Pier
shali specifically exclude the interior U-Shape of a slip.

(8)  Tidelands mean certain tidelands and submerged land (whether filled or
unfilled}, located in the City of Newport Beach, County of Orange, State of
California, granted to the City of Newport Beach, as trustee, by the State of
California, pursuant to the Tidelands Grant.

(2} Tidelands Grant means uncodified legislation related to the State of
California's grant of certain rights in the Tidelands to the City of Newport
Beach, including, without limitation, the Beacon Bay Bill (Chapter 74 of the
Statutes of 1978, as amended [citations omitted]).



ATTACHMENT B

Residential Tidelands Pier Permit

(1} Permittes: This Permit is issued on to
("Permittes’) to constructmaintain a residential pler located upon City of Newport Beach ("City™)
lidelands, as more particularly described and depicted In Attachment 1 (*Premises™), which is
altached herefo and incorporated by reference. By acceplanca of this Permit, the Permittes
agrees to be bound by the terms contained in this Permit.

(2} Term: This Permit shafl be valid for a period of __ year(s) beginning on March 1,
20____ and expiring on February __, 20, unbess terminated earlier as provided herein. A new
permil may be automatically issued upon expiration, provided rent is paid and the pier is
maintained. The City's longstanding policy s 1o re-issue residential permits to the upland
property owner, who also owns the physical dock associated with the Premises.

{3) Rent Rent shall be calculated pursuant to Resolution Mo, 2015- or any
successor/amended resolution.  Resolution MNo. 2015-_ and any successorfamended
resolution are automatically incorporated by referance into this Permit, without any further action
by the parties, when adopted by the Newport Beach City Council,

(A} Paymenot of Renot: All remt shall be annually prorated and billed through
Permittee’s Municipal Semnvices Staterment (“MS2", Al rent shall be due and
payable pursuant to the terms of Parmittee's MSS.

(B}  Late Charges: A ten percent (10%) late charge shall be added to all payments
due but not received by City by the dus date.

(C)  Third-Pary Use: This Permit o allows / o does not allow (check one) the
Parmitee to rant/lease the Premises to a third-party.

(4p  Ltilities and Taxes: The Permittea is solely responsible for obtaining all utiliies and
paying al taxes (including possessory interest tax, if applicable), fees and assessments for the
Premises or improvements located thereon.

{3) Maintenance: The Permittes assumes full responsibility for operation and maintenance
and repair of the Premises and associated improvements throughout the term of this Permit at
its sole cost, and without axpense ta the Ciky.

6] IrensferfAssignment: This Permit may ba transferred or assigned by the Permittee as
provided in the Mewport Beach Municipal Code.

{T)  Progery Right Protection: The residential pler maintained under this Permit is private
proparty and shall be profectad o the maximum extent under the law from unlawful seizure.

{8) Settlement Agreement: This Permit is in full compliance with the February 21, 2014
Settiement Agreement entered into between the City and the Newport Beach Dock Cwners
Association,



ATTACHMENT B

Attachment 1
Description & Depiction of Premises

Premisa’s Address (or description of general location):

Premise's Square Foolage:

Premise's Depiction:



ETATE OF CALIFORENIA i
COUNTY OF ORANGE L 55,
CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH

I, Leilani 1. Brown, City Clark of the City of Newpart Beach, California, do hereby certify that the
whole number of members of the City Council is seven; that the foregaing resolution, baing Resolutlon
Mo, 2015-10 was duly and regularly infroduced before and adopted by the City Council of said City at a
regular meeting of sald Councll, duly and regularly held on the 10" day of February, 2015, and that the

safme was 50 passed and adopied by the following vote, to wil:

AYES: Council Member Peotter, Councd Member Petros, Council Mamber BMuldoon,
Mayor Pro Tem Dixon
MAYS: Council Member Curry

RECUSED: Council Member Duffield, Mayor Sedich
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have heraunte subscribed my name and afficed the official seal of

said City this 117 day of February, 2015,

City Clerk
Haewport Beach, Californda

[Seal)




Public Comment Re:
Offshore Mooring
Proposed FMV Rent

Attachment G:

City of Newport Beach
Harbor Department
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https://nbgis.newportbeachca.gov/gispub/Dashboards/HarborQuestDashPublic.htm

Screenshot: 03/25/2024



https://nbgis.newportbeachca.gov/gispub/Dashboards/HarborQuestDashPublic.htm

Screenshot: 03/29/2024



Name

Matthew

Cosylion

Name

Madison Vitarelli

Name

Ryan Sanford

Name

Joseph White

Name

Cynthia Shintaku

https://transparentcalifornia.com/salaries/search/

3 Regular Overtime .
Job title Other pay Total pay Benefits
pay pay.
Code Enforcement Supervisor
$125,512.00 30.00 $21,588.00 3$147,100.00 $9,299.00
Newport Beach, 2022
Job title Regular pay Overtime pay Otherpay Totalpay Benefits
Permit Technician I
561,432.00 5202.00 51,384.00 563,018.00 $17,303.00
Job title Regular pay Overtime pay Other pay Totalpay Benefits
Harbor Services Worker, Lead
550,618.00 5171.00 50.00 550,789.00 5$4,909.00
Newport Beach, 2
. Regular Overtime .
Job title Other pay Total pay Benefits
pay pay
Harbor Services Worker, Lead
540,812.00 $126.00 $259.00 $41,197.00 £3,951.00
Job title Regular pay Overtime pay Other pay Total pay Benefits
Department Assistant
536,066.00 50.00 50.00 536,066.00 53,497.00

Newport Beach, 2022

Pension
debt

527,835.79

Pension debt

$17,831.79

Pension debt

514,694.69

Pension
debt

£11,826.99

Pension debt

510,467.98

Total pay &
benefits

5184,234.79

Total pay &
benefits

598,152.79

Total pay &

benefits

$70,392.69

Total pay &
benefits

£56,974.99

Total pay &
benefits

550,030.98



California State Lands Commission Meeting - 04/04/2024
Public Comment, Re: Newport Beach Offshore Mooring Rents
A. Leverenz Public Comment Addendum:

Dear Commissioners,

Addressing two Memos from Mr. Netzer, included as “Attachment B” and
“‘Attachment C” within the Newport Beach Harbor Commission agenda materials
for their Meeting of March 18, 2024

The Cover Sheet with “Attachment B”, is titled: “Netzer & Associates memo
regarding 2016 vs. 2021 and 2023 Appraisal Rates”. That title seems
accurate to me. | am supposing that the cover sheet was prepared by City staff.
| am further supposing that the year “22014” in Mr. Netzer’s associated Memo,
Is simply a typo. However, in the Memo, Mr. Netzer repeatedly speaks to
conclusions made in 2024. The Appraisal Reports from Netzer and Associates
that | have seen to date, are from 2023 and prior. As has been indicated, his
2023 report seemed to evidence some confusion about how many mooring
fields are in Newport Harbor. Other deficiencies in the 2023 report have been
noted by various members of the public. The repeated references by Mr. Netzer
to “2024” conclusions in the Attachment B Memo, seem not to be in relation to
The CBRE Appraisal Report, which is from 2024. Mr. Netzer’s apparent
inaccuracies and inconsistencies | think, warrant concern, as does his apparent
intimate past involvement with The City, in relation to obtaining lucrative lease
agreements for The Newport Aquatic Center, and being Secretary there of.

Mr. Netzer's Memo states:

“In 2016 it was concluded that the offshore mooring rental programs in
other harbors were not comparable to Newport Harbor”.

The contention now, that they have conveniently become comparable, seems
suspect to me.

The Memo, like Netzer's 2023 Appraisal report, continues to suggest “private
market” mooring rental “asking” prices are a reliable data point. | have found
that advertising alone, is not a reliable reference for accurate/factual
determinations, and that black market style pricing can vary widely.

The Memo notes a multitude of slip to mooring comparisons. As the record
indicates, proponents dispute how closely Netzer and The Harbor Commission
claim these things actually compare.



And as far as current City Pier Permit fee comparisons between 2016 and
2023, Mr. Netzer writes:

“I did not complete this analysis in my 2024 report;”

included, it would have resulted in a tideland rent of $1.83 per square foot. Mr.
Netzer then uses that square footage figure, multiplied by the supposed area an
offshore mooring would drift over, to calculate a monthly rental amount. The
State and City calculate square footage rental amounts per annum! Moreover,
The Harbor Commission’s proposed Offshore Mooring Rental rate of 24% of
Balboa Yacht Basin, pencils out to rent of about $4.80 per square foot per year,
far above the $1.83 figure that would result, IE Mr. Netzer's “this analysis” had
been done.

He makes a number of comparative remarks about dinghies/storage. He notes
a storage option at Marina Park. The Harbor Department says that there’s a 27-
person walitlist fort that.

The Memo’s comments about space at Marina Park for Newport Mooring
Association (NMA) members to tie up one 8’ rowboat to access their moorings, |
thought comical. How many NMA members do you think can safely fit in an 8-
foot rowboat, and row to the A, B, or D Mooring Fields in a safe/timely manner?

The Memo indicates that in 2016, “a ‘global’ monthly mooring rent per
linear foot that applied to all moorings” was used, and that this is what'’s
been done “historically”. Netzer and The NPB Harbor Commission though,
seem to have chosen to disregard historical process.

The Memo explains that harbor specific information, and City adopted and
resolved rates and ratios were given less emphasis in “2024” (Again, does he
mean his 2023 Report?). And does The City/State really want to open the door,
to being this dismissive of City/State enacted Resolution/Code/Benchmark/Etc.
going forward?

The Cover Sheet with “Attachment C”, is titled: “Netzer & Associates memo
regarding CBRE Newport Harbor Offshore Mooring Fields — Tidelands Fair
Use Fees Appraisal Report dated February 12, 2024”.

In this memo, Mr. Netzer notes an absence in The CBRE Report of comparable
rental data that applies to individual offshore moorings. Comparable rental data
for multiple Newport Beach locations (Slips), was used by The State Lands



Commission in setting their current Benchmark Rate applicable to Orange
County (.451 cents per square foot per year).

SLC Staff Report 39, even states:

“The higher rents were generally found in marinas located in Newport
Beach of Orange County”

CBRE, in relying on data used by The State of California to make determination
on Fair Market Value Rent, has factored in comparable rental data that applies
to individual offshore moorings.

Mr. Netzer writes about The SLC — Impact Area, and provides the following
definition:

“IMPACT AREA: The impact area is an additional area, beyond the
physical footprint of a structure, where a lessee seeks authorization to
conduct activities...”

He contemplates that mooring rents should be applied to a wider area. As |
have read, The City of Newport Beach has discretion in determining what'’s “fair”
as far as tideland/submerged land rents go. | believe The City excludes the “U
Shaped area” between docks/piers from the fee calculation footprint of
residential piers, while at the same time, considers charging offshore mooring
permittees for the supposed total square footage a moored vessel may drift
over.

And what “physical footprint of a structure” do floats and/or buoys, attached
by chain, to sunken railroad wheels or engine blocks, truly create? “Structure”?

Mr. Netzer’'s statement that vessels at the “12 public docks located
throughout Newport Harbor” are limited to 9-feet, is untrue. There are dock
sections with that 9’ limitation, but there are also sections that allow longer
vessels. And according to the current General Harbor Map'’s legend, | count 15
public docks (Please see Attached Exhibit H). Again, errant statements made by
Netzer, should be a matter of concern.

Mr. Netzer seems to fault CBRE for not using more Marinas to determine
average slip rate and length, while he himself, used a limited number in his
2023 Appraisal Report. He goes on to imply that The SLC rate may be
inaccurate, as it used a broader range of data, and opines that if “all” marinas



in Newport Harbor were used in the calculation, the rate would be substantially
higher. | find an apparent, singular focus on obtaining higher rates suspect.

Mr. Netzer's Memo calls into question a 6% rate of return, stating that there’s a
“mandated’ annual rate of return” of “9-percent of the appraised value of
the leased land”. This again, seems to evidence some level of confusion on
the part of Mr. Netzer. His citing of Code, and a 9% “mandated’ annual rate of
return”, are rates calculated based upon the “appraised value of the leased
land”. The 2024 CBRE report pages he’s contradicting (Pgs. 17 & 18), are
based upon a percentage of gross annual income generated by a marina slip.
SLC Staff Report 39, which includes The SLC Memo of May 6, 2022 referenced
by CBRE, has this clearly worded. How can Mr. Netzer confuse a basis of 9% of
the appraised value of leased land, with the smaller percentages used for
calculating annual gross income return for boat berthing sites?

And even if we bump The SLC’s annual rate(s) of return of gross income to 9%,
and then calculate for the most common type of Offshore Mooring, i.e., a 40’,
rent being set at that 9% gross annual rate of return of Balboa Yacht Basin’s
2023-2024 prices, would be far and away more equitable than the obscene
increases that Mr. Netzer and The Harbor Commission subcommittee have
proposed. Here’s a breakdown of the math:

Balboa Yacht Basin “2023-2024 Slip Rate (Per foot, per month)”
(Please see Attached Exhibit I)

$50.09 = (BYB 2023-2024 Slip Rate Per foot, per month)
x 40’ = $2,003.60 per month
x 12 months = $24,043.20 (Gross annual rate of return per boat berthing site)
x .09 (9%) = $2,163.89
/ 12 Months = $180.33 per month for 40’ Offshore Mooring Rent

This amount, though substantially increasing the gross annual rate of return
percentage beyond current SLC standards, is still nowhere near what Netzer
and The NPB Harbor Commission subcommittee want.

Mr. Netzer addresses the “apples to oranges” remarks that have been heard/
read a number of times locally, and speaks to the principal of substitution. I'm



sorry, but you can’t directly substitute the appraised value of leased land, for
gross annual slip rent. Nor can you directly substitute multi-million-dollar dry
land sales, for submerged, undevelopable, limited access, utility and service
challenged, leased “lands”. And based on my decades of personal experience,
moorings and marina slips, or docks, differ in value and utility, by far more than
The NPB Harbor Commission subcommittee and Netzer are contending.

| do appreciate Mr. Netzer’'s acknowledgement that the scenarios he’s relied on
in his analysis, relating to moorings in San Diego, are scenarios that have not
actually occurred, and that consequently, it cannot be determined what the
market reaction will be. However, | feel that governmental agencies choosing to
overlook multiple irregularities, and accept suppositions as actionable data, may
open up a Pandora’s Box of random unpredictability.

Regards,

ML’L@M’\

Adam Leverenz

Attached Exhibits:

NPB General Harbor Map

Balboa Yacht Basin 2023-2024 Rates
Netzer Memo of 03/04/2024 w Highlights
Netzer Memo of 03/05/2024 w Highlights
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Balboa Yacht Basin Marina
829 Harbor Island Drive
Newport Beach, CA 92660
www.newportbeachca.gov/byb

Slip Rates
August 2023
Slip Length | 2023-2024 Slip Rate
(per foot, per month)
20’ Slip $32.23
25’ Slip $32.38
31’ Slip $37.29
32’ Slip $40.49
34’ Slip $41.02
35’ Slip $42.59
37’ Slip $44.34
40’ Slip $50.09
45’ Slip $51.27
50’ Slip $60.59
60’ Slip $70.65
75" Slip $80.95

Garage: $444.81 per month
Apartments: $3,353.81 per month

For information and slip availability, please contact:

BYB Marina Manager Kelly Rinderknecht
949-569-0723
krinderknecht@themarinaatdanapoint.com
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Attachment C

Netzer & Associates memo regarding CBRE Newport Harbor Offshore Mooring Fields —
Tidelands Fair Use Fees Appraisal Report dated February 12, 2024



On the basis of your request, | have read the appraisal dated February 12, 2024, that was prepared by
CBRE and is addrassed o the Newport Mooring Association, Inc. On the basig of my reading of the
eppraisal repor, | offer the following comments.

1) Asset forth on page 1 of the report the *Purpose of Appraisal” is o "estimate fair use fees! fair market
rent for the subject propery.” The repart notes the subject property & the “Newport Harbor Offshore
Moaoring Fields - Tidedands Fair Use Fess "

& MOCITS. 50 ﬂummﬁmpﬂdwmm;‘u
Bna nl‘thaqlplml methodalogies a-rr'rplwad when estimating “fair market rent” for individual moanngs
and should be included in tha report.

Tmmmnnfﬂumbnmaﬁmwmmﬂ Harbor Offshore Moarning Fields - Tidelands Fair
Lise Fees' suggests the justification for not nciuding comparable mooning rentals is that the analyss
appiies fo the "tidelands use” and not the use of the bidelands for individual offshore moorings. If this
is the justification for nof including comgarable mooring rentals then i

2) The Dinghy/Tender rental rate s stated to be $400 to §T50 per manth (page 26) for & 8- to 12-foot
dinghyitender; rowever, thens s no analysis of the dinghy siorage or dinghy recks in Newpart Harbor

mmmumhrmw}. Inaddlinn mu@?amrmwnm
starage for vessais hetween B and 19' at 528,00 par inear fool. Assuming a 12 dinghyiender, the
manthly fee is 5338 at the Lido Yacht Anchorage.

in addition to the above referenced dinghy siorage, there are 12 public docks located throughout
Mewpor Harbor that pmﬁdﬁuhrﬂaﬂmuhm—uw and tha
vm“pmﬂmﬂbn&uphrmumdm : ; S-hours;

- ={n] = ,I
was noted that thera mmmamdmuuuﬂ

It is recognized that there is limited dinghy'tender space availabie in Newpart Harbor, howevar, only
the San Diego Mooring Company (dinghy lines/beach poles) and Mewpart Harbor Yacht Club (share
boat) include access to the offshore moorings in their rate and the manthly mooring rental rates
included in my appraisal did not includa the additional monthly cost associated with dinghy storage
at the comparable mooning ansas.
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3 Mamrrmmmhdmmmﬁammmmmmmmwmnhmm
Commission (SLC) methodology o estmaie the “Benchmark Tidelands Rent™ The SLC
mummm 17 as. “what income can typicaly be generated by &
commercial maring; the area occupled by a maring siip in 3 well-designed maring, what the rental

;?E:n:mhhawmmm and the rabe of refumn the State should receive for the usa

The narrative expisins that “we have three recent reports referencinglemploying this methodology:
Southem California. San Francisco Bay & Tomales Bay.” The formula/methodology the SLC utiizes
in the repons is as blilows:

ﬁmag& Berth Slutli'u'nSLE n'amamruaﬂ

The "Annual Tidelands Rent” calculated above & then apphed to the “Impact Area ® The SLC reporis
referenced on page 17 of the in the CERE report, define H'n'hrpa:m.rﬂ'as follows:

The impact area is an additional area, beyond
, where 2 lessee sesks autharzabon fo

mmmhmmammdmmm
benchmark’s coverage aneg, the impact anea is generally a nine-foot-wide strip along

The rale =
Vianna Park, whila

mﬂ.ﬂmhwwmﬁmamm h‘gﬂﬂﬂpﬁgﬂldﬂtﬁt&hﬂhﬁmﬂhw
private mannas & marinas associated with yacht clubs) and all slip lengths. The "average” slip fee
and the “average” slip length used in the analysis are based on the marnina survey. |t should be
noted that whan all marinas in Newport Harbor, and all sip lengths are included (per SLC
methodology), the average slip length is 44-feat with an average shp rate of 585.53 per linear fook

or the rate of 8.0-percent adopted
by the City : pase armund their waterfront.  There is no
;mmmmemanhsmmmdﬂwmmmmﬁm “wia did
not use the 8.5% used by the City when establizhing rates uses per the George Hamillon Jones
Report for the largest mannas.”

The analysis does nat follow the methodology as & does not estmate the annual tidelands rent by
dividing by the Bidelands encumbered , rether it converts the concluded “annual
rent” ($3.38) to the manthly mooring ; = §134). The monthly mooring rent (not
the bdalands reni) B annualized based on & 40-foat mooring (3134 x 12 mos ), and concludas that
the annual rent 1 31,613 for a 40-foot mooring.  This analysis does not take into consideration the

' hmmﬂmWMaﬁmhm
“’ ing, In .

rent is not applied to
! Calffornia Code of Regulabons, Tile 3 Didalon 3, Adicla 1., Section 2003 (a)1).
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4) The Hal.rumry'sﬂumﬂmz&dm pages 21 through 24, with a ratio analysis presentad on page 27

5)

far “infarmatians

The Ratic analysis aftampts to estimate the market Tent for moarings a3 compared
to the rent for shmilar slip spaces in the same marina or harbor, As shown in the
analysis, the rabio can vary drematically (25% o 92%) and, while a potential rentar
cauld take this into consideration (oost of a slip v. cost of a mooring), it is not judged
to be a reliable measura of Fair Market Rant. This analyss is given littke weight in
the final reconciliation,

in the aight years since my priar appraisal was completed, | have consulled with and interviewsd
parties that are associated with the valuation (or operation) of tidelands, marinas and moorings. The
ratio analysis is applicable to the estimate of the fair market rent for the mocrings, as it companes the
alternatives available o a vessel owner that wants o dockimoor a vessal in a particular harbor, s
rat an *apples to apples” comparison, rather it is an *apples to oranges” (slip v. mooring) comparisan
that a vessal owner undertakes, Within any given harbor with both skps and offshore moonings, the
vessel owner that wants the choice bebwesn renting a slip
{apple) or an offshore of each option, In comination with
tha sendces and access provided mrm-:-nmn in makung their decision to rent elther a slip or &n
offshore mooning. This is the application of the Panciple of Substitution, which s fundamantal 1o
appraisal methodology.

It should ako be noled that in 2016 tha rabo vaned from 25- o 92-parcent, however, when the
proposed ratio in San Diega s excluded, the cument data reflect & much narrower range from 14.06-
percent io 35 25-parcant. The two moorng fields associatad with the yachi clubs in Newport Harbor,
reflect a ratio between 30- and 35-percent. On the basis of my expanded body of knowledge and
more Lip ko date market reseanch, e narrower range reflectad by the comparable data and the use
of thiz methodology In the proposed rate change in San Diego. the ratio analysis is judged to be a
relable and relevant methodoiogy in estmating the fair market rent for the off-shore moanngs

Az sat forth in my appreisal the ownerfoperator of the San Diego Moaring GCompany reporied that an
agreamant was reached with the Port of San Diego 1o rase the mooring rates o 52-percent of the
San Diego maring survey, to be phased in over S-years. The stalements included in my apprasal
are based on a December 2023 intarview with the owner'operator and | consulted with them in 2021
& 2022 and have reviewed the appraisal submitted to the Port District. The information could not
be indapandantly verfied with a representative of the Port as a formalized agreement with the Port
has not been executed. As nated in the dscussion of this market data, this ratio (52%) was judged
to reflect the extreme upper limit of the range dus lo the ownerloperator's maintenance
responsibilities and the 5-year phasa in,

s noted on page 38 of my report, within the concluding paragraph of the Rafio Analysis, ihe
information related 1o the reported future increase at the San Diego Mooring Company was given
secondary consideration, and set forth as follows.

in the final analysis, primary weight i placed on the ratios reflected by Monterey,
Pillar Paint, Newport Harbor Yacht Club and Balboa Yacht Club. The ratio based on
the current rabes being charged at the San Diego Mooring Company are given
secondary emphasis as tha moonng rates have not been adjusted based on market
conditions for over 10 years and the proposedfapproved ratio has not been
implemeanted and will be phased in over five years and accounts for fhe landiords
malntenance and repair costs,

While in the final analysis the reported rata (525%) was not given any emphasis, it is relevant market
data that reflects the proposed adjustment to the mooding rates thal have not been increased in over
10-years and is reflectve of the ownenoperators analysis of the market rent for offshore moorngs
and the reportsd agresment with the regulatory agency.

ST fa0 0 Tl S DDt
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rrmngihhuud , on Lﬂbaﬂm \ mal:m sl.lnulhn -

the mathodology.

I befieve the above addresses the “big picture” issues that have been brought forth. Please let me know
if you have additicnal comments or questions or if | can provide further clarification of the above points.

Respectfully,
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CERE VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES

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

Palicy ond Legol Affoirs on behalf of Mewpori Moaring Assaciation, Inc.
MEWPORT MOORING ASSOCIATION, INC.

PO, Box 1118

Mewpor Beach, Caolifornio 92459

RE:  Approisal of: Mewport Horbor Offshore Mooring Fields - Tidelonds Fair Use Fees
Mewpaort Horbor, Mewport Baoch, Orange County, Calfernia

Dear Mr. Karlin:

At your request ond autherizotion, CBRE, Inc, hos prepared on appraisal of the market rental
value of the referenced property. Our anolysis is presented in fhe following Appraisal Repart,

The subject property consists of the Stole-owned Siote of Caolfornio Tidelonds submerged in
Mewpor Horbor thot are currendly uilized to occommodale individual offshore moorings. The
Tidelonds are currently held in Trusi by the City of Newporl Beach, There are approximataly 740
offshore moorings, approximately 579 of which are in mooring fields A, B, €, O, F, G, H, J and
K, and which excludes opproximately 79 moarings in the Balboo Yacht Club mearing field and
73 maorings in the Newport Harbor Yacht Club moaring field which are not odministrated by the
City. The Harbar Patrel alsa has & moorings.

Although requested, updated precise sourced detailed informotion including the exoct number of
moorings, inlended boot length for eoch meooring, and the amaunt of tidelends encumbered or
utilized within pach mooring field for use by individual mearings was net available, We have
estimoted / filled in ony missing dote ond figures bosed on ovailoble information induding
mooring area maps, & years of delailed mooring transfer logs, Landvision aerial measuring tecl,
and caleulations based on typical vessel sizes and mooring equipment, From fhese resources we
have estimoted 579 moocings in 9 mooring fields ronging from 18 moorings to 133
moorings, with overage intended beol lengths ronging from 40' to 50' and averoge beom
lwidth] of 15 feet, each of which s extended on overage 12 fest from the beat 1o the buoy o the
baw, and 12 feet from the stern to the stern bucy. In the case of moaring using only one buoy,
the extra orea of the stern would not be added. The moaring fields within which the individual
moorings ore located comprise just over B2 ocres of tidelonds. Mote thal we independently
estimated the orea of the mooring fields with on aerial measuring toel which indicoted odual
mooring fields of around 73 acres; however, the Horbor Deporment-provided-dota wos relied
upan for the purposes of the opproisal, despite being unsourced. The oreas within the maaring
fields outside the areos occupied by, or which could be occupied by o vessel on the individual
moorings is not an area used exclusively by the owners of vessels on the individual moarings.
These areas are generally used by the public inclusive of kavakers, paddle boarders, small craft

£ 2024 CBRE, Inc



Mr, L. Scol Karlin
Februory 12, 2024
Pope 2

such os Duffy Boats, as well os the occosional use by the owner of o vessel using o tender ta
access on individual mooring.

Our analysis is of the fidelonds used by the individual maarings within the mooning fields. Actual
fees or fair market rent would vary from mooring to mooring. For example, & mearing on the
perimeler of o moorings field would have superior unobstrucied views, eosier occess, ond/or
mooring fields are closer fo the horbor antronce, ste. This, however, is offset by o generclly
inferier mooring which may be very far fram the harbor enfronce, have difficult ar crowded
aceess, be locoted near a gas dock or o “louder” area in the harber, sle. Accordingly, for this
assignment, and in osder 1o provide os balonced end equilable on analysis of the tidelonds

in o horbor-wide context os possible, we based the valuation of market rent for fhe subjed
tidelends upon a “lypical® mearing,

Bosed on the analysis confoined in ithe following report, and cerain ossumplions bosed on the
ypical orea of fidelands used by o vessel on @ mocring, and the lack of additional sarvices or
oreas of fidelonds available fo mooring holders fo access these moarings, the market value of the
subject is concluded as follows:

TIDELANDS FAIR USE FEES / FAIR MARKET RENT

Annual Reat per 40
Moorng Bosed on
Morket Rant / Lineal Feat /  1,3265F of Tidelonds
Y& for Tidelonds usad for indivdual
Appraisal Premisa Date of Value 153,34 LF per ma) moaring
A ly Janmyary 1.5, 2024 541.00 51,440
Compiled by CBRE
Summary Table - Various Siza Moorings
Mooring Size | Sg Ftwith | Annuol Fee | Annuol Fee' | Annucl Fee
Mere Swing | Per Lineal Based on 5q | Per Lineal Foot
Fackor Foot Ft Tidelands | (rounded ta full
[rounded 1o | [without dollar)
full dallar) Rounding)
30 __B43 8§35 §1,045.32 £1,050
40 1,326 341 §1,644.24 51,640
50 1,857 | 546 |52,302.68 52,300
60 2,322 548 | §2,679.28 | 52,880
{70 | 2,840 | 550 | §3,521.40 53,500

It the City was fo provide odditional services to provide oceess la the moarings [such os shore
boat service] or set aside areas of the fidelands for reosonable access fo the moarings (such as in
waler motorized dinghy/lender boot dockage], on odjustment in the value moy be oppropriote,

CBRE

&1 J024 CHRE. Inc



Mr. L. Scott Karlin
Februory 12, 2024
Fage 3

depanding on the noture ond exdent of such eddifional services or addifional lidelond used for
swch access.

The report, in ifs entirety, including all assumptions ond limiting conditions, i an integral parf of,
and inseparable fram, this later,

The lollowing oppraisal sets fardh the mast perfinent dota gothered, the technigues employed,
ond the reosoning leading to the opinicn of value. The analyses, opinians and conclusions ware
developed based on, ond this repar! has been prepared in conformance with, the guidelines and
recommendations set forth in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisol Proctice [USPAP),
and the raquiremants of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Approisal
Proctice of the Appraisal Instifute.

The intanded use ond user of our report are specifically identified in our report as agreed upon in
our confroct for services and/or relionce longuoge found in the report. As o condifion to being
granted the status of an intended user, any infended user who hos not entered inla a written
egraement wath CBRE in connection with its use of our report agrees fo be bound by the ferms
and cendifions of the agreement betwean CBRE and the client who crdared the report. Mo other
use or user of the repor i permitted by any other party for ony other purpose. Disseminotion of
this repert by ony parly to ony nen-intended users does nof exend reliance to any such party,
ond CBRE will not be responsible for any unouthorized use of or relionce upon the report, ifs
conclusions or confents (or any portion thereof],

It hos been o pleasure to assist you in this ossignment. If you hove ony questions concarning the
analysis, or i CBRE can be of further service, please contact us.

Respectfully submitied,

CBRE - VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES

Faoberl locobson, MAl

Executive Vice President
California Sote Certification No. AG035731
Expiration Date: luly 7, 2025

CBRE

£ 2004 CHRE, Ing:
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Certification

We carfify 1o the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. The statements of fact contained in this report ore frue ond correct.

2. The reporfed onolyses, opinions, ond conclusions are limited only by the reported
assumplions end hmifing conditions ond are our personal, imparial ond wnbiosed
professional analyses, opinions, ond conclusions.

3. We have no present or prospective interest in or bias with respect to the property that is the
subject of this report and hove no personal inferest in or bios with respect lo the pories
invelved with this assignment.

4. Cur engogement in this ossignment wos nol confingen! upon developing or reporfing
predatermined resulis.

3. Qur compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upan the development ar
reparting of a predetermined value or direction in value thet favars the couse of the client, the
omaunt of the value opinion, the affoinment of o sipulated result, or the oocurrence of o
subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this approisal.

6. This opproisal assignment was not besed upon o requested minimum valuation, a specific
voluation, or the approval of a loan.

7. Qur analyses, opinions, ond conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepored,
in eanfermity with the 2024 Uniform Standards of Professional Approisal Proctice, os well os
the requiremenis of the Siole of Colifornio.

8. Tha reported anatyses, apinians, ond condusions were developed, and this repert has baen
prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and
Standards of Professional Appraisal Proctice of the Appraisal Instifute,

9. The use of this report is subject 1o the requirements of the Appraisal Instifute relating to review
by its duly outhorized represeniofives,

10. As of the dote of this repodt, Robert Z. Jocobson, MAI has completed the continuing education
pragram for Designated Members of the Appraisol Institute.

11. Robert Z. Jocobson, MAl has made o parsanel inspectian of the property that is the subject of
this repart.

12. Mo one provided significant real property oppraisal ossistance fo the persons signing this
rapart,

13. Valuation & Advisory Services operates os an independent ecanamic enfity within CBRE, Inc.
Although employees of ather CBRE, Ing, divisions moy be contocted os o part of our roufine
market research investigafions, absolute client confidentiality ond privacy were maintained o
all fimes with regard 1o this ossignment without conflict of interest.

14.Robert Z. Jocobson, MAl hos not provided any Serdces, as on opproser or anoany ciher
copacity, regording the property thal is the subject of this report within the three-year pericd
immediotely preceding occeptence of this assignmant,

.-"'.L.Frt":’-sr';—ﬁ__..—ri—___

Ecber locobson, MAI
Californio Stote Cerfification No. AG03573
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Executive Summary

Exacutive Summary

Property Momo Merwpor Harbor Cfishorne Moaring Fields - Tidelonds
Fair Lz Foes
Location Mewpart Harbor, Mesport Beach, Srange County, CA
2647
Chimnt Marwpar Masing Assaciation, Inc
Highast and Bast U
Aa H Viacont Ciftshore Moaring Use
A bmpngreagd Cifishorne Mooring Use
Froperfy Righis Appralsed Lisasemd Fa Inrtures
Date of Report Jamwery 31, 2024
Dofe of Inspecton Jaruary 15, 2024
Submerged Tidelonds Area 41,583 AC 3,353,745 5F
Maoaring Flelds 9
Maarings 579
Utllized Averoge Mearing Size 4
Concluded Tidelands 5F / Linzol Beof / Maoring Siee A3 5F
Tide londs Attributable ¢ 40° Bogt 1424 5F
VALUATIOMN Beni Per Yeor
Market Rent s [ On Jonuary 15, 2004
Colifornin Skoie Tidefands Commission Methodology 51,413
Infaticn Methadology Based an Cliy's Pror Bendhmark §1.4670
Riatas whellod $1.920
TIDELANDS FAIR USE FEES / FAIR MARKET REMT
HWarket Henf ;| Lineal Anmu Rent par 40°
Fowot / TR for Mparing Based an 1,1285F
Tidelands of Tidelands wsed Ter
Appraisal Premize Dot of Value (5334 LF per me) individual meoring
An s Momuary 15, 20248 547.00 51,40
Coempllad by CHEE
& 2024 CARE, fac " EBHE



Exere

live Summary

Marleet Rates for Moorings - Other Sizes

Bosed on Methodologies Used in This Report the Volue per Squore Foot is $1.24 per Square Foot
ol Tidelonds Used Per Annum. The square foot valuation would net change in relation ta the sie
of moaring, only the square foo! used and resulfing adjusiment to the total rate would changea.

50 Fi of Tidelonds Used — Mo Swing Factor

Boot Sze | + | Lines + Buoys® | x | Beom | Tolal SqFt

a0 + |24 k|12 648

40 + |28 x| 15 1,020

50 + |34 2| 17 1,428

40 + |34 IFIEE 1,786

70 + |34 x| 21 2,184

Rates without o Swing Foclor

Boat Sazs 5q Frwith | x Todol 5q Ft | Fee Per Yaar Fee Par Year
Lines ate ot $1.24 sq ft | Per Linec| Foot

ad A48 ¥ [ 1] SB03.52 E-'Eﬁ.f_'i'

40 1,020 1 1,020 51,2464 B0 $31.42

50 1,428 ® 1,428 51.770.72 £35.42

&0 1,784 X 1,786 $2.214.64 534691

70 2,184 X 2. 184 32,708.16 538.69

Add Swing Foctor at 20%

Boat Size 5q Frwith | x | 20% | Tedal Sq Pt | Fee Per Yeor | Fee Per Year
Lines elc with Swing | ot 51.24 =g ## | Per Lineal Foot

(30 648 |« 778 $964.72 | 532.14

40 1,020 b 1,224 51,517.78 53705

S0 1,428 ¥ 1,714 52,125.34 542.51

fald] 1,786 1 2,144 5?_,&53.5:5 244,310

70 2,184 x 2 421 $3,250.04 $46.43

Add Swing Foctor at 25%

Boat Siza SqFtwith | % | 25% | Total Fes Per Year | Fee Per Year
Lires el with Swing | of §1.24 sg it | Per Lineol Foot

a0 A48 b 210 51,004 40 $33.48

40 1020 X 1,275 $1,581.00 $£39.53

50 1428 ® 1,785 $2,213.40 $44.27

&0 1 784 ¥ 2,233 3276892 546,15

7a 2184 o 2,730 53,385.20 548.34

L]
& 2004 CHRE, lne,

CBRE



Executive Summory

Add Swing Foctor ot 30%
Boat Size Sq Fwith | x | 30% | Total Fee Per Yeor | Fee Per Year
Lines elc with Swing | ot §1.2d sq fi | Per Lineal Foot

30 S48 ¥ B43 51,045.32 33485

40 1,020 X 1,326 31,644.24 4111

50 1,428 x 1,857 32,302 .48 346,06

&0 1,784 X 2322 3287928 54799

70 2,084 |x | |2,840  |$3,521.60 | $50.31

* Variglions with Summary results from rounding square foot calculations.

& 2024 CHRE Inc
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Evacutive Summary

MARKET VOLATILITY

We drow your alenfion 1o o combinotion of inflahonary pressures (leading 1o higher inferest
rates) ond recant foilures/stress in bonking systems which hove significantly increased the
polential for constroined credit markets, negative capital volue movements ond enhanced
volatility in proparty markets over the shorldo-maedium term.

Experience hos shown thal consumer and investor behovior con quickly change during periods of
such heighlenad valalility. Landing or investment decisions should reflect this heightened level of
volafility and the potenticl for deteriorating market canditians.

It is impartant fo note that the conclusions set out in this report cre valid os of the voluotion daote
only. Where oppropriate, we recommand that the voluation is dlosaly monitored, os we confinue
ta track how merkets respond to evolving events.

CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

At its December 2023 meeting, the Federal Reserve held the federcl funds rote of o ronge of
5.25% 1o 5.50% ond indicated it will confinue reducing its bolance sheet by 395 hillion per
month. The Fed reaffirmed its commitment to lowering inflation to its 2.00% target, while also
acknowledging that risks [infletion vs. growth) hove become more balonced.

Despite heodline inflation remaining obove the Fed's 2.00% torget, core inflation, which excludes
food and energy prices, hos steadily decreased over the past 12 months. The recent run-up in the
10uyear Traasury yield hos further fightened financial conditions, which will continue to suppress
econamic grewth and inflafion. Commarciol recl estote investment activity is unlikely to improve
unfil capitel sources are confident that interest rotes hove siohilized, and pricing hos fully
odjusted.

While opinions vory on fulure econamic isswes, the general morket consansus at the time of this
appraisal is the anficipation of moderating inflafion as higher interest rates coal demand. Tighter
lending condifions and o weakening economy will keep copital markets activity subdued and
reduce leasing demend in the short 1o medium term. Amid this uncertoin and dynamic
environmant, investment market pafarmonce will be uneven ocrass property ypes.

Local Impact

MNate that while Newport Beach Harbor and its users are somewhol uniguely more insulated from
brooder changes in prevoiling economic condifions due o the level of affluence surrounding the
area and harber, current economics and market fundomentals of horbor-relaled operafions were
artificially furbochorged due to the COVID-19 lockdowns ond restrictions set forlh by government
throughout Califernia, The lockdowns spurred bool usage ond horbor demand in dramalic
tashion during 2020 and 2021. As will be illustrated in the market analysis saction, this arfificial
demaond hos waned with the COVID-19 pandemic, lockdowns, ond operation resirictions behind

& 2024 CHRE. Inc 7 CBHE



Execolive Semmary

s, there & maorket evidence of o conirachion in the boating markel. In addifion, we are currently
focing unprecedented economic headwinds with the Fed roising rates over 500 basis points since
April 2022, which historically hos never been seen. This s infended and is anficipoted 1o
"unwind” much of the [ogain arificially imposed) COVID-19 pondemic sra inflalionary goins
(increases in market rent and compression of rotes of return).

EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTIONS

An extroordinory assumption is defined as "on ossignment-specific assumplian as of the efective
dole regarding unecerain information used in on analysis which, if found 1o be false, could olter
the appraiser’s opinions or conclusions.” '

*» ‘We hove ufilized the number of moorings, iMended / ossigned lineal fool copocity per
mooring, ond the amoumt of hidelands atributable to eoch mooring field bosed on multiple
sources, the primary of which was the Newport Harbar Depariment maaring summary sheet,
This summary sheet wos provided by the Horbor Department bul wos unsourced.  Alihough
requasted, o full detailed comprehensive sl of this information incduding actual surveyed
tidelonds areas wos nat provided / ovailable, Also of importonce buf which wos not available
is the infended lineal boot copocity for each mooring. The opproiser & not o ficensed
survayor, It is recommended thot a professional tidelonds survey be pedormed by o cerified
licensed surveyor and relioble source for oll / overage lineal foot moaring capacity for the
maaring fields in question prior to making o business decision. The approiser has made his
best effort to accurately estimate these figures os relied upon in the following onalysis. We
reserve the nght to amend our opinion of foir market rent if actual encumbered tidelands
areos ond lineal boal copocities vory from those figures ufilized in the oppraisal.

The use of extroordinary essumphons might have affected ossignment results.

HYPOTHETICAL CONDITIONS

A hypothetical condifion is defined os "o condition, directly refated to o specific assignment,
which is contrary to whot is known by the opproiser o exist on the effective daofe of the
assignment results, but is used for the purposes of onalysis." *

&  Mone nated

OWMERSHIP AND PROPERTY HISTORY

Title fo the subject fidelands is currently vested in the Stole of Californio, in Trust to the City of
MNewpart Beach,

Te the best of cur knowledge, there has been no ownership fransfer of the properly during the
previous three years, nor any other marketing aclivity of unsolicited offers, and the subject is not
curently listed for or pending sale.

! The Appraisal Feundalion, LISPAP, 2024
% The Appralsal Foundalion, USPAP, 2024

© 34 CARE, Inc " CBRE
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Stape of Werk

Scope of Work

This Approssal Report is intended to comply with the reporfing requirements sei forth under
Standards Rule 2 of USPAP, The scope of the assignment relotes fo the exdent and monner in
which raseoarch s conducted, dota ore gathered, and onalysis is appled.

INTEMDED USE OF REPORT

This oppraisal is fo be used for internal purposes reloted fo discussions with the governing
autherity regarding increasing fees payable by mooring owners, ond no other use is permitted.

CLIENT
The client is Mewport Mooring Assaciafion, Inc.

INTENDED USER OF REPORT

This opproisal is io be used by Mewport Moaring Associotion, Inc., and no other user may rely on
our report unless os specifically indicoted in the report.

Intended Users - the infended user is the person lor enfity] who the approiser intends
will use the resulis of the oppraiscl. The client moy provide the cppraiser with
information obout other potentiol users of the appraisal, but the oppraiser ultimately
defermines wha the appropriate users are given the opproisal problem fo be solved.
Identifying the infended users is necessary so that the opproiser con repor the
opinions and conclusions developed in the appraisal in @ monner that is clear ond
understondable to the intended users. Parties who receive or might receive o copy of
the opproisal ore nat necessarily intended users. The eppraiser’s responsibility is 1o the
intended users identified in the repart, nat ta all readers of the appraisal report, ?

PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL

The purpose of this approisel is o estimale foir use fees / foir morket rent for the subject
property,

DEFINITION OF VALUE

There is no specfic definon of Foir Morket Renl, However, Market Rent s considered o be
synonymous with Fair Market Rent for the purpose of this opproisal. Fair Morket Rent is defined in
the Sixth Edition [2015) of The Dicticnary of Real Estate Approisal as: "The mast probable ren
that o propery should being in @ competithve and open market reflecting the conditions ond
restrictions of o specified lease ogreement, induding the renfol odjustment ond reveluation,
permifted uses, use resfrichions, expense obligations, term, concessions, renewal ond purchose
opfions, and tenan! impravermants [Tls),"

¥ Appraisal Insiilule, The Approiscl of Real Estate, 14th ed, IChicago: Approwsal Instiute, 2013], 50,

¢ 2024 Ca6F nc ' CBRE



Scope of Work

INTEREST APPRAISED

The velue estimoted represants fair market rent, not on ownership inferest such as fee simple or
leased fea. Therefore, the concept of ownership interest is not opplicable in this assignmant,
Extent to Which the Property is Idenfified

The property is identified through the following sources:

»  vorious mopping software ond records

s physical inspection

Extent to Which the Property is Inspected

Wa inspeciad the subject property as well as the surrounding envirans on the effective date of the
approisol. The nspection included various aerial and mepping resources, as well as o physical
inspection oround and throughout the harbor,

Type ond Extent of the Dato Reseorched

CBRE reviewed the following:

& vorous public resources

» comparable dota
»  proevious morkat studies and oppraoisals

Type and Extent of Anolysis Applied

CBRE, Inc. analyzed the doto gathered throwgh the use of appropricte ond accepied oppraisal
methodology o arrive of o proboble value indication via each opplicable approoeh to value. The
steps required to complete eoch epprooch are discussed in the methodology section.

6 3034 CARE, Inc. : CBHE
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Data Resources Utilized in the Analysis

DATA SOURCES
Ihem; Souwnce(s).

Subject Encumbered Tidelonds Area  Informotion Provided by Mewport Hothar Depariment, LandYision
Aprial Measureng Tood

Humber of Moarings Infarmedion Previded by Mewpart Horbar Deportmend (indicates &
e mmaarings than the meoring field harbor mops)

Mooring Capacify / Linsol Boof Feet  Public Record Mooring Tronsker Logs fune 2017 thiu Oclobar 2022,

par Maaring Feald Landyision Aeraol Measuring Tool

Compiled by CERE

AFPRAISAL METHODOLOGY

In oppraisal practice, an opproach o volue is included or omitled based on is applicability to the
property typa being volued and the guolity and quantily of information availeble,

METHODOLOGY APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT

In performing our market rantal analysis, we hove pedformed o rent comparoble or paired rent
onofysis for ovailable harbors in Caolifornio that offer bath slip and mooring opticns for booters.
These herbers are in 5an Diego, Marra Bay, Moniersy Bay/Sante Cruz, and Half Maan Bay, We
have incorporated this methodalogy info the market stondord Sfote of Colifornio emploved
mathodology described belaw,

The Benchmark analysis is employed consistently throughout California by the Califernia Stote
Lands Commission. This is o commen practice utilizing benchmarks which are used to estoblish
uniform rental rates in specific geographic regions with lorge concentrotions of similar facilities,
mostly private recreationol improvements within the Commission’s jurisdiction. (Cal, Code Regs.,
fit. 2, § 2003, subd. (o}(5).) Within this onalysis, # will be necessary fo defermine what income
can typicolly be genercted by o commercial maring / typical boat slip; the area occupied by o
moaring in a well-designed horbar; what the rental charge would be for o typical sized boat; and
the rate of refurn the stote should receive for the use of its lend. The "Commissien typically
charges 3% to &% of gross income for boat berthing for sites leased to commercial marina
aperafors, with mast of the leases set at 5% of gross income.” [Tomales Bay Berths and Buays
benchmork rofes Stoff Report 28). We note thot the City of MNewport Beach hos used rates os
high as B.5% of rents recaived by Newport Harbar marinas to establish the fair rantal value of the
fidelonds in redotion to the lorgest morinos in Newport Horbor and less in relation to smaller
morinas and other uses. Thiz is sat forth in the comprehensive Appraisal Repor! of the valuotion
of fees to ba charged for use of fideland for oll uses of the fidelonds in Mewport Harbor edoplad
by the City af Mewporl Beach ond published in 2014 and 2017 in two seporate repors by
George Hamiton Jones repart which can be found of:

EA02d CARE lne : CBHE
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https://archive.newportbeachlibrary.org/NBPL/DocView.ospefid=1263772
Zdbid=08&repo=CNBBcr=1

The Phose 1 report of George Hamiton Jones concerned o porticdlor marina, and the Phose 2
repart, which incorporated the methodology of the prior report concemed all commercial vses as
well as other uses. It is noleworthy thal some offshore moarings ore wsed for opproved
commercial uses and os such fall under the George Hamiton Jones appraisal under other uses,
and offshore moorings used for recreations use would also fall under "ather uses”, using o
reasonable inlerpretation of the George Homiton Jones opproisal.  The roles in the George
Hamiten lones report were odopled by the City of Mewport Beoch, and then published omnd
updoted annually with increases.  The curren! published rates can be found of the following fink:

hitps://www.newportbeachca. gov/government/depariments/harbor/harbor-
charges/commercial-fidelands-permits-and-leases

The City's published rotes for, in effect, all uses except for homeowner docks, but which includes
HOA (hemeowner ossociation docks when rented out by the HOA) shown in the link above are
a5 follows:

The following rotes are effective March 1, 2022 through February 29, 2024:

£ 2034 CHRE, o ? CBHE
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&nnual Rental Rate Annual Rantal Rate
Commercial Use Categony® [Par SF) (Per SF)
AM122 < 2I2RI23 AM123 - 22924

Large Commercial Marinas w34 ¥
Madium Commercial Marinas *15a 108
Small Commercial Marinas 3088 0.53
Shipyards 30.42 $0,45
HOW, Marinas/Docks for Mon-
members’ Lise

> 30,000 5F 51.34 £1.42

13,000 SF 10 30,000 SF 51.02 $1.08

=< 13,000 5F 50.88 $0.93
Yach Club Guasl Slips 5042 $0.45
\essal Renlal Facility (Boat Rantals) E0.88 50,93
Sporl Fishing Charters S0.88 $0.53
Restaurants’ Guest Slipg 80,42 $0.45
Vassel Charers S0.BR 0,93
Fued Docks * S0.BE 50.93
&l Dihears 50.86 $0.93

* The Annwal Rental Rote for commercial fidelands being used as Fuel Docks con be caleulated
one of three ways, per City Council Resolution Mo, 2018-0%. The toble ochove reflecis the base
rent only calculofion opfion.

Beginning on Maorch 1, 2012, annual rentol rotes may be adjusted on the first doy of Maorch soch
Parmit/Lease year to reflect an increase in the cost of living, os indicatad by the Consumar Price
Index. Additional information regording rental rates can be found in City Council Resolution
Mo, 201 7-49 and Na. 2018-09.

As discussed below, the esfimated square foot of tidelonds vsed by o 40-foot offshore mooring is
1,326 square fest, That is the some for o commercial offshore mooring as well os o recreational

i 3024 CARE, Inc. . CBHE
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affshore moaring.  Using the “Other Uses” published by the City and bosed on the square feet
of tidelands used, the rote would be 50,93 per annum, which is §1,233 per year.

Whila this rale is materially lower than the rate found in this repor, it does show that the currend
rates chorged for offshore moorings is, and hos bean significantly highar thon what the City is
charging and hos been chorging for olmast all other uses of the tidelands, namely $1.14 per
squore foot of fidelands used per annum based on an estimated 1,326 square feet of fidelands
vsed for o 40 foot vessel,

We hove olao estimaled current fair market rent for the subject by utilizing various measures of
inflation and opplying an oppropriaie level of inflation to the City's previously adopted Fair Use
Fes / Market Rent on which foday's fees ore based. The City's odopled rate of 535 per lineal fool
in 2014 with annual CPl adjustments subject 1o a cop, was based on on approisal by Metzer and
Associotes os hired by the City. The Cily's opproiser Mr. Metzer concluded o range from $32 to
$38 per lineal foot and the City adopled 335 per lineal foot per yeor. As such, # is concluded
that Metzer's 2015/2016 oppraisal was reflective of morket oz odopted by the City, and agoin as
hired by the City of Mewpart Beach.

Presumably, the City were awore of the George Homiton Jones repart of the same year, which is
alse taken ine occount when adjusting the base volues to information ovailable regarding
market conditions.

Of materiol consideration throughout the report and analysis, in contrast o all ather surveyved
facilities in the approsol, morinas with lips and / or moorings, which all provide ready occess,
such o3 exiensive parmanent dinghy docks where o motorized dinghy/tender is. ovailoble 24/7 by
io provide occess to the moorings, MNewpor Harbor has exceedingly poar / grossly inodegquete
public accessibility (harbor proximate dinghy storoge or compaorchle) and omenities that serve the
mooring felds, The odditionol cost fo obtain similor motarized in woter dinghy/tender dock space
in Mewport Beoch is o major ond necessary odjustment which needs fo be taken inlo account. Pul
simply, & mooning withou! eosy cccess has greofly diminished value. This will be discussed in
detail throughout the report. Mooring occess is o free City-provided service in the horbors of San
Diego, Morro Bay, and Maonterey and other Harbors that have off-shere moorings.

What follows is o Toble of Rofes (Implied Subject mooring / fidelonds market Rates) that ore
based on rates published by the City for 2024, using the Small Maring and Other Use 5q Fi rote
of $0.93 per annum per 5q Fi.

B0 CERE, b f CBHE
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Rates Per Annum
Using City's 2024 5mall Marino and Other Lise Rotes Based on Sq Ft of Tidelonds

Tidelands Used yithout Swing Fac

Boot Size | + | Lines + Buoys® | x | Beam | Tatal Sq Fi
30 + | 24 w| 12 G485

40 + |28 k|15 1,020

50 + | 34 x| 17 1,428

&) + |34 i 19 1,786

70 34 x| 21 2,184 |

Smoll Maring Boal Size Total Sg Fi with lines elc Fee Per Yeor

fOther Usa ot 3.93sqg ft
Rate
50,93 30 | &48 S602.64
50.93 40 1,020 §948.460
$0.93 50 1,428 §1,328.04
50.53 a0 1,786 §1,660.98
30.93 70 7,184 52,031.12
Rates Adding a Swing Fador of 20%
Boat Size Sq Ft with x | 20% | Total 5g FI Fee Per Year
Lines ate with Swing ot 50.93 sq H
30 648 % 778 $723.54
A0 1,020 x 1,224 51,138.32
50 1,428 x 1,714 $1,594.02
&0 1,786 x 2,144 $1,093.92
70 2,184 x 2621 $2, 437.53
Rates Adding a Swing Factor of 25%
Boat Size | 5g Fiwith x | 25% | Totel Foe Per Yaar
. | Lines efe with Swing ot $0.93 sq fi
a0 | 648 X a10 $744.93
40 1,020 x 1,275 $1,185.75
50 1,428 x 1,785 $1,660.05
{60 | 1,786 » 2,233 | $2,076.69
70 | 2,184 x 2,730 $2,538.90

© 2024 Caie, 1 ’ CBRE
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Rates Addi Sudng £ 30%

Boot Size S Ft with % | 30% | Total Fee Par Year
Lines et with Swing at 30.93 sq #

| 30 648 X 243 5783.99
40 1,020 X 1,326 51,233.18
50 1,428 i 1,857 51, 727.01
&0 1,784 i 2,322 52,1546
70 2,184 i 2,840 52,641.20

B
£ 2024 CERE, nc
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Neighborhood Anolysis

Neighborhood Analysis

The center of recreation in the city is Newport Horbor, which is the lorgest small boot harbor in
the United States. Boating facilities indude marinas, docks, slips, moorings, fuel docks and repair
and maintenance yards, Also having prominent waterfront locations are many dinner house type
restourants, the exclusive Bolboo Bay Club, and many yocht elubs.

Mewport Harbor is @ premier destinafion-oriented locotion where population swells in the
summearfime with tourism ond paople with second homes around the harbar,

& 202¢ CBE, Inc ’ CBRE
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Subject Analysis

The follawing charl summarizes the salient characteristics of the subject site.

HARBOR MOORING FIELDS SUMMARY AND AMNALYSIS

Physical Description

Tidelands Arec 81.583 Acres 3,553,745 Sq. Fi.
Moarings
579
Moaring Fiald A 133 22.14B Acres 964,786 Sq. F1.
taaring Fueld 8 &1 8.430 Acres 367,221 5q. Fh.
Maaring Frald C 54 B.AS57F Acrex 385,811 5g. Fr.
Maoring Feold O LT 7327 Acres N9 247 Eq- Ft.
Mearing Fiald F 22 3.326 Acras 144,881 Sq. 1,
Maarng Feld G 18 2.345 Acres 102,130 Sq. Ft.
Muaanng Fiald H @ 10,531 Acres 458 T3R8 Sq. Ft.
Maoaoring Fiald J 122 15.44 Acres &72 686 S5q. Fi,
Moaring Fiald K 22 3.17 Acres 118,265 5q. P,

Gouirce: Varkaus sawrces campiled by CARE

DEFINITIOMS

Mooring - The term "mocring” shall mean a device consisting of o flaating buoy or other object thet is
secured to the harbor bettom by en ancher system for purposes of securing o vessel and includes any
apporotus wsed fo securm o vessal in Newport Harbar which is nat carried obaard such vessel os
regulor equipment when under way. (City of Newport Beach, Harbor Code, Chapter 17.01.030.1.7.)

Mooring Area - The term "mooring arsa” shall mean an area designated for o group of moorings.
(City of Mewport Beoch, harber Cade, Chopter 17.01.030.1.8.)

Offshore Mooring — The term “offshore moaring” sholl mean o maoring that is locoted bayward of fhe
pierhead line and comprises a single or double buoy, the weight and chain installed for the purpase of

berthing o vessel, as provided by Chapler 17.25. [City of Mewport Beoch, Horbor Code, Chopter
17.01.030.L.1.)

Tidelands — The term “Hidelands" or “public fidelonds” shall mean all lands that were gronted fo fhe
City by the Stote of Colifornia, including, but not limited to, submerged londs ond/ar londs that are
located between the lines of mean high fide ond mean low fide. [City of Newport Beach, Harbor Cada,
Chapter 17.01.030.P.1.)

Tidelands Liilized by a Mooring - shall mean that area within o Mooning Area [mooring field) wtilized
by on individual mearing for the exclusive use of the mooring helder for o vessal which is or eould be
located on the moaring.
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Subject Analysiz

TIDELAMND SQUARE FOOTAGE ATTRIBUTABLE TO A 40 LINEAL FOOT BOAT MOORING

Eoch mooring holder hos the exclusive right to use o cerlain orea of the hidelonds and the
moaring holder ploces its own eguipment, weights, choin and lines within the small orea. For
exomple, o 40 feol mooning would use 40 feet plus 12 feet of line to the front and back buoy on
a two buoy mooring, plus 2 feet for each buoy, with o 15 foot beam, plus allowing for o 30%
swing factor = 1,326 sguare feef of fidelonds wsed.

In this exaomple, 33.15 square feet of fidelands would be used per 1 lineal foot of moaring size
[1,3255F / 40LF = 33.155F).

Tideland square foctege other sizes and swing facter

The odded square foofoge for o “swing foctor” is the maximum odjusiment for @ maaring using
two buoys, one off the bow ond one off the stern. This hes been used os o consideration in
establishing rofes in other horbors.  However, it should be noted that when o boal moves or
swings in one direction it opens up fidelands in the ploce from where it moved / swung frem and
opens up those fidelands for use by the public, thus the swing foclor could recsonably be
concluded to be “zerc” due to these offsefting fociors.

What follows is o Table Square Foobtoge Used for vorious size boats with ond withou! o swing
factor,

Sq 1 of Tidelonds Uised = No Swing Fadior
Boot 5ize | + | Lines + Buoys®* | x | Beam | Tolal 5q Ft
a0 + | 24 x| 12 648
40 + |28 x |15 1,020
30 + | 34 x | 17 1,428
&0 + | 34 x| 1¢ | 1,786
70 + | 34 x | 21 2,184
Add Swing Foclor ot 20%
Boot Size 3q Ft with x | 20% | Total 5q Ft
Lines etc with Swing
| 30 | 648 x 778
40 1,020 x 1,224
50 1,428 x 1,714
&0 1,784 x 2,144 g
70 2,184 x 2,621
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Subject Anclysis

Add Swing Faclor at 25%
Boot Size Sq Ft with x | 25% | Total
Lines etc with Swing
30 648 x g0
40 1020 x 1275
50 1,428 x 1785
60 1,786 % 7,233
70 2. 184 x 2730
Add Swing Faclor gt 30%
Bact Size 5q Fwith ¥ | 30% | Totaol
Lines sic with Swing
30 548 ¥ 843
40 1,020 ® 1,326
50 1,428 ¥ 1,857
80 1,784 p 7,373
il 2,184 x 2,840
12
© 2024 CBRE, knc.



Market Anolysis

The subject idelonds ore under the regulatory supervision af several entifies in addifion fo the
Cily of Newpor! Beach. These include the State of Californio Division of Boating ond Wolensoys,
the Californio Coostal Commission, as well as oversight by the Army Corps of Engineers, the
California Department of Fish and Wildlite and ofhers.

Mote thal City developmen! siondards ore lorgely inopplicoble to the subjed mooring field
encumbered fidelonds due to the foct thot there is no existing or possible joinder, or
operation/ufilization of the tidelonds in tendem with on uplonds property os virtuolly oll other
eommaercial uses along the harbor currently operoie.

Given the lock of occess, the only woy to truly utilize the subject fidelonds is for offshore

moorings.
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Market Anolysis

Market Analysis

With Ihe ongel of the COVID-19 pondemic and subsequent lockdownz and resirictions an
businesses - shopping, dining, efc., there wos o surge in demand for alternotive recrectional or
leisure ochivities. Motoble surges included RVing ond Booling. Mew boot socles reportedly
increcsed 40% during the pondemic. However, note that 95% of recreational boats are loke

boots under 26°, which ore not fruly opplicable or relevanl to the analysis of the moerings within
the subject saltwater harbor,

Thaot being said, the surge in demand for boating resulted in an increase in demand for slips ond
moorings. Censequently, prices and rents alsa increased given the relatively fixed supply of
maring space. |t is difficult to quontify the increase in slip fees year over year; howaver, as an
important distinction marinas ewned over the long term with inoctive monagemant hove bean
ocguired by octive competent monogers and operatars which are able 1o increass remts by a
toctor of two or more over the short term.  The distinetion is thet this is not o linear market trend,
buf instead o reolizofion of mark-to-market rents with short-term reniol ogreements.

However, it is impartant to recegnize the release of pressure or easing of demand for boating as
the COVID-19 pandemic is bahind us and people howe relurmed to oclivities thal wera not
ovailable fo them during the pandemic in 2020 and 2021. In oddition to this, we are currently
facing severe economic headwinds and uncertainty due to the unprecadented Fed rate hikes of
mare than 500 basis points since April of 2022, The olready opparent result of this ond is
BLONOMIC consequences are detailad in the following:

= According fo Recreationol Boating Stafistics published by the MMMA [National Marine
Manufactures Asseciation) 2022 report:

o Powerboot sales normalized in 2022, down an esfimoted 15% to 18% from 2021
to pre-pandemic levels

L= ]

20237 soles and 2023 projechons highlight segments drving growth as entry level
persenal wotercraft, freshwater fishing boats, end penteon boats under 26

* These ore not market segments thet contribute to MNewport Horbor, thus

indicofing o sharper decline in demaond for vessels found in Mewpart
Harbar

In summary, a significant eosing of demand wos widely apparent through 2022 ond into 2023.

With oll of this being said, despite substantial anticipated headwinds, Mewport Harbor remains a
highly sought after locotion, noting thot fhere is increased availobility in 2023 and rents hove
stabilized.

CRC Marinos operates four marinas in Newport Harbor: Balboo Maring, Boyside Monina, Villa
Cova Maorina, and Bayshore Maoring. When surveyed in 2022 they had only five ovailakilifies.
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CRC Maorinos currenfly hos 11 availoble siip spoces throughout their Bolboo and Boyside
Marinas.

COMNCLUSION

Owverall, the market is in o period of “returning 1o nomaley” with renis stabilizing ond availability
increasing, The end of the COVID-19 pandemic ond resultan! declining demand for personal
recraafional watercraft in the foce of extrame uncertainty in the current economic elimate with
materially unsetled / disrupted finoncial markets is anticipoted to ot least portially unwind the
upward pressure on slip rotes chserved during 2020 and 2021,

Alse, o notable disfinchion is that per our review of the mooring transfer logs in Mewpori Horbor
from 2017 through 2022, appreciation in pricing of moorings is negligible compared 1o the
increase in the far more rare and highly desiroble maring slip rental rotes.  As such, the increase
in slip rents versus the increase in mooring rent is lessthan 1: 1.
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Highest and Best Use

Per the terms of the assignment, the opproiser is fo provide o fair market rent analysis for the
subject in its current condition. Determination of highest ond bes! use is beyand the scope of this
assignment.  That soid, given fthe lock / obsence of occessibility to the subject mooring fields
other than by boat, the subject is assumed to be operating fo its highest and best use, as maaring
fields,
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Foir Morket Rent Anolysis

Fair Market Rent Analysis

METHODOLOGIES

We hove employed mulfiple methodologies in our onalyses. All are bosed on morket data relating to o
typical mooring or slip intended to occommadate o boat measuring 40 lineal feel.

CALIFORNIA STATE LANDS COMMISSION - BENCHMARK TIDELANDS RENT
The first methadelogy employed is consistent with multiple recent Benchmark Tidelonds Rental
adjusiments reports with the following methodalogy:

In ordar to determine the value of the leased aren ol o pier, buoy, mooring pale, etc), it will be
necessory fo determine: what income con hpically be generated by o commercial maoring; the oreo
accupied by @ marina slip in o wall-designed manina; whal the rental charge would be for a ypical
sized boof; and the rate of return the Stote should receive for the use of its lond.

Wa hove three recent reports referencing / employing this methodalogy:
s Southern Colifarnio Benchmark Mermo dote Moy &, 2022
s 3an Francisco Boy Areo Benchmark Memo date Janwory 18, 2022
s Tomoles Boy Benchmerk Memo dote October 7, 2020

* We also nobe thal the City of Newport Beach has used B.5% when ossessing rofes o be charged
o companias operafing the lorgest maninas in Newport Horbar but substantially less for smoller
miarings ond other commercial uses, ond hove taken that info occount as o locol benchmark.
This is shawn in the 20146 and 2017 George Hamiton Jones Reports utilized by the City for all
uses of the tidelonds os well os in the City's published rate {link provided obova).

As o reference to Colifornio Siate Lands Commission Tomales Bay report PDF poge 11:
“The Commission typicolly charges 5% to 8% of gross income for boat berthing for sites
lensed to commercial maring operatars, with most of the leases sef ot 5% of gross
income.

A rate of return on the income oppliceble fo the Tidelands utilized in each of the fhree obove
referenced reports was 5%, We howve conduded 1o the higher rate of &% given the recent / current
inflefionary pressures thot hove resulied in nolcble rale hikes which are anficipated 1o remoin elevated
in the near-term. However, noting that the Fed controls only short-term rates, only a slight adjusiment
wpword from 5% is oppropriote for o long-term normolized rate of return. The complete analysis is
contained on the following pages.
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The fallowing contains o comprahensive rental survey of various marings througheut Newper Harbor:

MEWPORT BEACH SLUP RENTALS
doamrogs §H
i i e
Liiiber Bl S Langrn Arsage M Aeenities  Aversge Wimonk
Ladds Yech Brethioepge afr 1T 552 57,080
Boboa Yachi Bodn Mosing () srmeniiel] aff ZED 243 332400
Breciide Wilage Manna ar 1 541 31 £
Pord Calppan a0 44 4 LR
Lighs Posk Floos Manns [ne omemitise) & (7Y 54 LRt
rezring Park iBasai an §88 Sghty ol ar §is B LRt
Mireperd Dunes Bmort Baring &0 578 574 13040
Mieon $5paT 559 66 bS]
Wer i B50a0 554,25 £3 350
Mlorized Bers Fifmgle
&% Rehirn Applidble ra the tidelonds LR ERET] Anavol Henk
&% o Gross Incume Adtributolsla to Sole Sweed Tidelands &nnual Foss Rentol x40 ket /alip 4134 1413
Belurm = 3.3& par lineal fool per month z 80 2 17 monshy = 51,613 per veor
Campibed by CHAL

In the above analysis we did not use the B.5% used by the City when estoblishing rafes uses per the
George Hamiton Jones Report for the lorgest marinas, since the other rates published by the City and
adepted by the George Hamilton Jones report for smaller marings and “other uses” was approgmately
1/3 lower, which would result in o role of cpproximetely 5.67% of the gross revenues charged by
marinas, which is o rate very dlosely aligned with the Stote Lands Banchmarks.

We hove concluded morket rent consistent with the mean ond medion rents indicated by the
oggregated survey date ot $54/LF for o boat in a slip with all the benefits which indude porking,
restrooms, elechricity, security, nighttime lighting, easy occess and wolk-on walk-off, and use of the
marina docks and gangways. We then calculated the annual rent allocafion to the fidelands basad
en the rate of return typically used by Stofe Lands, cnd not on the higher rote used by Mewport Beach
of 6%, which is obove the typical 5% rate utilized in the three referenced reports, but which is
oppropriate due fo the current inferest rate envircnment while still within the long-term “5% to &% of
gross income” ronge as advised in the reports.

CONSIDERATION OF ADJUSTMENT FACTORS
Slip Versus Mooring

The first consideration of adjustment foctor is actual fidelands encumbered by the 40" boat which differs
tar o slip versus o masring.

According to the Californio Stofe Londs Commissien reperts, the “Layout ond Design Guidelines for
Marina Berthing Focilities” publication (lost updoted July 2005) from the State Department of Boating
and Waterwoys is used fo defermine the amount of submerged land orea necessary fo occommodate o
given maaring size. The rasulls are in fhe following chart:
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TIDELANDS UTILIZED PER BOAT SIZE

Tidelands 5F
Tidedanids Allscation per
Repart Boat Lengih Allocation  Lineal Boof Foot
Tomaoles Boy Banchmark ar BaS 2B
Son Francisco Benchmark 38 1,197 32
Southern Colifornia Benchmark 37 1,153 31
Subject Estimate 40 1,326 33.15
Compiled by CHRE

As previously determined, the Tidelonds square foologe required to accommodote o similor size
mooring is somewhat greater than thot of o slip, even when the docks, gangways end reloted features
are odded fo the area ossocioted with o slip.  This is meinly due fo the added sguare foctoge
ossociated with lines from the vessel fo the buoys vs the creas of dock space in fromt of and on either
side of o slip, While we odded significant extra square footoge 1o each moaring o account for the oree
from o vessel to the buoys at the full beam of the vessel [which is an area gregter than the distance
used by lines fo the buoys) we did not add any area for the swing of the boat since os o boat on o
double mooring meves slightly in ane dirediion it opens up fidelands in the ofher direciion which con be
used by the public for koyaking, paddle boarding and ather recrecfional use.

Accass and Ameanities

The second consideration of odjusiment foctor is the difference in convenience and functional utility
between a slip in a typical maring versus o typical mooring. tems include dedicated shore facilities such
as restrooms and showers, octual ufility fo bool operation such os electricity ond woter, security,
fencing, nightime lighting, ond most imperantly use of docks ond gongwoys for mosy occess,
compared to o boot on o mooring thet hos none of these amenities. All athar horbors with any
significant sized moaring fields provide much less fovorable access by woy of dinghy docks ovailable
tor docking dinghies and tenders for 24/7 occess, but Mewport Beach mosrings unlike the moorings in
other harbors, do not even have this occess,

Clearly with a marina or slip rental, o renfer can physically walk with all of their supplies to their vessel,
With @ moored vessel, o dinghy or other boat is required to frovel from the shore to the mooring.
Further impaocting the subject Newport Horbor is the lack of oecess by way of on in-waler motorized
dinghy/tender for access 1o o Newpor Beach meering.

We have reviewed multiple horbers with both ships ond off-shore moorings in San Diego, Morro Bay,
Monlerey, ond Half Moon Boy Harbors, oll of which provide docks where mooring renfers and/or
permit holders can hove o tender for 24/7 occess af no charge, with the exception of Hall Maon Bay,
which moy charge a nominal 564 per month, and Manterey which changes $89 per quarter ar $30 per
menth. San Diego's moorings hove occess to dinghy docks, but in some coses the dinghy dock moy ba
more remote bo soeme mooring fields. We hove noled thot dota from these other harbors shaw thaot
mooring rotes ore reolly o combinafion of not just the use of an oreo of the fidelands, Bl o
combination of the area of fidelands used plus the use of dinghyfender docks for Fuliime access o the
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moorings 24/7, and in the case of San Diege, hoving the maintenance of the mooring |estimoted ai
5120 per month) included in the feas.

Mete that we have focused our ressarch on public versus private ownership maoring versus slip fae
renfols as the privote institufions. For example, in Newport Harbor vorious yocht clubs offer share boal
service for @ nominal fee which is less eosily quantified. The yocht clubs total charges, including share
boat service, for moarings mostly on fhe lorger size, wauld need fo odjusted net only for the cost of o
slip for a dinghy/tender in Newpart Harber, but alsa for the cost of purchasing a seawarthy tender with
matar, maintaining the tender ond engine, as well as ather omenities the yocht elub provides to its
mooring holders,
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rowinm ing fo Slip F
In reviewing the slip fo moaering fee ratios, this is a very imprecise “"derivative® method and is
difficult o rely on. Some of the reasons why it is unreliable and should not be used are discussed
here. One mojor foctor is that similar ossets ore not being compared. As the old soying goes, it's
like: comparing opples to oronges.  Ancther foctor would be the exdent fo which an increase in
slip fees does nol necessarily frock the supply and demond for moorings, especially lorger slips
thot anly & small group of people demand and can afford.

Anather impertont focier that cannat be underestimated is that the camparisan with ather harbars
% @ comparisan of Moorings plus Dinghy Docks to Local Slips. In the cose of Mewpor Beach, it
would be comparing Moaring without Dinghy Dacks o Locol Slips with full access. Whereos any
“rafic” al ofher harbors would compore the oreo used by o moaring plus full occess 1o o
dinghy/tender dack for access to the mearing fo rates chorged for o slip of the same size os the
maximum size of the mooring. This maokes such o method even more desivotive, since ance an
initiol voluation is made using o rofio from other horbors, the suggested fee would need fo be
reduced by the cost of obtaining o slip for @ matorized dinghy/tender ovailable 24/7 without
resirichan.

As menfioned, the dalo regording fees chorged for meornings with dinghy dock occess vs ship
rotes in other harbors and the resulfing ratios are not sufficiently reliable ond can be seen using o
tew examples. One example is the rotes for moorings in Sen Diege hove nat risen in many years
and may be due for an increase. |f and when the lease would foke off some of the caps on rotes
charged for moorings (plus use of dinghy docks, plus servicing the meering equipment). If rotes
are increased, it will lake years to ascertain if the public will continue to rent the moorings al the
new rale and if vaconcies will occur.  So, while the manager of the Son Diego moorings, like ony
other manager of any ofher renicl property may “wish” 1o increose the rates, it is a wish, which is
nat a reliable source to be considered until ond affer it has been in place far many years and the
response to the increcse is known. Any owner of real estate may “wish” to increase hiz or her
rentol rotes, but without doing so and assessing how the market will respand with move outs and
resulting vaconcies often will \oke years 1o ossess. In the cose of o boat on o moaring, it would
likely joke even longer since moving a beat off o mooring would reguire an alternative ploce 1o
store the bool. A lorge soilboat with o keel cannot be put on o trailer, and the boat owner may
be forced to pay abave market rent until he ar she con move or sell the beat. Again, it would
ioke years o ossess such o "wished for™ increase.

The manager of fhe San Diego moorings has estimated thet the cost 1o inspect and maintain the
maarings is in excess of 3120 par month per moaring, Even afler morket rant wos estoblished,
as menkioned, the “rofic” thot moy eventually be estoblished in San Diego would need o be
odjusted because the rafios in Son Diego would not be for moorings versus slips, but for
maarings with full moinfenance, inspections, and full dinghy dock access, os compared 1o a slip.
Such o ratio, once estoblished yeors from now, weuld net apply to Mewpor Herbor, whers the
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mooring holder pays for its ewn meinlenance, inspects, mokes periedic replacement of weights
and chain, and where the City is not providing occess by woy of dinghy docks made reasanably
available fo oll effshore moorings with 24/7 for access to the moaorings.

Ta complicate the situction even more is the foct thot while the maneger of the San Diego
meorings may “wish” lo fest intreases in mooring rotes, the manager has not abtained formal
opprovel fo do so at this fime, nor has the State Lands Commission been consulted on any
proposed incresse.

In the cose of Morro Bay, as mentisned, the rofes chorged for slips for the commerdial fishing
fleed and other commercial uses may be subsidized and would be difficulf o measure. On the
ather hond, the rates chorged for mosrings plus ample dinghy docks is cwrrantly 5110 per mionih
far o moaring fhat con be used for o 50-foot vessel, which is opproximately $2.00 per linsal fact
per month. On the other hand, the City of Morro Bay charges approximately $26 per foot for
slips os shown on poge 32 of the Netzer opproisal repen. That would indicate o rofio of aver
1/10 and that is for moarings with docks for dinghy/tenders to allow access o the MOGrings
24/7.

It is also warthy of nate that the City of Marro Bay also has City-owned mosrings and the City
charges opproximate 3 tfimes more for renting City-owned maarings versus individuol-owned
moorings becouse the city instolls ond maintoins the meoring hardware, likely has insurance fo
cover these achivities, and maokes necessary adjustments from fime to time, whereas a Marro Bay
mooring awner is responsible for all of these costs.

Monterey Boy dota is also difficult o ascerdain. One of the marinas where there is not o long
wait fima sits of the base of a power plant with mony complaints about dirt and grime an vessels
in the maring. It is uncleor whaot the wait time is for other nearby marines, Mearby Sonto Cruz
Horbor maorinos do not suffer from these issues. A 45.fasi slip in Sonta Cruz would cost
approximately $16 fo $30 per foot per month depending on ihe location of the slip, with an
average of $23 per foot, or $1,035 per month, compared 1o $187 per manth for o “sast harker
moaring” or $100 per manth (it poid annuolly) for en “out harbor moering,” for on averoge of
3144 for 0 mooring in Monterey Bay that also comes with dinghy dock access {at a cost of $89
per quarter = 530 per month] for o total of $174 per month for o meering end o dock for o
dinghy/lender fe access the moaring. This would result in o ratio of 178, but agoin this is for o
maoring with use of o dinghy/fender dock.

Helf Moon Boy s also problematic for similar recsons.  Slip fees for o 50-foot boat are on
overoge 5340 per month, Mooring rates ore $1.92 per month per lineal feat, which is $95 per
manth for o 5{-foot boat ond add o pessible §64 per month for use of the dinghy docks, far o
tokal of 3140 par manth. But we da not knaw if there is o long wait list for slips ar i the slip rote
reflects market rates for slips. This would be 29 6% but ogein only o o combination of use of a
mooring plus use of a dinghy dock.
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Far all of the cbove reasons, the rafio derivative method derved from other harbors connot be
used,

franically, without locking to ofher harbars, the anly ratic where moorings withow dinghy docks
to slips hos been derived from epproisals conducted ond occepled by the City of Mewport Beach
wos approximotely 2014, In that year, morket rotes for slips were shown in the George Hamilton
Jones epproisol which showed the average slip rote in Mewport Baach for a 40-foct slip fo be
31,640 per month per month = $41 per lineal foot per menth / $492 per lineal foot per year.
At the same fime, Mr. Netzer appraised the market rate for Mewpor Moorings to be $37 io $38
per year, ond the City estoblished the rate to be 335 per [lnEn:tI foot per year. The result was thot
that the ratio of mooring fees withou! ding ) i reagsonabie oocess 1o slips fees in
Mewport Horbor for o 40-foot mooring was 35}’4?‘1 = l.-‘"lal = uppruxlmm‘ely 7%. There is no
reason ko sugges! that ralie would have changed. Again, this “derivolive” opprooch is nol a
gensrally occepled approisel opprooch and using this approech does not yield o much differen
result [when the lock of access is fodered in) as compared fo troditional established methads.
However, if vsed and opplied to MNewport Horbor besed en the two formaol and occcepled
appraisals done of thot time, it would result in rotes lower than the opinion of rotes shewn in this
repe.

As noted above, this "derivafive” approach is the leost relioble of all other metheds and is
included fo show the vorious feciors that are al ploy ond change from time to time and are
offected by different voriobles, such s favering o type of use or o subsidized hype of usa, or
popularity of ane fype of use over another as we hove seen during the Covid yeors with pecple
becoming inferested in o condo on fhe water in @ marina with slectricily and easy oecess. For
this reasan, this ratic opproach wos not used,
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The City is in the process of renfing maoaorings under a license arrangement, Under the licanse fhe
licensee is free to leave on 30 doys’ notice and hos ne capital commitment to the use of the
moaring. The number of these moonngs is limited, and eoch size is limited even more. As in the
case of the possible future rate increases in Son Diego, any data from such rental would toke
yeors fo ossess. Firsl, these would nead to be rented, then over the nexd few years the length of
fime o person rents such o mooring would need fo be determined. Third, how the limited
number of persons obtain aceess would need fo be ascerlained, For example, if the licensee hos
occess by woy of a home dock, a share moaring, use of a boat that he or she was already using
for their purposes, or use of a friends dock spoce, this would only demonstrate value, utility, ar
rent for that parficular person where occess was not an issue, However, that fact thot o pericular
person moy pay what is ofherwise over markel for the general public, thus does not establish
market rant.

In addition, it should be noted that the City has created its ewn scarcity of rentable moarings. At
any given fime, the harbor master has observed that there ore over 100 vacant moorings. At the
same fime the City does not allow meoring holders fo rent these out. As such, the City has
created #s own scorcity of moorings for rent, ond with only o handful ovailoble, this arfificially
and significontly decreases the supply thus artificially increasing competitian and the amount of
equilibrium or foir market rent indicated by the market, again which is antirely artficial in nofure.

Of note olse is the fact that the City will need to maintain, insped, and paricdically reploce
meoding squipment, buoys, anchors and chain, which is estimated by the operater of the San
Diege Moaring Company to be over §120 per month.

For the above reasons, the future rental of this handful of moorings cannot be used in any
comparative or other analysis.

As o final note, other harbers thet have both privotely-owned ond City-owned moorings ond
have considered the difference in each, hove estoblished rates mueh lewer for privately-owned
moorings. For esomple, Mere Bay chorges 3110 per monith for private moorings (and prowides
occess fo dinghy docks} but chorges 5330 per month when it rents out City-cwned moarings on o
long-term basis. Holf Moon Boy chorges $1.92 per month per foot for privately-owned
mooarings, but charges $5.08 per loot per month for City-owned moarings.

OTHER METHODOLOGIES NOT USED AND DEEMED UNRELIABLE

Comparison of Tideland Use in Connection with Adjacent Properties Should Mot Be Used
Atternphing to separate component parts and considerotions that make up o propery value is an
exiremiely unrelioble methodology and i ever used os o consideration is done anly when there

are no other estoblished methods. As shown in this repert there ore ather established methads,
and this appresch should not be considered.
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A few exomples might illustrote the issue with such o methedology. Consider o view hame an o
bluff that sells for 540 million dollars, and the identical home that is across the sireet from fhe
vimw home and sells for $15 million dollors less. One might think the "view” companent, by
itself, has o value of $15 million dollars. That would mean that if there were an unbuildable lof
ret fo fhe view home it should hove o volue of $15 million dollors. However, it is likely the
unbuildoble lot hos lifle or no value. The extra value is completely integrated inte the value of
the home and connot be separated from the location, characterisfics, amenities, and estoblished
value of the home.

Ancther example would be rentol of home docks within Newpart Harbae. If o home with o dodk
has a volue of $40 million dellars and rents cut its 40 foot ship the slip rate should be four times
higher than o $515 million dollor home thet rents out its 40-foot slip. However, slip rates for
home docks do not seem 1o very much frem maring slip retes and do nol appear fo comealole fo
the value of the adjacent homa.

Thase examples are used only to illustrate why considering the value of adjacert real property
cannot be used in extrapalating rates for moorings in Mewport Harber,

Atlernpling to Exiropolate Rates from Reporied Maooring Scles is on Unrelioble Method and
Should Mot be Considered

A handful of offshore moerings is sold and tronsferred sach year. However, the dota and
circumstances ore typically nat fully knewn, and the number of sales is insufficient to estoblish a
relioble datobase of sales whare o buyer and o seller with full knowledge of the propery in
question established o value.  Unlike real estate transactions typically handled by licensed reol
estate brokers, moorings are typically sold by indrviduals privately without help from brokers.  In
a brokered fransoction, there ore multiple disclosure forms required ond used so the buyer hos
full knowledge of all of the risks and hazards thot ore known 1o be related 1o the property. As
discussed elsewhere in this report, the single mosl important component of volue, or lock of
volue, of a mooring is occess o the moaring which, in all other harbers, is established by an
adequale number of dinghy docks. ‘While o person not familiar with the oceess problem in
Mewpart Beach might see several public docks and mistakenly conclude that they have sufficien
occess bo the mooring being purchosed, that conclusion would be mistoken. Since the details of
each of the reported sales are unknawn, it is pure speculation te previde an opinion of the extent,
it any, of disclosure regarding the materiol and furctionel lack of dinghy dock access in Mewpert
Harbar. Once o person has acquired @ maoring and put their boet on the maaring, it is difficult
to find on affordable low cost alternative place 1 move the boat, which may be & reasan why,
after becoming aware of the access problem, o mooring might not be put up for sale in tha short
term (s the Harbar Deportment does not oliow resale of moarings within one yeor of purchase),
and the person might have to resart fo for less desirable metheds 1o gain access 1o the mooring.

In addifion to the disdosure issue, there may be o handful of people for whom occess is not o
problem. For exomple, they moy have a home dock, have access o a friend's home dock, oy
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have a shore moering, may have o smoll boal on o slip that they olreody used for ather
purposes. The number of buyers of maarings tor whom dccess is not an issve or less of an issue
is completely unknown.

It is clso noteworthy that the reparted sale dota is provided by individuals and not from any
formal source. In some coses, o moaring is sold in combination with o boot ond because & sals
of & boat is subject 1o sales tax, the allocation on the price between the beat and the mooring
might be adjusted in @ menner that might have o lower impact on the soles tax 1o be paid.

These are some of the reoscns why focusing on the foct that moorings are sold of o poricular
price cannot be used fo ascerfain rotes to be charged for the use of the tidelands occupied by
boats on moorings.

summary ond Conclusian

In controst o the subject Newport Harbar Mooring fields, the surveyed harbors above provide a0y
access 1o mearmgs, with dinghy docks for in weler motorized dinghy/ienders to allow people fo occess
their moorings 24/7 with no significate fime limits. Access 1o the individual moorings in these other
harbors (oll ather harbors] is far superior fo the subject os the City of Newport Beoch provides
extremely limited in-water motorized dinghy ocoess fo moorings. The handful of spaces available
are limited in fime and only randomly avoilable, depending on haw many other dinghies ore
using the limited spoces of any fime. Mareover, the handful of dinghy dock spoces are also
avoiloble to the public, not just for access to moerings, and the space is limited 1o o modmum of
36 hours which means, in elfecs, if o mooring holder ware lucky snough to sacure o space, by the
time he or she come bock the next weekend his or her dinghy would hove been impounded by
the City ond subject to o large penally, As such, fo make an appropriate adjustment, the benefit
pravided by the dinghy docks of other harbors peeds to be quantified. To obtoin o space for o
dinghy/tender of # to 12 feet ol @ maring in Newport Baach, the costs would be opproximately
5400 to 3750 per menth, There is a limited supply of such spaces and olen there is a minimum
length of 18 to 20 feet, which is reflected by the higher range cost of $750. The esfimated cost
would of course change were the City to require maring eperators to provide smaller spoces
[without losing revenue] but that is currently unavailable. On o comparotive basis with what other
harbors offer {which is @ combination of moaring plus access te the moering], an oddiional
discount is warranted os reloted fo the preceding discussion and analysis. In other words, an o
comparison basis, if Newport Beoch provided eosy motorized in-water occess lo moorings 24,7
without any significant fime restrichion, the rote would be subject to on upward odjustment.
However, as noted above, o mooring withowl occess, just like lond without occess, hos
substantially diminished volue.

@ H024 CARE, f. ? CBHE



Fair Morket Eent .||I'III:I|'||5|5_

INDICATED MARKET REMT

Tidelands Rent for 40°' Boat

Estimated Annual Rent $o Slip for 40 slips in 2024 §24,880
Esfimated Annual Rent for 40 slip in lineal fee 5572
Rotic of Mooring without oooess versus shp 1/14
% Multiplier =1/ 14 T.0%
Annisol Markat Renl for 40 Lineal Foot Maoring 51,920
Annual Bent Per Lineol Foof 546.00

Compiled by CBRE

Again, this was provided for informotional purposes only and is not weighted in our final
reconciliation of foir rent due fo diminished reliobility of the ratic opproach compared to the
other approaches utilized in the oppraisals,
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METHODOLOGY UTILIZING MARKET INFLATION FROM THE PREVIOUS BENCHMARK

The previously determined rent for offshore moorings waos concluded to be 335 per lineol foot
per year based on on opproisol performed by Metzer & Asscciates os hired by the City of
Mewport Beoch. This 335 role adopted by the City os determined by the City-hired appraiser is
considerad to be representafive of market. The following anclysis ufilizes this benchmark rafe

with appropriote inflafion foctor applied fo occurately reflect o morket based rental rate in todey’s
mere fovorable morket.

CALIFORMIA STATE LAND COMMISSION - BENCHMARK PAIRED INFLATION DATA

Eeausessad Morked Indicoied Simple
Locolion Base Yeor Tidelonds Rent Adjusted Tidelards Beal Anrugl Inflation
Souiharn Colitarnin Benchmark S0.3TASH In 2014 50451 /s in 2072 £, 1%
Son Froncisco Boy Area 5018/ in 2074 50,2274 in 2022 T.4%
Tamales Boy 50,10 4,/5F in 2005 50133/ in 2020 3%
CP 19BZ-Bd=100 % luly 2018 Mewped Morber &djustrant based an March 2006 GHI Approisl
Decamber 2023 CPI 302,408  March 2014 CP 238113 3.48%
Dacember 2023 CPI 302 408 July 2018 CPI 252.008 3.69%
Maan al &l Survey Dota 3.38%
Medion of All Survey Doto 3.98%

Compiled by CEEE

As illustrated above, the most recent reports reflect the highest inflafion due to the unprecedented
infletionary fimes experienced in 2020 and 2021, and os a resull of which the Fed has increased
rates aver 500 bosis points. This is an offsetfing factor in the determination of a new benchmark
rate which is highly influenced by the arfificially-created inflationary envirgnment of 2020 and
2021, which is nat reflective of long-term trends. Whan inflofion is meosured ogainst the relevont
fime pericds up until 2020, historical inflation is closer to 2% per yeor. As such, downward
consideration is worranted from the preceding deata,

We have concluded to 3% as o long-term trend which is based on the 3.5% to 3.9% indication
above, odjusted downward for the ortificial inflotionary enviranment of 2020 and 2021,
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In addifion fo the preceding, we hove also compered current surveyed rents to those indicated in
o City of Mewport ordered appraisal by George Haomilton Jones doted Mareh 2014,

HEWPFORT BEACH PAIRED REMT AMALYSIS

Rerd From 32004 Indicatad Simpls

Lacntion Boat / Slip Langth  Cument Bent  GHI sl Annuod Indlofian
Lido Yocht Ancharage &0 552 $37 5.5%
Bollicen Yescht Bosin Maring [no omenities) & 350 532 7.7%
Boyside Village Maring &0 541 532 %
Merwepestt D Basort Moring & 874 542 10.9%
Mean B.5%
Madian BB

Compiled by CARE

Of imporiont disfinction, note the greatest inflation wos abserved for those praperhies with the
greatest omenities ogoin which is o funcfion of the gnificiall creafed demang’ and resultant
inflation resulfing from the COVID-19 pandemic lockdowns ond use restricions where people
spent increasingly more time on their boats, which i enhanced by amenifies.

And ogain, demand is clearly tapering, and the recent two-year inflationary envirenmant is nal
reflective of stobilized long-term trends. Furthermare, mooring utility ond desirability is vostly
inferior compared fo o marina slip with immediately convenient accessibility ond amenities such
as wober and power, restroem focilities, dedicated parking, efc. As such, the increase in demand
and pricing for & mooring versus o slip would not be correlated 1 : 1, it would be reasanable thai
slip fees would increase af o much higher rate than & meoering, especially given fhe level of
affluence af the surrounding community.

As evidence of this, we hove reviewed the moaring fransfer logs from 2017 1o 2022 which
includes pricing. The value of moerings while having increased over the yeors [ogoin maest
recently given the uplick in demand during the COVID-19 pandemic), has increased by o
marginal bosis which is nowhere neoar the rotes indicoted in the preceding slip rent increase
indicetion. As such, oppropriate inflation for moaring rents should foll well below the indicated
inflation or poired slip rent onalysis over the same fime pericd. The inflation and ather fidelands
rates servie o5 a much more relevant benchmark for inflofion compered fo paired slip rents.

Conclusion

Based on the preceding data indicoted by the recently reassessed Benchmark Rates for Califarnia
Jtate Tidelands, markel-driven inflofion data, ond actual paired-rent comparoble infarmation
from Mewport Horbor, an appropriote inflation foctor should fall in the 3% renge. We have
based the time adjustment on the July 2018 odoption date of the previous benchmark rale
change. The oppropriote time odjust is epproximately five ond cne-helf years. The implied
adjusted market rent is detailed in the following chart.
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INDICATED MARKET RENT
2014 Appraisal 2018 Adopted City Benchmark Offshore Maoring Rent S/Llinsal A/ 535
Sirmpla Infiohan Fodor ot 3.5% without o cop Anisel 3.5%
July 2018 Adoption dote versus TQ2024 Mew Benchmark Dake Yaars 5.5
Tetal Inflation 1%%
Prior Banchmark 535
sarket Conditions Adjusted Rote 547

Benchrmark Lineaol Faar of Baat FTi]
Annual Market Rent !l'l,,ﬂ?ﬂ

Compiled by CBRE
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Reconciliotion of Morker Rent

Reconciliation of Market Rent

The rent indications from the two methodologies ore surmmarized as follows:

SUMMARY OF MARKET RENT ESTIMATES

Annual Rent
California Stote Tidelands Commission Methodology §1,613
Inflaticn Methodology Based on City's Prior Banchmark $1.670
Ratio Method 51,930
Reconciled Morket Rant Eslimate 51,640
Based on Typical 40 Lineal Foot Baad £41.00

Compiled by CBRE

As discussed throughout the repont, the ratio maethod is deemed the least relioble methodology
illusiroted in the oppraisal. We have ploced equal opproximate emphasis on the first twe
methodologies utilized in the preceding char.

Bosad on the foregaing, the morket rent of the subject fidelonds hos been concluded as follows:

TIDELANDS FAIR USE FEES / FAIR MARKET RENT
Annuval Rent per 40/

Moaring Based on
Morket Rent / Lineod Foot /  1,3285F of Tidelonds
R for Tidelands used for individuwal
Appraisal Premise Date of Valus {$3.34 LF per ma) moaring
Mg s Janvary 15, 2024 541.00 50,640

Compiled by CBRE

Tidelonds Foir Use Fees / Fair Market Rent — Other Size Moorings

Bosed on Methodologies Used in This Repart the Value per Squore Foot is $1.24 per Squore Foof
of Tidelands Used Per Annum. The squore foot valuation would net change in relation 1o the size
of mooring, anly the square foot used and resulfing adjustment ta the total rate weuld change.

Boot Size | + ' Lines + Buoys® |« [ Beam | Total Sg Ft
L + |24 o x| 12 648
40 + |28 x| 15 1,020
(50 ¥ |34 x| 17 1,428
(&0 + |34 x| 19 1,784
70 + |34 x|21 | 2,184

© 224 CBRE, Inc. - CBHE
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Rates without o Swing Factor
Boaot Size SqFRwith |x | | Takal SqFt Fee Per Year | Fee Per Year
Lines etc ot $1.24 sg fi | Per Lineal Fool
30 &48 X H48 803,52 326,79
40 1,020 ® 1,020 $1,254.80 £31.62
| 50 1,428 X 1,428 31,770,732 $35.42
60 11,786 x| | 1,786 $2,214.64 | 53691 =
70 2,184 ¥ 2,184 32,708,146 238.49
Add Swing Foctor ot 20%
Boat Size Sq Ftwith |« | 20% | Tebol 5q F1 | Fee Per Yeor | Fee Per Year
Lines efc with Swing | ot $81.24 sq fi | Per Lineal Faot
30 648 |« 778 5964.72 | $32.16
40 1,020 X 1,274 3131776 33795
20 1,428 x 1,714 $2,125.34 542,51
&0 1,784 x 2,144 52,658.56 344,31
70 2,184 |« 2,621 $3,250.04 | 546,43
Add Swing Factor at 25%
Boot Size Sq Frwith | x | 25% | Total Fee Per Year | Fee Per Year
Lines etc with Swing | oi $1.24 sqft | Per Lineal Fool
30 648 | BID  |51,00440 | 533.48
40 1020 |x 1,275 $1,581.00 | $39.53
50 | 1428 % 1,785 $2,213.40 544,27
&0 1784 ¥ 2,233 52,768.92 546,15
70 2184 % 2,730 $3,385.20 548.34
Add Swing Factor ot 30%
Boat Size S5q Ftwith | x | 30% | Total Fee Per Year | Fee Per Year
Lines aic with Swing | of 31.24 sgft | Per Lineal Foot
| 30 648 x Bd43 $1,045.32 534 85
40 1020 | » 1,326 §1,644.24 | 541.11
50 1,428 |x 1,857 $2,302.68 | 546,06
60 1,786 | 2,377 | $2,879.28 | 547.99
70 2,184 X 2,840 $3,521.40 $50.31

* Voriafions wilh Summeary results from rounding square foot coloulations.
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Assumptions ond Limiting Conditions

Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

I, CHRE, Inc. fhrough s approwser (collectvely, "CBRE”) hos inspecied through reasonobls abservotion the subject
property. However, i is ned pessible or recsonably prodicabls to personally inspect condilions bensath the sail
and the entire interior ond esterior of the improvemants an the subject property. Tharfare, no represeniation is
rmade as 1o such rroflary

L, The repod, induding s tondusions ond any parfion of such repori [the “Repart™], is as of the date sat farth & the
Ietter of ronsmitied and bosad wpon e informstion, market, econamic, ond propary condibons ond projected
levels of operction exitfng as of such date. The dollar amaunt of any conclusion o3 10 volus in fe Repor is besed
upan the purchasng power of the US. Dollor on sich date. The Repor is subed fo changs o5 o resull of
fuciuations in any af the foregaing. CBRE hes na oblgation ts revise the Rapodt fa refeet ary such fluclucsions or
cihas avertle or condiions which ooour subseguent 1o such dose.

3. Uniess ofhereise sxprassly noted in the Report, CBRE e assumed that:

i Title to tha subjeet propery = clear ond maorksiolbe and thol there are no recerded o urrscorded matiers or
excephong 5 e ol would odversely offect markesability or volue. CBRE has ned esomined fitle racords
fincluding withaut limitation liens, ancumirances, easements, deed restriciors, ond other conditiors that may
affact the #tls or use of the subjec! property] ond mokes no representalions regarding fife or its imitatians an
W uss of [he subjed! property, Insurones ogainsf finoncipl loss thal mey arise out of defeds in tille should e
stughd from a quolifiad fitle insuronce company.

liij Edsting impravements on fhe subjec! property canform o opplicoble locol, siole, and federal bullding codes
ard ardinances, ore struchurally sound ond seismically sode, ond hove besn built and repaired in @ wordimaniike
Fanner according o stondard proctions; ol buiding systems [medhanicol/eledricol, HYAC, alavator, plumbing,
sic| are in good working arder with no mojor defermd meinlenants or repair reguired; snd e reaf and
exleseor ore in gocsd condilion and free fram intrusion by the elemems, CBRE hos nol reioined ndependand
sructural, mechanical, alectricol, or civil engineers in cannection with this approisal ond, thersdare, makes no
represeniofions rolafive ko the condifion of imgrovemants. CBRE opproisers ore nod anginesrs ond ore not
qualifed ta judge motiers of an engineering nofure, ond furthermore struclurnl problems or Building syshem
problems moy nof be visible. it is spressly osumed that ary pundhioser would, o5 o pracendition lo dosing o
wile, ohiain o satisfaciory engineering repon relotive b the srutiusal integrity of the propedy and the inkegrity
al building systams

=) Ary proposed improvemons, on ar of-sde, os wall oz ony alieralions ar repeins considered will ke camphaled in
o warkmarlike manner occording te stondard proctices.

lvl Harordous materials ore nat present on the subject property, CERE is nol gualified io defect such subsianess:
The presence of substonces swch op aibesios, vrea formaldehyde foam nsulation, contominosed grenanchwetar,
mald, or ather potenfiofly harardous maberials may offect the valus of he property.

i¥] Mo mineral deposil or subsurfoce: rights of value exist with respact 1o the subject property, whesher gas, liguid,
ar sold, and na air or devalopment righis of value may be frensferred, CBRE hos nat corsidered @hy rghls
amcdaled wih extrocfion or explosation of any resourtes, unless atherwiis sxpressly noted in tha Repart

i) Thare oré no confemplated public inikotives, governmentol developmant controls, renf consrals, ar changes in
the present zoning ovdinonces ar regulahons poverning uss, dengity, ¢ shape thal would signaficantly offec the
vishig of fhe subject progaesy

iwii] All required licenses, cerlificates of accupancy, consents, or ather legislatve or odminisiretive autharily frem arny
local, stote, nor notional government or private antity &r arganization hove bean or con be readily abloined o
rengwed for oy wie on which the Bepord & bosed.

i} The subjec! progesty is manoged ond operoied in o prudent and compeien! manner, neshar nsflicanily or
supar-aficiendhy.

(=] Tha subject praperty and its use, manogerment, ond operation are i full complionce with all applicsble federal,
state, and locol regulations, lows, and resiriclions, including withaut limdofion envirormandsl lows, saismic
harards, fight potierns, dachel svels/noise ervelopes, fire hasords, hillside ordinences, dencity, allowable
usies, budding codes, parmits, and licanses.

(%] The subject praperty is in full complionee with the Armericons with Disabilfies Ad (ADAL CBRE is rat qualified io
avieny the subject propery’s compliance with the ADA, namwithstanding ary discussion of pessible randily
achigvoble bormier removol construchion items in the Repge,
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i) Al nformohon regording the arens and dirsensians af e subjedt property furnished to CBRE ore corred, and
no encroschments exist. CBRE has naither undarioken any surey of the boundories of tha subject propsy nor
remewed or confirmed the ooouracy of any legal description of the subject property,

Lirless otherwise expresly noted o ihe Repor, no ssues regording the foregoing wesrs browghi ie CBRE's
oitenhan, end CHRE hos no knewledge of omy such Focls aflecling the subjec property. IF ony information
inconsistent with ary of fhe foregeing asswmptions i discovered, such informofion could have o substantiol
regaine impact an tha Bepon. Accardingly, IF any such informalion & subseguondly made knees b CBRE, CHRE
reserves the right so amend Ihe Report, whith moy include e conclusions of the Reperl, CBRE asiismes no
responsibility far ary condifions regarding fhe foregoing, or for ony nepartise or knowledge required to discover
themn. Any user of the Baport is urged do redain an expent in the apphoable fisld(s) for infermation regarding such
condilions,

. CBRE hos cssumed that all documants, dosa and information furnished by or behalf af tha cient, prepety ewner,

oF oWrer's represenialve ond accurele end codrecl, unless othersise expressly nofed i tha Report. Such daka ond
informafion include, withaul limitalion, nemerical streel oddresses, lol and Bleck riambes, Assesor's Parcel
Murmbers, lend dimensisns, square focioge aren of the lond, dimensions of e imprevements, gross building
araot, net renfoble oneds, noeble areas, unil cound, room cownt, rant schedules, incame dota, historioal operofing
expenses, tudgels, and reloed dala. Any error i any of the ohave could hove a subsionfinl smoact on the Bepor,
Acceedingly, i any such errors are subsequantly mode known o CBRE, CBRE reserves tha rghl to omend the
Bepar, which may indude the concusions of the Bapon, The chent and infended user should carefully review oll
easumplions, data, relevond coloulofions, ond conchusions of the Bepord and should immedictely nofify CBRE of mny
queslions of erars within 30 days ofter fhe dote of dalivary of the Bagor,

CERE cesumes no resporsibility (including ary abligafion to procure the same) kar any documents, dafo ar
information nol provided fo CBRE, including withaud limitakion ary lermibs mspacsan, surey or occupancy penmil,

All furnishings, squipmen! ond business operofiors hove been disregarded with only redl progessy being
considarad in fhe Report, except os olhersise aupressly siated and iypically consdered part of real property.

Any cosh flows included in the onalysis are forecasts of estimated fulure eperaling charocserisics based upen the
information ond essumphions conbained within the Repard. Any projectisns of income, expenses ond economic
condifigns wlilized m fhe Repor, including such cosh flows, should be consdersd os only estimotes of the
eapachatang of future income and expenses os of the dote of the Repes and not prediciions of the fubure. Aciual
resulls ane affected by o numbar of fodess culsde the eantral ol CBRE, induding without limiation fluchioling
economic, morket, ond property condifions. Actusl resulls may ulimotely difler from these projections, and CRRE
does not warmart any such projechandg,

The Rapart conloins professional opinions ond & edpressly nol mbended 1o serve os any woranty, ossuronce o
guerantes of any parficulor volue of the subjed propery, Oiher opproisers may reoch differens condusions os to
the value af Bhe subject property. Furthermons, marked value @ highly raloted i esposune time, presmatian sflar,
larme, msiralion, ond conclusions surrcanding ke affering of the subject propesy. The Report & for the sale
purpese of providing the imendad gser with CBRE's indapendand professionod apinion of the volue of the subjec
properly as of ihe date of the Regar, Accordimgly, CHRE sholl nof be lioble for any losses thet arise from amy
investmend or lending decisions bosed upen the Repart that the cliart, intendad user, or ony buyar, sallar, imestar,
or lending ingitution may undertake related o the subject property, ond CBRE has not besn compensoted 1o
ossuma any af those risks, Mothing confained in the Report sholl be construed o5 any dired or indirect
recommendaofion of CBRE fo buy, sall, bald, or finonce the subject proparty.,

Mo apinion is expressed on mattens which imay reguee legal experfise or speciolzed investigalion ar knoeledge
beyond thol customarily ompleyed by real estate oppraisers. Any user of the Report is advised 1o retain experts in
areas thod foll cutside the scope of the real estate oppraisal profession for swch mattars,

CHRE ossumes no responsility for ony codls or consequences arising dus 1o the meed, or tha lock of maed, Tar
Hoad hoeord insurance. An agent for fh Federal Flood Inswrance Frogrom should be contoected to determine fhe
otiuel need for Flood Hozond Irnsursnes.

11, Acceplonos or wse of i Report congitules full seceplonce of these Assumplions and Limiting Conditions ond oy

12,

speciol cssumplions se1 forth in the Beport. IF & the responsibiliy of the wer of the Bepor ks read in full,
comprahend and thus becoms owore of oll suth ossumplions ond limikng condiions, CBRE assumes no
responsibility for any siluetion arising out of the user's failure 1o become femiliar with and understond the same.

The Report applies 1o fhe property o2 o whole only, ond any pro rolien o didsisn af the #le inlo rodisnal
interests will iwalidate such conclusions, unless the Report sspressly ossumes such pra robion or division o
ndprasts,

o A2 CBRE, Inc. s CHHE



Assumplions end Limiting Condilions

13. Tha allocofions of the folal volue esfimale in fhe Raport betwesn land end imprevemenis apply enly bo the exsiing
usa of the subjedt proparty. The ollccotions of vohies for sach ol the lond and improvesments. one nat inlended o
bt e with any céher graperty or appraisel and are nat valid foe eny such use.

14, Tha mops, plots, skelches, grophs, photogrophs, and exhibits inchided in this Bepart are for iusiration purposes
enly and shall be ulilizad caly to asist in visualizing motiers discussed in the Beport. Mo such items shall be
ramivied, reproduced, or used apor Froem the Rapian,

I5. The Bapet sholl nol be duplicoled or previded to ony enintended wers in whele or in part wighow the wrisien
earsent of CBRE, which consent CBRE moy withhold in its saole distrefion, Exampd from fhis resiriciion s duplication
for the internal uvse of the intended wsor ond s oliarmeys, accounfants, or odvisors for the sole benefil of tha
intended wvier, Also exempt from this restriction is fraremission of the Repord pursvant o ony requiremsnl of any
courl, goremmeniol authony, o regulotory ogency having jurisdiclion over the infended user, provided That the
Report and s cortends shall nod ba published, in whole or in pard, in oy public dooument withoul e wisian
conserd of CORE, which corsan! CBRE sy withhold in its sale discretion. Finally, the Beport shall nol be mods
ovailable fo the public or alhereise used in ony offering of the property ar ony security, as defined by opplicoble
law, Any unintendod user who may possess the Report is advised that it shall net raly upen the Report or it
conclusions ond that i should rely on its own opproisers, advisors and offer corsullents for any decision in
conneclion with the wised propesty. CHRE shall hove no lability or responsibaty to any such wnimended user,

a%
o 2024 case, nc CBRE
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
e s " LEVERENZ, ADAM DOUGLAS
Whittier, CA 90607 Account #: 6004537-672618
672618
Notice Date: 2/5/2024
Please provide/update the e-mail address and phone number so the City 3/1/2024
may contact you about water service problems. To'[a| Amount Due' $1 33 60
Phone:503-432-6923 . .
E-mail: Adlever@hotmail.com Amount Enclosed:
NPX0205A
4000000409 409/ 1
S U U O T T HTU LT T ETAR T RTT
% EEQ/QEEE%’:BQMT%OUGLAS CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH
" SOUTH JORDAN UT 84095 USA UT 84095-5100 PO BOX 4923

WHITTIER, CA 90607-4923

0000kLO420246012314556000000133K03

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $133.60 | mm—
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PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

ROBERT L. IACOBSON, WAl
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ROBERT Z. JACOBSON, MAI

Rober Z. Jocobson, MAI is the head opprosser in the Onorio office for CBRE Valuofion &
Advisory Sarvices. Mr, Jocobson joined the Omiono office in 2002 and hes served
instubional as weall os local chients on all ypes of approisal and consulting ossignments
thraughaut the Inbond Empire, Mr. Jocobson alse works in concart with the Nofional Salf

Storage Yoluotion Group that is bosed out of the Ontario office.

Assignment specific experience includes Mr. Jocobson's opproisal of harbor wsage-onented
properies in Ocsonside ond Port Hueneme Horbors, ond his ocoess fo ond review of
CBEE's wost resources which include oppraisols of commarciol properies ond ossocioted
water rights and ossocioted rent daterminafion in virually every horbor along the Coliformio
Coast, as well as more harbor specific uses nokanally including bul not imided 1o:

Froparty Descripiion Lecobian
CHRE Horbar Approisols

B Horbar Redevelapmenl Confiderhal, CA
B Por - Market Rent Arbilrofion Canhidarial, TA
B multiphe Marine Portfalio San Diege, Ca
B Monno Horbor Aportmaents & Anchoroge Monna Dol Bey, Ch
®  Deep Woler Bule Corimner Foolity Confidential, WA
8 [Diry Stack ond West Slip Mived-Use Moples, FL

B Super Yookl shipyard & drydock Puerio Rao

8 Shippard & Drydeck Canldaniial, FL
B Super Yoghi Maring Brifrsh i
REPRESEMTATIVE ASSIGNMENTS

Fropary Description Locakiari
Inelugtro)

B Generol Mills Parrs

8  Proclor & Gambile Maorgng Vellay

Seil Storoge

Public Storege - Proposed
SoCal Self Siorage

Landa

Eiverside Mining — Indusirial
Future Besidentiol Lond

Los Angales County
Hallysood

Rivarside
AoalonraVictoreilla

CREDENTIALS

Professional Affiliotions/Accredifotions/Cartifications

®  Appeoisol Inssiute, Desgnated Member (441

8 Carified Genesal Reol Esote Agprolesr, Slale of CaBlomia, Mo, AGO35T 31

EDUCATION

i University of Arizong, Tucson, Arizono, Bochalor of Scierce
Duel Mojor Finonce and Accourting — Cum Louda

Size
P
3% ocrax
300 acres
P00+ slips

Q&G wnit, 321 slip

12,000 ocres
350 slips
97 D00 GAF
B acras
30 slipy

SiLe
1,547 342
1472717

dnits

20435

1,007

CBRE
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Public Comment Re:
NPB Offshore Mooring
Proposed FMV Rent

Attachment K:

Netzer Memo of
03/05/2024

& Materials:
37 psgs.



Attachment B

Netzer & Associates memo regarding 2016 vs. 2021 and 2023 Appraisal Rates
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To: Lawren Woeding-Whitlinger

Date: March 5, 2024
Lasuren:
that address the
rent not e refecied in the i

2016 and 2024 appraisals | offer the following comments:

1) In 2018 the average siip rate in Newport Harbor was estimated at §32 99 per linear foot based on
the “2013 *Newport Harbor Marina Index”. Whan surveyed in Decamber 2023, the “average mooring
rate” for the six "average” mannas in Newport Harbor was 550,55 per square foot, which is & 53%
Incréase since 2016, When all marinas in the harbor are included, the average rent is 385.93 per

2) In terms of the Comparable Rental Analysis, the comparable rental data presented in 2016 was
Emited to the San Diego Mooring Company and Balboa Yacht Club. In 2016 R was concluded that
the offehore moaring rertal programs in other harbors were not comparabla to Newport Harbor, 0
2016 | was unable fo confirm any moonng rental data related io the Newport Harbor Yacht Club, At
the time, i was reponied that BYC included the shore boat servics in the rental rate;

@202t was reparted that they charge an addtional monthly fee for shore-boat

| mciuded the comparable rental cata for San Diego. Monterey Harbor, Mormo Bay, Pillsr

nta Barabara, the Newport Harbor Yacht Club and Balbaa Yacht Club. The rental data was
adjusted for location based on the average alp fees for Newport Harbor, relative to the average ship
fees in the harbors where the comparable rental are localed. The comparable rental analysis,
adjusted for the locational differences based on the average slip fees, resulted in a faity namow
range and was judged to be a relevant and reliable indication of fair markel rent based on market
rental rates in athar harbare along the coasl.

When the average rent per linear foot for slip space was analyzed as an adjustment factar,
the San Diego average slip fee was $18.50 per linear foot, and was 532 56 when su

This reflects a 70 B% increase suggesting that the increase in slip fees was not just a
phenomenan,

. In additicn,
[T Was CIS00A TR 11 N E E i [ DE FIHHETE
wmm“mﬂmlhmmewwmmmmmmm
moorings nchuded in the analysis.

Whila it was noted that no ht should be given ko an “illegal’ activi 4
was also instructive In the range
moorngs. The rates reflacted in the “private market” are “market-based” and
hndmmmhlmmm the rates being achieved al BYC and NHYC and suppon
fhe concluded rental rates. Tha 2016 report did not include any "private market” information.


User
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


3)

4)

In the Ratio Analysis presented relied on the “resolved” rata of 14-parcant that was adopted
by the City in 2011. In & | lnoked at the ratio for other marinas along the coast and
a misch higher "market tio compared to the “resolved” rale. was reflected based on the
market research completed. Based on the markel data uncoverad, | concluded that a ratio of 20-
percent & applicable.

mWﬁpmmﬂ?ammmwlimmwuumwhmmmmm

Indiex.” tmmmaga rate at BYE was $48.65 and my survayad rate was $50.58
per Bnear fool for the " marinas (excluding Cal Rec & private clubs). The percentage
increase in average sip rates between 2016 and 2024 are B3.5% (BYB) and 95.0% (survey),
respectively.

|l'|th_E Ratio Analysis, doutling the ratio {14% v. 30%) and applying i to a nearly double average slip
rate in results in @ much higher rent per linear foot - 56 48 to 56 53 Iﬂ\r_ 14801034517 In

If the 2011 "adopted” ratio of 14-parcant is applied to the BYB average slip rent per linear fool, the
cument offshare mooring rent per linear foot would be 56.81-per linear footl per month (548 65 x0.14)
and §7.08 ($50.55 x 0.14) when applied to the survey data.

The “Tidelands Analysis — Mooring Use” used in 2016 was based on the annual 50.50 per square
foot “Residential Fier Fee” thal was adoptad by the City in 2015 (Resalution 2015-10), which was
applied to the average moodng area providad by the Newport Moering Assoctabion (NMAL The
NMA estimaiad the average mooring area based on their analysis of a singie row of moorings in the
J-Field. an assumed 40-foct mooring, with 10-feet for the bow and stern lines, and a total of 33 980
square feet (566' x 60') that accommodates 16 moarings, resulting in an average of 2,123 square
feet for a 40-foot mooring.  This resulbed in @ total monthly rent of $1,061.50, or 33 20 per LF. par
manth,

Wm.ﬂmmmﬂmm ke based on
per lineal foot” ($85.93) including all mannas in

Mewport Harbor, Using the surveyed rent per lingar foot for all slip lengthe in Newport Harbaor
{385 0LF), results in & tdeland rent of $1.83 per square fool Vwhan appied (o the NWA anaa used
in 2016, the resulting monthly rent is 53,885 (2,123 5F x 51.83), or @ manthly moaring rent of $8.08
per linaar foot.

8)

Yacht Basin, o ﬂnrq;aatnumﬂunm anmaﬂllagaMmﬂmdhAmﬁme
(nmbumu-nl,l} In addition, the Lido Yacht Anchorage offers slorage for vessels batween & and
19°. In addition to the dinghy slorage, there are 12 public docks located throughout Mewpart Harbor
that permit dinghy/fenders o tie-up. The vessals are limited 1o S-feet and the vessals are parmitted
bo te-up, depending on the location, for intenvals of.  20-mintes; 3-hours; 24-hours; and T2-hours.
Three of the public docks also provide purnp-out services. |t was noted by Harbor Department
parsonnal that the Newporl Mooring Association was provided space io tie-up a vessel (B Walker
Bay rowboat) at Marina Park to provide their members access 1o the offshore moorings.  This
program was reporiedly started in September 2021 and ended in the Fall of 2022, It was noted that
there was very itte use of the vessal,

It is recognized that there is limited dinghyfender space availabla in Newpaort Harbar, however, only
the San Diego Moaring Company (dinghy lines'beach stakes) and Newporn Harbor Yacht Club
(shose boat) include dinghyiender storage or shore-boat service fo the offshore moorings in ther
rete, The balance of the monthly mocring rental rates included in ry appraisal DO NOT include the
additional monthly cost essociated with dinghy storage al the comparabie moaring areas.

in 2016 the assignment included a “global” monthly meoring rent per linear foot that appled o al
affshore moorings. regardless of the mooring length.  This is how the offshore mooring rerts have
historcally been applied — the same rent per linear foct regardless of moaring lengih.
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includes a “tiered” analysis using e Ratio Analysis (using a ratio of
. broken down in G-fock increments.  The comparable sip rents par
linear fioot are higher for larger vessels and the analysis and resulting monthly fair market rent reflects
that the larger sips command a higher manthly rent per linear foot. In general, the slips rates for
langer vessels increased at a higher pencantage whan comipared to he slip rates for smaller vessals.
The higher percentage increase in the larger slip fees results in a higher percentage increase in the
maaring fees as the kenglh increases.

In retrospect, the 2016 analysis was influenced by and based more on harbor specfic information that
had been "adopled” or "resolved” by the Cay i tha recent past, with imited dats from the larger markest
along the the analysis is based prmarndy on market data and research from harbars along
fhe coast, with i on the 20112018 City “sdopted” or “rezolved” rates and ralios. On the
basis of the above, | conclude that the 2016 appraisal was iess a reflaction of the *markat”, whie the
2024 appraisal is based on, and more refflective of, thie cumant market condiions for offshore mooning
rentais.

Please |t me know if you have addifional comments or questions or if | can provide further darification
of the above points.

Respectiully,

g



User
Highlight

User
Highlight

User
Highlight

User
Highlight


APPRAISAL REPORT

FAIR MARKET RENT
OFF-SHORE & ON-SHORE MOORINGS
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NETZER & ASSOCIATES

Real Estate Appraisal & Consulting

January 6, 2016
File No. 2015-024

Chris Miller

Harbor Manager

City of Newport Beach, Harbor Department
829 Harbor Island Drive

Newport Beach, CA 92660

Re:  Appraisal Services
Fair Market Rent — Off-shore & On-shore Moorings
Newport Beach, California

Dear Mr. Miller:

In accordance with your request and authorization, | have undertaken the investigations and
analyses necessary to estimate the Fair Market Rent, Fee Simple Interest, in the above referenced
real property, which is the subject of this report. James B. Netzer conducted inspections of a
representative sampling the subject properties in December 2015.

Based upon the work undertaken and my experience as a real estate analyst and appraiser, | have
formed the opinion, as of the 6™ day of January 2016, subject to the Assumptions and Limiting
Conditions contained in this report, that the subject has the following market values:

Annual Fair Market Rent for the Off-shore Moorings
$32.00 to $38.00 per Linear Foot of Mooring

Annual Fair Market Rent for the On-shore Moorings
$16.00 to $19.00 per Linear Foot of Mooring

This letter of transmittal must remain attached to this appraisal report, which contains 22 pages
plus related exhibits, in order for the value opinions set forth to be considered valid.

| invite your attention to the following appraisal report which has been prepared in accordance
with the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the
Appraisal Institute and is in compliance with the USPAP standards, and sets forth the data and
analysis which my opinions are, in part, predicated. Thank you for the opportunity of serving you
in this matter.

Respectfully submitted,

James B. Netzer, MAI
California General Appraiser No. AG003143

170 E. Seventeenth Street, Suite 206 ¢ Costa Mesa, CA 92627 ¢ Phone (949) 631-6799 & FAX (949) 631-4631
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Newport Harbor Moorings
Newport Beach, California January 6, 2016 NETZER & ASSOCIATES

CERTIFICATION

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that:
The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported
assumptions and limiting conditions, and are my personal, unbiased professional
analyses, opinions and conclusions.

| have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this
report, and have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved.

| have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding
the property that is the subject of this report within the three-year period
immediately preceding acceptance of the this assignment.

| have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the
parties involved in the assignment.

My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or
reporting predetermined results.

My compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or
direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value
estimate, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent
event.

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report
has been prepared, in conformity with the Code of Professional Ethics and
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute, which
include the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.

The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute
relating to review by its duly authorized representatives.

| have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report.
In accordance with the USPAP Competency Provision, | certify that | have the
knowledge and experience to complete this assignment and have appraised this
property type before.
Disclosure of the contents of this appraisal review is governed by the Bylaws and Regulations of
the Appraisal Institute. In furtherance of the aims of the Institute to develop higher standards of
professional performance by its Members, the appraiser may be required to submit authorized
committees of said Institute copies of this report and any subsequent changes or modifications
thereof.

The Appraisal Institute conducts a voluntary program of continuing education for its designated
members. MAI's who meet the minimum standards of this program are awarded periodic
educational certification. As of the date of this report, James B. Netzer has completed the
requirements under the continuing education program of the Appraisal Institute.
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| have personally conducted an inspection of a representative sampling of the on-shore and off-
shore moorings located in Newport Harbor, which are the subject of this report. Based upon my
investigation and analysis, | have formed the opinion that the Annual Fair Market Rent for the
Newport Harbor “off-shore” moorings, as of January 6, 2016, is $32.00 to $38.00 per linear foot
of mooring.

Based upon my investigation and analysis, | have formed the opinion that the Annual Fair Market
Rent for the Newport Harbor “on-shore” moorings, as of January 6, 2016, is $16 .00 to $19.00
per linear foot of mooring.

Respectfully submitted,

James B. Netzer, MAI
California General Appraiser No. AG003143
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INTRODUCTION

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to set forth the data, analyses, and conclusions relative to my opinion
of the Current Fair Market Rent for the off-shore and on-shore moorings located upon City
managed tidelands throughout Newport Harbor. A map outlining the specific study areas under
consideration is included in the Addenda.

Function of Report

The function of this report is to estimate the Current Fair Market Rent of the off-shore and on-
shore moorings for the City’s internal purposes. The appraisal is made at the request of the City of
Newport Beach and the Harbor Commission by Chris Miller, Harbor Resources Manager, and
Michael Torres, Assistant City Attorney, who are the intended users of this report.

Date of Value

The date of value presented in this report is January 6, 2016. Given the number of properties
involved in this report not every property was inspected individually and inspections of a
representative sampling of the off-shore and on-shore moorings and the surrounding environs were
completed during December 2015.

Scope of Investigation

This report conveys the results of my investigations and analyses concerning the subject property.
The report includes a summary of the information utilized and the methodology used in
determining an estimate of value.

Interests Appraised

The interests appraised and considered in this appraisal include the Fee Simple Estate, under the
assumption that the subject moorings will eventually be leased. The term “Fee Simple Estate”/*
is defined as follows:

Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate, subject only to
the limitations imposed by the governmental powers of taxation, eminent domain,
police power, and escheat.

Market Rent Defined

The term “Market Rent”/2, as used in this report, is defined as follows:

The most probable rent that a property should bring in a competitive and open
market reflecting all conditions and restrictions of the specified lease agreement
including, term, rental adjustment and revaluation, permitted uses, use restrictions,
and expense obligations; the lessee and lessor each acting prudently and

! Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, Fourth Edition, (Chicago, 2002), p. 113.
2 Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, Fourth Edition, (Chicago, 2002), p. 176.

3
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knowledgeably, and assuming consummation of a lease contract as of a specified
date and the passing of the leasehold from the lessor to the lessee under conditions
whereby:

1. Lessee and lessor and are typically motivated;

2. Both parties are well-informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider
their own best interests;

3. Arreasonable time is allowed for exposure on the open market;

4. The rent payment is made in cash in United States dollars, and expressed as an
amount per time period consistent with the payment schedule of the lease
contract; and

5. The rental amount represents the normal consideration for the property leased
unaffected by special fees or concessions granted by any one associated with
the transaction.

Probability of Change

The opinion of value is based upon my knowledge of conditions as of the date of this report.
Constantly changing economic, social, political and physical conditions have varying effects upon
real property values. Even after the passage of a relatively short period of time, property values
may change substantially and require a review based on differing market conditions.

Legal Descriptions

| have not been provided with the legal description of the property; however, this does not impact
the analysis or conclusions presented.

Owner of Record and Property History

It is assumes that title to all of the submerged tideland properties being appraised is vested in the
City of Newport Beach or the State of California and administered by the City of Newport Beach.
Unless specifically addressed in this report, none of the properties have transferred or been
encumbered with long term leases in the recent past.

Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

The analyses and opinions in this report are subject to the following assumptions and limiting
conditions:

Specific

The Fair Market Rent analysis presented is completed on a “global” basis for each category of use
- “off-shore” and “on-shore” and applies to all of the mooring located upon the tideland properties
included in each category in Newport Harbor that are under the jurisdiction of the City of Newport
Beach. The use categories set forth in the report are assumed to be the Highest and Best Use of
the tidelands, as it is beyond the scope of this assignment to assess the Highest and Best Use of
each submerged tideland property. | reserve the right to make such adjustments to the analysis,
opinions and conclusions set forth in this report as may be required by consideration of additional
data or more reliable data that may become available.
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General

No investigation of title to the property has been made, and the premises are assumed to be free
and clear of all encumbrances, leases, use restrictions, easements, cases or actions pending, except
as specifically discussed in this report. Title is assumed to be good and marketable, and that the
property is under responsible ownership, competent management and available for its highest and
best use.

No survey, legal, or engineering analysis of this property has been made by the appraiser. | assume
no responsibility for any condition not readily observable from the customary inspection of the
premises, and that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoils or
structures that render it more of less valuable, except as noted herein.

The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements applies
only under the stated program of utilization. The separate allocation for land and buildings must
not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used.

The maps, plats, photographs, and exhibits included herein are for illustration only, as an aid in
visualizing matters discussed within the appraisal. They should not be considered as surveys nor
relied upon for any other purpose, nor should they be removed from, reproduced, or used apart
from this report.

I assume no responsibility for economic or physical factors, which may affect the opinions herein,
stated which might occur at some date after the date of value. 1 reserve the right to make such
adjustments to the analysis, opinions and conclusions set forth in this report as may be required by
consideration of additional data or more reliable data that may become available.

Information contained in this appraisal has been gathered from sources, which are believed to be
reliable, and where feasible, has been verified. No responsibility is assumed for the accuracy of
information supplied by others.

No opinion is expressed as to the value of sub-surface oil, gas, or mineral rights, or whether the
property is subject to surface entry for the exploration or removal of such materials except as
expressly stated.

The property is appraised assuming to be in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and
local environmental regulations and laws, unless otherwise stated.

The property is appraised assuming that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions
have been complied with, unless otherwise stated.

The property is appraised assuming that all required licenses, certificates of occupancy, consents,
or other legislative administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private
entity or organization have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value
estimate contained in this report is based, unless otherwise stated.

The Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") became effective January 26, 1992. The appraiser
has not made a specific compliance survey and analysis of this property to determine whether or
not it is in conformity with the various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a
compliance survey of the property, together with a detailed analysis of the requirements of the
ADA, could reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements of
the Act. If so, this fact could have a negative effect upon the value of the property. Since the
appraiser has no direct evidence relating to this issue, possible noncompliance with the
requirements of the ADA in estimating the value of the property has not been considered.
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Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous material, which may or may not
be present on the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no knowledge of
the existence of such materials on the property. The appraiser, however, is not qualified to detect
such substances. The presence of substances such as asbestos, urea formaldehyde foam insulation,
or other potentially hazardous materials may affect the value of the property. The value estimate
is predicated on the assumption that there is no material on or in the property that would cause a
loss in value. No responsibility is assumed for any such condition, or for any expertise or
engineering knowledge required to discover them. The client is urged to retain an expert in this
field, if desired. If the client is aware or becomes aware of any conditions, the appraiser should be
consulted immediately to assess the impact, if any, upon the market value.

The appraiser reserves the right to make such adjustments to the valuation herein reported, as may
be required by consideration of additional data or more reliable data that may become available.

No opinion is intended to be expressed, or implied, for matters, which require legal expertise or
specialized investigation or knowledge beyond that customarily employed by real estate
appraisers.

I shall not be required, by reason of this appraisal, to give testimony or to be in attendance in court
or any governmental or other hearing with reference to the property without prior arrangements
having first been made with me relative to such additional employment.

Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. It may
not be used for any purpose by any person other than the party to whom it is addressed without the
written consent of the appraiser. | do not authorize out of context quoting, or partial reprinting of
the report. In the event the report is placed in the hands of a third party, it is requested that such
party be made cognizant of any and all limiting conditions resulting in the basis of my employment
and the discussions thereto, as well as those set forth herein.

The submission of this report constitutes the completion of the service authorized. It is submitted
upon the condition that the client will provide the appraiser customary compensation relative to
any subsequent required deposition, conferences, additional preparation or testimony.

The appraiser respectfully requests that neither all nor part of the contents of this report shall be
disseminated to the public through advertisement, public relations, news, sales, or other media,
without written consent and approval of the author, particularly the valuation conclusions, the
identity of the appraiser, or any reference to the Appraisal Institute or the MAI designation.

In the event the appraiser is subpoenaed for a deposition, judicial or administrative proceeding,
and is ordered to produce his appraisal report and file, the appraiser will immediately notify the
employer.

It shall be the responsibility of the employer to obtain a protective order.

The liability of Netzer & Associates and the appraiser responsible for this report is limited to the
client only and to the fee actually received by the appraiser. Further, there is no accountability,
obligation or liability to any third party. If this report is placed in the hands of anyone other than
the client, the client shall make such party aware of all limiting conditions and assumptions of the
assignment and related discussions. The appraiser is in no way responsible for any costs incurred
to discover or correct any deficiencies of any type present to the property -- physical, financial,
and/or legal.

It is agreed that the appraiser is not a necessary party in any inquiry or judicial proceedings. If
called upon to testify in any litigation or other proceeding arising out the duties in this matter, and
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is compelled to incur court costs, attorney's fees or other out-of-pocket expenses in connection
with court proceedings, such costs or expenses, together with the appraisers' usual hourly per diem
applicable for study, preparation, testimony or travel will be paid by the party (or parties) who acts
to bring any suit requiring a judicial proceeding.

Any dispute or claim made with respect to this report shall be submitted to and resolved in
accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association for arbitration, and the decision
of the Association shall be binding. All appraisal services, pursuant to this report, shall be deemed
to be contracted for and rendered in Orange County, California, and any arbitration or judicial
proceedings shall take place in Orange County, California.

The signatory of this appraisal report is a member of the Appraisal Institute. The Bylaws and
Regulations of the Institute require each member to control the use and distribution of each
appraisal report signed by such member. Therefore, except as hereinafter provided, the party for
whom this appraisal report was prepared may not distribute copies of this appraisal report, in its
entirety, without the written consent of the signatory of this report. The report and parts thereof
and any additional material submitted, may not be used in any prospectus or printed material used
in conjunction with the sale of securities or participation interests in any Public Offering as defined
under US Security laws. Further, neither all nor any part of this appraisal report shall be
disseminated to the general public by the use of advertising media, public relations media, news
media, sales media, or other media for public communication without the prior written consent of
the signatory of this appraisal report.

AREA DESCRIPTION

Newport Harbor is the focal point of the incorporated city of Newport Beach, which is located in
coastal Orange County approximately 10 miles southwest of the Santa Ana Civic Center. The
coastal city was incorporated on September 1, 1906. The City reports an estimated population of
87,249 persons as of 2015, an increase from 85,186 persons as of the 2010 Census. According to
the City Chamber of Commerce, the influx of the tourist population during the summer months
increases the population to over 100,000 persons.

Newport Beach is located 85 miles north of San Diego, 14 miles south of Long Beach and 50 miles
from downtown Los Angeles. The City's elevation ranges from sea level to 691 feet. With the
annexation of Newport Coast, the City is comprised of approximately 25 square miles of land area,
approximately 25.5 square miles bay, harbor and ocean waters for a total area of approximately
50.5 square miles. The city has 6.1 miles of ocean frontage and 25.4 miles of harbor frontage.
Newport Harbor is one of the largest pleasure craft harbors on the West Coast and is home to
approximately 9,900 boats, 1,230 piers, 2,330 commercial slips and side ties and 1,235 moorings.

Newport Harbor is formed by the Balboa Peninsula on south and the mainland on the north and
extends inland to Jamboree Road and the north end of the Upper Newport Bay (Back Bay). The
primary focus of this assignment is the Lower Newport Bay, which is generally defined as the
water area south of the Coast Highway Bridge near the intersection of Coast Highway and Dover
Drive. Traditionally, most of the boating activity within the harbor is concentrated in the Lower
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Bay as most of the Back Bay is an ecological preserve with limited boating facilities (Newport
Dunes, Newport Aquatic Center, U.C.l. Rowing base, Bayside Village and Dover Shores). The
Balboa Peninsula consists of all the contiguous land east of 45! Street extending to Peninsula Point
and the jetty at the mouth of Newport Harbor. The south side of the Peninsula consists of sandy
beaches on the Pacific Ocean while the north side of the Peninsula forms the southern perimeter
of Newport Harbor.

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

"Highest and Best Use" is an appraisal concept which is defined in The Dictionary of Real Estate
Appraisal, Third Edition, as follows:

The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved property,
which is physically possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and that
results in the highest value. The four criteria that must be met are legal
permissibility, physical possibility, financial feasibility, and maximum profitability.

Inherent in this definition are several conditions, which must be satisfied by the existing or
proposed use in order to develop the maximum value. The use must be physically possible for the
site. Soil condition, topography, size and shape must be compatible with the proposed use. The
use must be legally permissible in that it must conform to current or projected zoning. Similarly,
the use must not be precluded by deed restrictions or other encumbrances, which may limit
potential uses. Also, the use must be economically feasible. The market should indicate sufficient
economic demand so as to support a proposed use of the site. Among the various uses that meet
the above criteria, the use which creates the greatest rate of return and maximum productivity is
considered to be the highest and best use of the site.

Highest and Best Use Criteria - As If Vacant/As-Improved

A complete Highest and Best Use study of the submerged tidelands is beyond the scope of this
assignment. The analysis presented is on a “global” basis and it is a Specific assumption of the
report that the Highest and Best Use of the tidelands properties “as if vacant” and “as improved”

is for either “off-shore” or “on-shore” moorings.
APPRAISAL PROCEDURES

The appraisal of real property generally involves one, two or three of the conventional approaches
to value, and is based upon consideration of market-derived data, the experience of the appraiser,
and opinions of other informed market participants.

Valuation Approaches

Three basic approaches to value are available to the appraiser: the Cost Approach, the Income
Approach, and the Direct, or Sales Comparison Approach.
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Cost Approach

This approach entails the preparation of a replacement or reproduction cost estimate
of the subject property improvements new (maintaining comparable quality and
utility) and then deducting for losses in value sustained through age, wear and tear,
functionally obsolescent features, and economic factors affecting the property. The
land value is then added to the depreciated cost along with an allowance for
entrepreneurial profit to arrive at a value estimate.

Income Approach

This approach is based upon the theory that the value of property tends to be set by
the net income that is to be realized by the owner. Itis, in effect, the capitalization
of expected future income into a present worth estimate. This approach requires an
estimate of potential gross income, an analysis of all expense items, the selection
of a capitalization rate, and finally, the processing of the net income stream into a
value estimate.

Sales Comparison Approach

This approach is based upon the principle that the value of a property tends to be
set by the price at which comparable properties have recently been sold or for which
they were acquired. This approach requires a detailed comparison of sales of
comparable properties with the subject property.

Approaches Used in the Valuation of the Subject

The Sales (or Lease) Comparison Approach is a process of comparing lease rates paid for similar
properties, prices asked by owners, and offers made by prospective Lessees. The approach
presents good evidence of value because it represents the actions of buyers and sellers, or in the
case of leased properties Lessee’s and Lessor’s. The Sales (or Lease) Comparison Approach is
based on the principle of substitution, which implies "the value of a property tends to be set by the
price that would be paid to acquire a substitute property of similar utility and desirability within a
reasonable amount of time."/3 Given the preceding discussion, and the interactions of market
participants, the Sales (Lease) Comparison Approach is the most relevant approach in estimating
Market Rent and is used in conjunction with three other methodologies.

FAIR MARKET RENT ANALYSIS
Introduction

As noted in the Introduction, the purpose and function of this report is to estimate the Current Fair
Market Rent of the “off-shore” and “on-shore” moorings over the tidelands located throughout
Newport Harbor. There are approximately 1,235 on-shore and off-shore moorings in Newport
Harbor. The off-shore moorings are located at ten locations throughout the harbor with two
additional locations located by the Newport Harbor Yacht Club and the Balboa Yacht Club. These

3Appraisal Institute, The Appraisal of Real Estate, Eleventh Edition, (Chicago, 196), p.398.
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two locations are for the exclusive use of the yacht club membership. The on-shore moorings are
located surrounding Balboa Island and Newport Island, on sections of both the north and south
sides of Lido Isle and along various sections of the bay side of the peninsula from Peninsula Point
to 20" Street. A map showing the location of the moorings is included on the facing page.

Comparable Rentals Analysis

The following table is a summary of the mooring information uncovered that is judged to be
relevant to the Newport Harbor moorings.

MARKET RENT SURVEY - OFF-SHORE MOORINGS
DECEMBER 2015

Data No. Total Vessel Total Monthly Rent | Equipment
Name Moorings Length Monthly | $/Linear Ft.* | Maintenance
Location % Occupied (LF) Rent (mooring LF) Cost
1/
Balboa Yacht Club 70 Various Varies $15.05 Tenant
1801 Bayside Drive 100% 30° $451.50 25% discount
Corona del Mar (Newport Harbor) double mooring
2/
San Diego Mooring Co.
Shelter Island Roadstead Combined 19°- 54° $128.17 $2.37 Tenant
America’s Cup Harbor, rows B-J 462 Under 30° | $147.57 $4.92
America’s Cup Harbor, rows L-V 100% w/ 30°- 65’ $157.07 $2.42
Laurel Street Roadstead Wait list 19°- 54’ $138.02 $2.56
Laurel Street Mediterranean Under 35> | $147.57 $4.22
Laurel Street Dual Point 19’- 35’ $147.57 $4.22
Bay Bridge Roadstead (Coronado) 19°- 54’ $128.17 $2.37
San Diego Harbor

*Based on maximum length of mooring as moorings are leased based on maximum length not vessel length.

The information included in the table above is judged to be most comparable to the subject. Other
mooring rental were uncovered that are not considered comparable to the subject due to locational
factors (Pillar Point, Moss Landing, Monterey, Morro Bay & Point San Luis), ownership interests
that permit transfers (Avalon) or the parties did not respond to my request for information
(Newport Harbor Yacht Club & Lido Isle Community Association). In addition, temporary and
transitory mooring rates were not taken into consideration.

The Balboa Yacht Club has a total of 70 moorings in the basin in front of the Yacht Club. The
moorings are available to the membership and not offered to the general public (they did offer
some to members of Bahia Corinthian YC). The membership is a limited market and the
demographic profile of the BYC membership likely differs from the demographic of the general
public that is renting moorings in the open market. The monthly lease rate is $15.05 per linear
foot for all mooring lengths and they have a limited number of “double” moorings that they offer
at a 25-percent discount. The yacht club provides a shore boat daily from 8:00 until dusk and they

10
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have limited dinghy storage. The tenant is responsible for all maintenance “above the chain”
(swivel, shackle, lines, etc...) and the club offers maintenance services for a fee or the tenant can
hire their own contractor. It should be noted that when I interviewed this club in September 2006
the reported rate was $7.25 per linear foot with the same level of services and maintenance. The
rent has been increased a total of 107.6-percent between September 2006 and December 2015. The
information for BY C is presented for informational purposes as the moorings are general restricted
to members and not available to the general public and the yacht club provides a shore boat.

The San Diego Mooring Co. has four mooring fields in San Diego Harbor with a total of 462
mooring balls. They report a 100-percent occupancy, with the exception of moorings that are
being serviced or have a derelict vessel, and a wait list for an available mooring. The moorings in
each of the mooring fields rent for the same monthly rent regardless of vessel length vessel and
the table above reflects the rent per linear foot of the maximum mooring length. As an example,
all of the moorings at Shelter Island Roadstead are rented for $128.17 per month and will
accommodate vessels between 19- and 54-feet (LOA), which reflects a monthly rent per linear
foot of $2.37 ($128.17/mo. -:- 54”) for a 54-foot mooring. A second example of the rent per linear
foot figure is America’s Cup Harbor Rows B-J. These mooring are quoted as accommodating
vessels “under 30°” and rent for $147.57 per month, or $4.92 per linear foot ($147.55 -:- 30°) of
mooring length, regardless of the vessel length. The operator reported that they complete all of
the maintenance and that the tenant is billed for both the tackle and the services. The Shelter Island
and Bay Bridge mooring fields have open dinghy storage on chains (no dinghy racks) at nearby
public beach parks, Shoreline Park & Coronado Tidelands Park, respectively. The remaining
mooring fields have access to public dinghy docks. Parking is only provided at Shelter Island (a
municipal lot) and long-term parking (more than 2 hours or overnight) is not provided at any of
the locations. Parking at these locations is either on public streets in the surrounding
neighborhoods or paid parking in private or municipal lots. The operator noted that the rental rates
are dictated by the Unified Port of San Diego and the last increase was in 2007. It was further
reported that they have applied to the Port for a rent increase; however, the amount of the increase
requested was not disclosed and it was noted that the Port is updating its “Benchmark Study of
Fees”. It should be noted that San Diego Harbor generally has lower slip fees relative to Newport
Harbor and an adjustment for “location” is warranted. As an example, a 30-slip in America’s Cup
Harbor was reported by the operator to rent for $19.50 per linear foot, which compares the Newport
Harbor 2015 “Marina Index” (discussed below) of $25.92 per linear foot (a difference of $6.42/LF)
for a similar 30-foot slip. This suggests that the mooring fees being paid in San Diego warrant an
upward adjustment in the range of 33-percent ($6.42 -:- $19.50) should be applied to the San Diego
mooring rates. After considering the “location” adjustment, the comparable mooring rates in San
Diego Harbor would range from approximately $3.15 ($2.37 x 1.33) to $6.50 ($4.92 x 1.33) per
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linear foot on a monthly basis, and $37.80 to $78.00 per linear foot annually. This does not take
into consideration the availability of dinghy storage, which will be addressed in the Reconciliation.

CPI Analysis

A second methodology is to utilize the change in the Consumer Price Index and apply it to the
“market” lease rates that were previously established by the City. On the basis of my research, the
City set the mooring rates at $6.00 per linear foot in 1976 and the rates were reset at $20.00 per
linear foot in 1995 by Resolution No. 95-77. The following reflects current rent per linear foot
based on the change in the CPI over the two time periods.

CPI11976: 59.6

CP11995: 154.6

CPI1 2015 (11/15):  245.711

1976 to 2015: 245.711 -:- 59.6 x $6.00/LF = $24.74/LF
1996 to 2015: 245.711 -:- 154.6 x $20.00/LF = $31.79/LF

The CPI analysis indicates that the current rent should be between $25.00 and $32.00 per linear
foot, and no adjustment for dinghy storage is warranted. This analysis assumes that the rent
established in both 1976 and 1995 reflects “Fair Market Rent” and that the change in the CPI
reflects the change in the market conditions for moorings in Newport Harbor between these dates
and the current date. The change in the CPI is typically applied on an annualized basis over the
term of a lease, with a Fair Market Rent adjustment applied at the exercise of a lease option or the
commencement of a new lease to reflect the change in market conditions. The application of the
CPI method over a long period reflects general price trends, but does not take into consideration
changes in market conditions for a specific good or service within a market area. As reflected in
the mooring rates charged at the Balboa Yacht Club in September 2006 ($7.25/LF) compared to
the current (December 2015) rate ($15.05/LF) the rent increased a total of 107.6-percent. This
compares to a change in the CPI of 15.41-percent (245.711 -:- 212.9) between September 2006
(212.9) and November 2015 (245.711), which is the most recent figure available.

The CPI analysis indicates that the current annual Fair Market Rent for the moorings in Newport
Harbor is between $25.00 and $32.00 per linear foot; however, the figure based on the trending of
the 1995 figure is judged to be a more reliable measure.

“Ratio” Analysis

One measure of estimating the market rent for moorings is to compare mooring rents to similar
slip rents. This provides a ratio of the “mooring” rents as compared to “slip” rents in the same
market, which is an option for a boat owner. Several harbors along the California coast have
marinas and mooring fields that are owned and managed by the municipality. These harbors reflect
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a price per linear foot mooring to slip ratio (mooring $/LF -:- slip $/LF) between approximately
38- and 92-percent. These include: Pillar Point (+46%); Monterrey (+38%) and Morro Bay
(+92%). The ratio is based on monthly rent per linear foot for the mooring length compared to a
similar length slip. These harbors have different user profiles compared to Newport Harbor and
are not judged to be reflective of the ratio applicable to this analysis.

In San Diego Harbor, the same company manages both Point Loma Marina and the America’s Cup
Harbor mooring field, which are both located in America’s Cup Harbor. The rate for a 30-foot
mooring is $147.57 per month, or $4.92 per linear foot ($147.57 -:- 30 LF). The monthly rent for
a 30-foot slip in the marina is $19.50 per linear foot. The mooring to slip ratio in America’s Cup
Harbor is 25.2-percent, which is calculated as follows:

Monthly Mooring Rent - $/LF: $ 4.92
Monthly Slip Rent - $/LF: --$19.50
Mooring to Slip Ratio: 0.252

Of the marinas surveyed, this ratio appears to be the most reliable as both the moorings and slips
are managed by the same company and have a similar location and access to similar amenities.
This ratio reflects that there is a dinghy dock available to the tenants of the mooring field, which
is not provided in Newport Harbor and the cost of dinghy storage must be factored into the analysis.

As a point of reference, in 2011 the City of Newport Beach resolved that the “fair market value”
of off-shore moorings within Newport Harbor is 14-percent of a “Newport Harbor Marina Index”.
The “Marina Index” is based on a the average slip rate ($/LF) for seven marinas in Newport
Harbor, including: Ardell; Newport Dunes Marina; Harbor Marina; Lido Yacht Anchorage; Port
Calypso; Newport Marina (formerly Swales); and Bayside Village Marina. The survey is based
on the “average” rent per linear foot from these seven marinas using 5-foot slip intervals from 20-
feet to 60-feet. The 2015 “Average Skip Rate” in Newport is $32.99/LF (survey included in
Addenda). Applying the City’s 14-percent ratio to this figure results in a monthly mooring rate of
$4.62 per linear foot, or $55.44 per annum.

There are several privately operated marinas throughout Newport Harbor and they generally reflect
different levels of quality and condition and mix of slips and amenities. City of Newport
administers the Balboa Yacht Basin (BYB) and the mooring fields and the Balboa Yacht Basin is
judged to be relatively “average” in terms of its overall quality, condition and amenities. The
published monthly slip fees (included in Addenda) for the Balboa Yacht Basin range from $21.44
per linear foot (20’ slip) to $44.99 for a 75’ slip. For the ratio analysis, I will use the rate for a 31’
slip with a rate of $26.51/LF. In the analysis, | will also use the average slip fee for a 30-foot slip
in Newport Harbor based on the 2015 “Marina Index”, which is $25.92/LF. Assuming a 25-
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percent mooring rate to slip rate ratio, the Fair Market Rent for the moorings in Newport Harbor
is calculated as follows:

Marina BYB Index

Monthly Slip Rent - $/LF: $26.51 $25.92
Mooring/Slip Ratio: x 0.25 x 0.25
Monthly Mooring Rent - $/LF: $6.63 $6.48

Based on the market data uncovered, the “Ratio” analysis, excluding an adjustment for dinghy
storage, indicates that the monthly Fair Market Rent for the moorings in Newport Harbor is
between $6.48 and $6.63 per linear foot, which equates to an annual range from approximately
$77.76 to $79.56 per linear foot, excluding the adjustment for dinghy storage. The adjustment for
dinghy storage will be included in the Reconciliation section.

Tideland Analysis — Mooring Use

The State Lands Commission has jurisdiction the state’s tidelands and submerged lands along
the coastline extending from the shoreline out to three miles off-shore. They use a methodology
to estimate tidelands rent for the “recreational” use of tidelands associated with residential upland
properties. The methodology that uses an “average” berth size (length), multiplied by the average
berth rate per linear foot, which results in the average “berthing fee” per month (then it is
annualized). The annualized “berthing fee” is converted to an absolute tidelands rent (for the
square footage of tideland required to support a “typical” berth) at a 5.0-percent rate of return. The
absolute tidelands rent is then divided by the square footage of tideland required to support the
typical berth, which results in the rent per square foot for the tidelands area. The rent per square
foot is then applied to the applicable tideland area. They do not have a similar procedure for
mooring fields, but the methodology used in this report is based on the premise that the tidelands
encumbered by a mooring and associated rights are no longer available for “public use” and the
rent for the tidelands is converted to a rent per linear foot of mooring.

In 2015 the City of Newport (Resolution 2015-10) established a “Residential Pier Fee” of $0.50
per square foot of tidelands with an annual adjustment commencing in 2018 that is the lesser of
the change in CPI or 2-percent. An analysis similar to the State Lands Commission methodology
that is applicable to the mooring fields is presented below. The analysis is completed using a
tidelands rent of $0.50 per square foot of tidelands, which is applied to the tidelands area
encumbered by the mooring and then converted it to a rent per linear foot of the mooring.

The first step of this analysis is to establish the average tidelands area that a mooring occupies.
On the basis of information provided by the City, the Newport Mooring Association (NMA)

completed this analysis based on a row of moorings in the “J Field”. The row used in the NMA
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analysis is 566-feet long and is occupied by 16 moorings that are assumed to be 40-feet in length.
The analysis assumes there is 10-feet to the fore and aft of the mooring; therefore, each mooring
is assumed to encumber tidelands with a length of 60-feet. This mooring row occupies a total of
33,960 square feet of tidelands (566’ x 60°), suggesting that each 40-foot mooring encumbers a
total of 2,123 square feet of tidelands (33,960 Sq.Ft. -:- 16 moorings). When the “Residential
Pier Fee” is applied to this square footage the total rent is $1,061.50 (2,123 Sq.Ft. x $0.50/Sq.Ft.),
which equates to $26.53 per linear foot annually, assuming a 40-foot mooring ($1,061.50 -:- 40
LF).

Adjustment for Dinghy Storage

As noted above, the City does not provide dinghy storage for the moorings, which is a cost that
must be taken into consideration in the analysis as only the CPI analysis takes dinghy storage into
consideration.

In 2015, the City of Newport Beach adopted a Fair Market Rent for dinghy storage (8 racks) at the
Balboa Yacht Basin at $25.00 per month. These racks provide easy access to mooring field D.
The City has 12 storage racks at the recently completed Marina Park that are not on the market,
but the City will be sending notices to interested parties in the near future. It was reported that
they will be offered via a lottery and the monthly rent is $25.00. It was noted that there was
approximately 50 respondents for the lottery at the Balboa Yacht Basin and they expect a similar
response to the Marina Park lottery. The location of Marina Park is proximate to mooring fields
F, H, Jand K.

In addition to the City and the yacht clubs, there are limited areas that provided dinghy storage in
Newport Harbor. In the Upper Newport Bay the Newport Dunes Marina has dinghy racks that
rent for $25.00 per month. Bayside Village Marina provides dry storage of dinghies up to 12-feet
at a rate of $8.00 per linear foot, or 8$80.00 per month for a 10-foot dinghy. Both of these marinas
are behind the Coast Highway Bridge and are distant from the mooring fields.

The American Legion Yacht Club has 24 dinghy racks that one source reported rent for $35.00 per
month and a second reported a rate of $45.00 per month and both sources reported a wait list.
These racks are for members only and not available to the general public. They are in close
proximity to the F, H, J and K fields.

In an analysis completed by the Newport Mooring Association, they suggest that storage at private
pier is in the range of $50 to $100 per month. This appears to be based on their member input.

Given the limited number of available dinghy racks in the harbor that are proximate to the mooring
fields and the apparent demand for the limited supply, | have concluded that an adjustment of
$50.00 per month for dinghy storage is appropriate. The $50.00 per month adjustment equates to

15



Newport Harbor Moorings
Newport Beach, California January 6, 2016 NETZER & ASSOCIATES

$1.67 per linear foot per month for a 30-foot mooring, which is rounded to $20.00 per linear foot
annually.

RECONCILIATION

The final step of the appraisal process is to reconcile the value conclusions indicated by the
methods utilized in formulating the Fair Mark Rent estimate. The annual Fair Market Rent Values
indicated for the subject moorings, as of the date of value, are as follows:

Comparable Rentals Approach: $37.80 - $78.00
$57.90 average
CPI Analysis Approach: $26.00 - $32.00
Ratio Approach $77.76 - $79.56
Tidelands Approach $26.53

As previously noted, the figures above do not include an adjustment for the lack of dinghy storage
and an adjustment to the Comparable Rentals and Ratio approaches is warranted. The CPI
approach is a trending of the historic rates in Newport Harbor and the Tidelands Approach takes
into consideration the tidelands rent; therefore, no adjustment for dinghy storage is warranted.

The concluded adjustment of $20.00 per linear foot annually for the lack of dinghy storage was
estimated in a previous section. The following table is a summary of the adjustment to the four

approaches.

Valuation Unadjusted Dinghy Adjusted

Approach Annual $/LF - Adjustment = Annual $/LF

Comparable Rentals $37.80 - $78.00 - $20.00 =  $17.80 - $58.00
$57.90 average - $20.00 =  $37.90 average

CPI Analysis $25.00 - $32.00 - N.A. = $25.00 - $32.00

Ratio Analysis $77.76 - $79.56 - $20.00 =  $57.76 - $59.56

Tidelands $26.53 - N.A. = $26.53

After adjusting for dinghy storage, the indicated annual Fair Market Rent ranges for $17.80 to
$59.56 per linear foot.

The reconciliation process involves a thorough review of the valuation process and supporting data
used in each of the valuation approaches. In this step of the appraisal process, | have considered
the alternative value indications to arrive at a final rent estimate. The greatest weight is given to
that approach in which there is a sufficient quantity of data, with a minimum of assumptions and
maximum reliability.

In the Comparable Rentals (Rent Comparison) the most relevant data was included. | considered
differences in location, services provided and access to dingy storage. The mooring rates were
analyzed based on a price per linear foot assuming the maximum vessel length as all of the
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
mooring rental range.

The CPI analysis is a trending of the rental rates established at various times (1975 & 1995) for
the subject moorings. It is based on the assumption that the rental rates in the base years (1975 &
1995) are market based and that the change in CPI reflects the change in market conditions for
moorings in Newport Harbor. The CPI is typically included as an annual adjustment to a lease,
with periodic “market rent” adjustments applied to account for changes in market conditions as
opposed to a trending of values based on a basket of goods. On the basis of my research, the 1995
figure was determined to be “Fair Market Rent” and is judged to be a more reliable indicator than
the 1975 figure. The change in mooring rates at BYC between 2006 and 2015 suggests that the
change in CPIl may understate the change in market conditions for moorings in Newport Harbor.
The CPI analysis using the rent established in 1995 is judged to be more reliable than the 1975
figure and helps define the lower limit of the Fair Market Rent range.

The Ratio analysis attempts to estimate the market rent for moorings as compared to the rent for
similar slip spaces in the same marina or harbor. As shown in the analysis, the ratio can vary
dramatically (25% to 92%) and, while a potential renter could take this into consideration (cost of
a slip v. cost of a mooring), it is not judged to be a reliable measure of Fair Market Rent. This
analysis is given little weight in the final reconciliation.

The Tidelands analysis is based on the premise that the Fair Market Rent for an individual mooring
is tied to the market rent for the encumbered tidelands. This approach has its merits and the
information and assumptions used in the analysis are well supported; however, the typical user of
an individual mooring would not complete this analysis to determine market rent. In the final
reconciliation this approach is given secondary emphasis.

Given the indications from the four approaches utilized, and the quality and quantity of the
available market data, | have given each approach some consideration with primary emphasis
placed on the Comparable Rental and CPI approaches. Based on my analysis of the market data
uncovered, | have concluded that the subject off-shore moorings have an Annual Fair Market Rent,
as of January 6, 2016, of: $32.00 to $38.00 per Linear Foot of Mooring.

The above discussion relates to the off-shore moorings throughout Newport Harbor. There is a
limited number of on-shore moorings and I did not uncover any information regarding lease rates
for on-shore moorings at other harbors. The maximum vessel length is limited on the on-shore
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moorings relative to the off-shore moorings. Historically, the on-shore moorings in Newport
Harbor have rented for half of the rate of the off-shore moorings. On this basis, I have concluded
that the on-shore moorings have an Annual Fair Market Rent, as of January 6, 2016, of: $16.00 to
$19.00 per Linear Foot of Mooring.
VALUATION

Based upon the work undertaken, and my experience as a real estate analyst and appraiser, | have
formed the opinion, as of the 6™ day of January 2016, subject to the Assumptions and Limiting
Conditions contained in this report, that the public moorings in Newport Harbor have the following
Fair Market Rental values:

Annual Fair Market Rent for the Off-shore Moorings
$32.00 to $38.00 per Linear Foot of Mooring

Annual Fair Market Rent for the On-shore Moorings
$16.00 to $19.00 per Linear Foot of Mooring
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ADDENDA
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Mooring Map
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Slip Survey & Rate Sheet
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CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH

HARRBROR RESOWINCES

Balboa Yacht Basin
g9 Harhor sland Drive
Newport Beach, CA %2660

Marina Manager: Basin Marine, Dave New
(949) 673-0360

Effective July 1, 2015

Slip Length 2015 Slip Rate
" iper foot, per month)
20° Slip 5$21.44
| 25'Shp 33 |
31' Slip _ 526.51
32" Slip $27.00
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The rate charged shall be Ihe greater of the slip or the bost. If the boat s
longer than the siip it is in. the charge shall be based on the slip price plus the
exira lineal fesl of the boal, al thalf same aiip rate.

Garages $341.07 per month

Apariments $2,314.47 per month {Aparimianl #6)
£2 6571 84 per month (Apartmenis #5 & #7)

www, newportbeachea.poviharborresourees
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QUALIFICATIONS
of
James B. Netzer, MAI

Professional Background

Prior to forming Netzer & Associates, he was associated for over three years with Urban Pacific
Services Corp. Actively engaged as a real estate analyst, appraiser and consultant since 1987.
Principal of the appraisal and consulting firm of Netzer & Associates with offices at:

170 E. Seventeenth Street, Suite 206
Costa Mesa, California 92627

Educational Activities

Bachelor of Arts in Liberal Studies with a Concentration in Economics, California State University,
Long Beach, 1986.

Has successfully completed the following courses sponsored by the American Institute of Real
Estate Appraisers and the Appraisal Institute:

A.l.LR.E.A Course 1A-1: Principles of Real Estate Appraisal

A.l.LR.E.A Course 1A-2: Basic Valuation Procedures

A.l.R.E.A Course 1B-A: Capitalization Theory and Techniques, Part A
A.l.R.E.A Course 1B-B: Capitalization Theory and Techniques, Part B
A.l.LR.E.A Course SPP: Standards of Professional Practice

A.l. Course 2-1: Case Studies in Real Estate Valuation

A.l. Course 540: Report Writing and Valuation Analysis

A.l. Course 550: Advanced Applications

Has successfully completed numerous classes and seminars to meet the continuing education
requirements of Appraisal Institute, Office of Real Estate Appraisers and Department of Real
Estate.

Professional Affiliations & State Licenses

Member of the Appraisal Institute - MAI Designation
State of California - Certified General Real Estate Appraiser - Certificate No. AG003143
State of California - Real Estate Broker License - License No. 01185682

Court Qualification

Qualified as an expert witness in the Superior Courts of Orange, Los Angeles and San Diego
Counties, U.S. Bankruptcy Court — Los Angeles Division.

Teaching Experience




Orange Coast College - Adjunct Professor (retired) - Business 140 "Real Estate Appraisal
Principles™

Seminar & Panel Presentations

Los Angeles County Bar Association — Real Property Division: Overholtzer Overhauled, An Update
on Damages, Appraisals and Interim Loss under Title Insurance Policies, September 2013

Scope of Experience

During the period in which Mr. Netzer has been engaged as a real estate appraiser and analyst, he
has been involved in most aspects of the field having completed assignments for multiple purposes,
including: estate planning; bankruptcy; conflict-of-interest analysis (Political Reform Act of 1974);
construction defects litigation; soil subsidence; dissolution of marriage; ground lease re-valuation;
leasehold & sub-leasehold valuation; property tax appeals; lease and ground lease arbitration;
easement/access/encroachment/title disputes (based on Overholtzer v. Northern Counties Title);
soils contamination litigation; mortgage lending; construction financing; portfolio valuation; market
and feasibility analysis; fractional interest valuation; and, due diligence.

He has experience appraising the following property types:

Vacant Land

Residential lots, sub-division sites, condominium sites, commercial and industrial sites,
mountainous acreage, raw acreage, mitigation land (Delhi Sands Flower Loving Fly, Stephens
Kangaroo Rat & Open Space).

Residential

Single-family residences, condominiums, townhomes, planned unit developments, multi-family
units, apartment buildings, mobile home parks, proposed and existing sub-divisions.

Commercial

Office buildings, medical office buildings, restaurant buildings, retail centers, neighborhood
shopping centers, community centers, commerce centers, congregate care facilities, parking
structures, golf courses, mixed-use developments, auto dealerships, gas stations.

Industrial

Manufacturing and warehouse buildings, distribution facilities, multi-tenant buildings, mini-storage
facilities.

Special Use

Commercial and residential tidelands, boat harbors, auto ferry, bait barge, marina, gas docks,
mooring fields, commercial piers, civic center, fire stations, police stations, emergency
communication facilities, temporary construction easements, steel fabricating plant, car wash
facilities.

Public Service



Newport Aquatic Center, Newport Beach — Board of Directors — Chairman, Budget Committee



ATTORNEYS, LAW FIRMS & ACCOUNTANTS

Barton Klugman & Oetting

Boss Law Firm APLC

Browne & Woods LLP

Bryan Cave LLP

Burd & Naylor

Davis Law APC

Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher

Goldstein & Ward

Greines, Martin, Stein & Richland LLC
Harbin & McCarron

Hart, King & Coldren

Jeffer, Mangels, Butler & Marmaro LLP
Landels, Ripley & Diamond

Larsen & Associates

Latham & Watkins

Leech & Associates

Law Offices of Michael Leight

Loeb & Loeb, LLC

LENDING INSTITUTIONS

Bank Midwest, N.A.

Bank of America

Bankers Mutual (Berkshire Mortgage)
California Federal Bank

Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.

Credit Suisse

Comerica Bank

Escondido National Bank

GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

City of Costa Mesa

City of Glendora

City of Huntington Beach

City of Long Beach — Tidelands CID
City of Newport Beach

GENERAL CLIENTS

AMRESCO Management, Inc.
Arnold Construction

The Boy's Republic

Capital Guardian Trust
Chicago Title Company
Continental Mobile Housing
Decron Management
Environmental Nature Center
Fidelity National Title

First American Title Insurance
Hamilton Company

Heritage Point Senior Living
Hornblower Cruises

Kinder Morgan Energy Partners
Lee & Associates

PARTIAL LIST OF CLIENTS

Lynberg & Watkins

Manning & Kass, Ellrod, Ramirez, Trester
McDermott, Will & Emory

Law Offices of Erik B. Michelsen

Millar, Hodges & Bemis

Palmieri, Tyler, Wiener, Wilhelm & Waldron
Richard Shaffer (Court Appointed Receiver)
Rubin & Eagan

Samuels, Green & Steel, LLP

Severson & Werson

Shulman Bunn LLP

Songstad, Randall, Coffee & Humphrey
Stradling, Yocca, Carlson & Rauth

Turner & Reynolds

Richard Wildman, Attorney at Law

Wolf & Richards

Wright Ford Browning & Young

Wynne, Spiegel & Itkin

GE Capital Investment Advisors
Hawthorne Savings

Huntington National Bank
Merrill Lynch Credit Corporation
Park View Mortgage

Strategic Mortgage Services
Tokai Bank

Wells Fargo Bank

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
Orange County — Dana Point Harbor
Resolution Trust Corporation (RTC)
Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC)

Newport Sports Collection Foundation
North American Title Insurance Company\
O.C. Interfaith Shelter

Old Republic Title

Pulte Home Corporation

S & A Properties

S & S Construction/Shappell Industries
St. Clair Company LLC

Santa Fe Pacific Pipeline Partners, L.P.
Simplex Realty

Staples, Inc.

State Farm Insurance

Stewart Title Guaranty Company
Texaco Refining & Marketing, Inc.
Westcor Land Title Insurance Company
Western National Properties



From: Barry Levy

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 3:17:17 AM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

As you may be aware, the SLC Staff is currently

reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase of up to 500% for offshore mooring and 1000% for shore moorings
in Newport Harbor. These moorings are the last affordable access to boating in Newport Harbor. This proposed
rate increase will force average boaters out of the submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor which fall under SLC
oversight jurisdiction.

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

This is how the proposed rate increase will have an impact on me:

1. We are retiring soon. Our family has worked for years getting our boat ready for cruising California
waters.This unfair rate increase makes our budget difficult.

2. We understand inflation increases. But not a increase to pay for continued growth.
3. Other moorings in California are far cheaper.

4. We bought rights to the mooring; we pay fees to city and spend over $1200 a year for maintenence of the
can and chain. All when Newport can rent our mooring to others when we are off of it cruising.

5 ...Besides.. we pay California taxes as well.

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

Barry and Nancy Levy
A



From: Chuck Lewis

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Newport Harbor Proposing Discriminatory Mooring Rate Increases: Written comment on non-agenda item April 4, 2024 SLC
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 5:37:23 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

As a Newport Harbor mooring holder for the past 14 years, | urge you to protect the last affordable access to
boating in the harbor. The SLC Staff is currently reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase of up to 500% for
offshore moorings and 1000% for shore moorings, a submerged tidelands area in Newport Harbor which falls
under SLC oversight jurisdiction.

Should this rate increase pass, it will further compound an already inequitable situation where mooring holders

pay more than waterfront homeowners for use of the same submerged tidelands. If the proposed rate increase
goes through, the mooring holders will be paying up to 20 times more than the waterfront homeowners pay for

the same tidelands. | am struggling to understand how this is not a discriminatory plan.

A significant body of evidence submitted to the Newport Harbor Commission is being ignored in pursuit of this
rate increase. A January 2024 independent appraisal by CBRE shows the city of Newport Beach’s appraisal is
flawed and fails to compare apples to apples for rate purposes. One important point is Newport Beach does not
offer comparable amenities to justify such an increase (ex: dinghy dock access moorings). Additionally, |
understand the granting statute for Newport Bay has a specific clause prohibiting price discrimination in the
harbor. This anti-discrimination clause regarding rates in Newport Harbor dates back over a century and says
the city shall not charge one user more than another for use of the tidelands. And yet, the Harbor Commission
seems to be determined to increase rates unfairly in the face of this and other contrary evidence.

| ask this commission to insert themselves into this matter to protect us, the people, by performing a thorough
investigation of this matter.

Respectfully,

Chuck Lewis



From: Rich Luttrell

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 1:11:07 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

State Lands Commission (SLC) Staff is currently reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase of up to 500% for offshore
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

Our family has had the same mooring in this harbor for 75 years. We have seen small incremental fee increases every
several years, but never an increase even close to the magnitude of the one being proposed. Should the fee increase
successfully move forward and ultimately approved by the Newport Beach City Council, our family will be forced to sell
the mooring.

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

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and are confident your Commission will agree that we are
being discriminated against.

Sincerely,

Rich Luttrell/Linhoff Family Trust
Mooring
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From: Annie McCray

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: Annie McCray

Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 2:28:09 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

Hopefully you are aware of the SLC staff reviewing a proposed rate increase of moorings in Newport Harbor.
The proposed increase is up to 500% for offshore moorings and 1000% for shore moorings. This proposed
increase will limit access to tidelands in Newport Harbor for non-residents who are mooring holders.

A similar increase was proposed to dock owners several years ago, called the “Dock Tax”, but was scrapped
because the affluent homeowners protested that it was unfair and they had the power to oust the city council
members. After that, the Dock Tax was scrapped and, as | understand the city signed a 50-year agreement
that they would NOT raise the rates for waterfront homeowners. This seems absolutely unfair! Currently, the
mooring holders pay 4 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for use of the same submerged
tidelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, the mooring holders will be paying up to 20 times
more than the affluent waterfront homeowners pay, for use of the exact same tidelands.

The Harbor Commission is basing the rate increase on an appraisal that is not fair; it claims the mooring rates
should be based on value of a private dock, which offers access, water, parking, and electricity, which is not
provided to mooring holders. Additionally, the appraisal the Harbor Commission goes against a earlier one from
2016 by the same appraiser. In the 2016 appraisal, the appraiser states the docks were NOT a good
comparison for moorings. Also, the Harbor Commission has completely ignored the January 2024 independent
appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach’s appraisal is way off base and does not even
account for the lack of dinghy docks to get out to our moorings, when every other harbor in California provides
dinghy docks to get out to a mooring. The independent CBRE appraisal, which is being ignored by the Harbor
Commission, shows there is no need for any increase in excess of the CPI.

For these reasons, | believe the Harbor Commission is treating the mooring holders differently since they are
not voters or residents of Newport Beach. The increased rate will make it difficult for me and my family to keep
out boat and enjoy the Harbor. | am requesting the SLC should investigate this issue. Thank you for your
consideration.

Anne McCray Pauley

Anne M. McCray


mailto:CSLC.CommissionMeetings@slc.ca.gov

From: Jerry megraw

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Fwd: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newpor Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 7:03:38 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: jerry megraw

Date: Sun, Mar 31, 2024, 16:45

Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newpor Harbor
To: <CSL mmissionMettin 1 >

Dear Commissioners,

As you are aware, the SLC staff is reviewing proposed mooring rate increases of 500% for offshore moorings in Newport
Harbor. An increase of this size will force average boat owners out of the use of submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor
which fall under the SLC oversight jurisdiction.

My wife and I are current mooring holders and permitted liveaboards. We are retired and on fixed incomes with annual
increases tied to the cost of living. A rate increase of 500% even if done over a period of years would severely impact our
lives and possibly force us to abandon our chosen lifestyle for the last 24 years of living aboard, causing us to living I'm
not sure where.

The city basis this ridiculous raise in fees on what I believe to be a flawed appraisal comparing mooring rates to
commercial marina rates. Marinas provide access to electricity, water, restrooms, showers, laundry, dock box storage and
vehicle parking. Mooring owners have none of these amenities. We must use street parking, very difficult during the
summer and holiday periods and feed the ever present meters. We are also required to have our moorings inspected on a
biannual basis at a cost of $1,000 to $2,500. In addition we have no secure dock space for our dinghies which are necessary
to access our moorings. The 15th street public pier is near our mooring but there is a 3 hour time limit in the only area we
can use for a 10 ft. dinghy. This makes it quite difficult for shopping or trips to the doctor, forget a one or two night visit to
somewhere on land. The city would claim there is a 72 hour zone for 10 foot dinghies at the 15th street dock, but if you
leave your dinghy at high tide and return at a medium or low tide it is hard aground and you may have to wait hours before
returning to your mooring. The city claims the area will soon be dredged but in the last 6 years nothing has been done. I'm
not holding my breath.

We feel discriminated against as mooring holders as we currently pay 4 times more than homeowners for the same use of
submerged tidelands. If the proposed increase goes through, mooring holders will be paying up to 20 times more than
homeowners. Besides not being fair the city is now and would continue to clearly be discriminating against mooring
holders.

I ask the commission to perform a thorough investigation of this matter. PLEASE don't allow this obscene increase of
500% based on a flawed appraisal

We appreciate the state lands staff for reviewing this matter and encourage the commission to thoroughly investigate this
matter.

Jerry and Kathy McGraw

Mooring Newport Harbor
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From: Janelle McMurdie

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Public comment, Newport Beach Harbor Mooring Rates
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 4:35:19 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

I've been made aware that SLC Staff is reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase for moorings in Newport
Harbor.

To my knowledge, there are currently different rates charged to waterfront homes, shore moorings, and offshore
moorings for use of the same submerged tidelands. Mooring holders currently pay higher rates. | do not know

what marinas are currently charged, if anything.

There is a proposal by the city of Newport Beach to substantially increase rates charged to mooring holders,
both on and off shore.

While a substantial rate increase is unpalatable, I'd like the commissioners to inquire of the city of Newport
Beach why their proposed rate increase only impacts mooring holders.

If the Newport Beach appraisal is correct, does it not apply to all submerged tidelands users? Alternatively, if
other appraisals by reputable 3rd party appraisers suggests current mooring rates are approximately fair,
should those rates not stay for mooring holders and increase for those not paying equal and fair rates?
Something smells fishy in Newport. Can you help us clear the water?

Kindly,

Janelle M.
Mooring holder and former Newport Beach resident
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From: kartbin

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 11:33:21 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

We need your help! The Netzer appraisal is riddled with problems such as:

¢ Ignoring standard appraising methods for moorings

¢ Using unreliable and inventive methodology

« Failing to take into account the lack of dinghy docks

e The Netzer appraisal runs completely contrary to the independent CBRE appraisal
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
value, the city staff and members of the Harbor Commission are still attempting to rush through a "blessing”
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

We know that the State Lands Commission does care about protecting affordable access to the waterways of
California. You also care about making sure there is no class discrimination in the management of harbors in
California.

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

The proposed rate increase will have a detrimental impact on many mooring users.

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
The Miller Family



From: Laura Jane Mitchell

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: April 4 meeting: non-agenda item. Proposed rate change to Newport Harbor offshore mooring permits
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 12:16:42 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Land Commissioners,

I am a third-generation Californian from farming and working-class roots.

My parents migrated to the middle class through education and hard work. I am still optimistic enough to think that this is
an American dream and part of the promise of California.

My husband and I recently realized a long-held aspiration to buy our own sailboat. We live in Orange County and manage
our finances carefully to be able to do so and enjoy the bountiful outdoors for which California is so rightly famous.

Our budget for owning and maintaining a boat was premised on the rates for an off-shore mooring permit in Newport
Harbor—our closest access to the ocean.

We budgeted for regular mooring maintenance (something that neither Newport Harbor nor the City of Newport Beach
provide with moorings, unlike mooring rentals in other California harbors) and made provisions to access our boat without
the use of a dinghy dock (another feature that's available in other California harbors with offshore moorings).

We did not budget for the nearly 500% rate increase currently proposed by the Newport Beach Harbor Commission and
being considered by the City Council.

The mission statement for the California Lands Commission states that your task is to steward natural resources "based on
the principles of equity, sustainability, and resilience."

Mooring permit holders have proved ourselves to be effective stewards of the waters we use, complying with stringent
safety and environmental regulations, maintaining our moorings and the tidelands floor to which they are attached, and
keeping the harbor safe and useful for other users.

I do not see how a 500% rate increase ensures equitable access to the ocean. I don't understand how those of us with
mooring permits will be asked to pay considerably more for the use of water above submerged tidelands to safely keep our
boats, compared to the per-foot rate for size of a dock (and not the adjacent water where boats are tied up) charged to
waterside homeowners who have private docks.

The price for coastal property in Orange County, whether a harborside residence, a marina, or a yacht club, is expensive.
That's the reality of California real estate. Offshore moorings offer one way for families of modest means to gain access to
the water. The City of Newport Beach seems determined to price this slice of the community out. My family faces losing
access to a long-held dream of recreation and use of California's coastal resources. That's disappointing, but not a tragedy.
The tragedy is for the mooring permittees whose livelihoods depend on affordable access to safe mooring. And those on
fixed incomes who live on their boats.

The Harbor Commission says it has a fiduciary responsibility not to "gift" the resources under its stewardship—in this
case, access to submerged tidelands. That's true, but there's a wide spectrum between gifting resources to one part of the
community and charging the steepest price that the market will bear in order to gain access.

Governments, whether the State of California or the City of Newport Beach, are not profit-seeking or capitalist entities.
Income maximization should not be prioritised over equity and broad public access.

Equally disturbing, the City of Newport Beach is relying on an appraisal that seems to be marred by inside dealing and
conflicts of interest. The City refuses to engage with a second appraisal commissioned by the members of the Newport
Mooring Association.

Given the big disparity between the fair price of mooring rentals presented by the two appraisals, it seems reasonable to ask
the City to reconsider its planned rate increase. I also think it's reasonable to get a third appraisal commissioned by a less-
invested party: perhaps Orange County or the SLC.

Please ask the City of Newport Beach not to make the proposed rate increases, and investigate the involvement of City
employees in the process of Netzer and Associates' appraisal.

Sincerely,
Laura J. Mitchell
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Permit holder for offshore mooring # , Newport Harbor



From: kathryr

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Newport Moorings
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 9:49:56 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Esteemed Members,
I'll keep this brief as, at this point, I'm sure you have a good idea about the extreme distress many of the Newport mooring
holders are experiencing and why.

I would just like to assure you that the proposed "solution" of refiguring the moorings is in search of a problem. As
moorings holders the majority are very pleased with how things are and have been good stewards of the environment.

In addition, the increase in fees are just plain unreasonable. Perhaps the very wealthy do not concern themselves with
unfair practices, but the rest of us do.

Please be the voice of reason.

Kathryn O'Neal

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone



Brian H. Ouzounian
Newport Beach, CA
Email: brian

Re: April 4, 2024 California State Lands Commission meeting/Newport Harbor Mooring Rates

Dear Commissioners:

| have been a mooring holder in Newport Beach Harbor for about 50 (fifty) years, paying my rent
dutifully all these years (approximately $85,000). | am writing to you to request your assistance
in stopping the City of Newport Beach from hiking the rates to such unfair and unreasonable
amounts that | am beyond words.

| am of the understanding that one purpose of the SLC is to regulate rates up and down the state

coastline so that state lands rental rates are not so low as to make them a gift but at the same
time are not assessed unreasonable gouging rates to public. | am familiar with the Benchmark
Studies that the State performs and methodically updates every five years and | have studied
those results and tracked their progress for about a decade now. They are important so that the
visiting boaters can travel by water up and down the coast with assurance that the rental rates
they are charged are ‘fair’ | get this.

| also understand it keeps the custodian for these rentals in check to not gouge the public to put
money in their coffers as they (the city or county) may feel superior or more deserving than others
in the state.

| believe in our case, Newport Harbor, the City via it’s Habor Commission, is trying to pump up
their revenue in order to pay for self-elected costs, which they themselves elected to incur, such
as a new Habor Department equipped with staff, offices, boats and resources with a Harbor
Master’s salary of $206,000/year. They are putting the costs of the administration and harbor
costs on the backs of the mooring holders. UNFAIR.

If only our Harbor Commission would use the Benchmark rates all would be good. At present
time, my mooring rental rate is TEN TIMES what they would be if Benchmark rates were used!
This is before the new rates are applied, which are proposed to be 400 times more! How can this
be?

It is my hope that you exercise oversite on this rental rate increase and bring some sense back to
the discussion. Why can’t Newport Beach use Benchmark rates?

Thanks for taking the time to read and consider the above.

Best Regards,
Brian H. Ouzounian



From: Bret Pool

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: Bret Pool

Subject: Please investigate the huge and unfair mooring rate hike in Newport Harbor
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 5:09:36 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
Dear Commissioners,

The SLC Staff is currently reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase 500% for offshore moorings and 1000%
for shore moorings in Newport Harbor. Moorings only affordable access to boating in Newport Harbor. This
proposed rate increase will force average boaters out of the submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor which fall
under SLC oversight jurisdiction.

As of the date of this email, we mooring holders pay 4X more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for
f the SAME mer idelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, we will be paying up to
e e ide . That's not fair

R4 0 or tne exd dine dnad

The Newport Beach Harbor Commission has completely ignored the January 2024 independent appraisal by
CBRE which shows the city of Newport Beach’s appraisal is off base. The City’s appraisal does not even
account for the lack of dinghy docks to get out to our moorings, when every other harbor in California provides
dinghy docks to get out to a mooring. And unlike many other moorings in the State of California, Newport Beach
mooring holders pay the entire amount to have our mooring tackle inspected and replaced. Our moorings cost
the city nothing to maintain.

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

The monthly fee for my 50’ mooring will increase from $167 to as much as $835. And I'm already paying
considerably more than the homeowners pay for their use of the submerged tidelands.

I humbly ask this commission to perform a thorough investigation of this matter. SLC staff has been provided
proof that the City of Newport Beach is using flawed information in the attempt to raise mooring rates up to
500% and higher for shore moorings, which will clearly push average boaters out of Newport Harbor while
leaving the rates of other tidelands users alone. Discrimination can’t be tolerated.

| appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and encourage this commission to thoroughly
investigate the matter.

Sincerely,

Bret Pool

Mooring A-



From: Graham Proctor

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop Newport Harbor planned Offshore rate increases.
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 11:30:13 AM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Commissioners,

As you have heard, the Newport Beach Harbor Commission is pushing a proposal to increase the offshore mooring in the
harbor.

| purchased a lease last year for $50,000.00 from the previous lease holder last year. The current monthly lease from the
city for my 50’ mooring ball is $137.00.

The Newport Beach Harbor commission is proposing to increase that rate to $ 937.50 per month. This is a 560% increase
which | did not budget for.

If this increase gets approved, | will have to give up my lease and probably lose my investment of $50,000 because no one
will want to buy the lease agreement from me at these higher rates.

My dreams on owning a boat came true, and now the Newport Beach Harbor Commission is planning on taking that away
from me.

This is not equitable!
Nor does it promote Public Access!

The Netzer appraisal, which the Harbor Commission is using, is floored. I’ll leave the details of that conclusion to others as
| know they will be contacting you as well.

An independent appraisal by CBRE initiated by the Newport Mooring Association found that the current rates being charged
are close to fair market value.

Itis also not clear if the decision to use Mr. Netzer was an arm’s length transaction because Mr. Netzer is a board member
of the Newport Aquatics Club (NAC) which leases land from the city in the harbor.

I would like to see additional appraisals be included in the process.

The Mission Statement for the California State Lands Commission as listed on your website reads:
The California State Lands Commission provides the people of California with effective stewardship of
the lands, waterways, and resources entrusted to its care based on the principles of equity, sustainability,
and resiliency, through preservation, restoration, enhancement, responsible economic development, and
the promotion of public access.

I would like to have equitable lease rates between onshore private docks and mooring holders as well as between other
offshore mooring holders in other Californian harbors.

Please investigate and prevent the Newport Beach City from making this mistake and being poor stewards of this piece of
California Tidelands.

Thank you for considering this matter.

Regards,
Graham Proctor
Leased Mooring Ball AN Newport Harbor


https://50,000.00

From: Nick Ralston

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Newport Beach Moorings
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 10:57:37 AM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

I am currently a retired airline pilot on Social Security and will about to begin living off of my 401K. I purchased a
50’ Mooring () a couple of years ago for $55,000 from a previous title owner at 87 years of age. Remarkably,
another rare 18” Balboa Beach mooring () became available. $24,000 from a family of 27 years ownership. Can
you believe my luck! Yes, well this incredibly unbelievable Rate Increase Proposal, Will force me to sell. That I
would have to pay from my current $167/month for the 50’ to $880/month, is thoughtless destruction of most
permits capability. My Social Security increased by $80/month in 2024. T have a friend who owns a dock permit in
Dana Point harbor with electric and water for $500/month. There are no luxuries tied to two cans. Please intervene
with this Greedy, thoughtless Government!

Nick Ralston
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From: Jay Renkowitz

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Mooring fees
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 11:29:08 AM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

I have a shore mooring. I keep a kayak on it and pay 30 dollars per month.. It is often inaccessible due to tides.The current
price is okay as I'd pay similar for a dinghy rack or to keep it at the Newport Aquatic Center.They both have their
advantages as the other places are always accessible have bathrooms showers etc.& the boats are more sheltered from the
harsh elements.Raising our fees dramatically would be out of touch with their true value. I hope you will consider keeping
the shore mooring fees as they currently are
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From: Donny Reynolds

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 11:54:56 PM

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

We will have to decide between teaching our kids about the great outdoors by showing or have them taught in a classroom because we will no longer be
able to afford to do both.

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
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From: Lunetta, Kim@SLC

To: Lunetta, Kim@SLC

Subject: FW: Upcoming SLC meeting in San Pedro
Date: Thursday, April 4, 2024 8:46:05 AM
Attachments: SLC alert.pdf

From: Mark Sites <[

Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 1:00 PM
To: Lucchesi, Jennifer@SLC <Jennifer.Lucchesi@slc.ca.gov>
Subject: Upcoming SLC meeting in San Pedro

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear Ms. Lucchesi,

My name is Mark Sites, and | am a member of the Newport Mooring Association in Newport
Beach. | doubt you remember me, but we have spoken by phone in the past, before you
became Executive Director of the SLC. | remember you were just back from delivering your
first child, so you will know better than | as to how long it’s been.

In case you haven’t already seen it, | have attached an email alert that was sent out to all NMA
members urging them to contact the SLC regarding what we feel is an unfair pending rate
increase, and if possible, show up for your meeting in San Pedro.

| realize that the SLC gives the grantees (in this case the city of Newport Beach) a very wide
latitude in how they administer the tidelands. In this case, the Newport Mooring Association is
asking the SLC to better define their position with regard to the grant’s provision that there be
“no discrimination in rates, tolls, or charges”.

Unfortunately, the local political structure has gotten to such a pointin Newport Beach that
the NMA is having to solicit the help of the State Lands Commission. By this | mean that “those
with the gold are making the rules” and are attempting to shift more of the operating costs of
the harbor onto mooring permit holders while leaving the more politically connected (yacht
clubs, private dock owners) paying much lower rates. The NMA feels that this is the
“discrimination” referred to in the tidelands grant.

You might find it amusing that your predecessor, Curtis Fossum, once told me that what that
clause meant is that the city couldn’t charge racial minorities more. No kidding; | think he just
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Dear Mooring Holders (and Mooring supporters),

The California State Lands Commission staff is currently reviewing
the Netzer appraisal and the price discrimination concerns
regarding the ridiculously high and unprecedented mooring rate
increase proposed by the Newport Beach Harbor Commission.
The State Lands Commission, which includes Lt. Governor Eleni
Kounalakis, State Controller Malia M. Cohen and State Finance
Director Joe Stephenshaw, have their quarterly public meeting on
April 4+ in San Pedro. Here’s a link to the meeting info: April 4,
2024 Commission Meeting Agenda | CA State Lands

Commission. These meetings are open to public comment and you
can also submit written communication.

We need your help! Please email the State Lands Commission
your written comment regarding the harmful mooring rate increase
that will price many mooring holders out of Newport Harbor. We
have shown that the Netzer appraisal is riddled with problems
such as:
* Ignoring standard appraising methods for moorings
 Using unreliable and inventive methodology
* Failing to take into account the lack of dinghy docks
 The Netzer appraisal runs completely contrary to the
independent CBRE appraisal
which was submitted to the City of Newport Beach

Questions have been raised concerning the motivations for such
an extreme recommendation, and questions of bias and/or
conflicts of interest are being investigated by some mooring
holders as well as at least one law firm. In the wake of these
questions, we have now seen Harbormaster Blank being forced to
recuse himself from any further involvement in this historic
attempt to increase mooring rates after he was found to have a
conflict of interest. Conflicts of interest and/or bias are being
looked into by the NMA.

There are concerns that even after showing the city all the faults of
the Netzer appraisal and even after the city was presented with the
independent CBRE appraisal that shows the current rates are
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already at about market value, the city staff and members of the
Harbor Commission are still attempting to rush through a
"blessing” by the SLC of this historic and unprecedented rate
hike. They want this blessing so that city staff and the Harbor
Commission can pass off its devastating rate hike to the City
Council for approval and further exacerbate the existing
discrimination against people with moorings compared to how the
city treats, and rates charged to homeowners with private docks
as well as other users of tidelands in the harbor.

Here is an example of one letter being sent by a mooring holder to
state lands. If you agree with some of the points raised or if you
have other points you would like to share please write to the SLC
today. The Commissioners will not be familiar with the nuances of
a mooring or this rate increase, so feel free to break it down like
you are explaining it to an extended family member at Easter. The
State Lands Commission does care about protecting affordable
access to the waterways of California. They also care about
making sure there is no class discrimination in the management of
harbors in California.

Here is an example of one letter being sent or under
consideration.

Thank you for your continued support!

-NMA

Deadline to send this email to State Lands Commission is
Monday April 1st

Email to: CSLC.CommissionMeetings@slc.ca.gov

Email Subject Line: Written public comment non-agenda item April
41 SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor

Dear Commissioners,





As you may be aware, the SLC Staff is currently reviewing a
proposed mooring rate increase of up to 500% for offshore
mooring and 1000% for shore moorings in Newport Harbor. These
moorings are the last affordable access to boating in Newport
Harbor. This proposed rate increase will force average boaters
out of the submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor which fall
under SLC oversight jurisdiction.

Currently, the mooring holders pay 4 times more than the affluent
waterfront homeowners for use of the same submerged

tidelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, the
mooring holders will be paying up to 20 times more than the
affluent waterfront homeowners pay, for use of the exact same
tidelands. That’s not fair and it clearly targets and discriminates
against people with moorings.

In pushing this extreme discrimination, the city’s Harbor
Commission has completely ignored the January 2024
independent appraisal by CBRE which shows the city of Newport
Beach’s appraisal is way off base and does not even account for
the lack of dinghy docks to get out to our moorings, when every
other harbor in California provides dinghy docks to get out to a
mooring. The independent CBRE appraisal, which is being
ignored by the Harbor Commission, shows there is no need for
any increase in excess of the CPI.

Fortunately, the granting statute for Newport Bay has a specific
clause prohibiting price discrimination in the harbor. This anti-
discrimination clause regarding rates in Newport Harbor dates
back to the early 1900’s. It simply indicates, the city shall not
charge one user more than another for the use of the tidelands.
Unfortunately, this price discrimination is occurring today and will
only be exacerbated ten fold if the proposed rate increase is
tolerated by this Commission. Lest there be any doubt, the city





code itself states that the people with moorings are to be charged
rates similar to other rates charged for users of the tidelands. This
clearly flies contrary to that code.

This is how the proposed rate increase will have an impact on me
and my family:

| ask this commission to perform a thorough investigation of this
matter. SLC staff has been provided proof that the City of
Newport Beach is using flawed information in the attempt to raise
mooring rates up to 500% and higher for shore moorings, which
will clearly push average boaters out of Newport Harbor while
leaving the rates of other tidelands users alone. Discrimination
can’t be tolerated.

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and
we encourage this commission to thoroughly investigate the
matter.






wanted me to go away. Anytime the question came up, | would pass on the information | had
received from the SLC council, but always with a smile!

It later came to a point that the NMA paid for a “legislative intent” analysis of that clause and it
actually means what it says, the language being incorporated from the early railroad land
grants. We could find no reference to racial discrimination, which is not surprising considering
when it was written.

As you might expect, there is much more background information, but I’ve kept this as brief as

possible. | am long retired from the NMA board, but | still have a boat on a mooring, and I’m on

a fixed income now, so that’s my interest. | expect that those speaking at your public comment
will be well informed and succinct. Again, | just wanted to give you an informal advance notice

in case you weren’t already aware.

Thank you for your time.
Mark Sites
P.S. Avery belated congratulations on your assent to the Executive Director’s position. |

followed the drama of Mr. Fossum’s move for that position via the SLC minutes and am much
happier with the Commission’s eventual choice.



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
April 4+ in San Pedro. Here’s a link to the meeting info: April 4.
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
e Ignoring standard appraising methods for moorings
* Using unreliable and inventive methodology
* Failing to take into account the lack of dinghy docks
* The Netzer appraisal runs completely contrary to the
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



From: Michael Brandon

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Newport Beach mooring appraisal
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 8:02:04 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear California State Lands Commission,

I am writing to you for help with the situation with Newport Beach Harbor Commission and Newport Beach City Council.
Recently, the harbor commission has acquired an appraisal for the valuation of fair market rent for off-shore moorings. The
issue at hand is that the appraisal is flawed in many ways. The mooring permittees and other stakeholders have spoken
about the issues with this appraisal but our voices have fallen on deaf ears.

1 don't know what powers you might have to help us but it was brought to my attention that CSLC would be reviewing the
appraisal. Please note that among many deficiencies in the methodology, there is an entire page missing!

The we stand a lot to loose if the city moves forward with a rate hike based on this appraisal.
Please help us,

Michael Spano
Mooring permittee
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From: Ann nton

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings

Cc: Matt Stenton; ahicks

Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 1:00:49 PM

Attachments: Discrimination 1.ip2

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
Dear Commissioners,

As you may be aware, the SLC Staff is currently reviewing a proposed mooring rate increase of up to 500% for
offshore mooring and 1000% for shore moorings in Newport Harbor. These moorings are the last
affordable access to boating in Newport Harbor. This proposed rate increase will force average boaters out of
the submerged tidelands in Newport Harbor which fall under SLC oversight jurisdiction.

Currently, the mooring holders pay 4 times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners for use of the same
submerged tidelands. If the proposed rate increase goes through, the mooring holders will be paying up to 20
times more than the affluent waterfront homeowners pay, for use of the exact same tidelands. That’s not fair
and it clearly targets and discriminates against people with moorings. Attached is a visual to give you an idea of
what we are talking about. We already pay much more per month into the Tidelands fund, and unlike dock
permittees, we cannot rent ours out for profit. The discrimination is bad enough already. Why exacerbate the
issue by raising rates further??

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

| grew up on the moorings, both living aboard briefly as a child with my parents and then using the mooring as a
home base for our family boat when we weren't sailing to the Channel Islands or Mexico. As soon as my
husband and | could, we invested about $30,000 in our own mooring permit to store our own 34' sailboat. We
are public school employees. This was a huge sum for us. However, the going rate for moorings has been
approximately $1000 a foot for many, many years. We always thought we could sell our mooring permit and get
our money back out at some point if we needed to, or at least close to it. No one makes much money selling
mooring permits, but you can usually get that initial investment back. However, with this instability regarding
mooring fees, NO ONE is buying moorings right now. Besides my own family's financial concerns, this worries
me because so many of my mooring holder neighbors are seniors who may need to sell their mooring permits
to supplement their fixed income. If this change comes to pass, they will not be able to afford to stay on their
moorings and will not get anywhere close to their original investment. They will be stuck. | can't help but wonder
if this is a goal of the city, to make the moorings worthless and drive out the working class, liveaboards, and
seniors on fixed/limited incomes. | know of at least one couple who will become homeless if these rate
increases happen, and a few more who will be in truly desperate situations.
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

There are also concerns raised by another mooring holder, Mr. Chris Benzen, that there were undisclosed
conflicts of interest between the appraiser that the city chose, Mr. James Netzer. | encourage you to review the

mails and information Mr. Benzen present t the Harbor Commission meeting on March 18th.

We appreciate the State Lands staff for reviewing this matter and we plead with this commission to thoroughly
investigate.

With gratitude,

Anne Stenton
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From: Andy SWANSON

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Written public comment non-agenda item April 4th SLC-Please Stop the Class Discrimination in Newport Harbor
Date: Saturday, March 30, 2024 5:43:49 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Dear commissioners,

This email is regarding the Newport Beach mooring permit fee appraisal and rate increase. My name is Andy
Swanson and I became a mooring permittee a little over 2 years ago. Growing up is Southern California I spent a lot
of time in Newport Beach. It has always been my dream to one day have my own sailboat and keep it in Newport
Harbor. After working hard, raising our four daughters and climbing the career ladder, my wife and I felt we were
finally in a position to make our dreams a reality. Like you, I am a government employee with a middle class salary.
After becoming empty nesters we decided to refinance our home to purchase our sailboat and a mooring permit. We
put a lot of thought and planning into making this decision. We felt comfortable with the cost of an annual parking
permit, biannual mooring tackle maintenance / inspection and the monthly mooring fee. As well as the regular boat
maintenance cost and dinghy storage. We also understand that costs go up over time. All that being said, we feel that
the Newport Beach Harbor Commission is not being fair in the way they charge for the use of the tidelands and are
trying to discriminate against us. If the monthly rate of our mooring were to be raised by such a drastic amount it
would create a hardship for us. Potentially crushing our dreams of spending time with and teaching our children and
grandchildren the joys of sailing. This will not just effect us but also future generations of boaters. I recently
received an email from the harbor department that ended with this quote. “Thanks for your contributions to
maintaining Newport Harbor as a clean, safe and enjoyable public resource for the entire community to enjoy”. I
feel that by raising mooring permit fees to the level that they are unaffordable for the average person would
contradict this quote by making Newport Harbor only enjoyable by the wealthy and not the entire community. If my
wife and I would have known we could possibly be paying over 4.5 times what the current mooring rates are we
would have made a different decision. In a State that is becoming more and more unaffordable, I would ask that you
not do the same with the State Tidelands. Thank you!

Best regards,
The Swanson Family
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From: June Mclvor

To: CSLC CommissionMeetings
Subject: Public Comment Not On Agenda: Offshore Wind
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 1:24:12 PM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
Dear State Lands Commission:

Climate change is the ultimate challenge of our planet, and it threatens to cause irreparable harm to our oceans if we do
not act quickly to stop burning fossil fuels. Offshore wind is an important part of this effort.

I am proud to be a Californian and to live in a state that recognizes the challenge of climate change and is taking proactive
measures to combat it. A key part of these measures is the goal to deploy up to 5,000 megawatts of offshore wind energy
by 2030 and 25,000 MW by 2045.

I am also proud to be a resident of San Luis Obispo County, a region that long has been at the forefront of clean and
renewable energy, from Diablo Canyon power plant to the Topaz Solar Farm and now the potential to help bring to life
offshore wind farms that could produce up to 6 GW of clean, renewable energy — enough to power 3.5 million homes.

I am dismayed by local organization REACT Alliance’s efforts to sabotage these offshore wind energy projects and, as a
result, to sabotage our planet and our oceans. It would be too voluminous to debunk all of their claims, but let me give
you just an example. REACT claims that offshore wind will quintuple California’s cost of electricity, leading to “energy
poverty.” However, the 2021 SB 100 Joint Agency Report by the CA Energy Commission, Public Utilities Commission, and
Air Resources Board projects that including offshore wind in California’s clean energy mix by 2045 will result in $1B in
savings.

I don’t know what the motivations of the REACT Alliance truly are, but it is clear that they are not interested in a productive
dialogue about what is really best for our community. REACT continues to make false claims even after the inaccuracies of

their claims are pointed out, such as in the San Luis Obispo Tribune’s Reality Check article on March 14. Thus, it is clear
that they are intentional in spreading disinformation, not just misinformed.

You might be hearing the squeaky wheel of opposition, but | want to assure you that their views are not those of the
majority. Done right, the offshore wind projects present local communities with a wonderful opportunity to increase
recreation and tourism, economic development, and job creation. In addition, we welcome the chance offered by these
projects for the San Luis Obispo County region to become a hub for conservation, economic activity, and climate
innovation.

Thank you very much.

Sincerely,

June Mclvor

San Luis Obisio, CA
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From:

William Walter
To: Wyer, Holly@Coastal; "mbcfo member"; Ht Kate@Coastal; "dougla .gov"; “jennifer.mil .gov"; CSLC Ce lissionMeetings; Mattox, Jennifer@SLC; "Jennifer.Lucchesi@slc.ca.gov.”

Cc: “Justin Franklin"; "Chris Pavone"; "Gerald Sato"; "Tom Hafer"; "Owen Hackleman"; "Wayne Moody"; "Garrett Rose"; "Matt Newman"; "Jeremiah O"Brien"; "Bill Ward"; "Bill Blue"; "Mark Tognazzini"; "Bob Maharry"; "Alan Alward"; "Bill Barrow"; "Ted Schiafone";
Tyler Studds"; "Laura.C: com"; KMOJ com; "Hislop, Kristen"; "Elizabeth Marchetti"; "Pearce, Heather"; "greg.haas@mail.house.gov"
Subject: RE: Commercial fishing mitigation for offshore wind project in the Morro Bay Lease Area - before Site Surveys begin

Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 11:43:49 AM

Attention: This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
Dear Holly Wyer

Attached is correspondence in behalf of the Morro Bay Commercial Fishermen’s Organization (BCFO) and Port San Luis Commercial Fisherman Association (PSLCFA) dated 12-8-2023 in response to the letter you
sent to Tom Hafer dated 11-28-2023.

We look forward to working cooperatively with the trustee and regulatory agencies in an effort to mitigate and monitor recognized impacts to commercial fishing which are reasonably foreseeable resulting from
the BOEM Morro Bay Lease Areas for offshore wind energy development prior to the commencement or approval of site surveys in areas under either the jurisdiction of the United States or the State of
California.

Please also refer to my correspondence previously sent to you and the trustee and regulatory agencies, together with Appendices | through IV dated November 14- 2023 containing a further discussion and
reference to various concerns of the Organizations with supporting legal authorities, requested actions, and substantial evidence.

Respectfully submitted,
William S. Walter,

A Professional Corporation
Counselor at Law

677 Monterey St.

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401
805-541-6601 (office)
805-541-6640 (fax

From: Wyer, Holly@Coastal <holly.wyer@coastal.ca.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 12:19 PM
To: mbcfo member _>; Huckelbridge, Kate@Coastal <Kate.Huckelbridge @coastal.ca.gov>; douglas.boren@boem.gov; jennifer.miller@boem.gov
Cc: Justin Franklin <} >; chris Pavone <|NN >; Gerald Sato <JN >; Tom Hafer </ >; Owen Hackleman
I >; wayne Moody >; Garrett Rose >; Matt Newman >; Jeremiah O'Brien >; Bill
Ward _ Bill Blue _>; Mark Tognazzini _; Bob Maharry _>; Alan Alward _>; Bill Barrow
>; Ted Schiafone <tschiafone@morrobayca.gov>; Bill Walter >
Subject: RE: Commercial fishing mitigation for offshore wind project in the Morro Bay Lease Area - before Site Surveys begin

Dear Mr. Hafer,
Please see the attached letter for our response.

Sincerely,

Holly Wyer

From: mbcfo member

Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2023 12:45 PM

To: Huckelbridge, Kate@Coastal <Kate.Huckelbridge@coastal.ca.gov>; Wyer, Holly@Coastal <holly.wyer@coastal.ca.gov>; douglas.boren@boem.gov; jennifer.miller@boem.gov

Cc: Justin Franklin <j_, Chris Pavone _>; Gerald Sato _>; Tom Hafer _; Owen Hackleman
_>; Wayne Moody _>; Garrett Rose <>; Matt Newman _; Jeremiah O'Brien <aguerofish@gmail.com>; Bill
Ward < >; 8ill Blue < >; Mark Tognazzini < >; Bob Maharry [ Alan Alward [N 6ill Barrow
_>; Ted Schiafone <tschiafone@morrobayca.gov>; Bill Walter _>

Subject: Commercial fishing mitigation for offshore wind project in the Morro Bay Lease Area - before Site Surveys begin
Dear California Coastal Commission and BOEM,

We are forwarding Bill Walter’s email * in our behalf after the fourth meeting with the three project developers which only confirmed that they are not ready to commit to any commercial fishing mitigation
before site surveys begin, if ever. His email gives the developers a simple process forward which can get the mitigation immediately in place, with membership approved procedures under the MBC Bylaws and
Trustees’ Committee Charter. We are waiting for some response. It is consistent with the new legislation recognizing industry to industry agreements.

The first three in-person meetings with developers which many fishermen attended seemed only to “check off the box” of having a meeting without addressing concrete issues of commercial fishing mitigation.
Attending meetings and not fishing with no concrete discussion of mitigation, has led to a great deal of frustration and resentment through the fishing fleets in both Morro Bay and Port San Luis.

We sent the Developers an agenda ahead of the last meeting (also attached) to address any concerns or question about the details of adopted Bylaws and Trustees’ Charter of the incorporated Morro Bay Lease
Areas Mutual Benefits Corporation and Trustees” Committee which are now ready to move forward for site survey mitigation and monitoring with the participation of the developers. The developers used their
own agenda and promised only a further “long process,” indicating a refusal to acknowledge commercial impacts (despite the CCC consistency findings) or being prepared to agree to any commercial fishing
mitigations and monitoring.

As Bill Walter will explain in his communications as well as broad membership input, we are very concerned about these issues and others:
There are no enforceable commercial fishing mitigations.
Under the CCC “functional equivalent” CEQA procedures, commercial fishing mitigation cannot be “deferred” but must be established before any phase of the project proceeds (‘the whole of the action”);
mitigation must be definite and enforceable; there must be an approved mitigation monitoring plan for each phase of the project, including site surveys.
The project developers must internalize all of the costs of their projects, and not externalize those costs upon the commercial fishermen or their organizations, including site surveys. The Bylaws of the
MBC address those issues and establish the methods of coordination with the project developers and internalizing these costs within their own projects.
There is new evidence of significant impacts from site surveys,

creating serious policy conflicts which should be mitigated, and monitored independently of the developers. **
Conducting site surveys requires enforceable mitigation of serious California public trust policy conflicts, express constitutionally protected rights of commercial fishing in the California jurisdiction, Coastal
Act policy violations, local coastal program policy conflicts, protected vested rights and good will (in California, “benefits of location”) belonging to commercial fishermen/business.
The combination of public trust conflicts, protected fishing rights and vested interests of commercial fishing businesses requires a heightened level of scrutiny concerning any phase of the project
especially when potential adverse impacts to the natural environment may occur during the site survey and subsequent phases.

We very much want to work with the regulatory and trustee agencies to air our concerns and improve the process. Any suggestions are welcome.
Will there be a CCC hearing prior to permit issuance, opportunity for public comment and review, and public posting of the permit before issuance? Is there any further BOEM public process before site surveys?
What site survey approval is required from the State Lands Commission?

Thank you for your consideration in this matter,
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SAN LUIS OBISPO, CALIFORNIA 93401

CONCERNS AND SUGGESTIONS OF THE MORRO BAY COMMERCIAL
FISHERMEN’S ORGANIZATION (MBCF O) AND PORT SAN LUIS
COMMERCIAL FISHERMAN ASSOCIATION (PSLCFA) REGARDING
IRREVERSIBLE IMPACTS TO COMMERCIAL FISHING FROM
OFFSHORE WIND SITE SURVEYS WITHIN THE
BOEM MORRO BAY LEASE AREAS Submittal # 2
December 8, 2023

Holly Wyer, Senior Environmental Scientist
California Coastal Commission

Energy, Ocean Resources and Federal Consistency
455 Market Street, Suite 300

San Francisco, CA 94105-2421 (Via Email; Facsimile 415-904-5400)

VIA EMAIL TO: BOEM c/o
douqlas.boren@boem.qov:eniennifer.miller@boem.gov;
California Coastal Commission ¢/o
kate.Huckelbridge@coastal.ca.gov: holly.wyer@coastal.ca.cov
California State Lands Commission c/o Jennifer.Mattox(@slc.ca.cov
and Jennifer.Lucchesi@slc.ca.gov:
CSLC.CommissionMeetings@slc.ca.gov

Cc: Haas, Greg greg.haas@mail.house.oov

RE: Response to Holly Wyer Correspondence DTD 11-28-2023

Dear Holly Wyer:

The Morro Bay Commercial Fishermen’s Organization (MBCFO) and Port
San Luis Commercial Fisherman Association (SLCFA) appreciate your email and
letter of November 28, 2023 responding to an email dated October 18, 2023 from
MBCFO. This office sent correspondence and emails to the regulatory and trustee
agencies dated November 12, 2023, (40 pages) followed by separate emails with
documents, studies, records, testimony, etc., organized in four Appendices.
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Additional materials have been sent by MBCFO in subsequent emails containing
related evidential materials.

Without repeating what has already been communicated to the regulatory and
trustee agencies, and in a good faith spirit of collaboration and cooperation, here’s
a short version of why the Organizations believe that the points and conclusions
in your letter are factually and legally incorrect:

1. The Coastal Commission’s Consistency Determination, adopted June 8,
2022, expressly made the following finding concerning immediate
impacts on commercial fishing from the Consistency Determination
allowing BOEM leasing and provisionally authorizing developer site
surveys of the Morro Bay Lease Areas. Finding “immediate effects on
fishing communities™ triggers the mandatory legal duty for enforceable
mitigation and monitoring of commercial fishing impacts before any
further project activities (such as site surveys) commence:

“However, issuance of leases will have immediate effects on fishing
communities even before any lease development activities occur, as the
leases and overall BOEM process injects uncertainty into an occupation

that is already heavily regulated and uncertain.” (CD-0004-22 (BOEM) p.
24.

The Organizations could not agree more with this short but compelling
finding by the Commission which BOEM accepted when it did not challenge
any portion of the Consistency Determination.! The mitigation and
monitoring of these “immediate effects” on commercial fishing expressly
protected by California’s Coastal Management Program and State
Constitution® cannot be deferred and unenforceable while any portion of the
BOEM projects proceed. This prohibition literally and unambiguously
includes “issuance of leases,” “any lease development activities” which
includes site surveys, and “the whole of the action.” Impacts must be
mitigated when they occur and the impacts to commercial fishing have been

' (See July 1, 2022 correspondence from the Commission by Holley Wyer to Doug Boren,
Director, BOEM Regional Director; “Consistency Determination CD-114-22 (Morro Bay Wind
Energy Area)”.

? See Walter Correspondence, November 14, 2023, pp. 10-20.
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found to be occurring now in direct conflict with various policies identified
at length in our prior submits.

2. Your letter presents the opinion that the “concept of deferred mitigation
under CEQA” does not “apply to the Commission’s action. The reason
suggested for this conclusion is “CEQA does not generally extend to the
Commission’s CZMA?” authority “on federal land” and the “outer
continental shelf.”

The Consistency Findings of the Commission do not support these straight-
jacket characterizations which would prevent achieving CCMP
consistency because of (a) “spillover effects” into the Coastal Zone from
federal activities, (b) easements through State waters (and tidelands) to the
shoreline for energy transmission. and (c) findings of the Commission’s
“authority to review activities” within “federal waters.” The only
methodology available to the Commission in this process must be the
“functional equivalent” of CEQA, which is why the Commission
formulated both findings and “conditions” for BOEM to accept or reject
under its own procedures:

(a) Spillover effects: “Thus, in its evaluation of this proposed lease
sale’s consistency with the Coastal Act, this Commission analyzes
spillover effects on coastal resources beyond federal waters.”
(CCC Consistency Determination CD-0004-22, p. 19.)

These “spillover effects” include the immediate impacts of leasing on the
commercial fishing industry identified above (#1) in the Commission’s
findings. Also, spillover effects to the coastal zone expressly include
sound used in geophysical surveys which will last for five years:

“In this instance, the Commission’s review of activities in federal
waters focuses on spillover effects on coastal resources within the
coastal zone. This review may include effects that activities in federal
waters may have on resources within the coastal zone, or effects that
activities in federal waters may have on species in federal waters that
travel in and out of the coastal zone. For example, the sound used to
conduct geophysical surveys may travel from where the survey is
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being conducted in federal waters to the coastal zone and affect marine
life within the coastal zone. Similarly, geophysical surveys could
impact marine species that travel large distances and are known to
move between the coastal zone and federal waters, such as marine
mammals.” (pp. 18-19, see 25.)

The spill-over effects from site surveys have been found to extend for a
lengthy time period:

“BOEM expects that lessees would survey their entire proposed lease
area during the S-year site assessment term....” (p. 29.)

The spill-over effects from site surveys directly impacts the Morro Bay
Harbor and commercial fishing:

“...BOEM expects that lessees would stage their lease exploration
activities from the Port of Morro Bay.” (p. 29.)

(b) There are also easements which extend through State waters
contemplated by the approval, including site survey, construction and
eventual decommissioning activities through State waters:

“These easements would all be located within the Central California
OCS, extending from the WEA through to federal and state waters
and to the onshore energy grid.” (p. 24.)

(c) The Commission findings assert discretion and review authority over
federal waters:

“Although numerous other state agencies have been involved and have
an interest in the offshore wind leasing and development process, the
Coastal Commission is the only state agency with authority to review
activities that occur more than 3 nautical miles offshore in federal
waters.” (p. 3.)

3. The Commission’s Consistency Findings also reject the analytical
premises of that portion of BOEM’s Consistency Determination submittal

4





MORRO BAY COMMERCIAL FISHERMEN’S ORGANIZATION (MBCFO) AND PORT SAN LUIS
COMMERCIAL FISHERMAN ASSOCIATION (PSLCFA) RESPONSE TO COASTAL COMMISSION
CORRESPONDENCE DATED NOVEMBER 28, 2023 (Holly Wyer): December 8, 2023

to the Commission, and the Environmental Assessment deferring the
identification of impacts, including commercial fishing, as not “reasonably
foreseeable.” BOEM acknowledges that:

“The analysis found here and found in the EA does not consider construction

and operation of any commercial wind power facilities.... based on several
factors...

“First, the issuance of a lease only grants the lessee the exclusive right to
submit to BOEM a Site Assessment Plan (SAP) and Construction and
Operations Plan (COP) proposing development of the leasehold; the lease
does not, by itself, authorize any activity within the lease area. ...”

“Second, BOEM does not consider the impacts resulting from the
development of a commercial wind power faciality within the WEA to be

reasonably foreseeable.” (BOEM, “Consistency Determination,” April 15,
2022, pp. 11-12)):

The Commission’s Consistency Determination recognized BOEM’s
approach and disagreed in two regards to which BOEM lodged no objections
under the CZMA and therefore accepted:

First: the Commission found: “However [identifies impacts of
leasing on commercial fishing quoted above and then] ...Based on past
BOEM leases and authorizations for wind development on the east
coast, it is also reasonably foreseeable that the leases will lead to
construction and operation of at least some offshore wind facilities, and
it is feasible to describe, at least at a high level, the types of impacts that
such facilities could have on coastal resources.” (CD-0004-22, p- 24.)

Second: the Commission identifies ten pages of potential impacts on
commercial fishing, noting that, “These concerns were brought forth by
the fishing community during interagency outreach meetings, as well as
derived from a list of concerns submitted by numerous fishing
organizations in a public comment letter.” (CD-0004-22 (BOEM), p. 88,
note 2.)
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The reasonably foreseeable impacts on commercial fishing were
summarized by the Commission as “common potential impacts that

have already been identified and articulated by the industry. These
include:

“I. Exclusion. The ocean is a shared space. Fishing and other uses
must coexist and work through complex management and
regulatory requirements. It is anticipated that offshore wind
development areas will become exclusionary zones and will restrict
already limited ocean space.

“II. Displacement. Related to Exclusion, fishers that are
excluded from the WEA may be forced to relocate into other,
already limited fishing grounds, placing additional environmental
pressure on the remaining habitat, and potentially increasing
conflicts between user groups.

“III. Increased costs and time at sea to avoid wind development.
Placement of wind facilities can delay direct access to fishing
grounds and force fishers to fish or drift far outside of lease
boundaries due to movement of gear and vessels on the open ocean.
“IV.  Loss of future fishing grounds. Fishing grounds are highly
variable. Continuous and often rapid changes in ocean conditions
cause changes to fish populations which in turn result in changes to
fishing behavior year over year. Large-scale wind development
would eliminate a huge portion of potentially viable fishing area,
limiting fishermen’s ability to adapt to changes in fishing grounds.
“V. Loss or disruption of harbor space and fishing infrastructure
at ports due to increased presence of wind related facilities.” (CD-
0004-22 (BOEM), p. 88.)

See also the impacts on commercial fishing explained in more detail,
including the site survey phase, on pp. 84-98 of the Commission’s Consistency
Determination findings, many of which occur commencing with site surveys,
attached as Appendix V.3

3 To create a coordinated record, the Appendixes are consecutively numbered starting with the prior correspondence
submitted to the regulatory and trustee agencies.
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BOEM did not object to these commercial impact findings according to its
own procedures and is now bound to accept “reasonable foreseeable impacts on
commercial fishing” now existing which triggers immediate requirements for
complete, enforceable, mitigation and monitoring before the commencement of
site surveys. Later, of course, mitigation can be expanded with flexible
procedures similar to the MBLA MBC and Trustees’ Mitigation Fund Committee,
when the specificity of project designs and placement call for more and different
mitigation and during a further Certification or Permitting by the State Agencies.
Having mo enforceable mitigation based on this Consistency Determination,
however, is not an option under either CEQA, NEPA, or CZMA.

4. Without citation to statutes, regulations, findings, judicial authority or a
balanced consideration of opposing perspectives, the Commission would
dismiss some of the most fundamental principles of modern land use and
environmental law: the broad consensus and undisputed principles
against deferred mitigation, unenforceable mitigation before any part of
the “whole of the action” (or “project”) commences, no minimal or
unsubstantial mitigation, a completely public and transparent process
with an opportunity of the “concerned citizenry” to be heard, and
consideration of “new information” through additional analysis and
public review. When agencies’ action and procedures drift away from
keystone principles, there is cause for all involved to take a critical look
at the “drift” before irreparable damage occurs to either the environment
or commercial fishing protected by the State’s Coastal Management
Program, the California Constitution, etc. Substance controls form when
findings of existing impacts to commercial fishing merely from leasing
have been adopted.

5. The Consistency Determination contains an omission in the consistency
findings related to the Certified Local Coastal Program of the City of
Morro Bay — where, of course, the largest commercial fishing fleet is
harbored, closest to the Morro Bay Lease Areas, and most likely to be
highly impacted from leasing, surveys, construction, operation through

* See July 1, 2022 Consistency Determination correspondence from Holly Wyer to Doug Boren, BOEM Regional
Director, confirming the conditions and findings of the Commission.
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de-commissioning. (See CD-0004-22, p. 17, only references
Commission certification of “L.CPs for portions of San Luis Obispo

County that are relevant to this CD”.) Morro Bay is an incorporated city
with its own Certified Local Coastal Program. This material omission
should be remedied through further NEPA/CEQA compliance and
identification of enforceable mitigation and monitoring of existing and
reasonably foreseeable commercial fishing impacts from offshore wind
projects.

6. We appreciate your references to the Work Group process, the
recommendations of which are not enforceable without further action,
adoption and ratification through a public hearing process and related
environmental review. More to the immediate point, however, and
identified in prior correspondence, no site surveys can occur or be
permitted by either BOEM, State Lands Commission or the Coastal
Commission until review, adoption, and completion of the protocols and
best practices for site surveys. The site surveys cannot be commenced
before the complete compliance, prior to the issuance of any permits or
commencement of site survey activities, with Public Resources Code
Section 30616 (c) (b) “statewide strategy ...shall include best practices
for addressing impacts to the commercial...fishing industries. . .associated
with offshore wind energy projects, including, but not limited to, the
following: ... (3) Best practices for offshore surveys and data collection
to assess impacts.” It would be a futile exercise for the Legislature to
have required best practices for site surveys to be developed after site
surveys lasting up to five years have occurred.

7. All of the agencies have to follow the procedures required when “new
information” about impacts have been presented whether under NEPA,
the Commission’s functional equivalent process for impacts to State
submerged and tidelands, and/or the State Lands Commission permitting
of site surveys and CEQA compliance requirements.

Please appreciate that emails and correspondence from this office and from
the MBCFO and PSLCFA are intended to raise legitimate concems, present

substantial evidence, to clarify processes, and to foster confidence in the process
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of assuring the highest, transparent, and complete compliance with both NEPA
and CEQA.

As we explained in prior correspondence, the solution we have proposed for
these and the many other deficiencies have been described by the joint work of the
President’s Council on Environmental Quality (CEA) and the California
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research quoted at length in at pp. 5-6 of my
prior correspondence dated November 14, 2023, to which no regulatory or trustee
agency has responded. The obvious gravitas of these two agencies at the pinnacle
of authority for both the U.S. Government and the State of California is clearly
described in “NEPA and CEQA: Integrating Federal and State Environmental
Reviews” (2014).

The current status of these projects seems to be the exact situation of single
projects crossing Federal and State jurisdictions where NEPA and CEQA
integration would be appropriate and mandatory based on the joint
recommendations of the CEQ and OPR. The new information submitted cannot
be dealt with via email evaluations at the staff level or other non-statutory
procedures which do not involve complete public transparency and compliance
with established CEQA and NEPA procedures with which no one can reasonably
disagree given the combined gravitas of CEQ and OPR.

We constructively urge the Coastal Commission, State Lands Commission,
all other State agencies with jurisdiction, and BOEM (and other federal agencies)
to follow the procedures identified for “Integrating Federal and State
Environmental Reviews” under CEQA and NEPA. The process can not only
address new information regarding site survey impacts which mandate a further
NEPA/CEQA review, but also provide an opportunity to enact enforceable
mitigation and monitoring of commercial fishing impacts from the projects before
further project actions such as site surveys commence, and reconcile omissions
and inconsistencies in the Consistency Determination identified above.

Respectfully yours,
54
WIL S. WALTER

https://william—s—walter-a—professional—comoration.business.site/
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APPENDIX V
COASTAL COMMISSION CONSISTENCY
DETERMINATION FINDINGS DISCUSSING
PRESENTLY KNOWN IMPACTS FROM THE
BOEM MORRO BAY LEASE AREAS OFF SHORE

WIND PROJECTS
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA - NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR

CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION

ENERGY, OCEAN RESOURCES AND FEDERAL CONSISTENCY
455 MARKET STREET, SUITE 300

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105-2421

VOICE (415) 904-5200

FAX (415) 904-5400

W7a

CD Filed: 4/15/2022
60" Day: 6/14/2022
Staff: HW-SF

Staff Report: 5/20/2022
Hearing Date:  6/8/2022
Vote: 8-0

ADOPTED FINDINGS

Consistency Determination No.: CD-0004-22
Applicant: Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
Location: In federal waters offshore of San Luis Obispo

County, approximately 20 miles off Cambria

Project Description: Conduct a lease sale for up to 240,898 acres
of federal waters for the future development of
offshore wind energy facilities. Permit lessees
to conduct site characterization and
assessment activities and submit a
construction and operations plan for
development of offshore wind energy on their
leases.

Commission Action: Conditional Concurrence
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SUMMARY OF COMMISSION ACTION

The Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) seeks the Commission’s
concurrence that proposed leasing and lease activities within the Morro Bay Wind
Energy Area (Morro Bay WEA, or WEA), located approximately 20 miles off Cambria, is
consistent with California’s Coastal Management Program (CCMP). The CCMP consists
of the enforceable policies of Chapter 3 of the Coastal Act (Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§
30200-30265.5). BOEM anticipates issuing up to three leases, covering up to 240,898
acres, as part of the Morro Bay WEA lease sale. BOEM's leases would allow lessees to
perform geophysical, geotechnical, and biological surveys and would permit site
assessment activities, including the temporary placement of up to three metocean
buoys and oceanographic devices. After BOEM's lessees complete surveys and site
assessment activities, the lessees would submit a construction and operations plan
(COP) to develop a lease. The submission of a COP starts the federal environmental
review process for specific wind development projects and would require BOEM's
lessees to receive consistency certifications from the Commission prior to any further
development being approved by BOEM.

The proposed lease sale is the culmination of many years of work by BOEM, as well as
other federal and state agencies, to develop offshore wind resources in California. The
state of California has set aggressive goals to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, move
to clean energy sources, and achieve carbon neutrality as soon as possible, but no later
than 2045. California will need to roughly triple its current electric power capacity to
meet the 2045 target for clean energy, and the California Energy Commission has
modeled scenarios that involve producing up to 10 gigawatts of energy from offshore
wind. Likewise, the federal government has set a goal to deploy 30 gigawatts of
offshore wind in the United States by 2030 and has been working hard to develop those
wind resources quickly, while still protecting coastal uses and resources. On the U.S.
east coast, there are currently two operating offshore wind farms, one more that is fully
permitted, and fifteen additional projects that have reached the permitting phase. This is
the first proposed lease sale of offshore WEAs on the west coast.

The federal Energy Policy Act of 2005 set up the legal framework under which BOEM
analyzes potential WEAs, conducts planning, leases sites, and oversees the site
assessment and construction and operation of commercial wind facilities. Pursuant to its
authority under that law, in 2016 BOEM established a Renewable Energy Task Force
with California to facilitate coordination among federal agencies and affected state,
local, and tribal governments throughout the offshore wind leasing process. Following
the first Task Force meeting, BOEM and the state, led by the California Energy
Commission, engaged in a collaborative, data-based offshore wind energy planning
process to foster coordinated and informed decisions about California’s ocean
resources. In addition to participating with the Task Force, Commission staff also
participate in a state interagency working group to coordinate the state’s regulatory,
research, and planning work on offshore wind. Other agencies participating in the
waorking group include the California Energy Commission, Ocean Protection Council,
Department of Fish & Wildlife, Public Utilities Commission, State Lands Commission,
Governor's Office of Planning and Research, and Department of Parks & Recreation.
This working group provided joint comments to BOEM on that agency's environmental
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targeted by fishers on the West Coast were rockfishes??, albacore tuna, lingcod, halibut
and salmon.

Pacific coast-wide in 2019, marine recreational anglers took an estimated 3.8 million
trips and caught a total of more than 11 million fish. Almost 90 percent of these trips
were made in California, followed by approximately 6 percent in Oregon, and 4 percent
in Washington. The most commonly caught (as opposed to targeted) non-bait species
(in numbers of fish) across all trips were Pacific (chub) mackerel, kelp bass, black
rockfish, California scorpionfish, and vermilion rockfish. The largest harvests by weight
across all trips were albacore, lingcod, black rockfish, Chinook salmon, vermilion
rockfish, and coho salmon. Approximately 71% of trips occurred in state waters, 17% in
federal waters, and 12% in inland waters. Of those trips that fished primarily in federally
managed waters, the non-bait species most commonly caught (in numbers of fish) were
Callifornia scorpionfish, ocean whitefish, vermilion rockfish, squarespot rockfish, and

bocaccio. Other popular recreational catch, particularly on CPFV vessels. are salmon
and halibut (NMFS, 2019).

Recreational fishing typically uses smaller scale fishing methods, such as hook and line,
trolling, hand nets, or occasionally harpoon. With limited exceptions, recreational fishing
Is generally a nearshore activity due to the limited trip lengths, smaller size of vessels,
weather conditions, and cost. One recreational fishery that does operate farther offshore
in the Central Coast region is the HMS fishery, although there is limited overlap with the
boundary of the WEA. As can be seen in Exhibit 3-13, which shows CPFV activity

(recreational for hire fishing), fishing intensity is higher closer to shore, but still present
in the WEA.

Social and Cultural importance of Fisheries

Aside from the economic importance of fisheries described above, fishing activity is also
interwoven into the societal and cultural fabric of communities up and down the coast.
Modern fishing has been a part of the Central Coast community economy since modem
cities were founded but has been an integral part of the indigenous coastal communities
since time immemorial. Monterey, in particular, invokes a historical connection to
Cannery Row, and the abundance of sardines and other CPS that supported much of
the region’s early economy. Liu et al (2019) describe how current Central Coast fishing
communities provide a vital link to the past, especially in Morro Bay, which once
supported a prominent abalone fishery that is quintessentially tied to the seafood
identity of coastal California. Fishing communities and the infrastructure associated with
them provide jobs and amenities to the surrounding community, as well as promote a
broader connection with the public to the ocean. For Tribes and other entities that rely
on fisheries for subsistence, access to even a small quantity of fish is important for food
security and to the continuance of cultural traditions. Thus, even those fisheries that
make up a smaller component of the overall economic value in the Central Coast may
still be critical to the existence and identity of an area, even when value or poundage of

22 Fishing for certain types of rockfish on the Central Coast is currently depth limited but is proposed to be

moved outside of the 50 fathom depth contour for recreational fishing of certain species in order to reduce
nearshore fishing impacts to copper and quillback rockfish.
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landings itself conveys a less substantial role.

Lease Exploration Impacts

During the leasing period, a lessee may conduct lease exploration activities within the
WEA including shallow hazards assessments, geological, geotechnical, archaeological,
and biological surveys, and installation, operation, and decommissioning of data
collection buoys. These activities have the potential to interfere with commercial and
recreational fishing in and offshore of Cambria primarily through impacts to important
fishery species and space-use conflicts within staging locations and offshore.

Data collection buoys may exclude fishing operations that frequent deeper water, in
particular mobile gear fisheries. Mobile fishing is typically defined as any operation with
active gear such as nets or dredges that are set out and hauled back with winches or
drums while the vessel and gear are underway, typically on a cycle measured in
minutes or hours. Using this type of gear significantly hinders a fisher's ability to
maneuver their vessel during operations, including around structures that are affixed to
the seafloor, such as buoys. Fishermen could also suffer decreased efficiency (such as
spending mare time on fishing by setting and hauling gear) when trying to avoid buoys
during their operations. Decreased efficiency can result in increased time at sea, fuel
expenses, and additional wear on equipment. The spatial extent of de facto exclusion
from fishing grounds may be estimated (as a proxy) using US Coast Guard (USCG)
safety zone considerations for OCS facilities where 500-meter (1,640 feet) safety zones
were established to promote the safety of life and property.2® Using this approach
estimates a 0.785 km? (0.303 mi?) circular exclusion zone per buoy. Although the
exclusion area itself is not very large, avoiding this area could mean that fishermen
have to modify fishing activity or transits to continue fishing and navigating safely. If
fishermen fail to avoid buoys, subsequent entanglement may result in damage to or loss
of fishing gear for which they could be held financially liable. Mobile gear types appear
to have limited operations in the Morro Bay WEA, however, other fisheries operating
within the WEA may also be affected by buoy placement, but the impact is expected to
be minimal: deployment and retrieval of other gears may have more maneuverability
compared to mobile bottom gear such as trawls.

As described above in more detalil in section E, sampling or site assessment activities
may result in adverse impacts to fish and other marine species that could lead to an
indirect impact on commercial or recreational fishing. Geophysical surveys that use
acoustic methods may negatively impact fish in the larval stage as well as have
negative impacts on the ability of fish to hear within the water column. To address this
concern, BOEM has clarified that high-energy acoustic surveys are not assessed in the
EA and will not be authorized as part of a lease, and as such, impacts to fish species
are not expected to be significant. Furthermore, Condition 1{c-e) requires geophysical
surveys to be conducted using low-energy equipment, including subbottom profilers,
echosounders, and side-scan sonars, and requires BOEM to encourage lessees to
collaborate on their survey plans to increase efficiency and minimize impacts to coastal

23 33 CFR §147.1109
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resources associated with the surveys. In addition, survey vessels could disturb
important seafloor habitats or accidentally release oil or other hazardous materials into
the ocean. As described in more detail in section E, Conditions 1(f) and 2 require
BOEM to ensure lessees avoid hard substrate habitat and submit a variety of plans,
including an Anchoring Plan, a project-specific Spill Prevention and Response Plan and
a Critical Operations and Curtailment Plan to ensure that vessels operate safely and
avoid impacts to the marine environment. In addition to data collection buoys, site
characterization and assessment activities may result in conflicts to the marine

WEA. Proposed lease exploration activities involve survey vessels mobilizing and
transiting from port (it is unknown which port at the present time) to the WEA. The
number of round trips for project-related vessels over a 3-year period will range from
188-274 for 24-hour operations or 566-598 for 10-hour daily operations. An additional
21-30 round trips will be conducted over a five-year period for the deployment,
maintenance, and decommissioning of up to three metocean buoys. The addition of

Typical mitigation measures to reduce the previously described space-use conflicts
focus on avoidance and procedures to increase navigation safety. For example, vessel

compliance.

Furthermore, at the end of the approximately 5-year lease exploration term, data
collection instrumentation will be decommissioned, and large marine objects removed
S0 any existing de facto exclusion zones will be eliminated. To enhance navigational
safety, lessees will develop survey plans and SAPs that will include site-specific

2 Although specific fish surveys have not been Proposed, NOAA (NMFS) has indicated that it may be
necessary to obtain an Exempted Fishing Permit or Letter of Authorization for the take species. CDFW

also has indicated that it may be necessary to obtain g scientific collection permit (dependent on survey
activities and locations).
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measures to mitigate navigational concerns. Such measures may include a local notice
to mariners, designation of vessel traffic corridors, lighting specifications, incident
contingency plans, or other appropriate measures. According to BOEM, survey
development is an ongoing process, and each survey plan will be carefully evaluated,
not only for scientific rigor, but also incorporation of best management practices to

ensure measures are taken to minimize impacts to fish species, mammals, and to
promote save navigation.

In authorizing similar marine survey or infrastructure projects, the Commission has
typically required a series of mitigation measures to reduce or eliminate impacts to
fishermen and fisheries resources. Many of these measures are similar if not identical to
those required by BOEM.?® For example, communication with the maritime industry,
updating nautical charts and providing notice to mariners are commonly incorporated
measures. However, the Commission has also typically included a few additional
measures that are not currently included in BOEM's proposed activities. These include
specific prohibitions on contact with hard substrate, a submission of several emergency

response plans such as spill, anchoring, and critical operations and curtailment
(Conditions 1(f) and 2).

To ensure these measures are implemented, Condition 1(a-b) states that BOEM will
encourage continuous and open communication and dialogue between BOEM, the
lessees, the Coastal Commission, and other relevant state agency staff during review of
survey plans and site assessment plans; BOEM will also coordinate with the Coastal
Commission and other relevant state agencies to provide access to the lessees’ survey
plan submissions. Additionally, Condition 7 will require continued close coordination
with members of the fishing industry, primarily through a fishing liaison, to ensure that
timing of surveys is considered (i.e.; in relation to fishing seasons) as well as ensuring
proper channels of communication are in place to minimize potential on-water conflict.
With these measures included and as described above, the proposed lease activities
will be implemented in a manner that recognizes and protects the economic importance
of marine resources and commercial/recreational fishing and are therefore consistent
with Sections 30230, 30234, and 30234.5 of the Coastal Act.

Future Lease Development Impacts

As described in section B, the purpose of this section is to identify and assess
reasonably foreseeable impacts associated with potential future development of
offshore wind leases. At this stage, there is not enough information to conduct the type
of comprehensive and cumulative socioeconomic analysis for potentially impacted
fisheries that will be necessary to evaluate specific projects. However, there is sufficient
information to conduct a siting-level analysis that incorporates information on the size of
the wind area and the maximum potential build-out capacity, development and
infrastructure likely needed to support offshore wind development, the types of fisheries

%5 BOEM guidance for providing information on fisheries social and economic conditions for renewable
energy development on the Atlantic OCS is available here:
https:/iwww.boem.gov/sites/default/files/documents/about-
boem/Social%20%26amp%3B%20Econ%20Fishing%20Guidelines.pdf
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resent that have a potential to be impacted, and different strategies that have or could

p
be employed to ensure that impacted fishing communities remain protected, viable and
resilient.

As described earlier in this section, the waters offshore California support numerous
types of fishing, and there is a high cultural and economic significance associated with
these activities. In its EA, BOEM identified the fishing grounds for sablefish, thorny
heads, chinook salmon, and swordfish as overlapping with the WEA_ These fisheries
are an important part of the overal| landings value in the Central Coast region, and

from potential wind development are complex and will vary on a fishery by fishery, and
even individual basis. However, there are common potential impacts that have already
been identified and articulated by the industry.28 These include

I Exclusion. The ocean is a shared Space. Fishing and other uses must coexist

V. Loss or disruption of harbor Space and fishing infrastructure at ports due to
increased presence of wind related facilities.

Each of these impacts will be explored further below.

fishing organizations in a public comment
letter. The impacts have been sy mmarized in this document, but the full list of concerns

/potential impacts
¢an and should be considered in the Scope of future project development.
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(1) Exclusion

There are currently a multitude of protected and/or conservation areas in both state and
federal waters that specifically impact when and where fishing can take place. These
areas, which include Essential Fish Habitat (EFH), HAPCs, Marine Protected Areas
(MPAs) and National Marine Sanctuaries, also affected the siting of the WEA itself. EFH
designates areas important for fish spawning, breeding, feeding or growth, and can
include full or partial fishing closures, especially for groundfish. EFH areas near the
WEA include Monterey Bay/Canyon, West of Sobrantes Point, Point Sur Deep, Big Sur
Coast/Point San Luis, La Cruz Canyon, West of Piedras Blancas State Marine
Conservation Area, East San Lucia Bank, and Point Conception (Exhibit 3-14).
Northwest of the Morro Bay WEA is the Davidson Seamount, an area which fishing
below 500 fathoms is prohibited.

A HAPC is a discrete subset of EFH, which designates areas that provide extremely
important ecological functions or are especially vulnerable to degradation. On the
western portion of the WEA, there is a large overlap with HAPC (most likely hard bottom
habitat), shown in Exhibit 2-1b. MPAs designate important marine habitat areas and
may include fishing closures. There are 29 state protected areas in this region between
Pigeon Point and Point Conception that cover approximately 204 square miles (three
are north of Monterey County): approximately half allow some amount of commercial
and recreational fishing (CDFW, 2019b). The Monterrey Bay National Marine Sanctuary
is adjacent to a northeast portion of the WEA in federal waters, and the proposed
Chumash Heritage National Marine Sanctuary (which is still in process of pursuing
designation) shares its southern border.

The protected area exclusions described above are just one example of fishing
exclusion. Certain types of fishing areas are also limited by seasonal closures, depth
limitations, gear restrictions, and quota limits, which affect the amount of allowable
catch. These limitations result in much smaller areas in which fishermen are able to
continue to harvest catch. Although not yet completed, this is expected to be illustrated

through a story map created by Central Coast fishermen that is similar to the North
Coast Fisheries Mapping Project.?”

On top of the exclusions described above, offshore wind development within the WEA
would likely result in an additional up to 376 square miles closed to fishing for at least
the next three decades and likely longer. Based on a review of current fisheries data,
several different fisheries could be affected by exclusion from the WEA. These include
salmon, hagfish, groundfish, and HMS (including recreational). While fishing for salmon
could potentially occur in the WEA, based on the expansive range of the species, most
documented fishing activities for the species occur in closer proximity to the coast. The
dominant form of groundfishing in the WEA is pot (typically for sablefish) which would
be impacted by leasing and future development projects. Trolling gear and some gear
used with HMS and fishing techniques are slightly more flexible, it is not certain that
salmon trolling or all HMS fishing would be wholly excluded from the WEA. With respect

Z (North Coast Fisheries Mapping Project (arcgis.com)
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to HMS, it is anticipated that this fishery (both commercial and recreational) may be
impacted by the execution of leasing activities and wind development because it will
inhibit direct access to some fishing grounds such as those used by the swordfish
fishery. Additionally, given the variability of the temperature margins that HMS species
follow, it is possible that the species distribution could overlap at higher (or lower) levels
with a physical location of future development. Like salmon, hagfish activity is also
generally reported closer to shore, although the depth range of the species overlaps
with the WEA. With respect to shrimp fishing, the pink shrimp and spot prawn fishery
range is shallower than the current boundary of the WEA, and are not likely to
experience significant impacts from the leasing activities (Exhibit 3-1 3). CPS also occur
closer to shore and are not likely to experience significant overlap with survey activities.

(2) Displacement

Displacement occurs when fishermen can no longer access historic grounds and
instead seek fishing opportunities elsewhere, which can overlap and lead to conflicts
with other fisheries. The impacts associated with displacement can be difficult to
quantify in areas such as the Central Coast where fishing activity that takes place in and
around the WEA may not be landed at one of the Central Coast ports (i.e., Moss
Landing, Monterey, Morro Bay or Port San Luis/Avil), but in more distant ports, such as
Santa Cruz, San Francisco or farther south in Santa Barbara or LA/LB. Or, even if fish
are caught and |landed in the Central Coast, it is often the case that a significant portion

of the fishing vessels are homeported outside the region, making it difficult to track
impacts associated with displacement.

For offshore fisheries such as groundfish, salmon, and HMS, development within the
WEA could result in the need to relocate to other fishing grounds that are less valuable,
farther away or already in use by other fishermen, if adequate fishing grounds are
available under current environmental and regulatory conditions. Displacing fishermen
into fishing grounds that are farther away could result in increased costs related to time

and fuel, and safety risks resulting from fishing farther away from port, or close to wind
facilities.

Nearshore fisheries, such as CA halibut, market squid, CPS and Dungeness crab, that
are caught in waters primarily inshore of the WEA, are not expected to experience direct
impacts from offshore wind turbines in the WEA but may be displaced by related
development. Offshore wind development will require power cables and other
infrastructure to bring the power onshore. Construction and operation of these cables

“no fishing” buffer around the fiber optics cables in order to minimize potential
interaction and snags. In addition, nearshore fisheries are likely to be competing for
space with other fisheries that have been displaced. For example, the nearshore areg

directly offshore of the Central Coast Supports high, episodic squid fishing activity, and
this is certainly a concern for this and other nearshore fisheries.
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For the recreational sector, the presence of fishing within the WEA is somewhat limited.
It is possible, however, that development within the WEA could inhibit access to fishing
grounds for highly migratory species, such as albacore tuna or swordfish, or other
species that may occur farther offshore such as rockfish. There is significant variation
with the location of fishing for HMS activity due to the variability of temporal habitat.
However, the general trends of the fishery appear to be to the north (in their highest
density) of the WEA, which suggests that the recreational (as well as commercial HMS
fishery) is not likely to be significantly displaced from its fishing grounds (Exhibit 3-13).
As future conditions shift, conflicts could occur.

(3) Increased costs and time at sea

The potential development of wind facilities offshore of the Central Coast could result in
increased time (and therefore cost) of being at sea for many fishermen. Displaced
fishermen may need to travel farther away to achieve the same catch. This could mean
much longer trips in and out of ports, which increases fuel costs, vessel wear and tear,
and potentially the number of overall trips a vessel could take due to time on the water.
The simplest way to describe this is through an example. As shown in Exhibit 3-10 the
albacore tuna fishery is active primarily on the north side of the WEA. Currently, fishing
that takes place from the ports south of the WEA would access fishing grounds through
a direct route.

According to the data generated by Coastal Commission staff (and inspired by the North
Coast fishermen’s mapping study) (Exhibit 3-16) it currently takes approximately 7
hours to access the center of the WEA. If fishermen are no longer able to take a direct
route through the WEA, but instead have to go around, that can add at least one or
more hours to the trip depending on the wind facility layout. That additional transit time
adds fuel costs, and reduces the amount of time the fishermen spend actually fishing
(depending on the fishery). More time to access fishing grounds can ultimately result in
an overall reduction of trips that a vessel is able to take. Less trips generally equate to
less overall harvest, or in the case of recreational/CPFV fishing, less business. Vessels
also report that in circumstances where the vessels remain at sea overnight, a vessel
can drift as far as 10 nautical miles. This would mean that fishermen in this situation
would need to leave a 2-hour buffer from a wind farm to ensure that they were not
placing their vessels or persons at risk of collision.

Finally, many fishermen have brought up the fact that fishing around wind development
will require additional space beyond the boundary of the WEA. Certain types of fishing
gear, such as a sablefish pot, drift horizontally in the water column before it reaches the
bottom. The horizontal distance travelled varies with ocean conditions, but can drift up
to a mile from where it was set. If fishing in or around a wind facility, this would add a
mile buffer around the entire perimeter of the lease area that would also be considered
unfishable (subject to an individual fishermen's assumption of risk).

(4) Loss of future fishing grounds.

Fishing is a highly variable vocation, and as such, the construction and operation of a

stationary offshore wind facility and its associated infrastructure have a high probability
of impacting the ability of fisheries to adapt to the changing spatial-temporal conditions
that define fishing. This makes predicting the exact potential for loss of future fisheries
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as a result of wind development extraordinarily difficult. Fishing activity, especially for
HMS fisheries which vary seasonally in relation to water temperature, are already
difficult to predict year to year with precision. When coupled with broad scale predictions

fisheries will look like in the future. However, given the realities of a warming ocean and

climate change, it is highly likely that future fishing grounds will be different than they
are today.

A potential loss of future fishing grounds could apply to multiple fisheries, whether or not
they have occurred in the WEA in the past. This includes the HMS fishery, ocean
salmon, groundfish, and hagfish (an open access fishery). Specifically described with
the groundfish trawl industry was the recent return of permits to the industry in 2019,
which allow the activity to resume after nearly two decades of cessation.28 While activity
of this type is not currently occurring in great volume, the construction of offshore wind
facilities would substantially lessen the area where it could.

Currently under developmentis a comparable study to the North Coast Fishermen’s
Mapping Project,2® which mapped potential future fishing grounds in the North Coast
(see CD-0001-22 exhibits), which is expected to show fishing potential on the Central
Coast, which may (or may not) overlap with the Morro Bay WEA. Regardless, a loss of
area to use for future fishing operations makes it more difficult to adapt fishing
operations over time, and as such, business planning for successiul years of operations

Sustainable Fisheries:

-ex-vessel values translate into waterfront economic activities. As stated in a
2017 report prepared for the Morro Bay Commercial Fishermen’s Organization
(MBCFO), ex-vessel values from commercial fishing are: “..directly responsible
for approximately 200 Jobs for skippers, deckhands dock workers and local

td

make up the backbone of Morro Bay’s Robust and Diverse economy.”

This sentiment echoes concerns raised by fishermen and processors on the North
Coast: that even a small loss of fishing grounds and activity can have much more

% North Coast Fisheries Mapping Project (arcgis.com): A similar exercise is occurring for Central
Coast fisheries.: A similar exercise is occurring for Central Coast fisheries.
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expansive impacts to associated businesses.

(5) Loss or disruption of harbor space and fishing infrastructure at ports due to
increased presence of wind related activities and facilities.

Offshore wind development in the Morro Bay WEA may require substantial port and
harbor space to support assembly and staging of turbines and other equipment. There
are a few existing and ongoing studies examining feasibility of various ports the state, to
serve as a support base for the offshore wind industry. However, ports such as Los
Angeles/Long Beach, Port Hueneme, Diablo Canyon, Morro Bay, and even ports farther
north such as Oakland could serve to support OSW in a future development capacity.
As these studies and decisions are ongoing, the scope and scale of upgrades needed
to support offshore wind infrastructure on the north and Central Coasts, and thus any
coastal resource impacts that would result from those upgrades, is uncertain. However,
examples from the east coast can provide some information that can assist in
describing potential impacts.

As noted above, staging for offshore wind and the associated pier/berth facilities can
take up a significant amount of space. In the Port of New Bedford, which is an urban
port in Southeastern, MA being developed as a staging area for (currently) two offshore
wind projects, a 29-acre site is being developed on an existing waterfront site. Features
of the New Bedford OSW marine terminal include:

= Co-location with more than 200 maritime businesses

= 29-acre facility, including 21-acres of heavy-lift capacity: uniform loading up to
4,100 pounds/square foot and crane loads of up to 20,485 pounds/square foot

= 1,200 feet of bulkhead, including 800 feet of deep draft berthing and 400 feet of
barge berthing space

= Within the most protected port in the U.S., with the U.S. Army Corps Hurricane
Barrier that guards against storms up to Category 3 hurricanes

= No height restrictions on site, and no overhead restrictions from the Terminal to
open water

= Easy roadway connections to interstate highway system via 1-95 or 1-495 (via
connections through New Bedford Route 18 and MA Route 140 and/or Route I-
195) '

= No Harbor Maintenance Tax

In terms of fishing, New Bedford is considered one of the most economically valuable
fishing ports in the country supporting more than 100 (homeported) vessels and landing
more than a million pounds of seafood a day (Commercial Fishing, 2018). ltis home to
vessels, processors, wholesalers and restaurants that all rely on the industry. The
incorporation of the offshore wind site in New Bedford is on an existing developed
parcel, and part of the design includes expanded seafood offloading facilities. An
important distinction between the two coasts is that the wind turbines on the West Coast
have the potential to be much larger than those used on the east coast, and thus, the
space needed to stage them (and the vessels needed to transport them) will likely have
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to be larger.

Coastal Act Analysis and Approaches to Avoidance, Minimization and Mitigation

As described in detail in the previous sections, activities related to offshore wind leasing
and foreseeable future development within the Morro Bay WEA will result in impacts to
the fishermen and fisheries of California’s Central Coast. Several fisheries: pot:
(sablefish) drift gillnet (thresher shark/swordfish), and trolling (albacore tuna) currently
overlap with portions of the WEA and would likely be excluded from these areas if
offshore wind development is authorized. To varying degrees, all Central Coast fisheries

financial planning, such as deciding whether to take on debt to purchase new
equipment. Communications with the fishing industry during outreach activities and
through comments on the BOEM Draft EA reiterate this concern,

Although the exact im pacts of future wind development are not known at this time, there
are immediate and reasonably foreseeable future effects that need to be addressed in
order to protect the economic and commercial importance of fishing activities, as
required by Coastal Act Sections 30234.5 and 30230. The Central Coast landings
averaged $19.6 million annually (2010-2020 average), accounting for approximately
12% of commercial landings statewide30. This value does not fully address the
economic value of fishing crews, fish Processors, gear manufacturers, ship supply and

% The Fisheries of the U.S. report, page 38, states $164,327,000 of annual landings in 2019 for the state
of California.

94





CD-0004-22 (Bureau of Ocean Energy Management)

repair businesses, seafood retailers and restaurants in the Central Coast and beyond.
As such, the high-value fishing grounds in the Central Coast and the species that are
fished there can be considered areas and species of special economic significance that
garner specific protection under Section 30230. For example, the pot fishery for
sablefish, which contributes a significant portion of the overall catch landed in the
Central Coast, is likely to experience direct impacts (i.e.; economic loss) given the
overlap in fishing activity with the WEA boundaries.

The Coastal Act requires the protection of commercial and recreational fishing activities
and there are a variety of actions that could be taken to ensure that California's Central
Coast fishermen are protected and recognized. These could include disallowing
offshore wind development in portions of the WEA that correspond to the highest value
fishing grounds for the affected fisheries, creating buffers within the boundaries of the
WEA to allow for fishing activity to safely operate around the perimeter, developing a
program that helps affected fisheries adjust to changes in fishing grounds, gear
transitional programs, or developing a comprehensive mitigation package that
adequately compensates fishermen for the loss of these fishing grounds, and many
options in between.

It is possible, if not likely, that the ultimate solution will include elements of all these
options. At this time, it is not necessary to decide exactly how all of these impacts need
to be addressed. It is critical, however, that discussions about how to address impacts
to specific fisheries, and to the Central Coast fishing industry as a whole, include
affected fishermen and representatives of the fishing industry. It is also necessary at
this point in time to have BOEM, in concert with the Coastal Commission, other state
and federal agencies, Tribes, and fishing interests, begin setting forth a framework for
how the entire wind development process- from leasing decisions through actual wind
development-will address the effects that the process will have on fishing activities. If
this framework is not set up until later stages of the offshore wind development process,
such as during BOEM review of a COP, it will force the fishing industry to operate for
the next several years with significant uncertainty about potential future development. In
addition, if BOEM waited until lessees submitted COPs to analyze and address impacts
to fishing, it would likely be too late to gather the necessary information about the scale
and location of fishing activities as well as potential avoidance, minimization and
mitigation measures that are needed to adequately evaluate and address impacts. This
could significantly delay future project approvals.

In recognition of the importance of direct engagement, and in an effort to begin the
discussion with fishermen about how best to address the impacts described above,
representatives from State agencies, including Commission staff, and BOEM held a
series of meetings with representatives of the fishing community in Crescent City,
Eureka, Fort Bragg, Santa Barbara, and Morro Bay.3! At this stage of the offshore wind
process, the goal of the outreach was to meaningfully engage the fishing community
about the state and federal processes for OSW development, hear their concerns,
answer questions, and determine what the most appropriate avenue for addressing

L]

3 Meeting Summaries are available here: Upcoming Projects (ca.gov)
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impacts and mitigation would be moving forward. At these meetings, there were several
concerns that were echoed coastwide, that have largely been reflected in the impact

To achieve these goals, as well as the special protection required by the Coastal Act, all
parties — fishermen, offshore wind developers and state and federal agencies — will
need to work collaboratively towards a common strategy to avoid, minimize and mitigate
impacts to the fishing industry in a consistent and equitable manner. As the Central
Coast is not the only offshore region that is being considered for offshore wind
development (see CD-0001-22), it is important that the overall strategy be consistent

Similar to the fishing agreements required by CDPs authorizing fiber optic cable
installation and operation, the strategy will need to include communication protocols

The principals of impact avoidance, minimization, and non-monetary
mitigations should be considered for all aspects of an OSW project prior to
compensation-mitigation discussions, Make no mistake: fishermen would

rather have their areas of opportunity preserved than have financial
compensation for the Joss.

Once the strategy is developed, it will need to be applied through fishing agreements
between an entity representing fishermen and the developers. These agreements will

%2 Reguest for Information on Reducing or Avoiding Impacts of Offshore Wind Energy on Fisheries |

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (boem.govl
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need to lay out how mitigation funds will be spent, how decisions will be made, and the
process for amending the agreement as needed. It is the Commission’s expectation that
signed fishing agreements, consistent with the statewide strategy described above, will
be completed and submitted as part of any application for a CDP or a consistency
certification for an offshore wind project. To ensure progress toward development of the
statewide strategy, Condition 7 requires BOEM to work with Commission staff and
other state agency staff to facilitate a working group consisting of fishing
representatives, offshore wind industry representatives and federal and state agency
staff to develop the components of the strategy including a fishing agreement template.
Condition 7 also requires that the strategy include specific consideration for those
fisheries that are disproportionately and/or directly affected by offshore wind
development. Finally, to ensure that potential impacts to commercial and recreational
fishing during the lease exploration phase are minimized, Condition 7 requires BOEM
to require lessees to have an independent fisheries liaison that is responsible for
coordination and communication with affected fishermen and harbor districts. The
liaison will work with fishermen to coordinate timing of survey work, which has been a

documented source of conflict on the east coast, to and develop a process for reporting
and remediating conflicts.

In addition to development of the strategy described above, based on a review of
projects developed on the east coast, it can be assumed that at a minimum, the design
of future wind farms should incorporate measures that ensure safe navigation through
the lease areas, including possible identification of transit corridors. This is needed to
ensure continued, safe access to fishing grounds surrounding a potential wind farm, to
alleviate lengthy transit times, and to ensure that the economic interests of the fishing
industry are protected so that the industry can continue to effectively harvest from the
region. BOEM has conveyed that these concerns will likely be addressed through the
subsequent stages of its leasing process in which the USCG will be conducting a
Navigational Safety Risk Assessment. This process has the goal of promoting
navigational safety but is not a unilateral decision. Rather, the USCG makes
recommendations based on the best available information to apply transit lanes and/or
other safety measures to BOEM that the Bureau may then apply to its lessees.
Commerecial fishing traffic patterns are a component of this analysis and have been
integrated into prior risk assessments, such as those that have been completed on the
east coast (U.S. Coast Guard, 2018). Condition 4 ensures that BOEM will work with
stakeholders, including the USCG, NOAA, state agencies and the fishing and maritime
industries to ensure navigation through the lease areas.

Conclusion

Leasing activities and foreseeable future offshore wind development within the Morro
Bay WEA will result in project-specific and cumulative adverse impacts to multiple
fisheries of economic and social importance to the state of California. Fisheries and
fishing communities are likely to be directly impacted by lease exploration activities,
including by having increased vessel traffic in the ports near the area, exclusion areas
around metocean buoys, and the economic uncertainties caused by BOEM's leasing
process. In addition, the exact scale and location of future wind development is
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unknown at this time, but it is reasonably foreseeable that there will be future
development of at least some OSW projects. Such projects would affect fishing directly
due to the presence of wind turbines and related infrastructure (exclusion and
displacement) as well as indirectly through increased vessel traffic, potential harbor
development and decreases in trip efficiency. Although some of these activities will
occur outside of the coastal zone, much of the development activity—such as harbor
development and use, as well as cable-laying—will occur within the coastal zone. Also,
both the activities in and outside of the coastal zone will have coastal effects, as they
will both affect the coastal fishing community, the volume and value of fish landed at
ports and harbors, and the coastal economy. As such, it is imperative that BOEM,
lessees and developers work with the fishing community to minimize these effects in the
planning and development of potential projects to ensure that the seafood industry in
the Central Coast remains viable and robust. To achieve this, Condition 7 requires that

recreational fishing.

G. OIL SPILLS
Section 30232 of the Coastal Act states:

Protection against the spillage of crude oil, gas, petroleum products, or
hazardous substances shall be provided in relation to any development or
transportation of such materials. Effective containment and cleanup

facilities and procedures shall be provided for accidental spills that do
occur.

Lease Exploration

and/or crew, or due to natural events (i.e., strong waves or storms). As described in
previous sections of these findings, vessel traffic is expected to approximately triple as a
result of lease exploration activities, increasing the risk of an oil spill incident.

The CD provides general information on potential impacts from an oil spill, concluding

resources, the CD states:

From 2000 to 2009, the average spill size for vessels other than tank ships

98





IF YOU DO NOT RECEIVE ALL PAGES, PLEASE CALL SENDER AT 805 541-6601
IMMEDIATELY. IF YOU HA VE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICA TION IN ERROR,
PLEASE IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY US AT 805 541- 6601

WILLIAM S. WALTER
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
THE BELLO COTTAGE
677 MONTEREY STREET
SAN LUIS OBISPO, CALIFORNIA 93401
PHONE: 805 541 6601/ FAX: 805 541 6640
EMAIL:WWALTER@TCSN.NET

FACSIMILE TRANSMITTAL SHEET

HOLLY WYER, SENIOR ENV. SCIENTIST ~ #ros: WILLIAM S. WALTER, ESQ.
CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION

COMPANY: DATE:
12-8-2023
FAX NUMBER: TOTAL NO. OF PAGES, INCLUDING COVER;
415-904-5262 5 92 20
PHONE NUMBER: SENDER’S REFERENCE NUMBLR:

YOUR REFERENCE NUMBER:

MORRO BAY LEASE AREAS (BOEM)

URGENT [ FOR REVIEW O pLEASE COMMENT O pLEASE REPLY O prEASE RECYCLE

NOTES/COMMEN'TS:

ATTACHED IS CORRESPONDENCE DATED 12-8-2023 IN BEHALF OF MBCFO AND PSLFA
IN RESPONSE TO CORRESPONDENCE FROM HOLLY WYER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS COMMUNICATION IS INTENDED ONLY
FOR THE ADDRESSEE AND MAY BE C ONFIDENTIAL, MAY BE ATTORNEY- CLIENT
PRIVILEGED OR ATTORNEY WORK PROD UCE PRIVILEGED, AND MAY
CONSTITUTE CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATI ON; UNAUTHORIZED USE,

DISCLOSURE OR COPYING IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED, AND MAY BE UNLAWFUL,





Kim.Lunetta
Sticky Note
Rejected set by Kim.Lunetta

mailto:tschiafone@morrobayca.gov
mailto:jennifer.miller@boem.gov
mailto:douglas.boren@boem.gov
mailto:Kate.Huckelbridge@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:holly.wyer@coastal.ca.gov

Tom Hafer,
President of the Morro Bay Commercial Fishermen’s Organization (MBCFO) and Morro Bay Lease Area Mutual Benefit Corporation (MBLA MBC)

Cc : Directors of MBCFO and MBLA MBC

* Email to Morro Bay Wind developers from Bill Walter:

After our fourth meeting with the Developers, there was a consensus among the commercial fishing representatives that the position of the Developers about process and substance renders further meetings
futile. The associations will address their concerns about the absence of enforceable commercial fishing mitigation and site survey monitoring/impacts/mitigation to the regulatory and trustee agencies.

Its” unfortunate that the process has come to an impasse when the solutions are simple and would achieve the developer goals with appropriate mitigation:

e Perkins Coie attorneys wrote and approved the Bylaws, have the original work product on their computers, and now represent at least one of the developers. They could expeditiously
process the technical, ministerial amendments (number of developer trustees) reflecting the current three project developers where referenced in the Bylaws and Attachments. The
mitigation and coordination processes could be implemented immediately.

e The developers can then submit the requests for meetings concerning site surveys to the Trustees’ Committee, as currently constituted, which can meet, review, coordinate and address
concerns about impacts, monitoring, mitigation, timing, etc., of the site surveys. The names and officers of the duly appointed Trustees’ Committee are shown on the Committee Charter.
This avoids tying up two fishing fleets with more meetings with no end in sight or prospect of agreement, and growing frustration, risk, uncertainty, and resentment. The “process” the
developers can follow has been approved by the associations and the votes of their members and laid out already. The mechanisms for funding the costs of the coordination work which
directly benefits the developers is provided and overseen by developer representation in the MBC Bylaws with the few technical, ministerial, “clean-up” amendments to the Bylaws. It's
appropriate and necessary to internalize those costs as part of the projects rather than externalize administrative costs on the individual fishermen and their organizations who don’t
benefit from the displacements or the projects.

Sincerely,

Bill Walter

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
FISHERMEN'S ORGANIZATION (MBCFO) AND PORT SAN LUIS
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
douglas.boren@boem.gov;enjennifer.millerf@boem.gov;
California Coastal Commission ¢/o

kate Huckelbridge(@coastal.ca.gov; holly.wyer@coastal.ca.gov

California State Lands Com mission c¢/o Jennifer. Mattox(@sle.ca.gov
and Jennifer.Lucchesif@sle.ca.gov:

CSLC.CommissionMeetings(islc.ca.gov
Cc: Haas, Greg greg haas(@mail house.gov

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
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MORRO BAY COMMERCIAL FISHERMEN'S ORGAMIZATION (MBCFO) AND PORT SAN LUIS

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

1. The Coastal Commission's Consistency Determination, adopted June 8,
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
any portion of the Consistency Determination.'! The mitigation and
monitoring of these “immediate effects™ on commercial fishing expressly
protected by Califonia’s Coastal Management Program and State
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

' (See July 1, 2022 cormespondence from the Commission by Holley Wyer to Doug Boren,
Director, BOEM Regional Director; “Consistency Determination CD-114-22 (Moro Bay Wind
Energy Area)”.

? Bee Walter Correspondence, November 14, 2023, pp. 10-20.
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COMMERCIAL FISHERMAN ASSOCIATION (PSLCFA) RESPONSE TO COASTAL COMMISSION
CORRESPONDEMCE DATED MOVEMBER 28, 2023 (Holly Wyer): December B, 2023

found to be occurring now in direct conflict with various policies identified
at length in our prior submits.

2. Your letter presents the opinion that the “concept of deferred mitigation
under CEQA™ does not “apply to the Commission’s action. The reason
suggested for this conclusion is “CEQA does not generally extend to the
Commission’s CZMA"™ authority “on federal land” and the “outer
continental shelf.”

The Consistency Findings of the Commission do not support these straight-
jacket characterizations which would prevent achieving CCMP
consistency because of (a) “spillover effects™ into the Coastal Zone from
federal activities, (b) casements through State waters (and tidelands) to the
shoreline for energy transmission. and (¢) findings of the Commission’s
“authonty to review activities” within “federal waters.” The only
methodology available to the Commission in this process must be the
“functional equivalent” of CEQA, which is why the Commission
formulated both findings and “conditions” for BOEM to accept or reject
under 1ts own procedures:

(a) Spillover effects: “Thus, in its evaluation of this proposed lease
sale’s consistency with the Coastal Act, this Commission analyzes
spillover effects on coasial resources beyond federal waters.”
(CCC Consistency Determination CD-0004-212, p. 19.)

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
life within the coastal zome. Similarly, geophysical surveys could
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

“BOEM expecis that lessees would survey their entire proposed lease
area during the 5-year site assessment term...." (p. 29.)

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

(¢) The Commission findings assert discretion and review authority over
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
premises of that portion of BOEM's Consistency Determination submittal
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to the Commission, and the Environmental Assessment deferring the
identification of impacts, including commercial fishing, as not “reasonably
toreseeable.” BOEM acknowledges that:
“The analysis found here and found in the EA does not consider construction
and operation of any commercial wind power facilities.... based on several
factors. ..

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
reasonably foreseeable.” (BOEM, “Consistency Determination,” April 13,
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
leasing on commercial fishing quoted above and then| ...Based on past
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
such facilities could have on coastal resources.” (CD-0004-22, p. 24.)

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

“l. Exclusion. The ocean is a shared space. Fishing and other uses
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

“I1. Displacement. Related to Exclusion, fishers that are
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

"I11. Increased costs and time at sea to avoid wind development.
Placement of wind facilities can delay direct access to fishing
grounds and force fishers to fish or drift far outside of lease
boundaries due to movement of gear and vessels on the open ocean.
“1V. Loss of future fishing grounds. Fishing grounds are highly
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
“¥V. Loss or disruption of harbor space and fishing infrastructure
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
attached as Appendix V.

¥ To create a coordinated record, the Appendixes are consecutively numbered starting with the prior comrespondence
submitted o the regulatory and trusiee agencies.
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
the “whole of the action™ (or “project”) commences, no minimal or
unsubstantial mitigation, a completely public and transparent process
with an opportunity of the “concerned citizenry™ to be heard, and
consideration of “new information™ through additional analysis and
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
Morro Bay — where, of course, the larpest commercial fishing fleet is
harbored, closest to the Morro Bay Lease Areas, and most likely to be
highly impacted from leasing, surveys, construction, operation through

* See July 1, 2022 Consistency Determination comespondence from Holly Wyer to Doug Boren, BOEM Regional
Director, conflrming the conditions and findings of the Commission
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de-commissioning. (See CD-0004-22, p. 17, only references
Commission certification of “LCPs for portions of San Luis Obispo

County that are relevant to this CD".) Morro Bay is an incorporated city
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
environmental review, More to the immediate point, however, and
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
for addressing impacts to the commercial. .. fishing industries. . .associated
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
the Commission's functional equivalent process for impacts to State

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
President’'s Council on Environmental Quality (CEA) and the California
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research quoted at length in at pp. 5-6 of my
prior correspondence dated November 14, 2023, to which no regulatory or trustee
agency has responded. The obvious gravitas of these two agencies at the pinnacle
of authority for both the 11.S. Government and the State of California is clearly
described in “NEPA and CEQA: Integrating Federal and State Environmental
Reviews " (2014).

The current status of these projects seems to be the exact situation of single
projects crossing Federal and State jurisdictions where NEPA and CEQA
integration would be appropriate and mandatory based on the joint
recommendations of the CEQ) and OPR. The new information submitted cannot
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
to follow the procedures identified for “Imtegrating Federal and State
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

WIL 5. WALTER
https:/fwilliam-s-walter-a-professional-corporation.business.site/
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

ERERGY, DCEAN RESOURCES AND FEDERAL CONSISTENCY
455 MARKET STREET, SANTE 300
SAMN FRAMCISCO, CA B4105-2421

VOICE (415) 904-5200
FAX (115) B04-5400

W7a

CD Filed: 41572022
60" Day: B/1472022
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
assessment activihes and submit a
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

The Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) seeks the Commission's
concurrence that proposed leasing and lease activities within the Morro Bay Wind
Energy Area (Moo Bay WEA, or WEA), located approximately 20 miles off Cambria, is
consistent with California’s Coastal Management Program (CCMP). The CCMP consists
of the enforceable policies of Chapter 3 of the Coastal Act (Cal. Pub. Res. Code 8§
30200-30265.5). BOEM anticipates issuing up to three leases, covering up to 240,808
acres, as part of the Morro Bay WEA lease sale. BOEM's leases would allow lessees to
perform geophysical, geotechnical, and biological surveys and would permit site
assessment actlivities, including the temporary placement of up to three metocean
buoys and oceanographic devices. After BOEM's lessees complete surveys and site
assessment aclivities, the lessees would submit a construction and operations plan
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
than 2045, California will need to roughly triple its current electric power capacity to
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
resources. In addition fo participating with the Task Force, Commission staff also
participate in a state interagency working group to coordinate the state’s regulatory,
research, and planning work on offshore wind. Other agencies participating in the
working group include the California Energy Commission, Ocean Protection Council,
Department of Fish & Wildlife, Public Utilities Commission, State Lands Commission,
Governor's Office of Planning and Research, and Department of Parks & Recreation.
This working group provided joint comments to BOEM on that agency’s environmental
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targeted by fishers on the West Coast were rockfishes®®, albacore tuna, lingeod, halibut
and salmon.

Pacific coast-wide in 2019, marine recreational anglers took an estimated 3.8 million
trips and caught a total of more than 11 million fish. Almost 90 percent of these trips
were made in California, followed by approximately & percent in Oregon, and 4 percent
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
faderal waters, and 12% in inland waters. Of those trips that fished primarily in federally
managed waters, the non-bait species most commonly caught (in numbers of fish) were
California scorpionfish, ocean whitefish, vermilion rockfish, squarespot rockfish, and
bocaccio. Other popular recreational catch, particularly on CPFV vessels, are salmon
and halibut (NMFS, 2019).

Recreational fishing typically uses smaller scale fishing methods, such as hook and line,
trolling, hand nets, or occasionally harpoon. With limited exceptions, recreational fishing
is generally a nearshore activity due to the limited trip lengths, smaller size of vessels,
weather conditions, and cost. One recreational fishery that does operate farther offshore
in the Central Coast region is the HMS fishery, although there is limited overlap with the
boundary of the WEA. As can be seen in Exhibit 3-13, which shows CPFV activity

(recreational for hire fishing), fishing Intensity is higher closer to shore, but still present
in the WEA.

gl and jural |mponanée of Flsnerss

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
since time immemorial. Monteray, in particular, invokes a historical connection to
Cannery Row, and the abundance of sardines and other CPS that supported much of
the region’'s early economy. Liu et al (2019) describe how current Central Coast fishing
communities provide a vital link to the past, especially in Moo Bay, which once
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
still be critical to the existence and Identity of an area, even when value or poundage of

# Fishing for certain types of rockfish on the Central Coast is currently depth limited bul is proposed to be
moved outside of the 50 fathom depth contoyr for recreational fishing of certain species in order to raduce
nearshore fishing impacts to copper and quillback rockfish.
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landings itself conveys a less substantial role.

Lease Exploration Impacts

During the leasing pericd, a lessee may conduct lease exploration activities within the
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
spending more time on fishing by setting and hauling gear) when trying to avoid buoys
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
were established to promote the safety of life and property.?® Using this approach
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
within the WEA may also be affected by buoy placement, but the impact s expected to
be minimal: deployment and retrieval of other gears may have more maneauverability
compared to mobile bottom gear such as trawls.

As described above in more detail in section E, sampling or site assessment activities
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
concermn, BOEM has clarified that high-energy acoustic surveys are not assessed in the
EA and will not be authorized as part of a lease, and as such, impacis to fish species
are not expecied to be significant. Furthermore, Condition 1({c-e) requires geophysical
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
including an Anchering Plan, a project-specific Spill Prevention and Response Plan and
a Critical Operations and Curtailment Plan to ensure that vessels operate safely and
avoid impacts to the marine environment. In addition to data collection buoys, site
characterization and assessment activities may result in conflicts to the marine
operations and fishing vessels located near offshore of the Central Coast and in the
WEA. Proposed lease exploration activities Involve survey vessels mobilizing and
transiting from port (it Is unknown which port at the prasent time) to the WEA. The
number of round trips for project-related vessels over a 3-year period will range from
188274 for 24-hour operations or 566-598 for 10-hour daily operations. An additional
21-30 round trips will be conducted over a five-year period for the deployment,
maintenance, and decommissioning of up to three metocean buoys. The addition of
more vessels into the area may reduce efficiency of fishing operations due to time
delays associated with congestion. In addition, vessels associated with the leasing
activities may accidentally damage fishing gear (e.g., by cutting trap floats) or release
marine debris which could cause entanglement or interfere with other fishing operations.
Mearshore fishing activities may be further iImpacted due to the presence of survey
vessels conducting site analysis or fish surveys® (for example) along potential cable
routes. It should be noted, however, that both lease axploration activities and placement
of buoys are a temporary impact, which will conclude after approximately 5 years and
result in the removal of any installed metocean buoys and their associated gear that
may have been anchored to the ocean floor, per BOEM regulations.

Typical mitigation measures to reduce the previously described space-use conflicts
focus on aveidance and procedures to increase navigation safety. For example, vessel
operators are required to comply with regulations regarding pollution/discharge at sea
such as those under the Federal Water Pollution Act which regulates the release of oil
at sea, and those under the Clean Water Act, which regulates the discharge of pollution
at sea, and tha Marine Pollution Convention (Annex V) which regulates discharge of
trash at sea. These requirements reduce the likelihood of discharges into the marine
environment and ensure that if any accidental releases of trash and debris do occur, the
operator is responsible for reporting spllls as appropriate, recording authorized
discharges, and held accountable through violations and fines if found not in
compliance.

Furthermore, at the end of the approximately 5-year lease exploration tarm, data
collection instrumentation will be decommissioned, and large marine objects removed
s0 any existing de facto exclusion zones will be eliminated. To enhance navigational
safety, lessees will develop survey plans and SAPs that will include site-spacific

 Although specific fish surveys have not been proposed, NOAA (NMFS) has indicated that it may ba
necessary o obtain an Exempted Fishing Permit or Letter of Authorization for the take species. CDFW

alzo has indicated that it may be necessary 1o oblain a scientific collection permit {dependent on survey
activiies and locations).
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measures to mitigate navigational concemns. Such measures may include a local notice
to mariners, designation of vessel traffic corridors, lighting specifications, incident
contingency plans, or other appropriate measures. According to BOEM, survey
development is an ongoing process, and each survey plan will be carefully evaluated,
not only for sclentific rigor, but also incorporation of best management practices to
ensure measuras are taken to minimize impacts to fish species, mammals, and to
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
those required by BOEM.? For example, communication with the maritime industry,
updating nautical charis and providing notice to mariners are commonly incorporated
measures. However, the Commission has also typically included a few additional
measures that are not currently included in BOEM's proposed activities. These include
specific prohibitions on contact with hard substrate, a submission of several emergency
response plans such as spill, anchoring, and critical operations and curtaiment
(Conditions 1(f} and 2).

To ensure these measures are implemented, Condition 1{a-b} states that BOEM will
encourage confinuous and open communication and dialogue between BOEM, the
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
of marine resources and commercialfrecreational fishing and are therefore consistent
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
infrastructure likely needed to support offshere wind development, the types of fisherias

3 BOEM guidance for providing Information on fishedes social and economic conditions for renewable
energy development on the Atlantic OCS i avallable hara:

hitps:/iveww.boem aovisites/defaultifiles/documents/about-
boem/Social¥20% 26amp3 38% 20E con%20Fishing% 20Cuidelings, pdf
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present that have a potential to be impacted, and different strategies that have or could

be employed to ensure that impacted fishing communities remain protected, viable and
resilient.

As described earlier in this section, the waters offshore California support numerous
types of fishing, and thera is a high cultural and economic significance associated with
these activities. In its EA, BOEM identified the fishing grounds for sablefish, thorny
heads, chinook salmon, and swordfish as overlapping with the WEA. These fisheries
are an important part of the overall landings value in the Cenftral Coast region, and
BOEM's finding is consistent with COFW data presented in the first section. Other
fisheries presant within or near the WEA include coastal pelagic species, shrimp and
prawn, market squid, and Dungeness crab. Market squid, the highest value fishery in
the reglon, is generally fished nearer to shore (Exhibit 3-8) and does not have an
identified overlap with the WEA, although could be impacted by cable routes and other
lease development activities that would occur closer fo the coast. Impacts to fishing
from potential wind development are complex and will vary on a fishery by fishery, and
even individual basis. However, there are common potential impacts that have already
been identified and articulated by the industry.® These include:

I Exclusion. The ocean is a shared space. Fishing and other uses must coexist
and work through complex management and regulatory requirements. It is anticipated
that offshore wind development areas will become exclusionary zones and will restrict
already limited ocean space.

in. Displacement. Related to Exclusion, fishers that are excluded from the WEA may
be forced to relocate into other, already limited fishing grounds, placing additional

environmental pressure on the remaining habitat, and potentially increasing conflicts
between user groups.

lll. Increased costs and time at sea to avoid wind development. Placement of wind
facilities can delay direct access to fishing grounds and force fishers to fish or drift far
outside of lease boundaries due to movement of gear and vessels on the open ocean.

IV,  Loss of future fishing grounds. Fishing grounds are highly variable. Continuous
and often rapid changes in ocean conditions cause changes to fish populations which in
turn result in changes to fishing behavior year over year. Large-scale wind development
would efiminate a huge portion of potentially viable fishing area, limiting fishermen's
ability to adapt to changes in fishing grounds.

V. Loss or disruption of harbor space and figshing Infrastructure at ports due to
increased presance of wind related facilities,

Each of these impacts will be explored further below.

* These concerns wera brought forth by the fishing community during interagency outreach meetings, as
well as derived from a list of concemns submitted by numerous fishing organizations in a public comment

letter. The impacts have been summarized in this document, but the full list of concerns/potential impacts
can and should be considered in the scope of fulure project development.
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1 usion

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
Conservation Area, East San Lucia Bank, and Point Conceplion (Exhibit 3-14).
MNorthwest of the Mormo Bay WEA is the Davidson Seamount, an area which fishing
balow 500 fathoms is prohibited.

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
may include fishing closures. There are 29 stale protected areas in this region between
Pigeon Point and Point Conception that cover approximately 204 square miles (three
are north of Monterey County): approximately half allow some amount of commercial
and recreational fishing (COFW, 2018b). The Monterray Bay National Marine Sanctuary
is adjacent to a northeast portion of the WEA in federal waters, and the proposed
Chumash Heritage National Marine Sanctuary (which is still in process of pursuing
designafion) shares its southern border.

The protected area exclusions described above are just one example of fishing
axclusion. Certain types of fishing areas are also limited by seasonal closures, depth
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
the next three decades and likaly longer. Based on a review of current fisheries data,
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

A =t Fisheries Mapping Froject (arcgis.com

89


https://arcgis.com

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
follow, it is possible that the species distribution could overlap at higher {or lower) levels
with a physical location of future development. Like salmon, hagfish activity is also
generally reported closer to shore, although the depth range of the species overlaps
with the WEA. With respect to shrimp fishing, the pink shrimp and spot prawn fishary
range is shallower than the current boundary of the WEA, and are not likely to
experience significant impacts from the leasing activities (Exhibit 3-15). CPS also occur
closer to shore and are not likely to experience significant overlap with survey activities.

{2) Displacement

Displacement occurs when fishermen can no longer access historic grounds and
instead seek fishing opportunities elsewhere, which can overlap and lead to conflicts
with other fisheries. The impacts associated with displacement can be difficult to
quantify in areas such as the Central Coast where fishing activity that takes place In and
around the WEA may not be landed at one of the Central Coast ports (i.e., Moss
Landing, Monterey, Morro Bay or Port San Luis/Awvil), but in more distant ports, such as
Santa Cruz, San Francisco or farther south in Santa Barbara or LA/LB. Or, even if fish
are caught and landed in the Cenfral Coast, it is often the case that a significant portion

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
can adversely affect fishermen through temporary displacement or interference during
construction, and as an ongoing hazard especially for fishermen using bottomn contact
gear. For example, fishermen using trawis or other gear that has bottom contact run an
increased risk of snagging on the cable and losing or damaging gear. For some
previous fiber optic cable projects, fishermen and cable companies have agreed to a
“no fishing" buffer around the fiber optics cables in order to minimize potential
interaction and snags. In addition, nearshore fisheries are likely to be competing for
space with other fisheries that have been displaced. For example, the nearshore area
diractly offshore of the Central Coast supports high, episodic squid fishing activity, and
this iz certainly a concem for this and other nearshore fisharies.
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
and potentially the number of overall frips a vessel could take due to time on the water.
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
Coast fishermen's mapping study) (Exhibit 3-16) it currently takes approximately 7
hours to access the center of the WEA. If fishermen are no longer able to take a direct
route through the WEA, but instead have to go around, that can add at least one or
more hours to the trip depending on the wind facility layout. That additional transit time
adds fuel costs, and reduces the amount of time the fisharmen spend actually fishing
(depending on the fishery). More time to access fishing grounds can ultimately result in
an overall reduction of trips that a vessel is able to take. Less trips generally equate to
less overall harvest, or in the case of recreational/lCPFV fishing, less business. Vessels
also report that in circumstances where the vessels remain at sea overnight, a vessel
ean drift as far as 10 nautical miles. This would mean that fishermen In this situation
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

4 in nd
Fishing is a highly variable vocation, and as such, the construction and operation of a
slationary offshore wind facility and its associated infrastructure have a high probability

of impacting the ability of fisheries to adapt to the changing spatial-temporal conditions
that define fishing. This makes predicting the exacl potential for loss of future fisheries

a1
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as a result of wind development extraordinarily difficult. Fishing activity, especially for
HMS fisheries which vary seasonally in relation to walter temperature, are already
difficult to predict year to year with precision. When coupled with broad scale predictions
and uncertainty related to climate change, including expectations that species will shift
north with warming water trends, it's nearly impossible to say with precision what
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
which allow the activity to resume after nearly two decades of cessation.?® While activity
of this type is not currently occurring in great volume, the construction of offshore wind
facilities would substantially lessen the area where it could.

Currently under development is a comparable study to the North Coast Fishermen's
Mapping Project,® which mapped potential future fishing grounds in the North Coast
(see CD-0001-22 exhibits), which Is expected to show fishing potential on the Central
Coast, which may (or may not) overlap with the Morro Bay WEA. Regardless, a loss of
area to use for future fishing operations makes it more difficult to adapt fishing
operations over time, and as such, business planning for successful years of operations
takes on a higher level of uncertainty. This uncertainty can also expand to related
fishing businesses such as processors and wholesale retailers. As aptly explained in a

public comment letter on the Moo Bay Draft EA from Alliance of Communities for
Sustainable Fisheries:

...ex-vessel values fransiate into waterfront economic activities. As stated in a
2017 report prepared for the Morro Bay Commercial Fishermen’s Organization
(MBCFO), ex-vessel values from commercial fishing are: °...directly responsible
for approximately 200 jobs for skippers, deckhands, dock workers and local
seafood processors, and represents a success story in attracting and retaining
businesses and supporting local business ownership and employment. The
commercial fishing industry and the activity driven by the working waterfroni
makes up the backbone of Morro Bay's Robust and Diverse economy.”

This sentiment echoes concerns raised by fishermen and processors on the Morth

Coast: that even a small loss of fishing grounds and activity can have much more

 Anather example of future fisheries that may be limited by development is Box Crab (Coates, 2018).
The species is currently authorized for limited/exploratory harvest under an experimental fishing panmit
overseen by State fish and wildlife regulators. Three EFPs were authorized for fishing In state waters
ﬁuihﬂfPLEufmpﬁun{EﬂEMdPmepﬂun]
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gxpansive impacts to associated businesses.

(5) Loss or disruption of harbor space and fishing infrastructure at ports due to
increased presence of wind related activities and facilities.

Offshore wind development in the Mormo Bay WEA may require substantial port and
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

wind projects, a 29-acre sile is being developed on an existing waterfront site. Features
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

= 1,200 feet of bulkhead, including BOO feet of deep draft berthing and 400 feet of
barge berthing space

=  Within the most protected port in the U.S., with the U.S. Army Corps Hurricane
Barrier that guards against storms up to Category 3 hurricanes

= Mo height restrictions on site, and no overhead restrictions from the Terminal to
open water

= Easy roadway conneclions to interstate highway system via -85 or 1-495 (via
connections through New Bedford Route 18 and MA Route 140 andfor Route |-
195)

=  No Harbor Maintenance Tax

In terms of fishing, New Bedford is considered one of the most economically valuable
fishing ports in the country supporting more than 100 (homeported) vessels and landing
more than a million pounds of seafood a day (Commercial Fishing, 2018). It is home o
vessels, processors, wholesalers and restaurants that all rely on the industry. The
incorporation of the offshore wind site in Mew Bedford is on an existing developed
parcel, and part of the design includes expanded seafood offioading faciliies. An
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

For the fishing industry, expanded development within the many of the aforementioned
ports could result in additional concerns related to traffic, loss of port and harbor space
and facilities. For example, large vessels, such as those needed to transport turbine
structures could prevent other vessels from transiting in designated channels and delay
in and outbound transits when they are operating. It could also force vessels to operate
outside of main channels, which may harm sensitive natural resources such eelgrass.
However, as noted in the industry letter received on February 9%, 2022, there can also
be some benefits of co-location such as decreased fuel prices and even general harbor
space improvements/repairs. Keeping this siting information in mind, it will be important
to consider the location of offshore wind staging within the harbor, overall spatial
requirements, and the additional impact minimization measures that can be

incorporated into the design that could lessen impacts to the fishing industry and thus
bé consistent with Coastal Act Section 30234.

Coastal Act Analysis and Approaches to Avoidance, Minimization and Mitigation

As described in detail in the previous sections, activities related to offshore wind leasing
and foreseeable future development within the Morro Bay WEA will result in impacts to
the fishermen and fisheres of California’s Central Coast. Several fisheries: pot:
(sablefish) drift gilinet (thresher shark/swordfish), and trolling (albacore tuna) currently
overlap with portions of the WEA and would likely be excluded from these areas if
offshore wind development is authorized. To varying degrees, all Central Coast fisheries
would likely be affected by temporary or permanent displacement, increased cost and
time at sea, traffic, loss or disruption of harbor space and fishing infrastructure within the
port and potential loss of future fishing grounds. As described above, some of these
effects would be felt directly and immediately with lease exploration activities. Other
effects would be felt later in time—likely in the context of lease development activities—
but are still reasonably foreseeable and need to be analyzed and addressed, at least at
a broad scale, at this point in time, In addition, the leasing action itseif will have
immediate effects on fishing because it creates uncertainty for fishermen about where
they will be able to fish in the future, which affects their abllity to conduct longer term
financial planning, such as deciding whether to take on debt to purchase new
equipment. Communications with the fishing industry during outreach activities and
through comments on the BOEM Draft EA reiterate this concemn.

Although the exact impacts of future wind development are not known at this time, there
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
12% of commercial landings statewide®. This value does not fully address the

economic value of fishing crews, fish processors, gear manufacturers, ship supply and

* The Fisheries of the U.S. report, page 38, states $164,327,000 of annual landings in 2019 for the state
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
gamer specific protection under Section 30230. For example, the pot fishery for
sablefish, which conftributes a significant portion of the overall catch landed in the
Central Coast, is likely to experience direct impacts (i.e.; economic loss) given the
overlap in fishing activity with the WEA boundaries.

The Coastal Act requires the protection of commercial and recreational fishing activities
and there are a variety of actions that could be taken to ensure that California’s Central
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

It Is possible, if not likely, that the ultimate solution will include elements of all these
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
addition, if BOEM waited until lessees submiited COPs to analyze and address impacts
to fishing, it would likely be too late to gather the necessary information about the scale
and location of fishing activities as well as potential avoidance, minimization and
mitigation measures that are needed to adequately evaluate and address impacts, This
could significantly delay future project approvals.

In recognition of the importance of direct engagement, and in an effort to begin the
discussion with fishermen about how best to address the impacts described above,
representatives from Slate agencies, including Commission staff, and BOEM held a
series of meetings with representatives of the fishing community in Crescent City,
Eureka, Fort Bragg, Santa Barbara, and Morro Bay.® At this stage of the offshore wind
process, the goal of the outreach was to meaningfully engage the fishing community
about the state and federal processes for OSW development, hear their concems,
answer questions, and determine what the most appropriate avenue for addressing

! Meeting Summaries are avallable here: Upcoming Prolects (ca.gov)
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impacts and mitigation would be moving forward. At these meetings, there were several
concerns that were echoed coastwide, that have largely been reflected in the impact
analysis above. Fishermen had many questions about the scale and type of
developmant that might take place in the coming years, concems that the exclusions,
displacement and spatial conflicts would severely limit their abllity be profitable and to
ansure the longevity of the industry, and an interest in an approach to mitigation that is
fair, equitable, and focuses on resilience of the fisheries and of the fishing industry.
These sentiments have also been reflected in follow up conversations with key
representatives from the fishing community. Most of the fishermen who atiended
outreach meetings expressed their desire to continue fishing for years to come and to
be able to pass down their knowledge and vocation to the next generation.

To achieve these goals, as well as the special protection required by the Coastal Act, all
parties - fishermen, offshore wind developers and state and federal agencies — will
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
statewide to ensure faimess. BOEM has acknowledged the need for a comprehensive
and fair way to address the impacts that offshore wind has on fishing interests and
recently conducted a request for information and public comment period on the
stralegies to addressing impacts to the fishing industry from offshore wind energy
development.* BOEM is also working with NMFS to effectively manage potential

impacts to fisheries surveys that are a critical component of the fisheries regulatory
framework.

Similar to the fishing agreements required by CDPs authorizing fiber optic cable
installation and operation, the sirategy will need to include communication protocols,
bast practices for surveys and data collection, specific measures for avolding and
minimizing impacts for various stages of offshore wind development, and a framework
for compensatory mitigation to address unavoidable impacts. These goals and strategy
components are consistent with verbal and written correspondence the Commission has
racaivad from fishermen from across the state. For example, a February 9, 2022 letter

from sixteen (statewide) fishing and maritime organizations discusses the need for
fishing agreements (page 3):

The principals of Impact avoidance, minimization, and non-monetary
mitigations should be considered for all aspects of an OSW project prior to
compensation-mitigation discussions. Make no mistake: fishermen would
rather have their areas of opportunily preserved than have financial
compensation for the loss.

Once the strategy is developed, it will need to be applied through fishing agreements
between an entity representing fishermen and the developers. These agreements will
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need to lay out how mitigation funds will be spent, how decisions will be made, and the
process for amending the agreement as needed. It Is the Commission's expectalion that
signed fishing agreements, consistent with the statewide sirategy described above, will
be completed and submitted as part of any application for a COP or a consistency
certification for an offshore wind project. To ensure progress toward development of the
statewide strateqy, Condition 7 requires BOEM to work with Commission staff and
other state agency staff to facilitate a working group consisting of fishing
reprasentatives, offshore wind industry representatives and federal and state agency
staff to develop the components of the strategy including a fishing agreement tempiate.
Condition 7 also requires that the strategy include specific consideration for those
fisheries that are disproportionately and/or directly affected by offshore wind
development. Finally, to ensure that potential impacts to commercial and recreational
fishing during the leasa exploration phase are minimized, Condition T requires BOEM
to require lessees to have an independent fisheries liaison that is responsible for
coordination and communication with affected fishermen and harbor districts. The
lisison will work with fishermen to coordinate timing of survey work, which has been a
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
region. BOEM has conveyed that these concems will likely be addressed through the
subsequent stages of its leasing process in which the USCG will be conducting a
MNavigational Safety Risk Assessment. This process has the goal of promoting
navigational safety but is not a unilateral decision. Rather, the USCG makes
recommendations based on the best available information to apply transit lanes and/or
other safety measures to BOEM that the Bureau may then apply to its lessees.
Commercial fishing traffic patterns are a component of this analysis and have been
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
fishing communities are likely to be directly Impacted by lease exploration activities,
including by having increased vessal traffic in the ports near the area, exclusion areas
around metocean buoys, and the economic uncertainties caused by BOEM's leasing
process. In addition, the exact scale and location of future wind development is

ar
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
both the activities in and oulside of the coastal zone will have coastal effecls, as they
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
BOEM require lessees 1o have an independent fishares liaison to coordinate with
fishermen and that BOEM work with state agencies to facilitate a process to develop a
statewide strategy for avoiding, minimizing and mitigating impacts to the fishing industry
from offshore wind development. With the measures incorporated by BOEM into its
leasing program and the conditions imposed by the Commission, BOEM's proposed
activities are consistent with the Coastal Act's mandate to protect commercial and
recreational fishing.

G. O SPILLS
Section 30232 of the Coastal Act states:

Protection against the spillage of crude oll, gas, pelroleum products, or
hazardous substances shall be provided in refation fo any development or
transporiation of such materials. Effective containment and cleanup

facilities and procedures shall be provided for accidental spills that do
OCCLT.

Lease Exploration

The issuance of leases and subsequent site assessment and characterization activities
have the potential to result in oil spills within or outside of the coastal zone, either of
which could affect coastal resources, According to the CD, a spill of petroleum product
could occur as the result of hull damage from collisions with a metocean buoy, collisions
between vessels, accidents during the maintenance or transfer of offshore equipment
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
that an oil spill would dissipate very rapidly and would then evaporate and biodegrade
within a day or two, limiting the potential impacts to a localized area for a short duration.
Regarding the potential for a diesel spill to enter ocean waters and affect coastal
resources, the CD states:

From 2000 to 2008, the average spill size for vessels other than lank ships
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